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(^^0 0 REPORT DATE: 00/ 
BUREAU: FUS 
SECTION(S): 
APPROVED BY: 
DIRECTOR: 
SUPERVISOR: 

PERSON IN CHARGE: 
DOCKET NO: A-125125 

CAPTION SHEET CASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

4. PUBLIC MEETING DATE: 
00/00/00 

7. DATE FILED: 01/02/04 
9. EFFECTIVE DATE: 00/00/00 

PARTY/COMPLAINANT: 

RESPONDENT/APPLICANT: AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES, LLC 

COMP/APP COUNTY: UTILITY CODE: 125125 

ALLEGATION OR SUBJECT 

APPLICATION OF AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES, LLC FOR APPROVAL OF THE TRANSFER OF 
ASSETS FROM AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES- PA, INC., TO SUBURBAN NATURAL GAS AND 
ELECTRICITY, LLC, AND THEREAFTER, CHANGING ITS NAME TO AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES, 
LLC . 

JUCUMENT 
FOLDER 

FEB 1 8 2004 



00/00/01^ 1. REPORT DATE: 
2. BUREAU: FUS 
3. SECTION(S): 
5. APPROVED BY: 

DIRECTOR: 
SUPERVISOR: 

6. PERSON IN CHARGE: 
8. DOCKET NO: A-125125 

CAPTION SHEET MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

4. PUBLIC MEETING DATE: 
00/00/00 

7. DATE FILED: 02/23/04 
9. EFFECTIVE DATE: 00/00/00 

PARTY/COMPLAINANT: 

RESPONDENT/APPLICANT: AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES, LLC 

COMP/APP COUNTY: UTILITY CODE: 125125 

ALLEGATION OR SUBJECT 

APPLICATION OF AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES, LLC FOR APPROVAL TO OFFER, RENDER, 
FURNISH OR SUPPLY NATURAL GAS SERVICES TO THE PUBLIC IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF 
PENNSYLVANIA AS A SUPPLIER OF NATURAL GAS, BROKER/MARKETER, AND AGGREGATOR 
ENGAGED IN THE BUSINESS OF SUPPLYING NATURAL GAS SERVICES. SEE ALSO A-125036 
F2000 FOR THE ABANDONMENT OF NATURAL GAS SERVICES BY AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES-PA, 
INC. 

DOCUMEN 
OLDER FEB 2 7 2004 



S C O T T Hi D E B R O F F , E S 

D E B R O F F C O N S U L T I N G G R O U P 

4709 P I N E R I D G E R O A D 

H A R R I S B U R G , PA 17110 
TELEPHONE: (717) 230-8122 

FAX: (717)230-8125 

January 2,2003\-

Mr. James J. McNulty 
Secretary 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street 
Post Office Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 
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RE: AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES - PA, EVC. P E T m O N T O T 
Docket No. A-125036 

Dear Secretary McNulty: m 0 7 2004 

On December 24, 2003, Suburban Propane LLC ("Suburban") purchased substantially all of the 
assets of Agway Energy Services-PA, Inc. The assets were transferred into an affiliate of 
Suburban called "Suburban Natural Gas and Electricity LLC". 

Suburban is in the process of filing with the PA Secretary of State, an amendment to the foreign 
qualification of "Suburban Natural Gas and Electricity LLC", changing its name to "Agway 
Energy Services LLC". All of the Agway Energy Services-PA, Inc. related activities as well as 
interactions with the customers will thereafter be publicly conducted under the "Agway Energy 
Services LLC" name. 

Other than the changes noted above, all other aspects of Agway's NGS business will remain 
unchanged. The customers will continue to receive bills with substantially the same NGS name 
on it and all existing customer contracts will be honored. There will be no material change from 
the customers' perspective. 

Pursuant to the PA PUC Regulations at Sections 62.105 and 62.112, please aJlow this letter to 
stand as a "Petition to Transfer" Agway Energy Services-PA, Inc.'s Natural Gas Supplier license 
to "Agway Energy Services LLC". 

Suburban Propane is in the process of gathering the appropriate, current information in order to 
file a new license application, which will demonstrate the transferee's financial and technical 
fitness to render service under the transferred license within the next thirty (30) days. 



• 

The company will be sending a letter or postcard to our customers notifying them of the changes 
once they occur and assuring them of continued service with the same terms & conditions. 

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. 

Very Truly Yours, 

Scott H. DeBroff, Esq. 
Counsel for Agway Energy Services LLC 

Cc: Robert Bennett 
Patricia Krise-Burket, Esq. 
Russell Miller (Agway) 
Terry Mclnemey (Agway) 
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VERIFICATION 

I , Russell P. Miller, hereby state that the facts above set forth in this "Petition to 

Transfer" are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief and 

that I expect to be able to prove the same at a hearing held in this matter, i f necessary. I 

understand that the statements herein are made subject to the penalties of 18 Pa.C.S. 

§4904 (relating to Unsworn falsification to authorities). 

Dated: January 2,2003 
Russell P. Miller 
Approved Signer 
Director - Suburban Propane Partners LP 

5 § -n 
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1 As Agway Energy Services LLC is headquartered in Syracuse, New York, Mr. Miller is 
sending an original, signed Verification statement to counsel, who will file it to this docket as 
soon as it arrives. 
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C E R T I F I C A T F O F S E R V I C E 

I hereby certify that I have this day served a true copy of the foregoing document 

upon the participants, listed below, in accordance with the requirements of § 1.54 (relating 

to service by a participant): 

Mr. James J. McNulty 
Secretary 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street 
Post Office Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 

Mr. Robert Bennett (In Hand/Email) 
Bureau of Fixed Utility Services 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street 
Post Office Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 

Ms. Patricia Krise-Burket (In Hand/Email) 
Assistant Counsel - Law Bureau 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street 
Post Office Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 

Ms. Karen Moury (In Hand/Email) 
Deputy Executive Director 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street 
Post Office Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 

Mr. Irwin A. Popowsky (Fax/Email) 
Office of Consumer Advocate 
5 th Floor, Forum Place 
555 Walnut Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17120-1921 

Mr. William Lloyd (Fax/Email) 
Small Business Advocate 
Commerce Building - Suite 1102 
300 North Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 

Dated: January 2, 2003 

Scott H. DeBroff, Esquire 
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February 23,2003^ 

S C O T T H . D E B R O F F , E S Q W 

D E B R O F F C O N S U L T I N G G R O ^ | 

4709 P I N E R I D G E R O A D 

HARRISBURG, PA 17110 
TELEPHONE: (717) 230-8122 

FAX: (717)230-8125 

ORIGINA 

Mr. James J. McNulty 
Secretary 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street 
Post Office Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 
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RE: AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES, L L C - NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER LICENSE 
APPLICATION FILING PURSUANT TO AGWAY ENERGY SERVICES - PA, 
I N C S PETITION TO TRANSFER IT'S LICENSE 
Docket No. A-125125 

Dear Secretary McNulty: 

On January 2, 2004, Agway Energy Services-PA, Inc. filed its "Petition To Transfer its Natural 
Gas Supplier License" to Agway Energy Services LLC in Docket A-125036. 

Pursuant to the PA PUC Regulations at Sections 62.105 and 62.112 (a), attached please find an 
Original and Three (3) Copies of Agway Energy Services LLC's Natural Gas Supplier 
License Application Pursuant to Agway Energy Services-PA, Inc's Petition to Transfer its 
License. 

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. 

Very Truly Yours, 

OLDER 
Scott H. DeBroff, Esq. 
Counsel for Agway Energy Services LLC 



ORIGINA 
C E R T I F I C A T E OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have this day served a true copy of the foregoing document 

upon the participants, listed below, in accordance with the requirements of §1.54 (relating 

to service by a participant) and §5.14 (relating to requirements in the natural gas supplier 

application): 

Mr. James J, McNulty (In Hand) 
Secretary 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street 
Post Office Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 

Mr. Irwin A. Popowsky (Regular Mail) 
Office of Consumer Advocate 
5th Floor, Forum Place 
555 Walnut Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17120-1921 

Mr. William Lloyd (Regular Mail) 
Small Business Advocate 
Commerce Building - Suite 1102 
300 North Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 

U 

FOLDER 

Office of the Attorney General (Regular Mail) 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Strawberry Square, 14th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Commonwealth of PA (Regular Mail) 
Department of Revenue 
Bureau of Compliance 
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946 

Columbia Gas of PA, Inc. (Regular Mail) 
Attn: Erich Evans/ Heather Bauer 
200 Civic Center Drive 
Columbus, OH 43215 

Peoples Natural Gas Company (Regular Mail) 
Joe Gregorini/ Bill McKeown 
625 Liberty Avenue 
Pittsburgh, PA 15222 

Scott H . DeBroff, Esquire 
Counsel for Agway Energy Services LLC 

Dated: February 23,2004 



BEFORE TH NNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTll GINA 
Application of Agway Energy Services, LLC for approval to offer, render, furnish, or as a supplier of natural gas 
services Tas specified in item #8 belowl to the public in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

To the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission: 

1. IDENTITY OF THE APPLICANT: The name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the 
Applicant are: 

Agway Energy Services, LLC 
P.O. Box 4819 
Syracuse, New York 13221^1819 
Phone 1-888-982-4929 
Fax 1-315-449-6682 

Please identify any predecessor{s) of the Applicant and provide other names under which the Applicant has 
operated within the preceding five (5) years, including name, address, and telephone number. 

Agway Energy Services - PA. Inc. 
P.O. Box 4819 
Syracuse, New York 13221-4819 
Phone 1-888-982-4929 

(Agway Energy Services - PA. Inc. is the transferor to Agway Energy Services, LLC) 

2. a. CONTACT PERSON: The name, title, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the person to whom 
questions about this Application should be addressed are: 

Terence X. Mclnerney 
Director of Sales 
P.O. Box 4819 
Syracuse, New York 13221-4819 
315-449-6714 
315-449-6682 n FEB 2 7 2004 

b. CONTACT PERSON-PENNSYLVANIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY: The name, title, address 
telephone number and FAX number of the person with whom contact should be made by PEMA: 

Terence X. Mclnerney 
Director of Sales 
P.O. Box 4819 
Syracuse, New York 13221-4819 
315-449-6714 
315-449-6682 

3.a. ATTORNEY: If applicable, the name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the Applicant's 
attorney are: 

Secondary: 
DeBroff Consulting Group 
Scott H. DeBroff 
4709 Pine Ridge Road 
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17110 

Primary; 
Suburban Propane, L.P. 
Janice Meola 
Legal Department Plaza 1 
240 Route 10 West 
P.O. Box 206 
Whippany, New Jersey 07981 

80 •• 

Naiural Gas Supplier License Applicaiion 
PA PUC Doeumeni *: I J 9 3 « 
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b. REGISTERED 4 f t ) N T : If the Applicant does not maintain a^^bipal office in the Commonwealth, 
the required name, address, telephone number and FAX number of the Applicant's Registered Agent in the 
Commonwealth are: 

CT Corporation CT Corporation 
Corporate Trust Center 1635 Market Street 
1209 Orange Street Philadelphia, PA 19103 
Wilmington, DE. 19801 

4. FICTITIOUS NAME: (select and complete appropriate statement) 

Q The Applicant will be using a fictitious name or doing business as ("d/b/a"): 

Attach to the Application a copy of the Applicant's filing with the Commonwealth's Department of State 
pursuant to 54 Pa. C.S. §311, Form PA-953. 

or 

The Applicant will not be using a fictitious name. 

5. BUSINESS ENTITY AND DEPARTMENT OF STATE FILINGS: (select and complete appropriate 
statement) 

• The Applicant is a sole proprietor. 

If the Applicant is located outside the Commonwealth, provide proof of compliance with 15 Pa. C.S. §4124 
relating to Department of State filing requirements. 

or 

The Applicant is a: 

• domestic general partnership (*) 
• domestic limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8511) 

foreign general or limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §4124) 
domestic limited liability partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8201) 

Q foreign limited liability general partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211) 
foreign limited liability limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211) 

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as indicated 
above. 

Give name, d/b/a, and address of partners. If any partner is not an individual, identify the business nature of 
the partner entity and identify its partners or officers. 

Naiural Gas Supplier License Appficaikxi 
PA PUC Doeumeni * ; 139346 



/12-5-1 ^ 

Attachment "A" 

i s . 

CD - ~D 

g * ^ 
CD O 

CO 



ATTACHMENT "A 
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PENNSYLVANIA DEP^RTMfcNT O* STATE 
CORTORATlpN BUREAU 
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nncteting Sutcnic-nt (Uianga:;) 
DSCB:i5-i34B 

BUREAU USE OKl.V: 

U Hevcnuc ^ Labor & Indnsrry 

H Other 

File CiKia Filed Date 

Parr /. Cumplcic. for each filing: 

Curreill tiiinic ofe/ility or reetalnml (survivor or vntUy iftnerger or consolidation): 

•Sllhurh^n N a t u r a l Can and b l c c t r i c i t y , LLC 

Entity mtlnbcr, i f known: 

Sliitc o f Inc: _ , 

IngutpunHion/qualtftcailon date in VA: Pendi ng 

Federal lilN: 
20-0443196 

Spicilicd cftectivc <I:tlc., i f any: 

Part J f . Check proper tax: 

Aniendin«t\t. («>mpl(?te Seciitm A.) 

ConsoJidation (complete Soction C) 

OmverGioii (aimplctc Stclion A A. li) 

Termination (toiujifcU; Sccliun H) 

, Mergiir, ConmUd*Uot\ or Division (cumjilou: Sccuon Q.C Or D) 

_ Division (coflifilcic S4a:tiori D) 

_ Cvntxaon (complete Soctioiv A ) 

_ Revival (cotnplcic ijectioii G) 

Dissolution before Gomnicticement of Hiisincss (complcu: Scriinn 

Swction A - Check Iwcfaj which pertain in changes: 
J f Name: 

Kitgwtcrod Office: Number & Ktrout/RD number & box number C i l j SUlc Zip County 

dirposc: 

, Stock (i^royat* number of'ahorc authnrized}:. 

"t'orm of Exi.itcncc.* 

, EtTfectlvcdatc: 

. Other: 

Section B - Merger Complete Section A if any changes to mrvlvtng cnilly: 
Mer^infi. Uttdttcs afe: (aUarJi shwlfnr ntidifional fncfgimt tfiiitias) 

Name: Rntity#, iffcnnivn: 

F.ffectjvc date: Inc/qual. ttv(c in PA State ofNw. 

Name: linUtyS. If known: 

F.rr«;tlvc tliilc: lnc./qual. date in PA State of Inc. 



Section C - Cnnsolittation 

(!tin<uiIiHniin(f Ontitios arc; (mtach shcvlfor additional coitsQliiUiting r.atitiesj 
Name: 

P.mliy fi, li"known; Inc.AjiwI date in PA. Slate of Inc. 

Naiiic: 

tuiityff. if'knofvn: Inc/cjual. dote in PA. SlillC o f Inc. 

Section D - Division 

rouuiiig new etuityis) named below: (auached sltcct ior additional cnthioO 

Name: iiniJiy Number: 

Name: lintiiy Number: 

Check one: tndty named in Pail 1 survives, (any chanyce, complete Section A) 

Rnfrty named in Pan I does not survive. 

Section E - Coiivei HUH (cumpleie Sectlnn A) 

Check one: Convened fium nonprofit to ptufit f 'jmvcried from pn»fii to nonprofit 

, Section F - Dissolved by Shurcholdcrs or Incorporator* Before Cum men cement of Busincu 

Section C Sfnlemcnt of Itcvlval (compkit Scctinn A for any changes to revived entity) 

EMtijf rwmwJ in I'm I hereby revives Its charter or aihctcs which were forfeited by Pnv:l;tmation or expired. 

__ .Sncfton H - .Statement of Termination f<t«ucA sheet for addMuml vnMtx Involved) 

(tvoeof filinu made) 
.filed in tlic DbpArtnicuiofSdricon is/aro hcrehy terminated. 

munth/tlaWycar hour, i f any 

If merger. con.Kilidatinn nrdivi^on, lin all cittUicc involved, other than dint li.ncd in I'&it I : 
Naine: Rwiiy number 

Name: tiiliiy numl>cr. 



PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OK STATE 
CORPORATION BUREAU 

Polity Nuoibci 

(..'ity 

Certificate of Amciidment of Registrafion-Foreign 
ri.f Pd.C.S. $ 8^65) 

(imimH Pxrlnerthip 
Kcjjlstcrcd Umlicd Liability Parlnenchip 

. Regi^'cred Limilcd Liabtlily Company 

Zip C.«Jc 

Uucumcnt will bf rHnrnM lo th*r 
name and addnc-M you culn lu '< 
ihv left. 

Fee: SI80 
hied in the DepaTimpnt of Slate on,. 

Sccreiary of ihe Commonwealtli 

Jti compliance with tlic rcquifetncnts of 1.5 Pa C.S. ft 8585 (relniing to amended cciiificaic oficgistjaiioo), the undersign . i , 
rloviring to change the anungemcntj or other facta UCK'I ibed in ii> applicaiion for remsiraiion as a fnntign limited pannerelup, foi'Cî A 
I'i'jlijTCred limited liability partnership Or a fnrwgn limiied liabiriiy company hcicby stales that. 

I The name under u/hich the oss«jcia(ion %*a> ic^i-iicied (or Ian regislcrccl'i to do business in the Otmmonwcalih 
of Pennsylvania is; 

Suburban Natural tas and Eloct r ic i ty , LLC 

2. The (a) address of ils initial regiSlercd office m this Commonu^lth or (b) name of lis commerciol registered 
office prnvirW nnd \he county of venue is: 

(aJNumhcr :iticl street City Stale County 

(hj Nnme of Corntnercial U*fyalcrcd Ollicc Pro^idci 
t/o, CT corporat.ion system 

County 

(if oppticab/cj: Tin- address of ihe registered olltcc of die nasociaiion in this Commonwealth is ftcrehy changed 

(n) Number flr«d ̂ tJeê  City SlSIF Zip Ctiunty 

(b) Name of Commercial Registered Ofllce Provtdci Coun»v 
c/y: 



DSCB. 15-8585-2 

4. I f applicable: The associafion (icsin;? that ib icgiMraiion l)C jniejidcrf lo change ti.< ramt lo: 

Agwoy Encitjy servicee, LLC 

3, appUcublc; The a.winifllion deiircs ihai iic regialrorion be .inicnded HS foUows in order lo rclleci 
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by n duly authorized officer, member or mnnngrr thereof 
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31 day of DOC. .ao03 . 

Numc of Awocintlon 

f i ^ s C o n n e c t i o n , I n c - ; , Member 

B y i J a n i c e MnoJd. 5 ^ f r C L a r y 
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Q * If a corporate p a r ^ B n the Applicant's domestic partnership is^^fcdomidled in Pennsylvania, attach 
a copyof the ApplicM's Department of State filing pursuant to i W a . C.S. §4124. 

or 
Q The Applicant is a : 

Q domestic corporation (none) 
• foreign corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §4124) 
• domestic limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8913) 
M foreign limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8981) 
• Other 

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as indicated above. 
Additionally, provide a copy of the Applicant's Articles of Incorporation. 

Please see attachment "A" 

Give name and address of officers. 

Please see addendum "Question 5" 

The Applicant is incorporated in the state of _Delaware . 

6. AFFILIATES AND PREDECESSORS WITHIN PENNSYLVANIA: {select and complete appropriate 
statement) 

Affiliate(s) of the Applicant doing business in Pennsylvania are: 

Give name and address of the affiliate(s) and state whether the affiliate(s) are jurisdictional public 
utilities. Please see addendum "Question 6" 

Q Does the Applicant have any affiliation with or ownership interest in: 
(a) any other Pennsylvania retail natural gas supplier licensee or licensee applicant, 
(b) any other Pennsylvania retail licensed electric generation supplier or license applicant, 
(c) any Pennsylvania natural gas producer and/or marketer, 
(d) any natural gas wells or 
(e) any local distribution companies (LDCs) in the Commonwealth 

If the response to parts a, b, c, or d above is affirmative, provide a detailed description and explanation of the 
affiliation and/or ownership interest. 

Provide specific details concerning the affiliation and/or ownership interests involving: 
(a) any natural gas producer and/or marketers, 
(b) any wholesale or retail supplier or marketer of natural gas, electricity, oil, propane or other 
energy sources. 

Provide the Pa PUC Docket Number if the applicant has ever applied: 
(a) for a Pennsylvania Natural Gas Supplier license, or 
(b) for a Pennsylvania Electric Generation Supplier license. See addendum "Question 6" 

Naiural Gas Supplier License Application 
PA PUC Documem <f; ] 3 9 3 « 
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Addendum 
Question 5. 

Give name, d/b/a, and address of partners. If any partner is not an 
individual, identify the business nature of the partner entity and identify its 
partners or officers. 

Agway Energy Services, L L C does not have any officers and is managed by Gas 
Connections, Inc. The officers of Gas Connection, Inc. are located at 240 Route 10 
West P.O. Box 206 Whippany, New Jersey 07981 and they are as follows: 

1. ) Mark A. Alexander - Chairperson, CEO & President 
2. ) Michael J. Dunn, Jr. - Senior Vice President 
3. ) David R. Eastin - Senior Vice President 
4. ) Donald Neely - Chief Operating Officer 
5. ) Jeffrey S Jolly - Vice President 
6. ) Michael J. Keating - Vice President 
7. ) Robert M. Plante - Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 
8. ) Russell T. Rupp - Vice President 
9. ) Mark Anton, II - Vice President 
10. )Janice G. Meola - Vice President and Secretary 
U.) Michael A. StivaJa - Controller 
12.) A. Davin D'Ambrosio - Treasurer 

Question 6. 

Give name and address of the affiliate(s) and state whether the affiliate(s) 
are jurisdictional public utilities. 

The following affiliates operate in Pennsylvania and none are jurisdictional public 
utilities: 

Suburban Propane, L.P. 
Suburban Heating Oil Partners, L L C 
Suburban @Home, Inc. 
Suburban Sales & Service, Inc. 

Question 6. 

Provide the Pa PUC Docket Number if the applicant has ever applied: 
(a) for a Pennsylvania Natural Gas Supplier license, A-125036 
(b) for a Pennsylvania Electric Generation Supplier license. A-110114 



u 9 
l^lj tf the Applicant or an affiliate has a predecessor who has done business within Pennsylvania, give 

name and address of the predecessor(s) and state whether the predecessor(s) were jurisdictional 
public utilities. 

Agway Energy Services-PA, Inc. 
333 Butternut Drive 
Dewitt, New York 13214 

This entity was not a public utility 

or 

The Applicant has no affiliates doing business in Pennsylvania or predecessors which have done 
business in Pennsylvania. 

7. APPLICANT'S PRESENT OPERATIONS: (select and complete the appropriate statement) 

2§ The Applicant is presently doing business in Pennsylvania as a 

• natural gas interstate pipeline. 
Q municipal providing service outside its municipal limits. 
Q local gas distribution company 
S I retail supplier of natural gas services in the Commonwealth 
• a natural gas producer 
• Other. (Identify the nature of service being rendered.) 

or 
The Applicant is not presently doing business in Pennsylvania. 

8. APPLICANT'S PROPOSED OPERATIONS: The Applicant proposes to operate as a: 

I S supplier of natural gas services. 
Municipal supplier of natural gas services. 

O Cooperative supplier of natural gas services. 
Broker/Marketer engaged in the business of supplying natural gas services. 
Aggregator engaged in the business of supplying natural gas services. 
Other (Describe): 

Natural Supplier Ucmse Application 
PA PUC Doeumeni #; I 3M46 



9. PROPOSED SERVICES^^bnerally describe the natural gas service^^ch the Applicant proposes to offer. 

Retail Sale of Natural Gas 

10. SERVICE AREA: Generally describe the geographic area in which Applicant proposes to offer services. 

Areas in the Commonwealth where customer choice is available. 

11. CUSTOMERS: Applicant proposes to initially provide services to: 

S) Residential Customers 

S) Commercial Customers - (Less than 6,000 Mcf annually) 
13 Commercial Customers - (6,000 Mcf or more annually) 
• Industrial Customers 

Governmental Customers 
All of above 
Other (Describe): 

12. START DATE: The Applicant proposes to begin delivering services :JMMEDIATE_ 
(approximate date). 

Agway Energy Services, LLC, requests to transfer and intends to continue serving customers in a 
manner consistent with Agway Energy Services -PA INC. 

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 
PA PUC Document #; 139346 



13. NOTICE: Pursuant to s J f e i 5.14 of the Commission's Regulations,' 
signed and verified Application witn^ttachments on the following: 

Pa. Code §5.14, serve a copy of the 

. Irwin A. Popowsky 
Office of Consumer Advocate 
5th Floor, Forum Place 
555 Walnut Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17120-1921 

William Lloyd 
Commerce Building, Suite 1102 
Small Business Advocate 
300 North Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 

Office of the Attorney General 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Strawberry Square, 14th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Department of Revenue 
Bureau of Compliance 
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946 

Any of the following Natural Gas Distribution Companies through whose transmission and distribution 

NUI Valley Cit ies Gas (NUI Transportation Services) 
Mike Vogel 
PO Box 3175 
Union, NJ 07083-1975 
PH: 908.289.5000 ext. 5441 FAX: 908.2898.6444 

National Fuel Gas Distribution Corp. 
Paul R. Mundy 
10 Lafayette Square 
Buffalo, NY 14203 
PH: 716.857.7756 FAX: 716.857.7479 
e-mail: mundvD(3)natfuel.com 

Penn Fuel [North Penn Gas Company & Penn Fuel Gas] 
Jim Evans or Tom Olsen 
2 North 9th Street 
GENA94 
Allentown, PA 18101 
PH: 610.774.7981 610.774.4975 
FAX: 610.774.5694 610.774.4975 
e-mail: ievans@papl.com or teolson@papI.com 

The Peoples Natural Gas Company 
Joe Gregorini or Bill McKeown 
625 Liberty Avenue 
Pittsburgh, PA 15222 
e-mail: jgregorini@png.cng.com 
PH: 412.497.6851 or 412.497.6840 
FAX: 412.497.6630 

T. W. Phillips Gas and Oil Company 
Robert M.' Hovanec 
205 North Main Street 
Butler, PA 16001 
PH: 724.287.2725 FAX: 724.287.5021 
e-mail: rhovanec@twphillips.com 

UGI 
David Beaston or Bob Krieger 
PO Box 12677 or 225 Morgantown Rd 
Reading, PA 15222 Reading, PA 15222 
PH: 610.796.3425 PH: 610.796.3516 
FAX: 610.796.3559 

PG Energy 
Richard N. Marshall or Wendy K. Saxe 
One PEI Center 
Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711-0601 
e-mail: marshall@pgenergy.com or saxe@pgenergy.com 
PH: 570.829.8795 FAX: 570.829.8652 

Equitable Gas Company 
Antionette Litchy 
200 Allegheny Center Mall 
Pittsburgh, PA 15212-5352 
PH: 412.395.3117 FAX: 412.395.3156 

Carnegie Natural G a s Company 
Donald A. Melzer 
800 Regis Avenue 
Pittsburgh, PA 19236 
PH: 412.655.8510 ext. 331 FAX: 412.655.0335 

Columbia Gas of PA, Inc. 
Erich Evans or Heather Bauer 
200 Civic Center Drive 
Columbus, OH 43215 
PH: 614.460.6254 or 614.460.5554 
FAX: 614.460.4291 

Philadelphia Gas Works 
Eric Burgis 
800 West Montgomery Avenue 
Philadelphia, PA 19122 
email: eric.burgis@pgworks.com i-, 
PH: 215.684.6907 FAX: 215.684.6564 ' 

P E C O 
Kevin Carrabine 
300 Front Street Building 2 
Conshohocken, PA 19428 

,RH: 610.832.6413 

Pursuant to Sections 1.57 and 1.58 of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §§1.57 and 1.58, attach Proof of 
Service of the Application and attachments upon the above named parties. Upon review of the Application, further 
notice may be required pursuant to Section 5.14 of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §5.14. 

Nitura l G i s Supplier License Application 
PA PUC Document «; 139346 



14. TAXATION: Complete t h j f c a CERTIFICATION STATEMENT a t t a c H ^ s Appendix B to this application. 
See attachment^B" 

15. COMPLIANCE: State specifically whether the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a person 
identified in this Application has been convicted of a crime involving fraud or similar activity. Identify all 
proceedings, by name, subject and citation, dealing with business operations, in the last five (5) years, 
whether before an administrative body or in a judicial forum, in which the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor 
of either, or a person identified herein has been a defendant or a respondent. Provide a statement as to the 
resolution or present status of any such proceedings. See addendum "Question 15" 

16. STANDARDS, BILLING PRACTICES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PROVIDING SERVICE AND 
CONSUMER EDUCATION: All services should be priced in clearly stated terms to the extent possible. 
Common definitions should be used. All consumer contracts or sales agreements should be written in plain 
language with any exclusions, exceptions, add-ons, package offers, limited time offers or other deadlines 
prominently communicated. Penalties and procedures for ending contracts should be clearly communicated. 

a. Contacts for Consumer Service and Complaints: Provide the name, title, address, telephone number and 
FAX number of the person and an alternate person responsible for addressing customer complaints. 
These persons will ordinarily be the initial point(s) of contact for resolving complaints filed with Applicant, 
the Distribution Company, the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission or other agencies. 

b. Provide a copy of all standard forms or contracts that you use, or propose to use, for service provided to 
residential customers. 

c. If proposing to serve Residential and/or Small Commercial customers, provide a disclosure statement. 
A sample disclosure statement is provided as Appendix B to this Application. See attachment " C " 

17. FINANCIAL FITNESS: 

A. Applicant shall provide sufficient information to demonstrate financial fitness commensurate with the 
service proposed to be provided. Examples of such information which may be submitted include the 
following: 

• Actual (or proposed) organizational structure including parent, affiliated or subsidiary companies. 

• Published parent company financial and credit information. 

• Applicant's balance sheet and income statement for the most recent fiscal year. Published financial 
information such as lOK's and 10Q's may be provided, if available. 

• Evidence of Applicant's credit rating. Applicant may provide a copy of its Dun and Bradstreet Credit 
Report and Robert Morris and Associates financial form or other independent financial service reports. 

• A description of the types and amounts of insurance carried by Applicant which are specifically intended 
to provide for or support its financial fitness to perform its obligations as a licensee. 

• Audited financial statements 

• Such other information that demonstrates Applicant's financial fitness. See addendum "Question 17A" 

B. Applicant must provide the following information: •, r -

• Identify Applicant's chief officers including names and their professional resumes. 

• Provide the name, title, address, telephone number and FAX number of Applicant's custodian for its 
accounting records. See addendum "Question 17B" 

18. TECHNICAL FITNESS: To ensure that the present quality and availability of service provided by natural gas 
utilities does not deteriorate, the Applicant shall provide sufficient information to demonstrate technical fitness 

Naiural G « Supplier Liccmc Application O 
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£achment "B 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

096 1 

TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

A completed Tax Certification Statement must accompany all applications for new licenses, renewals or transfers- Failure to provide the requested 
information and/or any outstanding state income, corporation, and sales (including failure to file or register) will cause your application to be rejected. If 
additional space is needed, please use white 81/2" x 11" paper. Type or print all information requested. 

I . CORPORATE OR APPLICANT NAME 

Agway Energy Services, LLC 

2. BUSINESS PHONE NO. ( 315 ) 449-6714 
CONTACT PERSON(S) FOR TAX ACCOUNTS: Sheryl Conley - 315-449-7309 

3. TRADE/FICTITIOUS NAME (IF ANY) 

4. LICENSED ADDRESS (STREET, RURAL ROUTE, P.O. BOX NO.) 

P.O. Box 4319 Syracuse New York, 13221-4819 

(POST OFFICE) STATE) (ZIP) 

• PARTNERSHIP LLC 5. TYPE OF ENTITY • SOLE PROPRIETOR • CORPORATION 

8. LIST OWNER(S), GENERAL PARTNERS, OR CORPORATE OFFICER(S) 

NAME (PRINT) 

SEE PAGE 2 of Attachment "B" 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

9. LIST THE FOLLOWING STATE TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS. <ALL ITEMS: A. B. AND C MUST BE COMPLETED). 

A. SALES TAX LICENSE f8 DIGITS) APPLICATION 
PENDING N/A 

• • 

C. CORPORATE BOX NUMBER (1 DIGITS) APPLICATION 

PENDING 

• 
N/A 

• 

B. EMPLOYER ID fEIN) (9 DIGITS: 

2 0 - 0 4 4 3 1 9 

APPLICATION 
PENDING N/A 

• • 

1 fl Dn vnn hnvfi PA emnlnvpt: either resiripnl nr nnn-rpsidpnt'' F I VFS n NO 
I I rin vnn own anv a w t s nr have an nffire. in PA 1* n NO 
NAME AND PHONE NUMBER OF PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR FILING TAX RETURNS 

PA SALES AND USE TAX EMPLOYER TAXES CORPORATE TAXES 

Sheryl Conley 
PHONE. 315-449-7309 

Sheryl Conley 
PHONE 315-449-7309 

Sheryl Conley 
PHONE 315-449-7309 

Telephone inquiries about this form may be directed to the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue at the following numbers: (717) 
772-2673, TDD# (717) 772-2252 (Hearing Impaired Only) 

Natural Gas Supplier Licetac Applieation 
PA PUC Document tf: 139146 



Attachment "8" Page 2 

Agway Energy Services, LLC does not have any officers and is managed by Gas 
Connections, Inc. The officers of Gas Connection, Inc. are located at 240 Route 10 West 
P.O. Box 206 Whippany, New Jersey 07981 and they are as follows: 

1. ) Mark A. Alexander - Chairperson, CEO & President 
2. ) Michael J. Dunn, Jr. - Senior Vice President 
3. ) David R. Eastin - Senior Vice President 
4. ) Donald Neely - Chief Operating Officer 
5. ) Jeffrey S Jolly - Vice President 
6. ) Michael J. Keating - Vice President 
7. ) Robert M. Plante - Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 
8. ) Russell T. Rupp - Vice President 
9. ) Mark Anton, II - Vice President 
10. )Janice G. Meola - Vice President and Secretary 
11. ) Michael A. Stivaia - Controller 
12. ) A. Davin D'Ambrosio - Treasurer 
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Question 15. 

COMPLIANCE: State specifically whether the Applicant, an affiliate, a 
predecessor of either, or a person identified in this Application has been 
convicted of a crime involving fraud or similar activity. Identify all proceedings, by 
name, subject and citation, dealing with business operations, in the last five (5) 
years, whether before an administrative body or in a judicial forum, in which the 
Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a person identified herein has 
been a defendant or a respondent. Provide a statement as to the resolution or 
present status of any such proceedings. 

No officer has been convicted of fraud in the last 5 years. 



Natural Gas Dlsclesuro statement 
Agway Energy Services, LLC. 12/15/03 Colurri I HRP Welcome Letter 

Question 16 

This is an agreement for natural gas service, between Agway Energy Services,LLC. (*Agway, LLC) and;John Smith,2 Any St., YORK HAVEN, PA 17370-0000 (Print 
customer's name & full address) NATURAL GAS & HHRP NATURAL GAS & HHRP, NATURAL GAS & HHRP, NATURAL GAS & HHRP NATURAL GAS & HHRP 
(Service address). 

BACKGROUND 
We at Agway, LLC are licensed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission to offer and supply natural gas services in Pennsylvania. Our PUC License Number is A-
110114. 
We set the commodity prices and charges that you pay. The Public Utility Commission regulates distribution prices and services. 
You will be billed monthly by Agway, LLC or your Utility for natural gas delivered under this Agreement at the price agreed to herein. 
Right of Recision: You may cancel this agreement at any time before midnight of the third business day after receiving this disclosure. 

DEFINITIONS 

Commodity Charges: The charges for the natural gas produced which is sold in either cubic feet or dekatherms. 

TERMS OF SERVICE 
1. Variable Rate Option: Your initial price including all Pennsylvania state taxes, shall be $6,995/ Mcf which can vary monthly to reflect market conditions but will be no 

lower than $2.00/ Mcf or higher than $50.00/Mcf. Sales and use taxes will be separately charged. 

Monthly Natural Gas Cost* If You Use: 

Program 15mcf 80mcf 120mcf 

Variable Rate" 
(SmartRate) 

$104.93 $559.60 $839.40 

Fixed Rate 
(FixedRate) 

N/A N/A N/A 

"Above costs represent natural gas costs only. Utility costs to transport natural gas to your house is additional. 
"Variable (SmartRate) is cost only for month noted on reverse side. Variable Rate cost of natural gas will change monthly. 

2. Length of Agreement 
You will buy your natural gas services for the above street address from Agway, LLC beginning on a date set by your Natural Gas Distribution Company and will 
continue for 2 year(s). 

3. Special Terms & Conditions 
(a) Security Deposit: Agway, LLC may request a customer credit report and require the customer to provide a security deposit before providing basic service. We 

may perform a.credit check according to applicable regulations. 
(b) Liability: No party will be liable for any direct, punitive, incidental, consequential, exemplary, indirect, third-party claims are based on contract, warranty, tort, 

negligence, strict liability or otherwise, or for lost profits arising from a breach of this agreement. 
(c) Force Majeure: You and Agway, LLC are relieved of your obligations underthis agreement during a Force Majeure, defined as an event or cause not reasonably 

within the control of a party and which, by exercise of due diligence cannot be prevented or overcome. 
(d) Agency: Agway, LLC -PA is appointed agent.for the purpose of acquiring natural gas supplies, contracting for and administering transportation and other related 

services. 
4. Penalties, Fees and Exceptions 

If you do not pay your bills on time we will charge you a late payment fee of 1.5% per month. We will charge you a returned check fee of $20. 
5. Cancellation Provisions 

If you do not pay your bills on time, we will cancel this agreement by providing you with fifteen (15) days prior written notice. 
You. may cancel this agreement by providing us with thirty (30) days prior written notice in the event that you move from the location noted above. 

6. Agreement Expiration/Change in Terms 
If you have a fixed term agreement with us that is longer that 3 months and it is approaching the expiration date or if we propose to change our terms of service, we 
will send you written notice in the third and second bills for supply charges or in separate mailings before either the expiration date or the effective date or the 
effective date of the changes. We will explain your options in these two advance notices. Agway, LLC reserves the right to pass along increases in Utility charges 
applied directly to Agway (e.g. accounts receivable billing charges, etc.), which are the result of Public Utility Commission Orders or actions. 

7. Dispute Procedures 
Contact us with any questions concerning our terms of service. You may call the PUC if you'are not satisfied after discussing your terms with us. 

Contact Information: 
Agway Energy Services, LLC Public Utility Commission (PUC) 
333 Butternut Drive Tel. No. (412) 244-2626 or 1 -800-764-0111 
DeWitt, NY 13214 P.O. Box 3265 
Tel. No.:1-888-982-4929 Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 
Fax: (315) 449-6682 Natural Gas Competition Hotline: 
On the web at www.aEwavenei gv.com 1-888-782-3228 
Natural Gas Distribution Company Name and Provider of Last Resort: 
Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc 
650 Washington Road 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15228 
Tel. No. 1-888-275-4674 
Universal Service Program Name: Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania Choice Program Tel. No.: 1-888-2754674 



Question 17: 

Fjnancial Fitness: 

The Applicant is a subsidiary of Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., a multi-state 

energy marketer engaged in the distribution of propane gas, heating oil, diesel fuel, 

gasoline as well as the installation of HVAC equipment. Suburban Propane Partners, L. 

P. is one of the largest propane and heating oil companies in the United States. 

Further, the predecessor companies of Agway Energy Services, LLC, Agway Energy 

Services - PA, Inc. and Agway Energy Services, Inc., have been actively engaged in the 

retail marketing of natural gas and electricity primarily within the States of Pennsylvania 

and New York, respectively. 

Agway Energy Services, Inc., participated in the Farm and Food Processor Retail 

Access program instituted by the State of New York and the New York State Electric & 

Gas "Customer Advantage Program" in the upstate New York area; the retail marketing 

of natural gas in the service territory of New York State Electric and Gas Corporation, 

Niagara Mohawk, National Fuel, and Central Hudson. 

Agway Energy Services -PA, Inc. has participated in the customer choice 

programs of Dominion Peoples Natural Gas Company and Columbia Gas of 

Pennsylvania since 1997. Agway Energy Services, LLC, currently has approximately 

80,000 customers through its retail marketing activities.(A chart depicting the 

organization structure of Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., is enclosed herewith.) A copy 



• 

of recent financial statements for Agway Energy Group and Suburban Propane 

Partners, L.P. is annexed hereto. 

17B. Financial Fitness 

Ms. Sheryl Conley of Agway Energy Services, LLC is custodian for all accounting 

records. Phone Number 1-315-449-7309. 



commensurate with th^Brvice proposed to be provided. Examj^Bof such information which may be 
submitted include the fotiowing: 

• The identity of the Applicant's officers directly responsible for operations, including names and their 
professional resumes. 

• A copy of any Federal energy license currently held by the Applicant. 

• Proposed staffing and employee training commitments. 

• Business plans. See addendum "Question 18" 

19. TRANSFER OF LICENSE: The Applicant understands that if it plans to transfer its license to another entity, 
it is required to request authority from the Commission for permission prior to transferring the license. See 66 
Pa. C.S. Section 2208(D). Transferee will be required to file the appropriate licensing application. 

20. UNIFORM STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND DISCLOSURE: As a condition of receiving a license, 
Applicant agrees to conform to any Uniform Standards of Conduct and Disclosure as set forth by the 
Commission. 

21. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Applicant agrees to provide the following information to the Commission or 
the Department of Revenue, as appropriate: 

a. Reports of Gross Receipts: Applicant shall report its Pennsylvania intrastate gross receipts to the 
Commission on an annual basis no later than 30 days following the end of the calendar year. 

Applicant will be required to meet periodic reporting requirements as may be issued by the 
Commission to fulfill the Commission's duty under Chapter 22 pertaining to reliability and to inform 
the Governor and Legislature of the progress of the transition to a fully competitive natural gas 
market. 

22. FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS: Applicant is under a continuing obligation to amend its application if 
substantial changes occur in the information upon which the Commission relied in approving the original 
filing. 

23. FALSIFICATION: The Applicant understands that the making of false statement(s) herein may be grounds 
for denying the Application or, if later discovered, for revoking any authority granted pursuant to the 
Application. This Application is subject to 18 Pa. C.S. §§4903 and 4904, relating to perjury and falsification in 
official matters. 

24. FEE: The Applicant has enclosed the required initial licensing fee of $350.00 payable to the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania. 

Applicant:: A^WQ-, Sier^ LLC 
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Addendum to Question 18 



F 
Question 18. 

Technical Fitness: 

Russ Miller and his staff are directly responsible for the operations of the Applicant in 

connection with the retail marketing of natural gas. They have extensive experience in 

the implementation of natural gas customer choice programs, including coordination with 

the natural gas distribution utilities, natural gas suppliers and end-use customers. Mr. 

Miller has been involved of the marketing of retail electricity pursuant to the Farm and 

Food Processor Retail Access program instituted by the State of New York and the New 

York State Electric & Gas "Customer Advantage Program" in the upstate New York 

area; the retail marketing of natural gas in the service territory of New York State Electric 

and Gas Corporation, Niagara Mohawk, National Fuel, and Central Hudson; the customer 

choice program of Dominion Peoples Natural gas Company and Columbia Gas of 

Pennsylvania. Accordingly he has hands-on experience in the retail marketing of natural 

gas in the era of deregulation and knowledge of the supply requirements of retail 

customers. Through their activities in the States of New York and Pennsylvania, Mr. 

Miller and his staff are responsible for the provision of natural gas to approximately 

41,000 customers and said service has been provided in a professionally competent 

manner. 

The applicant will purchase the requisite gas supply needed to serve its retail customers 

from a respected and competent natural gas supplier with extensive experience in the area 

of natural gas supply. Consequently, the needs of the Applicant's retail customers for 

reliable gas service will be met. 



^ AFFIDAV^ 

[CommonweaUh/State] of New York 

: ss. 

County of Onondaga 

Russ Miller, Affiant, being duly [sworn/affirmed] according to law, deposes and says that: 

[He/she is the Director (Office of Affiant) of Agway Energy Services.LLC (Name of Applicant); 

(That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant;] 

That Agway Energy Services. LLC, the Applicant herein, acknowledges that [Applicant] may have obligations 
pursuant to this Application consistent with the Public Utility Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 66 of 
the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes; or with other applicable statutes or regulations including Emergency Orders 
which may be issued verbally or in writing during any emergency situations that may unexpectedly develop from time to 
time in the course of doing business in Pennsylvania. 

That Agway Energy Services, LLC , the Applicant herein, asserts that [he/she/it] possesses the requisite technical, 
managerial, and financial fitness to render natural gas supply service within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that 
the Applicant will abide by all applicable federal and state laws and regulations and by the decisions of the Pennsylvania 
Public Utility Commission. 

That Agway Energy Services, LLC, the Applicant herein, certifies to the Commission that it is subject to , will pay, 
and in the past has paid, the full amount of taxes imposed by Articles II and XI of the Act of March 4, 1971 (P.L. 6, No. 
2 ), known as the Tax Reform Act of 1971 and any tax imposed by Chapter 22 of Title 66. The Applicant acknowledges 
that failure to pay such taxes or otherwise comply with the taxation requirements of, shall be cause for the Commission 
to revoke the license of the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that it shall report to the Commission its 
jurisdictional natural gas sales for ultimate consumption, for the previous year or as otherwise required by the 
Commission. The Applicant also acknowledges that it is subject to 66 Pa. C.S. §506 (relating to the inspection of 
facilities and records). 

Applicant, by filing of this application waives confidentiality with respect to its state tax information in the possession of 
the Department of Revenue, regardless of the source of the information, and shall consent to the Department of Revenue 
providing that information to the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. 

That Agway Energy Services, LLC , the Applicant herein, acknowledges that it has a statutory obligation to conform 
with 66 Pa. C.S. §506, and the standards and billing practices of 52 PA. Code Chapter 56. 
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; to provide ail consumer education materials and imon That the Applicant agrees to provide ail consumer education materials and imbrmation in a timely manner as requested 
by the Commission's Office of Communications or other Commission bureaus. Materials and information requested 
may be analyzed by the Commission to meet obligations under applicable sections of the law. 

That the facts above set forth are tmc and correct/true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and 
belief. 

Signature of Affiant 

Sworn and subscribed before me this is 3 ^ day of f ^ v i , ^ , y t l & t 

a Signal 
r CYNTHIA A. MILLS 

r : J^y Public, Stats of New York 
My commission expires Qualify In Kadison Co. 01MI60244& 

J K Commission EApiius May 10, XMlf 

Nitural C M Supplier License Applicaiion i i 
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AFFIDA 

[Commonwealth/State] of New York: 

ss. 

County of Onondaga 

Russ Miller, Affiant, being duly [sworn/affirmed] according to law, deposes and says that: 

[He/she is the Director (Office of Affiant) of Agway Energy Services, LLC (Name of Applicant);] 

[That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant;] 

That the Applicant herein Agway Energy Services, LLC has the burden of producing information and supporting 
documentation demonstrating its technical and financial fitness to be licensed as a natural gas supplier pursuant to 66 Pa. 
C.S. §2208(c)(i). 

That the Applicant herein Agway Energy Services, LLC has answered the questions on the application correctly, 
truthfully, and completely and provided supporting documentation as required. 

That the Applicant herein Agway Energy Services, LLC acknowledges that it is under a duty to update information 
provided in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting documents. 

That the Applicant herein Agway Energy Services, LLC acknowledges that it is under a duty to supplement 
information provided in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting documents as requested by 
the Commission. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief, and that 
he/she expects said Applicant to be able to prove the same at hearing. 

Signature of Affiant 

Sworn and subscribed before me this ^2>'*L^' day of ^i?<7fa-^\j ,y&2ditfJ 

r 

My commission expires 

Signajore of official aofninistering oath 
CYNTHIA A. MILLS 

t'3&iy Mite, State of New Yo:!t 
GuaDfted In KadJson Co. 0111136024475 
Commission Expires May 10, 
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SUPPLIER COMPANY CONTACTS 
Company Name: 

Company d/b/a: 

Company License Number: 

Agway Energy Services, LLC Date Submitted: 

M . First Name Last Name Prof. Ti t le Street Citv State Zip Phone FAX F - M m l ^ . 

E X A M P L E : Mr. Robert Bennett Manager P.O. Box 3265 Harrisburg I'A 17105-3265 (717) 787-5553 (717) 772-1933 bennettr^puc.state.pa.us | 

1 Statutory Agent: Mr. Russ Miller Director P.O. Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315) 449-6346 (315) 449-6682 rmilIcrfffiauwav.coin 

2 CEO/Presiden/Director: Mr. Russ Miller Director P.O. Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315)449-6346 (315)449-6682 rmillcr(£fcmwav.com 

3 Regulatory Contact: Mr. Terence Mclnemey Sales Director P.O. Box 4819 Syracuse NY I322M819 (315) 449-6714 (315) 449-6682?nicincrncv(ii)at!wav.con 

4 T a r i f f Contact: Mr. Terence Mclnerney Sales Dtrecior P.O.Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315) 449-6714 (315) 449-6682Jincineriicv(S>;in\v;tv.con 

5 Annual Reoorts: Ms. Sheryl Conley 
Accounting 
Manager P.O. Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315) 449-7309 

1 f -

(315) 449-6682 sconlcv(?i)au\vav.com 

6 Assessments: Ms. Sheryl Conley 
Accounting 
Manager P.O. Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315) 449-7309 (315) 449-6682 sconlcvtShuwavxom 

7 PEMA Contact: Mr. Terence Mclnemey Sales Director P.O.Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315) 449-6714 (315) 449-6682'/nicincrncvf«!:M'^^^'on 

8 Customer Service: Mr. Terence Mclnemey Sales Director P.O. Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315) 449-6714 (315) 449-6682lmdnemev(ffbi:\vav.con 

9 Legal Counsel: Mr. Greg Barksdale Counsel 240 Route 10 West Whippany NJ 7981 (973) 503-9465 (973) 515-5982 3*itffe(?iJsuburbanpi'opan' 

10 Complaints Contact: Mr. Terence Mclnemey Sales Director P.O.Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315)449-6714 (315) 449-6682'^iicinemcv(«i;mwav.con 

11 EDI Transactions: Mr. Terence Mclnemey Sales Director P.O. Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315) 449-6714 (315) 449-6687/iTicineniev(?i)au\vav.con 

12 Electric Phase-In Committee: Mr. Russ Miller Director P.O. Box 4819 Syracuse NY 13221-4819 (315) 449-6346 (315)449-6682 miillcr(«!ai;wav.coni 

Doeumeni No. 152725 
2̂ 5/2004 



Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financials for Agway 
Energy Group (Agway Energy Products, LLC, Agway Energy 
Services, INC. and Agway Energy Services - PA, INC.) and 

Suburban Propane Partners LP 
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The unaudited pro forma condensed combmed financial statements give effect to the Acquisition 
under the purchase method of accounting. The pro forma adjustments are based upon available 
information and assumptions that management believes are reasonable and factually supportable. A 
final determination of purchase accounting adjustmehts, including the allocation of the purchase price 
to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values, has not been made. 
Accordingly, the purchase accounting adjustments made in connection with the development of the 
unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements are preliminary and have been made 
solely for purposes of presenting such pro forma combined financial information. The unaudited pro 
forma condensed combined financial statements do not purport to represent what our financial 
position or results of operations would have been if the purchase transitction had occurred on thiv 
dafes'indicated below, nor do they purpon to project our results of operations for any future period. 

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 27, 2003 was . 
prepared by .combining our audited.consolidated balance sheet as of September 27, 2003 and the 
audited combmed balance sheet of Agway Energy as of June 30, 2003,.giving effect to the pending 
Acquisition and the completion pf this offering.and the concurrent offering of common units as 
though they had been completed on September 27, 2003. The unaudited pro forma condensed 
combined statement of operations for the period .presented combines our historical consolidated 
Statement of operations for the year ended September 27, 2003 and the historical combined statement 
of operation's of Agway Energy for the year ended June 30, 2003, giving effect to the AcquisiiicSn and 
the completioh of this offering and the concurrent offering of common units as if they had occurred 
oil September 29, 2002 (the beginning of our 2003 'fiscal year). The unaudited pro forma condensed 
combined statement of operations does not give effect to any cost savings or other operating 
efficiencies that are expected to result from the integration of the operations of Agway Energy with . 
bur operations, including from the integration of back office .functions, office space and certain iield 
operations. 
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UNAUDITEP m O FORJVtVGPNDENSED COMBINED^ B A L A N C E . S H E ^ X .. 
AS OF SEPTEMBER 27, 2003 

' • • A ' ' • •"•si'- ' Cm thousands*) • ; 

• •. •;. .-Histqiical1 

•y. • i-* "-0 •.• • :'Pr0p'an't-

ASSETS 
Current, assets: 

. Historical Pro Formu 
Ad [usunfents 

Pro Fonna 
Combined 

.. -(-•-• 
Cash and cash equiv^tnts.,.. ..f .'.•> • -. -... ; ..$.15,765. . 

Accounts receivable, lesi^aljo^ya^ce f p i , ; ; . ' : .. 
doubtful, acccnints ... .3^437 . 

Inventories '.. ' 41,'510 
Deferred tax-assets v:".".": I ' : ' / :.:*:." -' ' - • ' : 

S. . 4,180 ., 

,.V: ., 57,842 . 
' 12,150 

•; ••:2)259 

Prepaid expense's ^nd 'ot'h'er curf^nt -1''- -" [-' ;' 

assess . ' . , . .-v.. ; 

Total ciirr6^-assets j r.,... .4 . < , J , . . . , . 1 . . . 98.912. 
Prppe^r^.pla^tvand.^quipment,,^et.... . . • .'̂ 12.790. 
GopdNvili-.'. ^ • > ^.- l -: <r> i<-: \•,24?^36. 
Othersiniangi!ble asse tS i rn^ t . -v -.t'-;- • i3v*Ji$35 

Receivable from AgwajA Inc.. icrsi-. :-• ? 
Other assets.-. -. r-r.1.':. ••« • -9,657 

Total assets : ' . . . $665,630 

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' • 
CAPITAL/COMB INE'D EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 26,204 
Current portion of long-term 

borrowings 42,911 
Customer deposits and advances 23,958 
Other current liabilities 44,640 

Total current liabiliries 137,713 
Long-term borrowings 340,915 
Deferred tax liabilities. — 
Pension and other postretirement benefit 

obligations 75,571 
Other liabilities _27,35_3_ 

Total liabilities 581,552 

Partners* capital/combined equity 84,078 

Total liabilities and partners' • 
capital/combined equity $665,630 

See accompanying notes. 

84,440 
.78,567 ' 

,388 

.12.-723, 
:676 

$176,794 

$ 13,344 

18,821 
35,548 
67,713 

12,849 

14,919 

95,481 

81,313 

$176,794 

8;-l01 

S (4",186)(a).., S .'25,7^5 
.• 10.000 (b) 

'.; . — '. . .94.279 
_ 53,660 

• "(2,259)(ay •••; ' 450 
- :'-:;450 (c) V 

' (7,548)(a) : 

2.440 (d) 

(l',"097) " . . . 182,255 
2*5,433 :(e)"':. 417/790 

, . 23,926 (f). 267,162 
• ,(388H&iu. . .5^035 

- .SCOOO.Ce).. ' v. 
,.(12.723)(ai). .:• • 

•• - (676)(a.)-. • 18,190 
4,000 (g) , - : -. - • 
4,533 (d) m 

$ 94,008 $936,432 

$ -

(29,444) (a) 
(29,444)" 
150.000 (h) 
(12,849)(a) 

(I0,386)(a) 

97^21 

(81.313)(a) 
78.000 (i) 

$ 94,008 

$ 39,548 

42,911 
42,779 
50,744 

175,982 
490,915 

75,571 
31,886 

774,354 

162,078 

$936,432 

2$ 



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS. ; 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER?, 2003 

(in thousands, except per unit amounts) 

Suburban' '. Historicil ' Pro Fonna Pro Foima 
PfOpane " ' " AirVaY Energy • Adjusunwnfe-' Combinfcd 

Revenues 
Propane fuel oil and other fuels 5680,741 $615,364 $ — * $1,296,105 
Other .90,938 • 71.261 • = ' ' • ^2.199 

•771^79' 686,625 — : 1,458.304 
Costs and expenses'" •-• • . 

Cost of products sold '376,783 • 472,341 • • — • .. 849,124 
Operating. 250.698- • 154,945 — • 40̂ ,643 

; •Selling, general and-administrative 36,661- 18,249. (2,300)0') • 52.610 
Depreciation and amortization 27,520 6,865 (61865)(k) 36,120 

... i , . -MV^^_- . . - - - . - s.eoô n • : 
• .69X;662:' ,. :j652.4PQ. ., -•• (565) • 1:343,497 

Income bftforeiimerest expense .and .-. J i - v - ' • •'-
provision-:for income taxes .......v..-,. ,-;::, •• -. • 80,017.'- ,. • 34,225.:,- •: :i 565-, - :-114,807 

Interest expense, ner • .. 33,62? ..5.-0M!^ :.. ^ .O.HXk) .• . 45,654 
" 121025 (m) •'.. ... . 

Income before provision for income taxes.. 46,388 29,211 (6,446) 69,153 
Provision for income taxes../..... •:.."..':r : ' : ' "" ' 2 0 2 f ; " l 0 > 8 4 3 "•. • ••'•{10,S43)(k) 4,202 

jV_^___,--^-- • •• 4,000 (n) ^ - - -
Income from continuing operations (o).•.."$---46,186- $• 18,368, j . v $ • 397 • .•• ...-$,; • 6.4.951 
General Partner's interest in'income "ffbih-• ̂ : : ^-"-^-"i 

contmiiihg operations "$• 1.129'' - $• 1.588 
llimited Partners* interest iri income from1 ' 'v' ; 

• continiling operations': ;':. : ' ' $ 45,0S7 ' ' ' '"' '• '* ; $ 63,363 

Income from continuing operations per 
common'unit-^basic A':' ^$ '̂-1.78 '••-:«" •V--'; : $' • 2.27 

Weighted average number of common 
units outstanding—basic........ .f. . v . / . , - .' 25:,35 .̂ - • ;•' ••• -_. • •27,959 

Income from continuing^ operations per " ".' ' ... . .. • 
common uhit-^dilut6d $ .* 1.77 " ' $ " 2.26 

Weighted average number of common •., ,;••••, . • 
units outst.andingT—diluted •..•..-'•. .. '-25̂ 495. -.-.•;.-. -:, ^ ; • . . • • . . . . . .28,095 

See accompanying notes. . . . . . ' _ • 

•.. . ti 

.Vi-.r"': • • 
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# 

The considerauon to be paid and preliminary purchase "price allocation based upon estimaied fair 
values are as follows (in thousands): 

Cash consideration to be paid at closing. • • • •. $206,000 
Estimated Acquisition-related costs and expenses, including fees for investment 

bankers, attorneys, accountants and other out-of-pocket costs .- 8,000 
Total cost of Acquisition ." $214,000 

Net working-capital $. 34,624 
Property, plant and equipment ,- 105,000 
Identifiable intangible assets, including customer lists and non-compete agreements.. . 50,000 
Deferred tax assets : . . : '.. 450 
Goodwill 23,956 
Total cost Of Acquisition •.. $214,000 

In preparing the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statemsnts, we have made 
adjustments to the historical financial statements related to the Acquisition in the purchase business 
combination of certain assets of Agway Energy, including the financing in •connection-with this 
Acquisition. The pre-Acquisition historical results of operations for. Agway Energy are presented 
separately from Acquisition adjustments. The pro forma adjustments for the dates specified above are 
as follows: ' 

(a) Reflects the elimination of assets not acquired and liabilities not assumed by us and the ' 
elimination'of Agway Energy's equity accounts. 

(b) Reflects the combined net proceeds of $224.0 million from the concurrent public offering of 
common units ($78.0 million net of underwriting discounts and offering -expenses) and the private 

. placement of $150.0 million senior notes due 2013-offered hereby ($145.9 million net of estimated 
bank fees) to finance the Acquisition and estimated AcquisitionTrelated costs and expenses of $8.0 
.million. The remaining net proceeds of $l0.01million are expected to be used to fund estimated 
costs to integrate the operations of Agway Energy with our operations. 

(c) Reflects deferred tax asset established in connection with temporary differences-related to the 
'allowance for bad debts. 

(d) Agway Energy's combined balance sheet as of June 30, 2003 included an envirohmental reserve in 
the amount of S7.0 million ($2.5 million witbiii other current liabilities and $4.5 rriiUion within 
other liabilities). Based on our current best estimate of future costs for environmental 
investigations, remediation and ongoing monitoring activities associated with acquired properties 
with either known or probable environmental exposures, the pro forma combined, current and 
noncurrent liabilities reflect such reserve amounts. Under the Purchase Agreement, Agway, Inc. 
has set aside $15.0 million from the total purchase price in a separate escrow account ta-fund such 
future environmental costs and expenses. Accordingly, this adjustment is to"record a ' 
corresponding asset of $7.0 million ($2.5 million within other current assets and $4.5 million within 
other assets) related to the future reimbursement from escrowed'funds for environmental 
spending. Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the escrowed funds will be used to fund 
such environmental remediation costs during the first three years following the closing date of the 
Acquisition. Subject to amounts withheld with respect to any pending claims made prior to the 
third anniversary of the closing date of the Acquisition, any remaining escrowed'funds will be 
remitted to Agway, Inc. at the end of the three-year period. 

(e) Reflects the pro forma allocation of the purchase price to record property, plant and equipment 
acquired at their estimated fair value and to establish an estimate of the fair value of identifiable 
intangible assets. Acquired property, plane and equipment consist primarily of land and 
improvements; buildings and improvements; transportation equipment; storage facilities; and 
equipment, primarily tanks and cylinders. For purposes of the pro forma adjustments, we have 
estimated a composite life of 20 years for property, plant and equipment. The composite life is 

-28 



calculated by taking the weighted average lives of the separate asset groups with useful lives 
ranging from 3 to 40 years.' Identifiable intangible assets ̂ consist primarily of customer lists, with 
an estimated amortization period of 15 years, and non-compete, agreements to be amortized over 
the periods of the'related agreements! .' 

(f) Reflects the establishment of goodwill related to the estimate of the excess of the total cost of the 
Acquisition over the fair'value of assets'acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill recorded in 
connection with this Acquisition will not be amortized'in accordance with SFAS No. 142. For 
purposes of the pro forma presentation, the allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed was based on our preliminary assessment of fair values. It is possible that 
an additional portion of the purchase price may be allocated to identifiable intangible assets or 
property, plant and equipment, thus reducing' rh'e'! amount o'f excess purchase price to be allocated 
to goodwill. 'For every S1.0 million reduction in goodwill for additional value to be assigned to 
identifiable intangible assets or property, plant and equipment, depreciation and ataortization 
expense would increase by approximately $0.1 million assuming a -10-year useful life. 

(g) Reflects pro forma adjustment to.record estimated.debt issuance costs to be paid in connection 
with the .private placement of $150.0 million of senior.notes due 2013 to finance the Acquisition. 

(h) Reflects the pro forma adjustment to long-term debt to reflect the private placement of'S150.0 
. million of senior notes due. 2013.J.O. fiijanqe a.portion of the.Acquisition and related costs and 

expenses. ; \ 

(i) Reflects the pro forma adjustment to partners' capital'to reflect estimated net proceeds of 
$78.0 miliion' from'ibe issuiriM o'f an estimated: 2,600,-000 common units in a public offering of • 
common units at'an estimated offering'price of"S31.75 £'er'cbmmon unit based on the closing price 
of bur common units at pecember l, 2003. " •" : '" 

(j) Reflects the pro-forma adjustment to "eliminate postretirement:medical expenses included within . 
Agway Energy's historical' statement.of operations'; Undear the.terms of the Purchase Agreement,. 
we have not assumed the retiree medical plan of Agway Energy nor did we assume any of the . 
associated liabilities for the plan. Our postretirement medical plan was frozen to new participants 
effective January 1, 2000 and, as such;-comparable benefits .will-not be provided by us. . 

s . ",',•*• ''' • .• • • 
(k) Reflects the adjustment .to eliminate the Agway: Energy-.historical depreciation and amortization . 

. .expense, interest expense and .provision for income taxes.. 

(1) Reflects'prb iforma adjustment to depreciation and amortization expanse based on. the portion of 
the purchase price preliminarily allocated to' propertyi plant and Equipment and amortizable 
intangible assets based on the composite useful life of property, plant and equipment and.a 
15-year life for intangible assets; as described in (e) above., recorded on a straight-line basis. 

(m) Reflects pro forma interest expense related to the estimated $150.0 million private placement of 
the notes to be offered'hereby to-be'used tb finance the Acquisition at'an assumed interest rate 
commensurate with those of similarly situated companies; as well as-amortization of debt issuance 
costs over a period of 10 years. 

(n) Reflects pro forma income taxes for..the portion of the acquired assets and operations that will not 
be operated by our operating partnership. 

(o) Income from continuing operations does not include a gain on the sale of nine customer service 
centers in the amount of $2.5 million reported within pur historical statement of operations for the 
year ended September 27,'2003 as the gain was reflected within' discontinued operations tinder 
SFAS No. 144. * ' 
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Audited Combined Financials for Agway Energy Group (Agway 
Energy Products, LLC, Agway Energy Services, INC. and Agway 

Energy Services - PA, INC.) 
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PRICB/VATEMOUSECWPERS 

AGWAY E N E R G Y GROUP 
(AGWAY E N E R G Y PRODUCTS, L L C , 
AGWAY E N E R G Y S E R V I C E S , INC. AND 
AGWAY E N E R G Y S E R V I C E S - PA, INC.) 
REPORT ON AUDITED 
COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001 



PRICB/VATERHOUSE&OPERS 

PricewnterhouseCoopers LLP 
One Lincoln Center 
Syracuse NY 13202 
Telephone (315)474 S541 
Facsimile (315) 473 1385 

R E P O R T O F INDEPENDENT A U D I T O R S 

To the Shareholder of Agway Energy Products, LLC, Agway Energy Services, Inc. and Agway Energy 
Services - PA, Inc. and the Board of Directors of Agway Inc.: 

In our opinion, the accompanying combined statements of financial position and the related combined 
statements of operations, comprehensive income, combined equity and cash flows present fairly, in all 
material respects, the combined financial position of Agway Energy Products, LLC, Agway Energy 
Services, Inc. and Agway Energy Services - PA, Inc., collectively referred to as Agway Energy Group, 
at June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended June 30, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. These combined financial statements are the responsibility of Agway 
Energy Group's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial 
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America which require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the combined financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The accompanying combined financial statements have been prepared assuming Agway Energy Group 
will continue as a going concern. As described in Note 3 to the combined financial statements, Agway 
Energy Group's parent, Agway Inc., and certain of its wholly owned subsidiaries filed petitions for 
reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code on October 1, 2002. This bankruptcy 
filing did not include the Agway Energy Group. From time to time the Agway Energy Group requires 
short-term borrowings to meet seasonal working capital requirements. Such borrowings are provided 
by Agway Inc.'s accumulated cash balances or through a credit facility provided by lenders to Agway 
Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries, including the Agway Energy Group. Further, substantially all of 
Agway Energy Group's assets are pledged as collateral under this facility. These matters raise a 
substantial doubt about Agway Energy Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Management 
plans in regard to this uncertainty are described in Notes 1 and 3. The combined financial statements 
do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 

November 11, 2003 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30. 2003 AND 2002 
(Thousands of Dollars') 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade receivables, less allowance for doubtful 

accounts of $2,236 and S1,750, respectively 
Lease receivables, current 
Inventories 
Deferred tax assets 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Total current assets 

Lease receivables 
Receivable from Agway, Inc. 
Properties and equipment, net 
Intangible assets, net 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND COMBINED EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Current installment of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Trade receivables with credit balances 
Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term debt 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Insured claims deductible reserve 
Environmental reserve 
Other long term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies 

Combined equity: 
Common stock (AES), SI par value; 1,000 shares 
Authorized; 1,000 issued and outstanding 
Common stock (AES -PA), St par value; 1,000 shares 
Authorized; 1,000 issued and outstanding 
Retained earnings (AES and AES-PA) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 
Member's equity (AEP) 

Combined equity 

Total liabilities and combined equity 

779 
78.175 

2003 2002 

S 4,180 S 3,166 

57,579 47,390 
263 0 

12,150 14,710 
2,259 1,952 
8,009 7,143 

84,440 74,361 

676 0 
12,723 4,436 
78,567 75,482 

388 471 
S 176.794 S 154.750 

S 25 $ 25 
13,344 16,848 
18,821 26,051 
35,523 21,120 
67,713 64,044 

25 50 
12,849 13,761 
10,361 10,901 
4,533 1,765 

0 1,141 
95,481 

1 

1 

2,357 

91,662 

1 

1 

490 
922 

61,674 
81.313 63.088 

S 176.794 S 154.750 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002, AND 2001 

Product sales 
Service and equipment revenue 

Total sales and revenue 

Cost of product sold 
Operating expenses 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 
Interest expense 
interest income 
Other income, net 
Earnings before income taxes and accounting change 
Income tax expense 
Earnings before cumulative effect of accounting change 

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 
benefit of'SO, SO and $723, respectively 

NET EARNINGS 

2003 2002 2001 

S 615,364 S 471,484 S 664,562 
71.261 63.586 59,912 
686,625 535,070 724,474 

472,341 352,595 531,672 
163,162 148,844 153,537 
18,249 16,067 16,006 
6,067 6,263 6,792 
(1,053) (746) (1,380) 
(1,352) (1.002) (4.163) 
29,211 13,049 22,010 
10.843 5,567 7,597 
18,368 7,482 14,413 

0 0 (1.057) 

S 18.368 S 7.482 S 13.356 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002, AND 2001 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

2003 2002 2001 

Net earnings 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax: 
Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives, net of tax: 

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 
expense of SO, SO and 52,041, respectively 

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during period, 
net of tax expense (benefit) of 55,515, 5(1,300) 
and 51,341, respectively 

Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses 
included in net earnings, net of tax expense 
(benefit) of 5(5,610), 52,333 and 5(3,799), 
respectively 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 

Comprehensive income 

S 18,368 5 7,482 S 13,356 

0 0 3,061 

8,272 (1,951) 2,012 

(8,415) 3,499 (5.699) 

(143) 1,548 (626) 

S 18.225 S 9.030 S 12J30 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 



ft 
AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN COMBINED EQUITY 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001 

(Thousands of Dollars') 

Common Slock Common Stock Accumulated AES/ 
(AES) (AES-PA) Oilier AES-PA AEP Total 

(Par Value SI) 
Shares Amount 

(Par Value SI) 
Shares Amount 

Comprehensive Retained 
lite (Loss) Earnings 

Member's 
Etiuitv 

Combined 
Equitv 

Balance June 30.2000 1,000 S 1 1.000 s I S O S (904) S 48.230 S 47,328 

Net earnings (loss) 
Dividends declared 
Other comprehensive loss 

Balance June 30. 2001 

(1.203) 

(626) 

14.559 
(6.000) 

13.356 
(6.000) 

(626) 

Net earnings (loss) 
Dividends declared 
Other comprehensive loss 

Balance June 30. 2001 1,000 1 1,000 1 (626) (2.107) 56,789 54.058 

Net earnings 
Dividends declared 
Other comprehensive income 

Balance June 30. 2002 

2,597 

1.548 

4,885 
0 

7.482 
0 

1.548 

Net earnings 
Dividends declared 
Other comprehensive income 

Balance June 30. 2002 1,000 1 1,000 1 922 490 61,674 63,088 

Net earnings 
Dividends declared 
Olher comprehensive loss 

Balance June 30. 2003 

1.867 

(143) 

16.501 
0 

18.368 
0 

(1431 

Net earnings 
Dividends declared 
Olher comprehensive loss 

Balance June 30. 2003 1.000 S 1 1.000 S 1 S 779 S 2.357 S_78.l.75 S_8„1.3.13 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003, 2002 AND 2001 
(Thousands of Dollars) 

2003 2002 2001 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash 
from operating activities: 

18,368 7.482 13,356 

Depreciation and amortization 6,865 7,148 7,470 
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) (1,123) 1.653 598 
Receivable provision 2,530 2,802 2,230 
Gain on disposition of properties and equipment (114) (227) (982) 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Trade and other receivables (13,658) 22,175 (7,017) 
Inventories 2,560 8,343 9,762 
Accounts payable (3,504) 1,369 (1,799) 
Other assets (866) (1,611) 4,784 
Other 8.021 7.879 (6.455) 

Net cash flows provided by operating activities 19.079 57.013 21.947 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Cash paid for acquisition 0 0 (484) 
Purchases of properties and equipment (10,151) (5,886) (10,536) 
Proceeds from sale of assets 398 613 2.751 

Net cash flows used in investing activities (9.753) (5,273) (8.269) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Payment on long-term debt (25) (45) 0 
Dividend to parent company 0 0 (6,000) 
Net change in receivable from Agway Inc. (8.287) (52.555) (4.754) 
Net cash flows used in financing activities (8.312) (52,600) (10,754) 

Net increase in cash 1,014 (860) 2,924 
Cash, beginning of year 3.166 4,026 1.102 

CASH, END OF YEAR S 4.180 S 3.166 S 4.026 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Thousands of Dollars) 

1. Description of the Business 

Organization and Basis of Combination 
Agway Energy Products, LLC ("AEP") is a Delaware limited liability company. Agway Energy 
Services, Inc. ("AES") and Agway Energy Services-PA, Inc. ("AES-PA") are incorporated in 
Delaware. All companies are wholly owned by Agway Inc. ("Agway"), and are collectively 
referred to as the Agway Energy Group (the "Group,'). The Group operations constitute Agway's 
energy-related businesses and are operated under common management. AEP is a full-service 
energy solutions provider to residential, farm, and commercial customers principally in New 
York, Pennsylvania. New Jersey and Vennont. AEP is engaged in the sale and delivery of fuel 
oil, kerosene, propane, gasoline and diesel fuel and serves the majority of its customer base by 
providing home comfort, particularly in the area of heating, ventilation, and air conditioning 
(HVAC) equipment and fuels to power these systems. AEP installs and services all types of 
whole house warm and cool air systems (furnaces, boilers, air conditioners) air cleaners, 
humidifiers, de-humidifiers, health products, space heaters, room air conditioners and water 
systems. Services such as duct cleaning, air balancing, and energy audits are also offered. A 
product emphasis on oil and propane heating fuels creates seasonal increases in sales and working 
capital requirements in the fall and winter months. All products are purchased from numerous 
suppliers or through open market purchases. AES and AES-PA market natural gas and electricity 
to residential and commercial customers in New York and Pennsylvania where deregulation 
makes that possible. Weather and commodity prices impact the Group's sales, cost of sales and 
working capital requirements. 

During 2003, the Group owned and operated, within its geographic territory, 138 facilities, 
including sales, distribution and service stations. The Group believes that these facilities are 
sufficient to meet the current operating requirements of the business. In June 2000, the Group 
sold 6 of its 7 terminals to Buckeye Partners, L.P. ("Buckeye"). In May 2001, the Group sold its 
final terminal to Buckeye and no longer operates terminals. An agreement with Buckeye allows 
the Group to utilize these terminal facilities for storage as part of its distribution network through 
2025. The sale of the terminals has been a pail of the Group's strategy to focus on growing its 
retail energy business. 

The combined financial statements include the accounts of AEP, AES, and AES-PA. No 
significant intercompany transactions exist between entities. Unless otherwise noted, the amounts 
included herein refer to the Group. 

Subsequent Event 
As discussed in Note 3, on October I , 2002, Agway and certain of its subsidiaries (not including 
the Group) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy 
Code (the "Chapter 11 Proceedings"). In connection with the Chapter 11 Proceedings, Agway 
announced on April 21, 2003 that it would immediately begin exploring the potential sales of 
each of its remaining businesses while exploring other strategic opportunities that could result in 
greater value for Agway Inc.'s creditors. On November 10, 2003, the Agway Energy Group 
entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement to sell substantially all of the assets and certain 
liabilities of the Group. The sale is subject to auction and final approval in the U.S. Bankruptcy 
Court for the Northern District of New York in Utica, New York ("Bankruptcy Court"). 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Thousands of Dollars) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 
On July 1, 2000, upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, 
the Group recorded a net-of-tax cumulative-effect loss of $1,057 to recognize at fair value the 
time value component of all option contracts which are excluded from the assessment of hedge 
effectiveness as allowed by the standard. The Group also recorded a net-of-tax cumulative-effect 
gain of S3,061 in other comprehensive income to recognize at fair value all derivative instruments 
that are designated and qualify as cash-flow hedges. See Commodity Instruments section of this 
Note for further details of the Group's accounting for derivatives and hedging activities. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Group considers all investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to 
be cash equivalents. 

Trade Receivables 
The Group uses the allowance method to account for doubtful accounts. Under the allowance 
method, the Group reduces its receivables to amounts it deems collectible. Trade receivables 
with credit balances represent customer prepayments. Interest is credited to customers' 
prepayment balances. The weighted average interest rate used to credit customer prepayment 
balances approximated 3.25%, 5.0% and 5.0% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 
2001, respectively. Certain receivables of AES and AES-PA are pledged as collateral to certain 
utilities under agreements whereby the utilities billed customers on behalf of the Group. The 
remainder of the receivables are pledged as collateral under the DIP Facility, as discussed in 
Note 4 

Lease Receivables 
Subsequent to the sale of substantially all of the assets of Telmark LLC ("Telmark1'), a sister 
company, the Group purchased lease receivables with a net present value of S939 from Telmark 
on June 30, 2003. These receivables relate to the lease of equipment to various independent 
companies who deliver fuel for the Group. Interest and finance charge income is recognized as 
interest income, by using the interest method over the term of the lease. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. For those inventories stated at cost, the 
average unit cost method is used. 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

fThousands oF Dollars) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Commodity Instruments 
SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," requires that all 
derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair 
value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income, 
depending on whether a derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the 
type of hedge transaction. For fair-value hedge transactions in which the Group is hedging 
changes in fair value of an asset, liability, or firm commitment, changes in the fair value of the 
derivative instrument will generally be offset in the income statement by changes in the hedged 
item's fair value. For cash-flow hedge transactions in which the Group is hedging the variability 
of cash flows related to a variable-priced asset, liability, or a forecasted transaction, changes in 
the fair value of the derivative instrument will be reported in other comprehensive income. The 
gains and losses on the derivative instrument that are reported in other comprehensive income 
will be reclassified as earnings in the periods in which earnings are impacted by the variability of 
the cash flows of the hedged item. The ineffective portion of all hedges will be recognized in 
current-period earnings. 

The Group enters into a combination of exchange-traded futures and options contracts and, in 
certain circumstances, over-the-counter options (collectively "derivatives") to manage the price 
risk associated with future purchases of the commodities used in its operations, principally 
heating oil and propane. The Group has fair value hedges associated with its fixed price sales 
contracts and cash flow hedges for its variable priced purchase contracts. The derivatives are 
specifically matched in volume and maturity with the various purchase commitments of the 
business and generally expire within a year. Under SFAS No. 133, the value of option contracts 
that the Group enters into has two components of value: time value and intrinsic value. The 
intrinsic value is the value by which the option is in the money (i.e., the amount by which the 
value of the commodity exceeds the exercise or "strike" price of the option). The remaining 
amount of option value is attributable to time value. The Group does not include the time value 
of option contracts in its assessment of hedge effectiveness and therefore records changes in the 
time value component of its options currently in earnings. At June 30, 2003, the Group had a 
derivative asset of S2,400 recorded in prepaid and other current assets. In addition, an after-tax 
total of S779 of deferred net unrealized gains on derivatives ins tinmen ts was accumulated in other 
comprehensive income and is expected to be reclassified into earnings during the next 12 months. 

The pre-tax earnings impact for the time value component of option value not used in assessing 
hedge effectiveness totaled Si,800 upon the initial adoption of SFAS No. 133 at July I , 2000, and 
is included, net of tax, in the cumulative effect of accounting change. For the years ended 
June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, losses of $2,500, Si,800 and $3,400, respectively, are included in 
cost of goods sold for the change in option time value not used in the assessment of hedge 
effectiveness. 

In conjunction with its hedging programs, the Group has established brokerage accounts with a 
registered brokerage firm. Under the terms of the brokerage agreement, the broker has the right to 
make a margin call on the Group to cover any deficit balances. In addition, the broker has a 
continuing lien on any accounts held with the brokerage firm. At June 30, 2003, the fair value of 
the positions held in the brokerage accounts covered the Group's margin requirements. 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

fThousands of Dollars) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Properties and Equipment 
Properties and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated over the estimated useful lives 
of the respective assets principally by the straight-line method. Ordinary maintenance and repairs 
are charged to operations as incurred. All of the Group's property and equipment is pledged as 
collateral under Agway's Debtor in Possession Credit Facility ("DIP Facility") as described in 
Note 4. Gains and losses on disposition or retirement of assets are reflected in income as 
incurred. The useful lives for the respective assets are as follows: 

Number of Years 
Propane loaned equipment 30 
Buildings 13-20 
Machinery and equipment 2-20 
Automotive equipment 6-12 
Leasehold improvements 5 
Office equipment 3-5 

Prepaids and Other Current Assets 
Prepaids and other current assets include prepaid product taxes, deposits with suppliers and 
derivative assets. 

Intangible Assets 
As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the Group held acquired intangible assets consisting of customer 
lists and non-competes with a carrying amount of S388 and $471, respectively. Intangible assets 
like these with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives and had amortization 
expense during the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 of S83, S83 and $14, respectively. 

Receivable with Agway Inc. 
The Group utilizes the bank accounts of its parent, Agway. Accordingly, the Group draws checks 
against Agway's accounts and also makes deposits to these accounts. The Group's net cash 
activity accumulates in the net intercompany account with Agway. Certain shared expenses 
incurred by Agway on behalf of the Group are charged to the Group through the net 
intercompany account for such things as information services, payroll, facilities, risk management 
and interest. The expenses are allocated to the Group and Agway's other business units based 
upon each business unit's usage, as determined by relevant metrics, which management believes 
to be a reasonable basis for such allocations. In addition, as discussed in Note 10, the Group pays 
Agway through the intercompany account to assume the Group's obligations to pay deductible 
amounts on insured claims against the Group. These obligations are fully collateralized by letters 
of credit and surety bonds. 

As discussed in Note 3, on October 1, 2002, Agway and certain subsidiaries (not including the 
Group) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy 
Code. As of October 1, 2002. the Group had a pre-petition receivable from Agway of SI02, 
excluding the receivable related to insured claims receivable from Agway. On October 1, 2002, 
the Bankruptcy Court approved a motion to allow Agway and the Group to continue its 
centralized cash management practices and to adjust in the ordinary course their intercompany 
accounts on a daily basis. 

10 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

fThousands of Dollars) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," supersedes 
SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets 
to be Disposed of," while retaining many of the requirements of SFAS No. 121. In accordance 
with SFAS No. 144. Jong-lived assets to be held and used by an entity are to be reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an 
asset may not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows is less 
than the carrying amount of the asset, an impainnent loss is recognized by reducing the recorded 
value to fair value. The Group recognized no impact in its financial statements regarding the 
adoption of this statement. 

Environmental Remediation Costs 
The Group accmes for losses associated with environmental remediation obligations when such 
losses are probable and reasonably estimable. Accruals for estimated losses from environmental 
remediation obligations generally are recognized no later than completion of the remedial 
feasibility study. Such accruals are adjusted as further information develops or circumstances 
change. Costs of future expenditures for environmental remediation obligations are not 
discounted to their present value. Recoveries of environmental remediation costs from other 
parties are recognized upon notification of coverage by the other party. 

Comprehensive Income 
Comprehensive income consists of net earnings (loss) and deferred gains and losses on cash flow 
hedges, net of tax. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenues from product sales are recorded when the goods are delivered, title and risk of loss 
passes to the customer and collection is reasonably assured. Revenues from installation, cleaning 
and repair services are recognized upon completion of the service perfonned. Revenues from 
service contracts are recognized over the life of the contract. 

Advertising Costs 
The Group expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense for the years 
ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, was approximately $6,100, $8,000 and $7,600, respectively. 

Income Taxes 
AEP, AES, and AES-PA are included in a consolidated federal tax return filed by Agway. For 
state income tax filing puiposes, through June 30, 2001, AEP is included as a business division of 
Agway Holdings Inc. Effective July 1, 2001, Agway simplified its corporate structure by 
merging Agway Financial Corporation (AFC) and Agway Holdings, Inc. (AHI) into Agway. 
Beginning July 1, 2001 AEP is included as a business division of Agway for state income tax 
filing purposes. AES and AES-PA file separate state income tax returns. Under tax sharing 
arrangements with Agway, the provision for federal and .state income taxes and related credits 
and cany forwards are calculated on a separate company basis and billed to the applicable entity 
on a periodic basis. 

II 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

fThousands of Dollars) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Income Taxes (continued) 

The Group provides for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109. 
"Accounting for Income Taxes," on a combined separate company basis. Under the liability 
method specified by SFAS No. 109. deferred tax assets and liabilities are based on the difference 
between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities as measured by the tax rates 
which are anticipated to be in effect when these differences reverse. The deferred tax provision 
represents the net change in the assets and liabilities for deferred tax. A valuation allowance is 
established when it is necessary, on a separate company basis, to reduce deferred taxes to 
amounts for which realization is reasonably assumed. 

Insured Claims Deductible Reserve 
Through its parent company, Agway, the Group participates in large deductible insurance 
programs for workers' compensation, general and auto liability. The insurance policies are 
purchased and administered by Agway. The Group's liabilities for these programs are actuarially 
calculated on a separate company basis based on claims filed and an estimate of claims incurred 
but not yet reported. Projection of losses concerning these liabilities is subject to a high degree of 
variability due to factors such as claim settlement patterns, litigation trends and Jegal 
inteipretations. Insurance expenses included in the statements of operations are recognized at 
amounts sufficient to accrue the actuarially calculated insurance liabilities after giving 
consideration to claim payments made. Other costs such as insurance premiums and the costs of 
Agway's risk management department are allocated to the Group based upon the proportion of 
the Group's historical claims to the total claims of Agway. 

The Group pays Agway through the intercompany account to assume the Group's obligations to-
pay deductible amounts on insured claims against the Group. In the event that Agway is unable 
to satisfy the Group's obligations, such claims could be asserted, directly or indirectly, against the 
Group. Consequently, the actuarial estimate of the insured claims is shown as a reserve on the 
Group's balance sheet and Agway's obligation to satisfy those obligations is included as a 
receivable in the intercompany receivable from Agway. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

12 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

fThousands of Dollars) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards 
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has recently issued the following: 

SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities," was issued 
June 2002 and is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. SFAS 
No. 146 addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal 
activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, "Liability Recognition 
for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity Including Certain 
Costs IncuiTed in a Restructuring." The Group implemented this statement for all exit or disposal 
activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of this standard had no impact on the 
financial statements of the Group. 

Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees-
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others." (FIN 45) was issued in November 
2002. FIN 45 elaborates on the existing disclosure requirements for most guarantees, including 
loan guarantees. It also clarifies that at the time a company issues a guarantee, the company must 
recognize an initial liability for the fair value, or market value, of the obligations it assumes under 
that guarantee. However, the provisions related to recognizing a liability at inception of the 
guarantee for the fair value of the guarantor's obligations does not apply to product warranties or 
to guarantees accounted for as derivatives. The initial recognition and initial measurement 
provisions apply on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after 
December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45 are effective for financial statements 
of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002. See Note 10 for discussion of the 
Group's liability recognition and disclosure relating to guarantees. 

Interpretation No. 46. "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities." (FIN 46) was issued in 
January 2003. The interpretation provides guidance on consolidating variable interest entities. 
The interpretation requires variable interest entities to be consolidated if the equity investment at 
risk is not sufficient to permit an entity to finance its activities without support from other parties 
or the equity investors lack certain specified characteristics. In October 2003, the FASB deferred 
the effective date of FIN 46 for all variable interest entities existing prior to February I , 2003 to 
the first reporting period ending after December 15, 2003. The adoption of this standard had no 
impact on the financial statements of the Group. 

SFAS No. 149. "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities," was issued in April 2003. SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies financial accounting 
and reporting for derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities 
under SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Fledging Activities." SFAS 
No. 149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging 
relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The adoption of this standard does not impact the 
Group's accounting and reporting of derivative instruments and hedging activities. 

13 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

fThousands of Dollars) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards (continued) 
SFAS No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both 
Liabilities and Equity/' was issued in May 2003 and is effective for financial instruments entered 
into or modified after May 31, 2003 and otherwise is generally effective for the Group at the 
beginning of the first quarter of fiscal 2004, except for certain provisions related to mandatorily 
redeemable financial instruments for which the standard has been deferred. The adoption of this 
standard does not have an impact on the financial statements of the Group. 

3. Bankruptcy of Parent 

The parent company of the Group, Agway, and certain of its subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions 
for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code on October 1, 2002. AEP, 
AES, and AES-PA were NOT included in the Chapter 11 filings. 

The Group requires short-term borrowings to meet seasonal and working capital requirements. 
Such short-term financing is made available to the Group by the parent company from cash 
accumulated since October 1, 2002 or from Agway's 565,000 DIP Facility described below. The 
Group continues to operate as it had prior to Agway's Chapter 11 Proceedings. However, we 
cannot predict the impact, i f any, from the planned sale of the Group or of Agway's Chapter 11 
Proceedings on the Group's financial condition and results of operations. 

4. Funding from the Parent Company 

Notes Payable 
Agway and certain subsidiaries, including the Group, are direct obligors to the DIP Facility. At 
June 30, 2003, Agway and certain subsidiaries had available under its DIP Facility (described 
below) a $100,000 short-term line of credit, up to $85,000 of which could be used for letters of 
credit. Due to the sale of certain Agway assets, as defined tn the DIP agreement, the upper limit 
of the line of credit was decreased from $125,000 to $100,000 during the quarter ended 
March 31, 2003. In October 2003, subsequent to the Agway's fiscal year-end, the agreement was 
further amended (fourth amendment) reducing the commitment to $65,000 as more fully 
described below. At June 30, 2003, there were no outstanding borrowings on the line of credit. 
As of that date, the letters of credit issued at June 30, 2003 totaled approximately $33,700. 
($26,900 to support the Agway insurance programs, $4,500 to support business activities of the 
Group and the remainder supporting activities of olher subsidiaries). 

June 30. 2003 June 30. 2002 

Bon'owings on line of credit S 0 S 34.180 
Weighted average interest rate _ ^ ^ = ^ ^ = 5.89% 

14 



# 
AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
fThousands of Dollars) 

4. Funding from the Parent Company (continued) 

Agway Senior Debt 
As more fully described below, as a result of the Agway Chapter 11 Proceedings, the Agway 
Senior Debt Agreement ("Senior Debt") has been replaced by the DIP Facility. During the first 
quarter ended September 30, 2002, Agway and certain subsidiaries, including the Group, had 
available under its Senior Debt an asset-based revolving line of credit for up to S150,000 pursuant 
to the tenns of a credit agreement dated March 28, 2001 between Agway, certain subsidiaries, 
including the Group, and a syndicated group of lenders (the "Credit Agreement"). During the 
first quarter ended September 30, 2002, Agway sold certain of its assets for gross proceeds of 
approximately 542,100, which had the impact of reducing the commitment level from 5150,000 
to $125,000. A variety of Agway's assets, including all of the assets of the Group, collateralized 
the Senior Debt and currently collateralize the DIP Facility. Interest rates were determined as 
either prime rate plus 2.5% or the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 4%. The Credit 
Agreement had a number of financial covenants which had restricted capital spending and 
required Agway to maintain minimum levels of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and 
amortization (EBITDA), as defined in the Credit Agreement, and minimum ratios of EBITDA to 
fixed charges and interest of Senior Debt. Prior to June 30, 2002, this Credit Agreement had been 
amended three times in response to violations of financial covenants. In connection with those 
amendments, those violations were waived and certain covenants were modified. 

As of September 30, 2002, Agway was in default under the Credit Agreement, and it was 
necessary to obtain a waiver regarding those covenant violations. Those covenant violations were 
permanently waived on November 14, 2002, and as a result, Agway and subsidiaries, including 
the Group, no longer have any obligations under the Credit Agreement. 

DIP Facility 
On October 22, 2002, the Bankruptcy Court granted Agway and certain subsidiaries, including 
the Group, final approval to enter into an 18-month term DIP Facility of $125,000 with its 
existing lenders to fund working capital requirements. As in the former Credit Agreement, 
interest rates are determined, at the option of Agway, as either prime rate plus 2.5% or the LIBOR 
plus 4%. 

On December 3, 2002, Agway announced the completion of the sale of certain of its other assets 
for gross proceeds of approximately $57,000, which reduced to zero the outstanding revolving 
credit balance with its secured lender and provided $15,000 of cash collateral to support Agway's 
outstanding letters of credit as required per the tenns of the DIP Facility. 

The amount available to Agway and certain of its subsidiaries, including the Group, under this 
DIP Facility is the lesser of the "collateral borrowing base" or, as of June 30, 2003, the $85,000 
upper limit of the line of credit. The collateral boirowing base consists of certain of Agway's 
eligible (as defined in the DIP Facility) accounts receivable and inventory as well as the pledge of 
Agway's limited liability membership interest in Telmark, its wholly owned former leasing 
subsidiary, and cash collateral of $15,000 at June 30, 2003 and of $38,700, or 108% of the 
maximum amount available to be drawn on outstanding letters of credit, as a result of the fourth 
amendment of the DIP Facility effective October 16, 2003. As of June 30, 2003, Agway and 
subsidiaries had $66,300 available under the DIP Facility. 
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AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

^Thousands of Dollars'). 

4. Funding from the Parent Company (continued) 

DIP Facility (continued) 
The DIP Facility has a number of financial covenants which restrict Agway's capital spending 
and require Agway and its business units, including the Group, to maintain minimum levels of 
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, and restructuring charges (EBITDA), 
as defined in the agreement, as well as a maximum level of cash restructuring charges for Agway. 
As of March 31, 2003 and April 30, 2003, Agway was in violation of a financial covenant that 
requires Agway to meet a minimum level of EBITDA for the rolling 12-month periods ended 
March 31, 2003 and April 30, 2003. Agway recognized substantial continuing operations losses 
as a result of the required adoption of a change in accounting for goodwill, the recording of 
charges for the impairment of long-lived assets and the curtailment of its pension plan in 
connection with the potential sale of its business units. On May 19, 2003, the senior lenders 
waived the March 31, 2003 and April 30, 2003 covenant violations and amended the DIP Facility 
to exclude the above losses from future financial covenant calcufations of EBITDA. 

In connection with its April 2003 decision to explore the sale of all its remaining businesses, 
Agway has recorded additional costs in the fourth quarter ended June 30, 2003, including 
additional write-offs of long-lived assets, goodwill and other intangible assets, and additional 
pension plan costs. Due to these additional costs, Agway was again in violation of the financial 
covenant that requires Agway to meet a minimum level of EBITDA for the rolling 12-month 
periods ended June 2003 as well as for July, August, and September 2003. In addition, due to 
complications associated with the potential sale of businesses and the Chapter 11 Proceedings, 
Agway did not provide the senior lenders with an operating plan for fiscal 2004, which was 
required under the agreement by July 31, 2003, or with an audited financial statement for fiscal 
2003, which was required under the agreement by September 30, 2003. On October 16, 2003, as 
a result of the fourth amendment to the DIP Facility, the senior lenders waived the covenant 
violations for the periods ended June, July, August, and September 2003 and amended the DIP 
Facility to eliminate the EBITDA financial covenant for future periods. The senior lenders also 
waived and eliminated the requirement for the operating plan and extended the reporting deadline 
for the audited financial statement to October 30, 2003. In addition to the waivers, the fourth 
amendment reduced the senior lenders' commitment to 565,000 and raised the cash collateral 
requirement for letters of credit obligations to 108% of the maximum amount available to be 
drawn on outstanding letters of credit. As a vesuU of continued complications in completing the 
audited financial statements for fiscal 2003, Agway received a limited waiver as of 
October 31,2003 from the senior lenders further extending this reporting deadline to 
November 30, 2003. 

5. Inventories 

Inventories consist of the following at June 30: 

2003 2002 

Liquid products 
Equipment, parts and accessories 

s 7,670 5 9,702 
4.480 5,008 

5 12J50 S 14.710 



AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Thousands of Dollars) 

Properties and Equipment 

Properties and equipment, at cost, consist of the following at June 30: 

Propane loaned equipment 
Machinery and equipment 
Automotive equipment 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 
Office equipment 
Land and land improvements 
Projects in progress 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Properties and equipment, net 

2003 

77,296 
41,859 
26,087 
12,290 
9,963 
3,973 
1.012 

172,480 
93.913 

2002 

74,533 
40,160 
22,487 
12,017 
8,771 
4,027 
3.010 

165,005 
89.523 

S 78:567 S 75,482 

Depreciation and amortization expense relating to properties and equipment amounted to $6,782, 
$7,065 and $7,456 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Other Liabilities 

Other current liabilities include the following at June 30: 

Accrued income taxes, due Agway 
Accrued incentives 
Accrued vacation pay 
Deferred service revenue 
Insured claims deductible reserve 
Accrued environmental costs 
Other liabilities 
Accrued products tax 
Margin draw on derivative contracts 

2003 2002 

$ 13,108 $ 3,914 
5,586 1,861 
4,485 4,291 
3,664 3,699 
2,613 1,441 
2,440 622 
1,837 1,680 
1,360 2,292 
430 1.320 

S 35.523 S 21.120 

Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt at June 30 consists of obligations related to non-compete agreements as follows: 

2003 2002 

Long-term debt 
Less: current portion 

Total long-term debt 

$ 50 $ 75 
25 25 

s 25 S 50 
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9. Income Taxes 

The Group provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following: 

Current: 
Federal 
State 

Deferred 

2003 

9,253 
2.713 

(1-123) 

2002 2001 

2,779 
1,135 
1.653 
5.567 

5,831 
1,168 

598 

In addition to the provision (benefit) reported above, for the year ended June 30, 2001, the Group 
recorded a current federal and state income tax benefit of S723 in the cumulative effect of 
accounting change for the adoption of SFAS No. 133. See Note 2 for further details. 

The components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of June 30 were as follows: 

Deferred tax assets: 2003 2002 

Insured claims deductible reserve 
Environmental costs 
Accrued vacation 
Accounts receivable reserve 
Tax examination adjustments 
Other reserves 
Other items 
Net operating loss carryforward 
Alternative minimum credit 

Total deferred tax asset 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Excess of tax-over-book depreciation 
Insured claims recoverable from Agway 
Derivative contract value 

Total deferred tax liabilities 
Net deferred tax liability 

5,182 
2,785 
1,352 
893 
767 
444 
163 
0 
0 

,586 

16,475 
5,182 
519 

22.176 

4,929 
953 

1,275 
699 
890 
505 
147 
52 
10 

9,460 

15,726 
4,929 

614 
21.269 

10,590 % 11.809 

AEP's net deferred tax liability at June 30,. 2003 and 2002 of Si 0,590 and Si 1,809, respectively, 
consists of a net current asset of S2,259 and Si,952 and a net long-term liability of SI 2,849 and 
$13,761, respectively. 
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AGWAY ENERGY GROUP 
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

fThousands of Dollars) . 

9. Income Taxes (continued) 

The effective income tax rate on earnings from operations before income taxes differs from the 
federal statutory regular tax rate as follows: 

June 2003 June 2002 June 2001 

Statutory federal income tax rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0% 

Tax effects of: 

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 6.7% 7.6% 6.7% 
Adjustment to prior years' tax liabilities (1) (3.9%) - (7.0%) 
Nondeductible items (2) 0.3% 1.0% 0.5% 
Other items - - 0.3% 
Effective income tax rate 37.1% 42.6% 34.5% 

(1) During 2003, certain tax reserves established in previous years were released as tax benefits. 
As a result of Agway's Chapter 11 Proceedings, these reserves were determined to be no 
longer required. During 2001, certain open audit years with the IRS were determined not to 
have significant tax issues, and therefore, tax reserves established in prior years to cover 
identified exposure were released as tax benefits. 

(2) Nondeductible items are principally related to meal and entertainment expenses. 

10. Commitments and Contingencies 

Environmental 
The Group is subject to various laws and governmental regulations concerning environmental 
matters and expects that it will be required to expend funds to participate in the remediation of 
certain sites, including sites where it has been designated by the Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) as a potentially responsible party (PRP) under the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) and at sites with above and underground 
fuel storage tanks. The Group will incur other expenses associated with environmental 
compliance. 

The Group continually monitors its operations with respect to potential environmental issues, 
including changes in legal requirements and remediation technologies. In addition, during the first 
quarter of fiscal 2004 and in conjunction with the potential sate process, the Group performed an 
environmental review of all of its properties. The review consisted of performing Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessments (ESA's), and at certain sites, groundwater and/or soil samples 
were analyzed for contamination. The Group's recorded liability at June 30, 2003 reflects those 
specific issues uncovered as a result of this review where remediation activities are likely and 
where the Group can estimate the cost of remediation. The Group's environmental remediation 
expense for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $6,447, $832 and $1,187, 
respectively. The Group expects to expend the accrued remediation costs over the next 5 years. 
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10. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 

Environmental (continued) 
Estimating the extent of the Group's responsibility of a particular site and the method and 
ultimate cost of remediation of that site require a number of assumptions. As a result, the 
ultimate outcome of remediation of that site may differ from current estimates. However, the 
Group believes that its past experience provides a reasonable basis for estimating its liability. As 
additional information becomes available, estimates are adjusted as necessary. While the Group 
does not anticipate that any such adjustment would be material to its financial statements, the 
result of ongoing and/or future environmental studies or other factors could alter this expectation 
and require the recording of additional liabilities. The Group currently cannot determine whether 
it will incur additional liabilities in the future or the extent or amount of such additional liabilities. 

Other 
The Group is also subject to various investigations, claims, and legal proceedings covering a wide 
range of matters that arise in the ordinary course of its business activities. Each of these matters is 
subject to various uncertainties, and it is possible that some of these matters may be resolved 
unfavorably to the Group. The Group has established accruals for matters for which payment is 
probable and amounts reasonably estimable. Management believes any liability that may 
ultimately result from the resolution of these matters in excess of amounts provided under the 
above stated policy will not have a material adverse effect on results of operations, financial 
position or liquidity of the Group. 

AEP, with Agway, has made financial cross-guarantees of a mortgage entered into by another 
Agway subsidiary, which generally obligates AEP in the event of default by the other subsidiary 
of Agway. The amount outstanding on the mortgage as of June 30, 2003 was approximately 
SI,600. As of June 30, 2003, the Agway subsidiary was in violation of the minimum earnings 
covenant of the mortgage loan agreement. On October 22, 2003, Agway received a waiver of the 
event of default. 

Indemnification 
In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of 
Others," or FIN 45. FIN 45 elaborates on the existing disclosure requirements for most 
guarantees, including loan guarantees. It also clarifies that at the time a company issues a 
guarantee, the company must recognize an initial liability for the fair value, or market value, of 
the obligations it assumes under that guarantee. However, the provisions related to recognizing a 
liability at inception of the guarantee for the fair value of the guarantor's obligations does not 
apply to product warranties or to guarantees accounted for as derivatives. 
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(Thousands of Dollars) 

10. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 

Indemnification (continued) 

The following is a summary of our agreements that we have determined are within the scope of 
FIN 45: When we sell certain assets, we enter into agreements whereby we indemnify the buyers 
with respect to provisions of the agreement and representations made in the agreement. 
Depending upon the nature of the provision or the representations made, the term of the 
indemnification can be for a period of time fixed in the agreement, fixed by relevant statute of 
law, or may be for an indefinite term. The maximum potential amount of future payments differs 
by agreement and by provision or representation within the agreement and, in some cases, is not 
limited. In addition, the Group has residual value guarantees associated with certain of its 
operating leases, related primarily to transportation equipment, with remaining lease periods 
scheduled to expire periodically through 2009. Upon completion of the lease period, the Group 
guarantees that the fair value of the equipment will equal or exceed the guaranteed amount, or the 
Group will pay the lessor the difference. The maximum potential amount of aggregate future 
payments the Group could be required to make under these leasing arrangements, assuming the 
equipment is deemed worthless at the end of the lease term, is approximately 53,600. No new 
guarantees have been issued since December 31, 2002 that would warrant the recording of a 
liability under FIN 45. 

Insurance Coverage 
Agway contracts with insurance companies for property and casualty coverage for itself and its 
divisions and subsidiaries, including the Group. The main casualty programs are workers' 
compensation, general liability and auto liability and an umbrella excess program that, sits above 
the primary liability policies. As described in Note 2, the primary casualty programs are large 
deductible policies and losses incurred, within the deductible, are paid by Agway. A contingent 
liability exists for the Group to the extent that Agway is unable to satisfy the deductible for 
claims against the Group. As of June 30, 2003, the actuarial estimate of the deductible claim 
liability for insured claims for Agway and its subsidiaries, including claims of the Group, was 
533,800. As of November 11, 2003, payments of these liabilities are currently secured by letters 
of credit of 525,800, surety bonds of 523,900 and cash deposits of 51,100. Since October 16, 
2003 (the effective date of the fourth amendment to the DIP Facility), Agway has had 553,500 in 
cash legally restricted to collateralize these letters of credit and surety bonds. As a result of this 
collateralization, management believes it is remote that Agway will not meet its obligation to the 
Group. 

In addition, in certain circumstances discussed below, the Group may have a contingent liability 
with respect to deductible claims against Agway and its consolidated subsidiaries. As discussed 
above, the 533,800 of consolidated claims liabilities are secured by letters of credit from the DIP 
Facility, of which the Group is a party, as well as by surety bonds and cash. As a direct borrower 
under the DIP Facility the Group is jointly and severally liable for the reimbursement of drawn 
letters of credit. Further, in a suit filed January 29, 2003, the surety issuer (the "Surety") alleges 
that Telmark and the Group are indejnnitors of Agway's liability to the Surety for bonds drawn 
on by third parties and demands 53,176 for such amounts requested for draws as of that time. 
Agway currently disputes this indemnification claim. It is too early to determine the outcome of 
this dispute. However, in connection with the ftnalization of the sale by Agway of substantiaUy 
all of the assets of Telmark, Telmark has transferred 525,700 to Agway under terms of an account 
control agreement legally restricting use of those funds pending resolution of the Surety claims 
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10. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 

against Telmark and the Group. Further, on November 4, 2003, the Group entered into an 
Agreement with Telmark and the Surety whereby the Surety agreed to the assignment by the 
Group of whatever liabilities the Group may have under this indemnity to Telmark. 

Rental and Lease Obligations 
Total rental expense for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003. 2002 and 2001 approximated 
58,300, 57,600 and 56,800 (see Note 12). Future minimum payments as of June 30, 2003 under 
noncancelable operating subleases for each of the next five years and in the aggregate are: 

Year Ended Amount 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
Thereafter 

3,696 
2,483 
2,129 
1,022 

325 
54 

S 9.709 

I I . Supplemental Disclosures about Cash Flows 

Cash paid to Agway Inc.: 
Interest 
Taxes 

2003 

6,068 
3,914 

2002 200: 

6,263 
10,129 

6,793 
7,487 

12. Related Party Transactions 

Cash Management 
The Group utilizes the bank accounts of its parent, Agway. Accordingly, the Group draws checks 
Jigainst Agway's accounts and also makes deposits to these accounts. The Group's net cash 
activity is included in the net intercompany receivable from Agway. 

Inter-Company Transactions 
Selected amounts related to transactions with Agway and subsidiaries are separately disclosed in 
the financial statements. Certain other transactions for the years ended June 30 with Agway and 
Subsidiaries were: 

2003 2002 2001 

Operating expenses 
Administrative and general expenses 
Interest expense 

6,808 
1,960 
5,332 

5,828 
2,280 
5.419 

6,539 
1,816 
6,119 
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12. Related Party Transactions (continued) 

Inter-Company Transactions (continued) 
The interest expense is charged to the Group based on its payable to Agway and equity balance, 
which is reduced by a portion of asset levels, and is at an internal borrowing rate which is set 
from time to time by Agway's treasurer and approximates Agway's external cost of borrowing 
funds. The interest rate charged was 9.0%, 9.0% and 8.2% for the years ended June 30, 2003, 
2002 and 2001, respectively. The administrative and general, and operating expenses include 
certain shared expenses incurred by Agway on behalf of the Group for services such as 
infonnation services, payroll and facilities and risk management, as discussed in Note 2. 

Employee Benefit Plans 
The Group's employees participate in Agway's employee benefit plans, which include a defined 
benefit retirement plan, a defined contribution 401(k) plan, a medical and dental benefit plan, a 
post-retirement medical plan, and a life and health insurance plan. Total benefit costs under these 
plans are allocated by Agway to the Group primarily based on payroll costs. Benefit costs for 
these plans included in operating expenses and in selling, general and administrative expense 
were 59,334, 57,673 and $6,658 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 
These amounts do not include any pension costs for the defined benefit plan as the pension plan is 
over funded and did not require contributions during the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 
2001. 

Leases 
The Group leases vehicles and other equipment through a sublease from its parent, Agway, the 
lessee. Total rental expense incurred under these sublease agreements for the year ended June 30, 
2003, 2002 and 2001 amounted to $6,636, $6,200 and 55,600, respectively. The future minimum 
payments under these leases are included in the amounts reported in Note 10. 

13. Financial and Commodity Instruments 

Fair Value 
Carrying amounts of trade notes and accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their 
fair values. The carrying value of the receivable/payable with Agway approximates fair value as 
the interest rate charged on the balance approximates Agway's external cost of borrowing. 

Credit Risk 
The Group extends unsecured credit to petroleum wholesalers, commercial and residential 
customers. The credit function within the Group manages credit risk associated with these trade 
receivables by routinely assessing the financial strength of its customers. 
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13. Financial and Commodity Instruments (continued) 

Commodity Instruments 

The Group determines the commodity contacts' fair value of its exchange-traded contracts based 
on the settlement prices for open contracts, which are established by the exchange on which the 
instruments are traded. The fair value of the Group's over-the-counter contracts is detennined 
based on quotes from brokers. As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the carrying and fair value of the 
Group's investment in commodity futures and option contracts was S2.400 and S3,600, 
respectively. 

In the normal course of operations, the Group has exposure to market risk from price fluctuations 
associated with commodities such as gasoline, distillate and propane. These price fluctuations 
impact commodity inventories and anticipated transactions in our business. We manage the risk 
of market price fluctuations of some of these commodities by using commodity derivative 
instruments. Commodity derivative instruments include exchange-traded futures and option 
contracts and, in limited circumstances, over-the-counter contracts with third parties. We have 
policies that specify what we can use commodity derivative instruments for and set limits on the 
durations of contracts we enter into and the levels of exposure to market price fluctuations that we 
are trying to protect ourselves against (or hedge). However, because the commodities markets are 
veiy volatile, our gains or losses on these contracts might not fully offset the corresponding 
change in the prices of the underlying commodity, which could lower our earnings. 
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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains f o r w a r d - l o o k i n g statements 
{"Forward-Looking Statements") as d e f i n e d i n the P r i v a t e S e c u r i t i e s L i t i g a t i o n 
Reform Act of 1995 r e l a t i n g t o the Partnership's f u t u r e business e x p e c t a t i o n s 
and p r e d i c t i o n s and f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n and r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s . Some of these 
statements can be i d e n t i f i e d by the use of f o r w a r d - l o o k i n g terminology such as 
"prospects," " o u t l o o k , " " b e l i e v e s , " "estimates," " i n t e n d s , " "may," " w i l l , " 
"should," " a n t i c i p a t e s , " "expects" or "plans" or the negative or ot h e r v a r i a t i o n 
of these or s i m i l a r words, or by d i s c u s s i o n of trends and c o n d i t i o n s , s t r a t e g i e s 
or r i s k s and u n c e r t a i n t i e s . These Forward-Looking Statements i n v o l v e c e r t a i n 
r i s k s and u n c e r t a i n t i e s t h a t c o u l d cause a c t u a l r e s u l t s t o d i f f e r m a t e r i a l l y 
from those discussed or i m p l i e d i n such Forward-Looking Statements ("Cautionary 
Statements"). The r i s k s and u n c e r t a i n t i e s and t h e i r impact on the Partnership's , 
op e r a t i o n s i n c l u d e , but are not l i m i t e d t o , the f o l l o w i n g r i s k s : 

<PAGE? 

o The impact of weather c o n d i t i o n s on the demand f o r propane; 
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o F l u c t u a t i o n s i n the u n i t cost of propane; 
o The a b i l i t y o f the Pa r t n e r s h i p t o compete w i t h other s u p p l i e r s of propane 

and o t h e r energy sources; o The impact on propane p r i c e s and supply from 
the p o l i t i c a l and economic i n s t a b i l i t y o f the o i l producing n a t i o n s and 
oth e r g e n e r a l economic c o n d i t i o n s ; 

o The a b i l i t y o f the Pa r t n e r s h i p t o r e t a i n customers; 
o The impact of energy e f f i c i e n c y and technology advances on the demand f o r 

propane; 
o The a b i l i t y o f management t o continue t o c o n t r o l expenses; 
o The impact of r e g u l a t o r y developments on the Partnership's business; 
o The impact of l e g a l proceedings on the Partnership's business; 
o The P a r t n e r s h i p ' s a b i l i t y t o implement i t s expansion s t r a t e g y i n t o new 

business l i n e s and sectors,-
o The Partnership•• s a b i l i t y t o i n t e g r a t e acquired businesses s u c c e s s f u l l y . 

Some of these Forward-Looking Statements are discussed i n more d e t a i l i n 
"Management's Discussion and A n a l y s i s of F i n a n c i a l C o n d i t i o n and Results of 
Operations" i n t h i s Annual Report. On d i f f e r e n t occasions, the P a r t n e r s h i p or 
i t s r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s have made or may make Forward-Looking Statements i n ot h e r 
f i l i n g s t h a t t h e P a r t n e r s h i p makes w i t h the S e c u r i t i e s and Exchange Commission, 
i n press r e l e a s e s or i n o r a l statements made by or w i t h the approval of one of 
i t s a u t h o r i z e d executive o f f i c e r s . Readers are cautioned not t o place undue 
r e l i a n c e on Forward-Looking o r Cautionary Statements, which r e f l e c t management's 
op i n i o n s o n l y as of the date hereof. The P a r t n e r s h i p undertakes no o b l i g a t i o n t o 
update any Forward-Looking or Cautionary Statement. A l l subsequent w r i t t e n and 
o r a l Forward-Looking Statements a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the Pa r t n e r s h i p or persons 
a c t i n g on i t s b e h a l f are expre s s l y q u a l i f i e d i n t h e i r e n t i r e t y by the Cautionary 
Statements i n t h i s Annual Report and i n f u t u r e SEC r e p o r t s . 

<PAGE> 

PART I 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

GENERAL 

Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. (the " P a r t n e r s h i p " ) , a p u b l i c l y t r a d e d 
Delaware l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p i s p r i n c i p a l l y engaged, through i t s o p e r a t i n g 
p a r t n e r s h i p and s u b s i d i a r i e s , i n the r e t a i l and wholesale marketing of propane 
and r e l a t e d a p p l i a n c e s , p a r t s and s e r v i c e s . Based on LP/Gas Magazine dated 
February 2003, we b e l i e v e we are the t h i r d l a r g e s t r e t a i l marketer of propane i n 
the United S t a t e s , s e r v i n g approximately 750,000 a c t i v e r e s i d e n t i a l , commercial, 
i n d u s t r i a l and a g r i c u l t u r a l customers through approximately 320 customer s e r v i c e 
centers i n 40 s t a t e s as of September 27, 2003. Our ope r a t i o n s are concentrated 
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p r i m a r i l y i n t h e east and west coast regions of the United States. Our r e t a i l 
propane sales volume was approximately 491.5 m i l l i o n g a l l o n s d u r i n g the year 
ended September 27, 2003. I n a d d i t i o n , we s o l d approximately 31.7 m i l l i o n 
g a l l o n s of propane at wholesale t o l a r g e i n d u s t r i a l end-users and ot h e r propane 
d i s t r i b u t o r s d u r i n g the f i s c a l year. Based on i n d u s t r y s t a t i s t i c s c ontained i n 
2001 Sales of N a t u r a l Gas L i q u i d s and L i q u e f i e d R e f i n e r y Gases, as pu b l i s h e d by 
the American Petroleum I n s t i t u t e i n November 2002, our sales volume accounted 
f o r a p p r o x i m a t e l y 4.4% of the domestic r e t a i l market f o r propane d u r i n g the year 
2001. 

We conduct our business p r i n c i p a l l y through Suburban Propane, L.P., a 
Delaware l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p {the "Operating P a r t n e r s h i p " ) . Our general p a r t n e r 
i s Suburban Energy Services Group LLC (the "General P a r t n e r " ) , a Delaware 
l i m i t e d l i a b i l i t y company owned by members of our senior management. The General 
Partner owns a combined 1.71% general p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t i n the Pa r t n e r s h i p and 
the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p and the Pa r t n e r s h i p owns a l l of the l i m i t e d 
p a r t n e r s h i p i n t e r e s t s i n the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p . The Pa r t n e r s h i p and the 
Operating P a r t n e r s h i p commenced o p e r a t i o n s on March 5, 1996 upon consummation of 
an i n i t i a l p u b l i c o f f e r i n g of common u n i t s r e p r e s e n t i n g l i m i t e d p a r t n e r 
i n t e r e s t s i n t h e Pa r t n e r s h i p ("Common U n i t s " ) and the p r i v a t e placement of $425 
m i l l i o n aggregate p r i n c i p a l amount of Senior Notes. Suburban Sales and Service, 
In c . (the "Service Company"), a s u b s i d i a r y of the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p , was 
formed at t h a t time t o operate the s e r v i c e work and appliance and propane 
equipment p a r t s businesses of the Pa r t n e r s h i p . 

Other s u b s i d i a r i e s of the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p i n c l u d e Gas Connection, 
In c . (doing business as HomeTown Hearth & G r i l l ) , Suburban @ Home {"Suburban @ 
Home"), and Suburban F r a n c h i s i n g , I n c . ("Suburban F r a n c h i s i n g " ) . HomeTown Hearth 
& G r i l l s e l l s and i n s t a l l s n a t u r a l gas and propane gas g r i l l s , f i r e p l a c e s and 
r e l a t e d a c c e s s o r i e s and su p p l i e s through twelve r e t a i l s t o r e s i n the south, 
n o r t h e a s t and northwest regions as of September 27, 2003; Suburban ® Home s e l l s , 
i n s t a l l s , s e r v i c e s and r e p a i r s a f u l l range of h e a t i n g and a i r c o n d i t i o n i n g 
products t h r o u g h f i v e r e t a i l l o c a t i o n s i n the south, n o r t h e a s t and northwest 
regions as of September 27, 2003; and Suburban Fr a n c h i s i n g creates and develops 
propane r e l a t e d f r a n c h i s i n g business o p p o r t u n i t i e s . 

In t h i s Annual Report, unless otherwise i n d i c a t e d , the terms " P a r t n e r s h i p , " 
"we," "us," and "our" are used t o r e f e r t o Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. o r t o 
Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. and i t s c o n s o l i d a t e d s u b s i d i a r i e s , i n c l u d i n g the 
Operating P a r t n e r s h i p . 

We c u r r e n t l y f i l e Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Q u a r t e r l y Reports on Form 
10-Q and c u r r e n t r e p o r t s on Form 8-K w i t h the S e c u r i t i e s and Exchange Commission 
("SEC"). The p u b l i c may read and copy any m a t e r i a l s t h a t we f i l e w i t h the SEC at 
the SEC'S P u b l i c Reference Room at 450 F i f t h S t r e e t , N. W., Washington, D.C. 
2 054 9. The p u b l i c may o b t a i n i n f o r m a t i o n on the o p e r a t i o n of the P u b l i c 
Reference Room by c a l l i n g the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Any i n f o r m a t i o n f i l e d by us 
i s a l s o a v a i l a b l e on the SEC's EDGAR database a t www.sec.gov. 
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Upon w r i t t e n request or through a l i n k from our website at 
www.suburbanpropane.com, we w i l l provide, without charge, copies of our Annual 
Report on Form 10-K fo r the f i s c a l year ended September 27, 2003, each of the 
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, current reports f i l e d or furnished on Form 8-K 
and a l l amendments to such reports as soon as i s reasonably practicable a f t e r 
such reports are e l e c t r o n i c a l l y f i l e d with or furnished to the 

<PAGE> 

SEC. Requests should be directed to: Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., Investor 
Relations, P.O. Box 206, Whippany, New Jersey 07981-0206. 

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 

On November 10, 2003, we entered i n t o an asset purchase agreement (the 
"Purchase Agreement") to acquire substantially a l l of the assets and operations 
of Agway Energy Products, LLC, Agway Energy Services PA, Inc. and Agway Energy 
Services, Inc. ( c o l l e c t i v e l y "Agway Energy"), a l l of which e n t i t i e s are wholly 
owned subsidiaries of Agway, inc., for $206.0 m i l l i o n i n cash, subject to 
certain purchase price adjustments. Agway Energy, based i n Syracuse, New York, 
i s a leading regional marketer of propane, fuel o i l , gasoline and diesel fuel 
p r i m a r i l y i n New York, Pennsylvania, New Jersey and Vermont. Based on LP/Gas 
Magazine dated February 2003, Agway Energy i s the eighth largest r e t a i l propane 
marketer i n the United States, operating through approximately 139 d i s t r i b u t i o n 
and sales centers. Agway Energy i s also one of the leading marketers and 
di s t r i b u t o r s of fuel o i l i n the northeast region of the United States. To 
complement i t s core marketing and delivery business, Agway Energy i n s t a l l s and 
services a wide var i e t y of home comfort equipment, p a r t i c u l a r l y i n the area of 
heating, v e n t i l a t i o n and a i r conditioning ("HVAC"). Additionally, to a lesser 
extent, Agway Energy markets natural gas and e l e c t r i c i t y i n New York and 
Pennsylvania. For i t s f i s c a l year ended June 30, 2003, Agway Energy served more 
than 4 00,000 active customers across a l l of i t s lines of business and sold 
approximately 106.3 m i l l i o n gallons of propane and approximately 356.8 m i l l i o n 
gallons of f u e l o i l , gasoline and diesel f u e l to r e t a i l customers for 
re s i d e n t i a l , commercial and a g r i c u l t u r a l applications. See additional discussion 
in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included i n t h i s Annual 
Report. 

Agway Energy i s comprised of three wholly-owned subsidiaries of Agway, Inc. 
Agway, Inc. i s presently a debtor-in-possession under Chapter 11 of the 
Bankruptcy Code i n a bankruptcy proceeding pending before the United States 
Bankruptcy Court for the Northern D i s t r i c t of New York (the "Bankruptcy Court"). 
Agway Energy i s not a Chapter 11 debtor. The Purchase Agreement was f i l e d with 
the Bankruptcy Court and on November 24, 2003, the Bankruptcy Court approved 
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ftgway, Inc.'s motion to establish b i d procedures for the sale. Under the 
Bankruptcy Court order, we were o f f i c i a l l y designated the "stalking horse" 
bidder i n a process i n which additional bids for the Agway Energy assets and 
business operations are being s o l i c i t e d f o r a specified period of time. An 
auction i s c u r r e n t l y scheduled for December 18, 2003. I f we are the successful 
bidder at the auction, the closing on the sale under the Purchase Agreement i s 
expected to occur shortly following the conclusion of the auction process and 
upon receipt of necessary regulatory approvals. There can be no assurance that 
we w i l l u l t i m a t e l y be the successful bidder at the auction or w i l l be able to 
consummate the acquisition of Agway Energy. 
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In l i n e w i t h our business strategy, t h i s acquisition, once consummated, 
w i l l expand our presence i n the northeast r e t a i l propane market. Additionally, 
ftgway Energy's extensive presence i n the northeast fu e l o i l delivery business 
expands our product offerings i n the a t t r a c t i v e northeast energy market and 
provides an opportunity to leverage our existing management expertise and 
technology to enhance operational e f f i c i e n c i e s within the Agway Energy business. 
The HVAC business of Agway Energy i s more mature than our Suburban @ Home 
operations and i s expected to provide an opportunity to accelerate the growth i n 
th i s business, as well as to enhance the overall service o f f e r i n g to our 
existing customer base i n the northeast. 

• 

BUSINESS STRATEGY 

Our business strategy i s to deliver increasing value to our unitholders 
through i n i t i a t i v e s , both i n t e r n a l and external, that are geared toward 
achieving sustainable p r o f i t a b l e growth and increased quarterly d i s t r i b u t i o n s . 
We pursue t h i s business strategy through a combination of (i) an i n t e r n a l focus 
on enhancing customer service, growing and retaining our customer base and 
improving the e f f i c i e n c y of operations and, ( i i ) acquisitions of businesses to 
complement or supplement our core propane operations. 

«PAGE> 

Over the past several years, we have focused on improving the ef f i c i e n c y of 
our operations and our cost structure, strengthening our balance sheet and 
d i s t r i b u t i o n coverage and building a platform for growth. We continue to pursue 
in t e r n a l growth of our existing propane operations and to foster the growth of 
related r e t a i l and service operations that can benefit from our i n f r a s t r u c t u r e 
and national presence. We invest i n enhancements to our technology 
i n f r a s t r u c t u r e to increase operating e f f i c i e n c i e s and to develop marketing 
programs and incentive compensation arrangements focused on customer growth and 
retention. We measure and reward the success of our customer service centers 
based on a combination of p r o f i t a b i l i t y of the ind i v i d u a l customer service 
center, customer growth and s a t i s f a c t i o n s t a t i s t i c s and asset u t i l i z a t i o n 
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measures. Add i t i o n a l l y , we continuously evaluate our existing f a c i l i t i e s to 
i d e n t i f y opportunities to optimize our return on assets by selectively divesting 
operations i n slower growing markets and seek to reinvest i n markets that 
present more opportunities for growth. 

In addition to our in t e r n a l growth strategies, we have evaluated several 
acquisition opportunities both within the propane sector, as well as i n other 
energy-related businesses i n an e f f o r t to accelerate our overall growth 
strategy. Our acquisition strategy i s to focus on businesses with a r e l a t i v e l y 
steady cash flow that w i l l e i t h e r extend our presence i n s t r a t e g i c a l l y 
a t t r a c t i v e propane markets, complement our existing network of propane 
operations or provide an opportunity t o d i v e r s i f y our operations with other 
energy-related assets. In t h i s regard, as further discussed above, we believe 
that the pending acquisition of the assets of Agway Energy would s i g n i f i c a n t l y 
enhance our p o s i t i o n i n the northeast propane market and expand our product and 
service o f f e r i n g s to further support our overall growth objectives. 

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND AND COMPETITION 

Propane i s a by-product of natural gas processing and petroleum r e f i n i n g . 
I t i s a clean-burning energy source recognized for i t s t r a n s p o r t a b i l i t y and ease 
of use r e l a t i v e to al t e r n a t i v e forms of stand-alone energy sources. Retail 
propane use f a l l s i n t o three broad categories: ( i ) res i d e n t i a l and commercial 
applications, ( i i l i n d u s t r i a l applications and ( i i i ) a g r i c u l t u r a l uses. In the 
resi d e n t i a l and commercial markets, propane i s used primarily for space heating, 
water heating, clothes drying and cooking. i n d u s t r i a l customers use propane 
generally as a motor fu e l burned i n in t e r n a l combustion engines that power 
over-the-road vehicles, f o r k l i f t s and stationary engines, to f i r e furnaces, as a 
cutti n g gas and i n other process applications. In the a g r i c u l t u r a l market, 
propane i s p r i m a r i l y used for tobacco curing, crop drying, poultry brooding and 
weed control. 

Propane i s extracted from natural gas or o i l wellhead gas at processing 
plants or separated from crude o i l during the r e f i n i n g process. Propane i s 
normally transported and stored i n a l i q u i d state under moderate pressure or 
re f r i g e r a t i o n for ease of handling i n shipping and d i s t r i b u t i o n . When the 
pressure i s released or the temperature i s increased, i t becomes a flammable gas 
that i s colorless and odorless with an odorant added to allow for i t s detection. 
Propane i s clean burning, and when consumed produces only negligible amounts of 
pollutants. 

Based upon information provided by the National Propane Gas Association and 
the Energy Information Administration, propane accounts f o r approximately 4% of 
household energy consumption i n the United States. This l e v e l has not changed 
materially over the previous two decades. As an energy source, propane competes 
primarily w i t h e l e c t r i c i t y , natural gas and fue l o i l , p r i n c i p a l l y on the basis 
of price, a v a i l a b i l i t y and p o r t a b i l i t y . 
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Propane i s more expensive than n a t u r a l gas on an e q u i v a l e n t B r i t i s h Thermal 

Unit b a s i s i n l o c a t i o n s s e r v i c e d by n a t u r a l gas, but i t i s an a l t e r n a t i v e t o 
n a t u r a l gas i n r u r a l and suburban areas where n a t u r a l gas i s u n a v a i l a b l e or 
p o r t a b i l i t y o f product i s r e q u i r e d . H i s t o r i c a l l y , t he expansion of n a t u r a l gas 
i n t o t r a d i t i o n a l propane markets has been i n h i b i t e d by the c a p i t a l c o s t s 
r e q u i r e d t o expand p i p e l i n e and r e t a i l d i s t r i b u t i o n systems. Although the recent 
extension of n a t u r a l gas p i p e l i n e s t o p r e v i o u s l y unserved geographic areas tends 
t o d i s p l a c e propane d i s t r i b u t i o n i n areas a f f e c t e d , new o p p o r t u n i t i e s f o r 
propane sa l e s have been a r i s i n g as new neighborhoods are developed i n 
g e o g r a p h i c a l l y remote areas. Propane i s g e n e r a l l y l e s s expensive t o use than 
e l e c t r i c i t y f o r space h e a t i n g , water h e a t i n g , c l o t h e s d r y i n g and cooking. Fuel 
o i l has not been a s i g n i f i c a n t c o m p e t i t o r due t o the c u r r e n t g e o g r a p h i c a l 
d i v e r s i t y of o u r o p e r a t i o n s , and propane and f u e l o i l compete t o a l e s s e r e x t e n t 
because of t h e cost of c o n v e r t i n g 
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from one t o t h e oth e r . 

I n a d d i t i o n t o competing w i t h s u p p l i e r s of ot h e r sources or energy, we 
compete w i t h o t h e r r e t a i l propane d i s t r i b u t o r s . Competition i n the r e t a i l 
propane i n d u s t r y i s h i g h l y fragmented and g e n e r a l l y occurs on a l o c a l b a s i s w i t h 
o t h e r l a r g e f u l l - s e r v i c e m u l t i - s t a t e propane marketers, thousands of s m a l l e r 
l o c a l independent marketers and farm c o o p e r a t i v e s . Based on i n d u s t r y s t a t i s t i c s 
contained i n 2001 Sales of N a t u r a l Gas L i q u i d s and L i q u i f i e d R e f i n e r y Gases, as 
publi s h e d by the American Petroleum I n s t i t u t e i n November 2 002, and LP/Gas 
Magazine dated February 2003, the ten l a r g e s t r e t a i l e r s , i n c l u d i n g us, account 
f o r a p p r o x i m a t e l y 29% of the t o t a l r e t a i l sales of propane i n the United States, 
no s i n g l e marketer has a g r e a t e r than 10% share of the t o t a l r e t a i l market i n 
the U n i t e d S t a t e s and our sales volume accounted f o r approximately 4.4% of the 
domestic r e t a i l market f o r propane d u r i n g 2001. Most of our customer s e r v i c e 
centers compete w i t h f i v e or more marketers or d i s t r i b u t o r s . However, each of 
our customer s e r v i c e centers operates i n i t s own c o m p e t i t i v e environment because 
r e t a i l marketers tend t o l o c a t e i n clo s e p r o x i m i t y t o customers i n order t o 
lower the c o s t of p r o v i d i n g s e r v i c e . Our t y p i c a l customer s e r v i c e c e n t e r has an 
e f f e c t i v e m a rketing r a d i u s of approximately 50 m i l e s , although i n c e r t a i n r u r a l 
areas the marketing r a d i u s may be extended by a s a t e l l i t e o f f i c e . 

PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND MARKETING 

vie d i s t r i b u t e propane through a nationwide r e t a i l d i s t r i b u t i o n network 
c o n s i s t i n g o f approximately 320 customer s e r v i c e centers i n 40 s t a t e s as of 
September 27, 2003. Our o p e r a t i o n s are concentrated i n the east and west coast 
regions of the u n i t e d S t a t e s , i n f i s c a l 2003, we s e r v i c e d approximately 750,000 
a c t i v e customers. Approximately t w o - t h i r d s of our r e t a i l propane volume has 
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h i s t o r i c a l l y been s o l d d u r i n g the s i x month peak h e a t i n g season from October 
through March, as many customers use propane f o r h e a t i n g purposes. T y p i c a l l y , 
customer s e r v i c e centers are found i n suburban and r u r a l areas where n a t u r a l gas 
i s not r e a d i l y a v a i l a b l e . Generally, such l o c a t i o n s c o n s i s t of an o f f i c e , 
appliance showroom, warehouse and s e r v i c e f a c i l i t i e s , w i t h one o r more 18,000 t o 
30,000 g a l l o n storage tanks on the premises. Most of our r e s i d e n t i a l customers 
re c e i v e t h e i r propane supply pursuant t o an automatic d e l i v e r y system t h a t 
e l i m i n a t e s t h e customer's need t o make an a f f i r m a t i v e purchase d e c i s i o n . From 
our customer s e r v i c e c e n t e r s , we a l s o s e l l , i n s t a l l and s e r v i c e equipment 
r e l a t e d t o our propane d i s t r i b u t i o n business, i n c l u d i n g h e a t i n g and cooking 
appliances, h e a r t h products and s u p p l i e s and, at some l o c a t i o n s , propane f u e l 
systems f o r motor v e h i c l e s . 

We s e l l propane p r i m a r i l y t o s i x customer markets: r e s i d e n t i a l , commercial, 
i n d u s t r i a l ( i n c l u d i n g engine f u e l ) , a g r i c u l t u r a l , o t h e r r e t a i l users and 
wholesale. Approximately 94% of the g a l l o n s s o l d by us i n f i s c a l 2003 were t o 
r e t a i l customers: 41% t o r e s i d e n t i a l customers, 3 0% t o commercial customers, 10% 
t o i n d u s t r i a l customers, 6% t o a g r i c u l t u r a l customers and 13% t o o t h e r r e t a i l 
users. The balance of approximately 6% of the g a l l o n s s o l d by us i n f i s c a l 2003 
was f o r r i s k management a c t i v i t i e s and wholesale customers. Sales t o r e s i d e n t i a l 
customers i n f i s c a l 2003 accounted f o r approximately 59% of our margins on 
propane s a l e s , r e f l e c t i n g the higher-margin nature of the r e s i d e n t i a l market. No 
s i n g l e customer accounted f o r 10% or more of our revenues d u r i n g f i s c a l 2003. 

R e t a i l d e l i v e r i e s of propane are u s u a l l y made t o customers by means of 
b o b t a i l and r a c k t r u c k s . Propane i s pumped from the b o b t a i l t r u c k , w i t h 
c a p a c i t i e s r a n g i n g from 2,125 g a l l o n s t o 2,975 g a l l o n s of propane, i n t o a 
s t a t i o n a r y s t o r a g e tank on the customer's premises. The c a p a c i t y of these 
storage tanks ranges from approximately 100 g a l l o n s t o approximately 1,200 
g a l l o n s , w i t h a t y p i c a l tank having a c a p a c i t y of 300 t o 400 g a l l o n s . We a l s o 
d e l i v e r propane t o r e t a i l customers i n p o r t a b l e c y l i n d e r s , which t y p i c a l l y have 
a c a p a c i t y of 5 t o 35 g a l l o n s . When these c y l i n d e r s are d e l i v e r e d t o customers, 
empty c y l i n d e r s are r e f i l l e d i n place or t r a n s p o r t e d f o r replenishment at our 
d i s t r i b u t i o n l o c a t i o n s . We a l s o d e l i v e r propane t o c e r t a i n o t h e r bulk end users 
of propane i n l a r g e r t r u c k s known as t r a n s p o r t s (which have an average c a p a c i t y 
of a p p r o x i m a t e l y 9,000 g a l l o n s ) . End-users r e c e i v i n g t r a n s p o r t d e l i v e r i e s 
i n c l u d e i n d u s t r i a l customers, l a r g e - s c a l e h e a t i n g accounts, such as l o c a l gas 
u t i l i t i e s t h a t use propane as a supplemental f u e l t o meet peak l o a d 
d e l i v e r a b i l i t y requirements, and l a r g e a g r i c u l t u r a l accounts t h a t use propane 
f o r crop d r y i n g . Propane i s g e n e r a l l y t r a n s p o r t e d from r e f i n e r i e s , p i p e l i n e 
t e r m i n a l s , s t o r a g e f a c i l i t i e s ( i n c l u d i n g our storage f a c i l i t i e s i n Elk Grove, 
C a l i f o r n i a and T i r z a h , South C a r o l i n a ) , and c o a s t a l t e r m i n a l s t o our customer 
s e r v i c e c e n t e r s by a combination of common c a r r i e r s , owner-operators and 
r a i l r o a d tank c a r s . See a d d i t i o n a l d i s c u s s i o n i n i t e m 2 of t h i s Annual Report. 
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In our wholesale operations, we p r i n c i p a l l y s e l l propane to large 
i n d u s t r i a l end-users and other propane d i s t r i b u t o r s . The wholesale market 
includes customers who use propane to f i r e furnaces, as a cutti n g gas and i n 
other process applications. Due to the low margin nature of the wholesale market 
as compared t o the r e t a i l market, we have selectively reduced our emphasis on 
wholesale marketing over the l a s t few years. Accordingly, sales of wholesale 
gallons during f i s c a l 2003 decreased i n comparison to f i s c a l 2002, which also 
decreased from f i s c a l 2001. 

PROPANE SUPPLY 

Our propane supply i s purchased from nearly 70 o i l companies and natural 
gas processors at approximately 180 supply points located i n the United States 
and Canada. We make purchases pri m a r i l y under one-year agreements that are 
subject to annual renewal, but also purchase propane on the spot market. Supply 
contracts generally provide f o r p r i c i n g i n accordance with posted prices at the 
time of de l i v e r y or the current prices established at major storage points, and 
some contracts include a pr i c i n g formula that t y p i c a l l y i s based on prevailing 
market prices. Some of these agreements provide maximum and minimum seasonal 
purchase guidelines. We use a number of in t e r s t a t e pipelines, as well as 
ra i l r o a d tank cars and delivery trucks to transport propane from suppliers to 
storage and d i s t r i b u t i o n f a c i l i t i e s . 

H i s t o r i c a l l y , supplies of propane from our supply sources have been readily 
available, Although we make no assurance regarding the a v a i l a b i l i t y of supplies 
of propane i n the future, we currently expect to be able to secure adequate 
supplies during f i s c a l 2004. During f i s c a l 2003, Dynegy Liquids Marketing and 
Trade ("Dynegy") and Enterprise Products Operating L.P. [ "Enterprise") provided 
approximately 21% and 13%, respectively, of our t o t a l domestic propane supply. 
The a v a i l a b i l i t y of our propane supply i s dependent on several factors, 
including the severity of winter weather and the price and a v a i l a b i l i t y of 
competing fuels such as natural gas and heating o i l . We believe that, i f 
supplies from Dynegy or Enterprise were interrupted, we would be able to secure 
adequate propane supplies from other sources without a material disruption of 
our operations. Nevertheless, the cost of acquiring such propane might be higher 
and, at least on a short-term basis, margins could be affected. Aside from these 
two suppliers, no single supplier provided more than 10% of our t o t a l domestic 
propane supply f i s c a l 2 0 03. During that year, approximately 98% of our t o t a l 
propane purchases were from domestic suppliers. 

We seek t o reduce the effect of propane price v o l a t i l i t y on our product 
costs and to help ensure the a v a i l a b i l i t y of propane during periods of short 
supply. We are currently a party to propane futures transactions on the New York 
Mercantile Exchange and to forward and option contracts with various t h i r d 
parties to purchase and s e l l product at- fixed prices i n the future. These 
a c t i v i t i e s are monitored by our senior management through enforcement of our 
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commodity t r a d i n g p o l i c y . See a d d i t i o n a l d i s c u s s i o n i n Item 7A of t h i s Annual 
Report. 

We o p e r a t e l a r g e propane storage f a c i l i t i e s i n C a l i f o r n i a and South 
C a r o l i n a . We a l s o operate s m a l l e r storage f a c i l i t i e s i n ot h e r l o c a t i o n s and have 
r i g h t s t o use storage f a c i l i t i e s i n a d d i t i o n a l l o c a t i o n s . As of September 27, 
2003, the m a j o r i t y of the storage c a p a c i t y i n C a l i f o r n i a and South C a r o l i n a was 
leased t o t h i r d p a r t i e s . Our storage f a c i l i t i e s enable us t o buy and s t o r e l a r g e 
q u a n t i t i e s o f propane d u r i n g p e r i o d s of low demand and lower p r i c e s , which 
g e n e r a l l y occur d u r i n g the summer months. This p r a c t i c e helps ensure a more 
secure supply o f propane d u r i n g periods of intense demand or p r i c e i n s t a b i l i t y . 

TRADEMARKS AND TRADENAMES 

We u t i l i z e a v a r i e t y of trademarks and tradenames owned by us, i n c l u d i n g 
"Suburban Propane," "Gas Connection," and "Suburban @ Home." We reg a r d our 
trademarks, tradenames and ot h e r p r o p r i e t a r y r i g h t s as v a l u a b l e assets and 
be l i e v e t h a t t h e y have s i g n i f i c a n t value i n the marketing of our products. 

<PAGE> 

GOVERNMENT REGULATION,- ENVIRONMENTAL AND SAFETY MATTERS 

We are s u b j e c t t o v a r i o u s f e d e r a l , s t a t e and l o c a l environmental, h e a l t h 
and s a f e t y laws and r e g u l a t i o n s . Generally, these laws impose l i m i t a t i o n s on the 
discharge of p o l l u t a n t s and e s t a b l i s h standards f o r the h a n d l i n g of s o l i d and 
hazardous wastes and can r e q u i r e the i n v e s t i g a t i o n and cleanup of environmental 
c o n t a m i n a t i o n . These laws i n c l u d e the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and L i a b i l i t y Act 
("CERCLA"), t h e Clean A i r Act, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the 
Emergency Planning and Community Right t o Know Act, the Clean Water Act and 
comparable s t a t e s t a t u t e s . CERCLA, a l s o known as the "Superfund" law, imposes 
j o i n t and s e v e r a l l i a b i l i t y w i t h o u t regard t o f a u l t or the l e g a l i t y of the 
o r i g i n a l conduct on c e r t a i n classes of persons t h a t are considered t o have 
c o n t r i b u t e d t o the release or threatened release of a "hazardous substance" i n t o 
the environment. Propane i s not a hazardous substance w i t h i n the meaning of 
CERCLA. However, we own r e a l p r o p e r t y a t l o c a t i o n s where such hazardous 
substances may e x i s t as a r e s u l t o£ p r i o r a c t i v i t i e s . 

N a t i o n a l F i r e P r o t e c t i o n A s s o c i a t i o n Pamphlets No. 54 and No. 58, which 
e s t a b l i s h r u l e s and procedures governing the safe h a n d l i n g of propane, or 
comparable r e g u l a t i o n s , have been adopted, i n whole, i n p a r t or w i t h s t a t e 
addenda, as t h e i n d u s t r y standard i n a l l of the s t a t e s i n which we operate. I n 
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some s t a t e s these laws are administered by s t a t e agencies, and i n o t h e r s they 
are a d m i n i s t e r e d on a m u n i c i p a l l e v e l . Pamphlet Mo. 58 has adopted storage tank 
valve r e t r o f i t requirements due t o be complete by June 2011. A program i s i n 
place t o meet the d e a d l i n e . 

With r e s p e c t t o the t r a n s p o r t a t i o n of propane by t r u c k , we are s u b j e c t t o 
r e g u l a t i o n s promulgated under the Federal Motor C a r r i e r Safety Act. These 
r e g u l a t i o n s cover the t r a n s p o r t a t i o n of hazardous m a t e r i a l s and are administered 
by the United States Department of T r a n s p o r t a t i o n or s i m i l a r s t a t e agency. We 
conduct ongoing t r a i n i n g programs t o h e l p ensure t h a t our o p e r a t i o n s are i n 
compliance w i t h a p p l i c a b l e s a f e t y r e g u l a t i o n s . We m a i n t a i n v a r i o u s permits t h a t 
are necessary t o operate some of our f a c i l i t i e s , some of which may be m a t e r i a l 
t o our o p e r a t i o n s . We b e l i e v e t h a t the procedures c u r r e n t l y i n e f f e c t at a l l of 
our f a c i l i t i e s f o r the h a n d l i n g , storage and d i s t r i b u t i o n of propane are 
c o n s i s t e n t w i t h i n d u s t r y standards and are i n compliance, i n a l l m a t e r i a l 
respects, w i t h a p p l i c a b l e laws and r e g u l a t i o n s . 

The Department of T r a n s p o r t a t i o n has e s t a b l i s h e d r e g u l a t i o n s addressing 
emergency di s c h a r g e c o n t r o l issues. The r e g u l a t i o n s , which became e f f e c t i v e as 
of J u l y 1, 1999, r e q u i r e d us t o modify the i n s p e c t i o n and r e c o r d keeping 
procedures f o r our cargo tank v e h i c l e s . A schedule of compliance i s set f o r t h 
w i t h i n the r e g u l a t i o n s . We have implemented the r e q u i r e d discharge c o n t r o l 
systems and comply, i n a l l m a t e r i a l respects, w i t h c u r r e n t r e g u l a t o r y 
requirements. 

Future developments, such as s t r i c t e r environmental, h e a l t h or s a f e t y laws 
and r e g u l a t i o n s thereunder, could a f f e c t our o p e r a t i o n s , we do not a n t i c i p a t e 
t h a t the cost o f our compliance w i t h environmental, h e a l t h and s a f e t y laws and 
r e g u l a t i o n s , i n c l u d i n g CERCLA, w i l l have a m a t e r i a l adverse e f f e c t on our 
f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n or r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s . To the e x t e n t t h a t t h e r e are any 
environmental l i a b i l i t i e s unknown t o us or environmental, h e a l t h or s a f e t y laws 
or r e g u l a t i o n s are made more s t r i n g e n t , there can be no assurance t h a t our 
f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n or r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s w i l l not be m a t e r i a l l y and 
adversely a f f e c t e d . 

EMPLOYEES 

As of September 27, 2003, we had approximately 2,973 f u l l time employees, 
of whom 285 were engaged i n general and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e a c t i v i t i e s ( i n c l u d i n g 
f l e e t maintenance), 2 9 were engaged i n t r a n s p o r t a t i o n and product supply 
a c t i v i t i e s and 2,659 were customer s e r v i c e c e n t e r employees. As of September 27, 
2003, 145 of our employees were represented by 10 d i f f e r e n t l o c a l chapters of 
l a b o r unions. We b e l i e v e t h a t our r e l a t i o n s w i t h both our union and non-union 
employees are s a t i s f a c t o r y . From time t o time, we h i r e temporary workers t o meet 
peak seasonal demands. 
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

As of September 27, 2003, we owned approximately 70% of our customer 
s e r v i c e c e n t e r and s a t e l l i t e l o c a t i o n s and leased the balance of our r e t a i l 
l o c a t i o n s from t h i r d p a r t i e s . We own and operate a 22 m i l l i o n g a l l o n 
r e f r i g e r a t e d , above-ground propane storage f a c i l i t y i n Elk Grove, C a l i f o r n i a and 
a 60 m i l l i o n g a l l o n underground propane storage cavern i n T i r z a h , South 
C a r o l i n a . A d d i t i o n a l l y , we own our p r i n c i p a l e x e c u t i v e o f f i c e s l o c a t e d i n 
Whippany, New Jersey. 

The t r a n s p o r t a t i o n of propane r e q u i r e s s p e c i a l i z e d equipment. The t r u c k s 
and r a i l r o a d t a n k cars u t i l i z e d f o r t h i s purpose c a r r y s p e c i a l i z e d s t e e l tanks 
t h a t m a i n t a i n the propane i n a l i q u e f i e d s t a t e . As of September 27, 2003, we had 
a f l e e t of seven t r a n s p o r t t r u c k t r a c t o r s , of which we owned f i v e , and 251 
r a i l r o a d tank cars, a l l o f which we leased. I n a d d i t i o n , as of September 27, 
2003 we used 1,148 b o b t a i l and rack t r u c k s , of which we owned approximately 27%, 
and 1,339 o t h e r d e l i v e r y and s e r v i c e v e h i c l e s , of which we owned approximately 
29%. V e h i c l e s t h a t are not owned by us are leased. As of September 27, 2003, we 
a l s o owned a p p r o x i m a t e l y 771,679 customer storage tanks w i t h t y p i c a l c a p a c i t i e s 
of 100 t o 500 g a l l o n s , 37,370 customer storage tanks w i t h t y p i c a l c a p a c i t i e s of 
over 500 g a l l o n s and 137,682 p o r t a b l e c y l i n d e r s w i t h t y p i c a l c a p a c i t i e s of f i v e 
t o ten g a l l o n s . 

<PAGE> 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

LITIGATION 

Our o p e r a t i o n s aire s u b j e c t t o a l l o p e r a t i n g hazards and r i s k s n o r mally 
i n c i d e n t a l t o h a n d l i n g , s t o r i n g , and d e l i v e r i n g combustible l i q u i d s such as 
propane. As a r e s u l t , we have been, and w i l l continue t o be, a defendant i n 
vari o u s l e g a l proceedings and l i t i g a t i o n a r i s i n g i n the o r d i n a r y course of 
business. We a r e s e l f - i n s u r e d f o r general and product, workers' compensation and 
automobile l i a b i l i t i e s up t o predetermined amounts above which t h i r d p a r t y 
insurance a p p l i e s . We b e l i e v e t h a t the s e l f - i n s u r e d r e t e n t i o n s and coverage we 
ma i n t a i n are reasonable and prudent. Although any l i t i g a t i o n i s i n h e r e n t l y 
u n c e r t a i n , based on past experience, the i n f o r m a t i o n c u r r e n t l y a v a i l a b l e t o us, 
and the amount of our s e l f - i n s u r a n c e reserves f o r known and unasserted 
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self-insurance claims (which was approximately $23.6 m i l l i o n at September 27, 
2003), we do not believe that these pending or threatened l i t i g a t i o n matters, or 
known claims or known contingent claims, w i l l have a material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, f i n a n c i a l condition or our cash flow. 

On May 23, 2001, Heritage Propane Partners, L.P. ("Heritage") amended a 
complaint i t had f i l e d on November 30, 1999 i n the South Carolina Court of 
Common Pleas, F i f t h J u d i c i a l C i r c u i t , against SCANA Corporation ("SCANA") and 
Cornerstone Ventures, L.P. ("Cornerstone") to name our Operating Partnership as 
a defendant {Heritage v. SCANA et a l . , C i v i l Action 01-CP-40-3262). Third party 
insurance and the self-insurance reserves referenced above do not apply to t h i s 
action. The amended complaint alleges, among other things, that SCANA breached a 
contract for the sale of propane assets and asserts claims against our Operating 
Partnership f o r wrongful interference with prospective advantage and c i v i l 
conspiracy f o r allegedly i n t e r f e r i n g with Heritage's prospective contract with 
SCANA. Heritage claims that i t i s e n t i t l e d to recover i t s alleged l o s t p r o f i t s 
i n the amount of $125.0 m i l l i o n and that a l l defendants are j o i n t l y and 
severally l i a b l e to i t for such amount. Our Operating Partnership moved to 
dismiss the claims asserted against i t for f a i l u r e to state a claim. On October 
24, 2001, the court denied our Operating Partnership's motion to dismiss the 
amended complaint. 

On February 6, 2003, the p l a i n t i f f s i n Heritage v. SCANA et a l f i l e d a 
motion to amend i t s complaint to assert additional claims against a l l 
defendants, including three new claims against our Operating Partnership: aiding 
and abetting; misappropriation,- and unjust enrichment. The court has granted 
t h i s motion. On May 5, 2003, our Operating Partnership f i l e d a motion for 
summary judgement to dismiss the claims asserted against i t i n the o r i g i n a l 
complaint f i l e d against our Operating Partnership. We withdrew t h i s motion f o r 
strategic reasons but intend to r e - f i l e i t at a l a t e r date. However, we cannot 
predict the outcome of t h i s motion for summary judgement. Discovery i s ongoing 
between a l l p a r t i e s to the lawsuit. We do not anticipate that t h i s matter w i l l 
be t r i e d before the Spring of 2004 . We believe that the claims and proposed 
additional claims against our Operating Partnership are without merit and are 
defending the action vigorously. I f t h i s matter proceeds to t r i a l , we cannot 
predict the outcome of t h i s t r i a l , or , i f the t r i a l i s before a jury, what 
verdict the j u r y u ltimately may reach. 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

None. 

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1005210/000100521003000038/0001005210-03-000038.txt 1/8/2004 



Page 17 ofl 26 
<PAGE> 

PART I I 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S UNITS AND RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS 

Our Common U n i t s , r e p r e s e n t i n g l i m i t e d p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t s i n the 
Par t n e r s h i p , a r e l i s t e d and traded on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under 
the symbol SPH. As of November 21, 2003, there were 982 Common U n i t h o l d e r s of 
rec o r d . The f o l l o w i n g t a b l e presents, f o r the periods i n d i c a t e d , the h i g h and 
low sales p r i c e s per Common U n i t , as r e p o r t e d on the NYSE, and the amount of 
q u a r t e r l y cash d i s t r i b u t i o n s d e c l a r e d and p a i d per Common U n i t w i t h respect t o 
each q u a r t e r . 

Common Un i t P r i c e Range 
Cash D i s t r i b u t i o n 

High Low Paid 

F i s c a l 2002 

F i r s t Q u a r t e r $ 27.99 $ 24.50 S 0.5625 
Second Q u a r t e r 28.40 24.36 0.5625 
T h i r d Q u a r t e r 28.25 25.59 0.5750 
Fourth Quarter 28.49 20.00 0.5750 

F i s c a l 2003 

F i r s t Q u a r t e r $ 28.49 $ 24.60 $ 0.5750 
Second Quarter 29.60 26.90 0.5750 
T h i r d Q u a r t e r 29.89 27.40 0.5875 
Fourth Quarter 30.95 27.91 0.5875 

We make q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n s t o our p a r t n e r s i n an aggregate amount 
equal t o our A v a i l a b l e Cash (as d e f i n e d i n the Second Amended and Restated 
P a r t n e r s h i p Agreement) w i t h respect t o such q u a r t e r . A v a i l a b l e Cash g e n e r a l l y 
means a l l cash on hand at the end of the f i s c a l q u a r t e r plus a l l a d d i t i o n a l cash 
on hand as a r e s u l t of borrowings subsequent t o the end of such q u a r t e r l e s s 
cash reserves e s t a b l i s h e d by the Board of Supervisors i n i t s reasonable 
d i s c r e t i o n f o r f u t u r e cash requirements. 

We are a p u b l i c l y t r a d e d l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p and are not s u b j e c t t o f e d e r a l 
income tax. I n s t e a d , U n i t h o l d e r s are r e q u i r e d t o r e p o r t t h e i r a l l o c a b l e share of 
our earnings o r l o s s , r e g a r d l e s s of whether we make d i s t r i b u t i o n s . 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

The f o l l o w i n g cable presents our s e l e c t e d c o n s o l i d a t e d h i s t o r i c a l f i n a n c i a l 
data. The s e l e c t e d c o n s o l i d a t e d h i s t o r i c a l f i n a n c i a l data i s d e r i v e d from our 
au d i t e d f i n a n c i a l statements. The amounts i n the t a b l e below, except per u n i t 
data, are i n thousands. 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

Year Ended (a) 

September 
27, 2003 

September 
28, 2002 

September 
29, 2001 

September 
30, 2000 (b) 

September 
25, 1999 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA 
<S* 
Revenues 
Costs and expenses 
R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n costs (c) 
Gain on sale o f assets 
Gain on sale o f storage f a c i l i t y 
income before i n t e r e s t expense and 

income taxes (d) 
i n t e r e s t expense, net 
P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 
Income from c o n t i n u i n g o p e r a t i o n s (d) 
Discontinued o p e r a t i o n s ; 

Gain on s a l e of customer s e r v i c e centers (e) 
Net income (d) 
Income from c o n t i n u i n g o p e r a t i o n s per Common 

Uni t - b a s i c 
Net income per Common Un i t - basic ( f ) 
Net income per Common U n i t - d i l u t e d ( f ) 
Cash d i s t r i b u t i o n s d e c l a r e d per u n i t 

<C> 
$ 771,679 

691,662 

80,017 
33,629 

202 
46,186 

2,483 
48,669 

1.78 
1.87 
1. 86 

$ 2.33 

<C> 
$ 665,105 

582 , 321 

(6,768) 

89,552 
35,325 

703 
53,524 

53,524 

2 .12 
2 .12 
2 . 12 

$2.28 

<C> 
$ 931,536 

838,055 

93,481 
39,596 

375 
53,510 

53,510 

2 .14 
2 .14 
2 . 14 

$2.20 

<C> 
$ 841,304 

770,332 

(10,328) 

81,300 
42,534 

234 
38,532 

38,532 

1.70 
1.70 
1 .70 

$ 2 . 1 1 

<C> 
$ 620, 

547, 
18, 

53, 
31, 

22, 

22, 

0 
0 
0 

$ 2 

BALANCE SHEET DATA (END OF PERIOD) 
Cash and cash e q u i v a l e n t s 
Current assets 
T o t a l assets 

$ 15,765 
98,912 

665,630 

$ 40,955 
116,789 
700,146 

$ 36,494 
124,339 
723,006 

$ 11,645 
122,160 
771,116 

$ 8, 
78, 

659, 
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Current l i a b i l i t i e s , e x c l u d i n g c u r r e n t p o r t i o n of 

long-term borrowings 
T o t a l debt 
Other l o n g - t e r m l i a b i l i t i e s 
P artners' c a p i t a l - Common U n i t h o l d e r s 
Partner's c a p i t a l - General Partner 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS DATA 
Cash prov i d e d by/(used i n ) 

Operating a c t i v i t i e s 
I n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s 
Financing a c t i v i t i e s 

OTHER DATA 
Qepreeiatior. and amortiz-ation 
EBITDA (h) 
C a p i t a l e x p e n d i t u r e s ( i ) 

Maintenance and growth 
A c q u i s i t i o n s 

R e t a i l propane g a l l o n s s o l d 

94,802 
383,826 
102,924 
165,950 
$ 1,567 

S 57,300 
14, 859) 

$ (77,631) 

110,020 

14,050 
$ " 

491,451 

98,606 
472,769 
109,485 
103,680 
$ 1,924 

$ 68,775 
(6,851) 

$ (57,463) 

$ 23,355 
117,907 

17,4 64 
$ -

455,988 

119,196 
473,177 
71,684 

105,549 
$ 1,388 

$ 101,838 
(17,907) 

S (59,082) 

% 56,496 
129,977 

23,218 
$ -

524,728 

124,585 
524,095 
60,607 
58,474 
$ 1,866 

$ 59,467 
(99,067; 

$ 42,B53 

S 3T,032 
118,332 

21,250 
$ 98,012 
523,975 

99, 
430, 
60, 
66, 
S 2, 

$ 81, 
(12, 

$(120, 

S 34, 

11, 
5 4, 
524 , 

:/TABLE: 

<PAGE> 
10 

Our 2000 f i s c a l year contained 53 weeks. 
52 weeks. 

A l l o t h e r f i s c a l years contained 

(b) Includes the r e s u l t s from our November 1999 a c q u i s i t i o n of c e r t a i n 
s u b s i d i a r i e s of SCANA Cor p o r a t i o n , accounted f o r under the purchase method, 
from the date of a c q u i s i t i o n . 

(c) We i n c u r r e d expenses of $18.9 m i l l i o n i n connection w i t h the 
r e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n t r a n s a c t i o n d e s c r i b e d i n Note 1 t o the c o n s o l i d a t e d 
f i n a n c i a l statements i n c l u d e d i n t h i s Annual Report. These expenses 
i n c l u d e d $7.6 m i l l i o n r e p r e s e n t i n g cash expenses and $11.3 m i l l i o n 
r e p r e s e n t i n g non-cash charges associated w i t h the a c c e l e r a t e d v e s t i n g of 
r e s t r i c t e d Common U n i t s . 

(d) These amounts i n c l u d e , i n a d d i t i o n t o the gain on sale of assets and the 
ga i n on s a l e of storage f a c i l i t y , gains from the d i s p o s a l o f p r o p e r t y , 
p l a n t and equipment of $0.6 m i l l i o n f o r f i s c a l 2003, $0.5 m i l l i o n f o r 
f i s c a l 2002, $3.8 m i l l i o n f o r f i s c a l 2001, $1.0 m i l l i o n f o r f i s c a l 2000 and 
$0.6 m i l l i o n f o r f i s c a l 1999. 
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(e) Gain on sale of customer service centers consists of nine customer service 
centers we sold during f i s c a l 2003 for t o t a l cash proceeds of approximately 
$7.2 m i l l i o n . We recorded a gain on sale of approximately $2.5 m i l l i o n , 
which has been accounted for within discontinued operations pursuant to 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 144, "Accounting 
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." Prior period results 
of operations a t t r i b u t a b l e to these nine customer service centers were not 
s i g n i f i c a n t and, as such, p r i o r period results have not been r e c l a s s i f i e d 
to remove f i n a n c i a l results from continuing operations. 

{V, Basic net income per Carrimon Unit i s computed by dividing net income, a f t e r 
deducting our general partner's i n t e r e s t , by the weighted average number of 
outstanding Common Units. Diluted net income per Common Unit i s computed by 
divi d i n g net income, a f t e r deducting our general partner's approximate 2% 
int e r e s t , by the weighted average number of outstanding Common Units and 
time vested r e s t r i c t e d units granted under our 2000 Restricted Unit Plan. 

(g) Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended September 28, 2002 
r e f l e c t s our early adoption of SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets" ("SFAS 142") as of September 30, 2001 (the beginning of our 2002 
f i s c a l year). SFAS 142 eliminates the requirement to amortize goodwill and 
certain intangible assets. Amortization expense f o r the year ended 
September 28, 2002 -reflects approximately $7.4 m i l l i o n lower amortization 
expense compared to the year ended September 29, 2001 as a result of the 
elimi n a t i o n of amortization expense associated with goodwill. 

(h) EBITDA represents net income before deducting interest expense, income 
taxes, depreciation and amortization. Our management uses EBITDA as a 
measure of l i q u i d i t y and we are including i t because we believe that i t 
provides our investors and industry analysts with additional information to 
evaluate our a b i l i t y to meet our debt service obligations and to pay our 
quarterly d i s t r i b u t i o n s to holders of our Common Units. Moreover, our 
senior note agreements and our revolving credit agreement require us to use 
EBITDA as a component i n calculating our leverage and interest coverage 
r a t i o s . EBITDA i s not a recognized term under generally accepted accounting 
p r i n c i p l e s {"GAAP") and should not be considered as an alternative to net 
income o r net cash provided by operating a c t i v i t i e s determined i n 
accordance with GAAP. Because EBITDA as determined by us excludes some, but 
not a l l , items that a f f e c t net income, i t may not be comparable to EBITDA 
or s i m i l a r l y t i t l e d measures used by other companies. The following table 
sets f o r t h ( i ) our calculation of EBITDA and ( i i ) a r e c o n c i l i a t i o n of 
EBITDA, as so calculated, to our net cash provided by operating a c t i v i t i e s 
(amounts i n thousands): 

m 

i i 
< PAGE > 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

<S> 

F i s c a l F i s c a l F i s c a l F i s c a l F i s c a l 
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 

<C> <C> <C> <C> <C> 
Net income $ 48,669 $ 53,524 $ 53,510 $ 38,532 S 22, 
Addr 

P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 202 703 375 234 
i n t e r e s t expense, net 33,629 35 , 325 39,596 42,534 31, 
D e p r e c i a t i o n and a m o r t i z a t i o n 27,520 28,355 36,496 37,032 34, 

EBITDA 110,020 117,907 129,977 118,332 88, 

A d d / ( s u b t r a c t ) = 
P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes (202) (703) (375) (234) 
I n t e r e s t expense, net (33,629) (35,325) (39,596) (42,534) (31, 
Gain on d i s p o s a l of p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and 

equipment, net (636) (546) (3,843) (11,313) ( 
Gain on sale of customer s e r v i c e centers (2,483) - - -
Gain on sale of storage f a c i l i t y - (6,768) - -
Changes i n working c a p i t a l and other 

assets and l i a b i l i t i e s (15,770) (5,790) 15,675 (4,784) 25, 

Net cash pr o v i d e d by/(used i n ) 
Op e r a t i n g a c t i v i t i e s S 57,300 $ 68,775 $ 101,838 $ 59,467 $ 81, 

I n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s $ (4,859) $ (6,851) $ (17,907) $ (99,067) $ (12, 

Financing a c t i v i t i e s S (77,631) $ (57,463) $ (59,082) S 42,853 $ (120, 

m 

:/TABLE: 

Our c a p i t a l expenditures 
maintenance expenditures, 
replacement of property, 
expenditures which include 

f a l l generally i n t o three categories: ( i ) 
which include expenditures for repair and 
plant and equipment; ( i i ) growth c a p i t a l 
new propane tanks and other equipment to 

f a c i l i t a t e expansion of our customer base and operating capacity,- and ( i i i ) 
a c q u i s i t i o n c a p i t a l expenditures, which include expenditures related to the 
acq u i s i t i o n of propane and other r e t a i l operations and a portion of the 
purchase price allocated to intangible assets associated with such acquired 
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ITEM 7, MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The f o l l o w i n g i s a d i s c u s s i o n of our f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n and r e s u l t s of 
a^er&tiorvs, wUicb. should he read i n c o r o u n t t i o n *«ith CAIT V i i s t o r i c a l c o n s o l i d a t e d 
f i n a n c i a l statements and notes t h e r e t o i n c l u d e d elsewhere i n t h i s Annual Report. 
Since our Operating P a r t n e r s h i p and Service company account f o r s u b s t a n t i a l l y 
a l l o f our ass e t s , revenues and earnings, a separate d i s c u s s i o n of r e s u l t s of 
op e r a t i o n s from our o t h e r s u b s i d i a r i e s i s not presented. 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K co n t a i n s Forward-Looking Statements as 
d e f i n e d i n t h e P r i v a t e S e c u r i t i e s L i t i g a t i o n Reform Act of 1995 r e l a t i n g t o our 
f u t u r e business e x p e c t a t i o n s and p r e d i c t i o n s and f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n and r e s u l t s 
of o p e r a t i o n s . Some of these statements can be i d e n t i f i e d by the use of 
f o r w a r d - l o o k i n g terminology such as "prospects, " "outlook," " b e l i e v e s , " 
"estimates," " i n t e n d s , " "may," " w i l l , " "should," " a n t i c i p a t e s , " "expects" or 
"plans" or t h e negative or ot h e r v a r i a t i o n of these or s i m i l a r words, or by 
di s c u s s i o n o f trends and c o n d i t i o n s , s t r a t e g i e s or r i s k s and u n c e r t a i n t i e s . 
These Forward-Looking Statements i n v o l v e c e r t a i n r i s k s and u n c e r t a i n t i e s t h a t 
c o uld cause a c t u a l r e s u l t s t o d i f f e r m a t e r i a l l y from those discussed or i m p l i e d 
i n such Cautionary Statements. The r i s k s and u n c e r t a i n t i e s and t h e i r impact on 
our o p e r a t i o n s i n c l u d e , but are not l i m i t e d t o , the f o l l o w i n g risks.-

o The impact of weather c o n d i t i o n s on the demand f o r propane; 
o F l u c t u a t i o n s i n the u n i t cost of propane,-
o Our a b i l i t y t o compete w i t h o t h e r s u p p l i e r s of propane and ot h e r energy 

sources; 
o The impact on propane p r i c e s and supply from the p o l i t i c a l and economic 

i n s t a b i l i t y o f the o i l producing n a t i o n s and ot h e r general economic 
c o n d i t i o n s ; 

o Our a b i l i t y t o r e t a i n customers,-
o The impact of energy e f f i c i e n c y and technology advances on the demand f o r 

propane; 
o The ability of management to continue to control expenses,-
o The impact of regulatory developments on our business; 
o The impact of legal proceedings on our business; 
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o Our a b i l i t y t o implement our expansion s t r a t e g y i n t o new business l i n e s and 

sectors ,-
o Our a b i l i t y t o i n t e g r a t e acquired businesses s u c c e s s f u l l y . 

On d i f f e r e n t occasions, we or our r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s have made or may make 
Forward-Looking Statements i n o t h e r f i l i n g s t h a t we make w i t h the SEC, i n press 
releases or i n o r a l statements made by or w i t h the approval of one of our 
a u t h o r i z e d e x e c u t i v e o f f i c e r s . Readers are cautioned not t o place undue r e l i a n c e 
on Forward-Looking or Cautionary Statements, which r e f l e c t management's o p i n i o n s 
o n l y as of the date hereof. We undertake no o b l i g a t i o n t o update any 
Forward-Looking or Cautionary Statement. A l l subsequent w r i t t e n and o r a l 
Forward-Looking Statements a t t r i b u t a b l e t o us o r persons a c t i n g on our behal f 
are e x p r e s s l y q u a l i f i e d i n t h e i r e n t i r e t y by the Cautionary Statements i n t h i s 
Annual Report and i n f u t u r e SEC r e p o r t s . 

The f o l l o w i n g are f a c t o r s t h a t r e g u l a r l y a f f e c t our o p e r a t i n g r e s u l t s and 
f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n r 

PRODUCT COSTS 

The l e v e l of p r o f i t a b i l i t y i n the r e t a i l propane business i s l a r g e l y 
dependent on t h e d i f f e r e n c e between r e t a i l sales p r i c e and product cost- The 
u n i t cost of propane i s s u b j e c t t o v o l a t i l e changes as a r e s u l t of product 
supply or o t h e r market c o n d i t i o n s , i n c l u d i n g , but not l i m i t e d t o , economic and 
p o l i t i c a l f a c t o r s i m p a c t i n g crude o i l and n a t u r a l gas supply o r p r i c i n g . Propane 
u n i t cost changes can occur r a p i d l y over a sh o r t p e r i o d of time and can impact 
p r o f i t a b i l i t y . There i s no assurance t h a t we w i l l be able t o pass on product 
cost increases f u l l y o r immediately, p a r t i c u l a r l y when product c o s t s increase 
r a p i d l y . T h e r e f o r e , average r e t a i l sales p r i c e s can vary 
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s i g n i f i c a n t l y from year t o year as product costs f l u c t u a t e w i t h propane, crude 
o i l and n a t u r a l gas commodity market c o n d i t i o n s . 

SEASONALITY 

The r e t a i l propane d i s t r i b u t i o n business i s seasonal because of propane 1s 
primary use f o r h e a t i n g i n r e s i d e n t i a l and commercial b u i l d i n g s . H i s t o r i c a l l y , 
approximately t w o - t h i r d s of our r e t a i l propane volume i s s o l d d u r i n g the 
six-month peak h e a t i n g season from October through March. Consequently, sales 
and o p e r a t i n g p r o f i t s are concentrated i n our f i r s t and second f i s c a l q u a r t e r s . 
Cash flows f r o m o p e r a t i o n s , t h e r e f o r e , are g r e a t e s t d u r i n g the second and t h i r d 
f i s c a l q u a r t e r s when customers pay f o r propane purchased d u r i n g the w i n t e r 
h e a t i n g season. Lower o p e r a t i n g p r o f i t s and e i t h e r net losses or lower net 
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income during the period from A p r i l through September (our t h i r d and fourth 
f i s c a l quarters) are expected. To the extent necessary, we w i l l reserve cash 
from the second and t h i r d quarters f o r d i s t r i b u t i o n to Unitholders i n the f i r s t 
and fourth f i s c a l quarters. 

WEATHER 

Weather conditions have a s i g n i f i c a n t impact on the demand for propane f o r 
both heating and a g r i c u l t u r a l purposes. Many df our customers rely heavily on 
propane as a heating f u e l . Accordingly, the volume of propane sold i s d i r e c t l y 
affected by the severity of the winter weather i n our service areas, which can 
vary s u b s t a n t i a l l y from year to year. In any given area, sustained 
warmer-than-normal temperatures, w i l l tend to result i n reduced propane use, 
while sustained colder-than-normal temperatures w i l l tend to result i n greater 
propane use. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Product supply contracts are generally one-year agreements subj ect to 
annual renewal and generally permit suppliers to charge posted market prices 
(plus transportation costs) at the time of delivery or the current prices 
established a t major delivery points. Since rapid increases i n the cost of 
propane may not be immediately passed on to r e t a i l customers, such increases 
could reduce p r o f i t margins. We engage i n r i s k management a c t i v i t i e s to reduce 
the e f f e c t of price v o l a t i l i t y on our product costs and to help ensure the 
a v a i l a b i l i t y of propane during periods of short supply. We are currently a party 
to propane futures contracts traded on the New York Mercantile Exchange and 
enter i n t o forward and option agreements with t h i r d parties to purchase and s e l l 
propane at f i x e d prices i n the future. Risk management a c t i v i t i e s are monitored 
by management through enforcement of our Commodity Trading Policy and reported 
to our Audit Committee. Risk management transactions may not always re s u l t i n 
increased product margins. See additional discussion i n Item 7A of t h i s Annual 
Report. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 

m 

Certain amounts included i n or aff e c t i n g our consolidated f i n a n c i a l 
statements and related disclosures must be estimated, requiring management to 
make certain assumptions with respect to values or conditions that cannot be 
known with c e r t a i n t y at the time the f i n a n c i a l statements are prepared. The 
preparation of f i n a n c i a l statements i n conformity with accounting p r i n c i p l e s 
generally accepted i n the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
l i a b i l i t i e s and disclosure of contingent assets and l i a b i l i t i e s at the date of 
the f i n a n c i a l statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. We are also subject to risks and uncertainties that 
may cause actual results to d i f f e r from estimated results. Estimates are used 
when accounting for depreciation and amortization of long-lived assets, employee 
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b e n e f i t p l a n s , s e l f - i n s u r a n c e and l e g a l reserves, allowance f o r d o u b t f u l 
accounts, asset v a l u a t i o n assessment and v a l u a t i o n of d e r i v a t i v e i n s t r u m e n t s . We 
base our e s t i m a t e s on h i s t o r i c a l experience and on v a r i o u s o t h e r assumptions 
t h a t are b e l i e v e d t o be reasonable under the circumstances, the r e s u l t s of which 
form the b a s i s f o r making judgments about the c a r r y i n g values of assets and 
l i a b i l i t i e s t h a t are not r e a d i l y apparent from o t h e r sources. Any e f f e c t s on our 
business, f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n or r e s u l t s of ope r a t i o n s r e s u l t i n g from r e v i s i o n s 
t o these e s t i m a t e s are recorded i n the p e r i o d i n which the f a c t s t h a t 
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give r i s e t o t h e r e v i s i o n become known t o us -

Our s i g n i f i c a n t accounting p o l i c i e s are summarized i n Note 2, "Summary of 
S i g n i f i c a n t Accounting P o l i c i e s , " i n c l u d e d w i t h i n the Notes t o Consolidated 
F i n a n c i a l Statements s e c t i o n elsewhere i n t h i s Annual Report. We b e l i e v e t h a t 
the f o l l o w i n g are our c r i t i c a l accounting p o l i c i e s : 

REVENUE RECOGNITION. We recognize revenue from the sale of propane at the time 
product i s d e l i v e r e d t o the customer. Revenue from the sale of appliances and 
equipment i s recognized a t the time of sale or when i n s t a l l a t i o n i s complete, as 
a p p l i c a b l e . Revenue from r e p a i r and maintenance a c t i v i t i e s i s recognized upon 
completion of the s e r v i c e . 

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS. We m a i n t a i n allowances f o r d o u b t f u l accounts 
f o r e s t i m a t e d losses r e s u l t i n g from the i n a b i l i t y o f our customers t o make 
r e q u i r e d payments. We estimate our allowance f o r d o u b t f u l accounts using a 
s p e c i f i c r e s e r v e f o r known or a n t i c i p a t e d u n c o l l e c t i b l e accounts, as w e l l as a 
general r e s e r v e f o r p o t e n t i a l f u t u r e u n c o l l e c t i b l e accounts t a k i n g i n t o 
c o n s i d e r a t i o n our h i s t o r i c a l w r i t e - o f f s . I f the f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n of one or 
more of our customers were t o d e t e r i o r a t e r e s u l t i n g i n an impairment i n t h e i r 
a b i l i t y t o make payments, a d d i t i o n a l allowances could be r e q u i r e d . 

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS. We estimate the r a t e of r e t u r n on 
plan assets, the di s c o u n t r a t e t o estimate the present value of f u t u r e b e n e f i t 
o b l i g a t i o n s and the cost of f u t u r e h e a l t h care b e n e f i t s i n determining our 
annual pension and ot h e r p o s t r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t costs. I n accordance w i t h 
g e n e r a l l y accepted accounting p r i n c i p l e s , a c t u a l r e s u l t s t h a t d i f f e r from our 
assumptions a r e accumulated and amortized over f u t u r e p e riods and t h e r e f o r e , 
g e n e r a l l y a f f e c t our recognized expense and recorded o b l i g a t i o n i n such f u t u r e 
p e r i o d s . While we b e l i e v e t h a t our assumptions are a p p r o p r i a t e , s i g n i f i c a n t 
d i f f e r e n c e s i n our a c t u a l experience or s i g n i f i c a n t changes i n market c o n d i t i o n s 
may m a t e r i a l l y a f f e c t our pension and ot h e r p o s t r e t i r e m e n t o b l i g a t i o n s and our 
f u t u r e expense. See "Pension Plan Assets" below f o r a d d i t i o n a l d i s c l o s u r e 
r e g a r d i n g pension and ot h e r p o s t r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t s . 
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SELF-INSURANCE RESERVES. Our accrued insurance reserves represent the estimated 
costs of known and a n t i c i p a t e d or unasserted claims under our general and 
product, w o r k e r s 1 compensation and automobile insurance p o l i c i e s . Accrued 
insurance p r o v i s i o n s f o r unasserted claims a r i s i n g from unreported i n c i d e n t s are 
based on an a n a l y s i s of h i s t o r i c a l claims data. For each c l a i m , we recor d a 
se l J - i n s u r a n c e p r o v i s i o n up t o the estimated amount of the probable c l a i m or the 
amount of the d e d u c t i b l e , whichever i s lower, u t i l i z i n g a c t u a r i a l l y determined 
loss development f a c t o r s a p p l i e d t o a c t u a l h i s t o r i c a l claims data. 

GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT. We assess the c a r r y i n g value of g o o d w i l l at a 
r e p o r t i n g u n i t l e v e l , a t l e a s t a n n u a l l y , based on an estimate of the f a i r v alue 
of the r e s p e c t i v e r e p o r t i n g u n i t . F a i r value of the r e p o r t i n g u n i t i s estimated 
using e i t h e r ( i ) a market value approach t a k i n g i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n the quoted 
market p r i c e o f our Common U n i t s ; or ( i i ) discounted cash f l o w analyses t a k i n g 
i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n estimated cash flows i n a ten-year p r o j e c t i o n p e r i o d and a 
t e r m i n a l v a l u e c a l c u l a t i o n a t the end of. the p r o j e c t i o n p e r i o d . 

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES. See Item 7A of t h i s Annual Report 
f o r a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n about accounting f o r d e r i v a t i v e instruments and 
hedging a c t i v i t i e s . 

m 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

FISCAL YEAR 2003 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2002 

REVENUES. Revenues increased 16.0%, or $106.6 m i l l i o n , t o $771.7 m i l l i o n i n 
f i s c a l 2003 compared t o $665.1 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002. Revenues from r e t a i l 
propane a c t i v i t i e s increased $130.0 m i l l i o n , or 24.3%, t o $664.2 m i l l i o n i n 
f i s c a l 2003 compared t o $534.2 m i l l i o n i n the p r i o r year. This increase was the 
r e s u l t of an increase i n average propane s e l l i n g p r i c e s , coupled w i t h an 
increase i n r e t a i l g a l l o n s s o l d . Propane s e l l i n g p r i c e s averaged 15.9% h i g h e r i n 
f i s c a l 2003 compared t o the p r i o r year as a r e s u l t of s t e a d i l y i n c r e a s i n g c o s t s 
of propane throughout the f i r s t h a l f of f i s c a l 2003 which remained hig h e r d u r i n g 
the second h a l f of the year. R e t a i l g a l l o n s s o l d increased 35.5 m i l l i o n g a l l o n s , 
or 7.8%, t o 491.5 m i l l i o n g a l l o n s i n f i s c a l 2003 compared t o 456.0 m i l l i o n 
g a l l o n s i n f i s c a l 2002 due p r i m a r i l y t o c o l d e r average temperatures experienced 
i n p a r t s of o u r s e r v i c e area, p a r t i c u l a r l y d u r i n g the s i x month peak h e a t i n g 
season from October 2002 through March 2003-
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Temperatures nationwide, as reported by the National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration {"NOAA"), averaged 1% colder than normal i n f i s c a l 
2003 compared to 13% warmer than normal temperatures i n the p r i o r year, or 14% 
colder conditions year-over-year. The coldest weather conditions, however, were 
experienced i n the eastern and central regions of the United States. i n the 
west, average temperatures were 10% warmer than normal during f i s c a l 2003, 
compared to 7% warmer than normal during the p r i o r year. In addition, our 
volumes continue to be affected by the impact of a continued economic recession 
on customer buying habits. 

Page 27 of 126 

Revenues from wholesale and r i s k management a c t i v i t i e s of $16.6 m i l l i o n i n 
f i s c a l 2003 decreased $13.5 m i l l i o n , or 54.0%, compared to revenues of $36.1 
m i l l i o n i n the p r i o r year pr i m a r i l y as a result of lower volumes sold i n the 
wholesale market i n l i n e with our strategy to reduce our emphasis on wholesale 
a c t i v i t i e s . Revenue from other sources, including sales of appliances and 
related parts and services, of $90.9 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2003 decreased $3.9 
m i l l i o n , or 4.1%, compared to other revenue i n the p r i o r year of $94.8 m i l l i o n . 
The decrease i n other revenues was primarily a t t r i b u t a b l e to lower revenues from 
service and i n s t a l l a t i o n s . m 

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD. The cost of products sold reported i n the 
consolidated statements of operations represents the weighted average u n i t cost 
of propane sold, including transportation costs to del iver product from our 
supply points to storage or to our customer service centers. Cost of products 
sold also includes the cost of appliances, and related parts sold or i n s t a l l e d by 
our customer service centers computed on a basis that approximates the average 
cost of the products. Cost of products sold i s reported exclusive of any 
depreciation and amortization as such amounts are reported separately w i t h i n the 
consolidated statements of operations. 

Cost of products sold increased $87.7 m i l l i o n , or 30.3%, to $376.8 m i l l i o n 
i n f i s c a l 2003 compared to $289.1 m i l l i o n i n the p r i o r year. The increase 
results p r i m a r i l y from a $93.0 m i l l i o n impact from the aforementioned increase 
i n the commodity price of propane r e s u l t i n g i n a 39.4% increase i n the average 
unit cost of propane in f i s c a l 2003 compared to the p r i o r year, coupled with the 
aforementioned increase i n r e t a i l volumes sold resulting i n an increase of $17.0 
m i l l i o n ; o f f s e t by a $21.2 m i l l i o n decrease from the decline i n wholesale and 
ri s k management a c t i v i t i e s described above. In f i s c a l 2003, cost of products 
sold represented 48.8% of revenues compared to 43.5% i n the p r i o r year. The 
increase i n the cost of products sold as a percentage of revenues relates 
primarily to steadily increasing costs of propane during the f i r s t half of 
f i s c a l 2003 which remained higher during the second half of f i s c a l 2003 compared 
to steadily declining product costs i n the p r i o r year. 

OPERATING EXPENSES. A l l costs of operating our r e t a i l propane d i s t r i b u t i o n 
and appliance sales and service operations are reported w i t h i n operating 
expenses i n the consolidated statements of operations. These operating expenses 
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include the compensation and benefits of f i e l d and dir e c t operating support 
personnel, costs of operating and maintaining our vehicle f l e e t , overhead and 
Other costs of our purchasing, t r a i n i n g and safety departments and other d i r e c t 
and i n d i r e c t costs of our customer service centers. Operating expenses increased 
7.1%, or SIS.6 m i l l i o n , to $250.7 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2003 compared to $234.1 
m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002. Operating expenses i n f i s c a l 2003 include a $1.5 m i l l i o n 
unrealized (non-cash) loss representing the net change in f a i r 
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values of d e r i v a t i v e instruments, compared to a $5.4 m i l l i o n unrealized 
(non-cash) gain in the p r i o r year (see Item 7A - Quantitative and Qualitative 
Disclosures About Market Risk for information on our poli c i e s regarding the 
accounting f o r derivative instruments). In addition to the $6.9 m i l l i o n non-cash 
impact of changes i n the f a i r value of derivative instruments year-over-year, 
operating expenses increased $9.7 m i l l i o n p r i m a r i l y r e s u l t i n g from ! i ) $2.3 
m i l l i o n increased pension costs, ( i i ) $2.2 m i l l i o n higher insurance costs, ( i i i ) 
$2.1 m i l l i o n higher costs to operate our f l e e t primarily from increased fuel 
costs and (iv) $0.9 m i l l i o n higher employee compensation and benefits to support 
the increased sales volume. In addition, we experienced $2.1 m i l l i o n higher bad 
debt expense as a res u l t of the s i g n i f i c a n t increase i n the commodity price of 
propane r e s u l t i n g i n higher prices to our customers, higher sales volumes and 
general economic conditions. 

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES. A l l costs of our back o f f i c e support 
functions, including compensation and benefits f o r executives and other support 
functions, as well as other costs and expenses to maintain finance and 
accounting, treasury, legal, human resources, corporate development and the 
information systems functions are reported within general and administrative 
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. General and 
administrative expenses of $36.7 m i l l i o n for f i s c a l 2003 were $5.9 m i l l i o n , or 
19.2%, higher than f i s c a l 2002 expenses of $30.8 m i l l i o n . The increase was 
primarily a t t r i b u t a b l e to the impact of $2.8 m i l l i o n higher employee 
compensation and benefit related costs, as well as $1.2 m i l l i o n higher fees f o r 
professional services i n the current year period. 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION. Depreciation and amortization expense 
decreased $0.9 m i l l i o n , or 3.2%, to $27.5 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2003, compared to 
$28.4 i n f i s c a l 2002. 

GAIN ON SALE OF STORAGE FACILITY. On January 31, 2002 (the second quarter 
of f i s c a l 2002), we sold our 170 m i l l i o n gallon propane storage f a c i l i t y i n 
Hattiesburg, Mississippi, which was considered a non-strategic asset, for net 
cash proceeds of $8.0 m i l l i o n , r e s u l t i n g i n a gain on sale of approximately $6.8 
m i l l i o n . 
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ItlCOKE EEFORE INTEREST! EXPENSE MTO IHiCOWE TAXES KHt) EBITDA. Income "before 

i n t e r e s t expense and income taxes decreased $9.6 m i l l i o n , or 10.7%, to $80.0 
m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2003 compared to $89.6 m i l l i o n i n the p r i o r year. Earnings 
before i n t e r e s t , taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") amounted to 
$110.0 m i l l i o n for f i s c a l 2003 compared to $117.9 m i l l i o n for the p r i o r year, a 
decline of $7.9 m i l l i o n , or 6.7%. The decline i n income before interest expense 
and income taxes and i n EBITDA over the p r i o r year r e f l e c t s the impact of 7.8% 
higher r e t a i l volumes sold, offset by the $6.9 m i l l i o n unfavorable impact of 
mark-to-market a c t i v i t y on derivative instruments year-over-year included within 
operating expenses, the $6.8 m i l l i o n gain on sale of our Hattiesburg, 
Mississippi storage f a c i l i t y impacting p r i o r year results and the higher 
combined operating and general and administrative expenses (described above) i n 
support of higher business a c t i v i t y . Additionally, the $2.5 m i l l i o n gain 
reported from the sale of nine customer service centers during f i s c a l 2003, 
reported w i t h i n discontinued operations, had a favorable impact on f i s c a l 2003 
EBITDA. 

EBITDA represents net income before deducting interest expense, income 
taxes, depreciation and amortization. Our management uses EBITDA as a measure of 
l i q u i d i t y and we are including i t because we believe that i t provides our 

information to evaluate our 
and to pay our quarterly 
Moreover, our senior note 

require us to use EBITDA as a 
coverage r a t i o s . EBITDA i s 

investors and industry analysts with additional 
a b i l i t y to meet our debt service obligations 
d i s t r i b u t i o n s to holders of our Common uni t s , 
agreements and our revolving c r e d i t agreement 
component i n calc u l a t i n g our leverage and interest 
not a recognized term under generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") 
and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or net cash 
provided by operating a c t i v i t i e s determined i n accordance with GAAP. Because 
EBITDA as determined by us excludes some, but not a l l , items that a f f e c t net 
income, i t may not be comparable to EBITDA or s i m i l a r l y t i t l e d measures used by 
other companies. The following table sets f o r t h ( i) our calculation of EBITDA 
and ( i i ) a r e c o n c i l i a t i o n of EBITDA, as so calculated, to our net cash provided 
by operating a c t i v i t i e s (amounts i n thousands): 
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: TABLE> 
tCAPTION* 

Year Ended 
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September 28, 

2002 

<S> 
NeC income 
Add; 

P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 
I n t e r e s t expense, net 
D e p r e c i a t i o n and a m o r t i z a t i o n 

EBITDA 

A d d / ( s u b t r a c t ) : 
P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 
I n t e r e s t expense, net 
Gain on d i s p o s a l of p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and equipment, net 
Gain on sale of customer s e r v i c e centers 
Gain on sale of storage f a c i l i t y 
Changes i n working c a p i t a l and ot h e r assets and l i a b i l i t i e s 

Wet cash p r o v i d e d by/(used i n ) 
Operating a c t i v i t i e s 

I n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s 

F i n a n c i n g a c t i v i t i e s 

<c> 
$ 48,669 

202 
33,629 
27,520 

110,020 

(202) 
(33, 629) 

(636) 
(2,483) 

{15, 770) 

$ 57,300 

$ (4,859) 

S (77,631) 

<C> 
S 53,524 

703 
35,325 
28,355 

117,907 

(703) 
(35,325) 

(546) 

(6,768) 
(5,790] 

$ 68,775 

S (6,851) 

$ (57,463) 

:/TABLE; 

INTEREST EXPENSE. Net i n t e r e s t expense decreased $1.7 m i l l i o n , or 4.8%, t o 
$33.6 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2003 compared t o $35.3 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002. The 
decrease i n i n t e r e s t expense r e f l e c t s the p o s i t i v e steps taken by us d u r i n g the 
t h i r d q u a r t e r of f i s c a l 2003 t o lower our o v e r a l l leverage, which r e s u l t e d i n an 
$88.9 m i l l i o n r e d u c t i o n i n debt, coupled w i t h lower average i n t e r e s t r a t e s on 
out s t a n d i n g borrowings under our Revolving C r e d i t Agreement d u r i n g the f i r s t and 
second q u a r t e r s of f i s c a l 2003. 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS. As p a r t of our o v e r a l l business s t r a t e g y , we 
c o n t i n u a l l y m o n i t o r and eva l u a t e our e x i s t i n g o p e r a t i o n s t o i d e n t i f y 
o p p o r t u n i t i e s t h a t w i l l a l l o w us t o op t i m i z e our r e t u r n on assets employed by 
s e l e c t i v e l y c o n s o l i d a t i n g or d i v e s t i n g o p e r a t i o n s i n slower growing or 
n o n - s t r a t e g i c markets. I n l i n e w i t h t h a t s t r a t e g y , we s o l d nine customer s e r v i c e 
centers d u r i n g f i s c a l 2003 f o r t o t a l cash proceeds of approximately $7.2 
m i l l i o n . We recorded a g a i n on sale of approximately $2.5 m i l l i o n , which has 
been accounted f o r w i t h i n d i s c o n t i n u e d o p e r a t i o n s pursuant t o SFAS No. 144, 
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"Accounting f o r the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." 

FISCAL YEAR 2002 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2001 

REVENUES. Revenues of $665.1 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002 decreased $266.4 
m i l l i o n , or 2 S. 6%, compared t o $931.5 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2001. Revenues from 
r e t a i l propane a c t i v i t i e s decreased $219.2 m i l l i o n , or 29.1%, t o $534.2 m i l l i o n 
i n f i s c a l 2002 compared t o $753.4 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2001. This decrease i s 
p r i n c i p a l l y due t o a decrease i n average s e l l i n g p r i c e s , coupled w i t h a decrease 
i n r e t a i l g a l l o n s s o l d . Average s e l l i n g p r i c e s d e c l i n e d 18.4% as a r e s u l t of a 
s i g n i f i c a n t d e c l i n e i n the commodity p r i c e of propane i n f i s c a l 2002 compared t o 
the p r i o r year. R e t a i l g a l l o n s s o l d decreased 13.1%, or 68.7 m i l l i o n g a l l o n s , t o 
456.0 m i l l i o n g a l l o n s i n f i s c a l 2002 compared t o 524.7 m i l l i o n g a l l o n s i n f i s c a l 
2001. The decrease i n volume was a t t r i b u t a b l e t o recor d warm weather c o n d i t i o n s 
which were most dramatic d u r i n g the peak h e a t i n g months of October through March 
of f i s c a l 2 002 as w e l l as, t o a l e s s e r e x t e n t , the impact of the economic 
recession on commercial and i n d u s t r i a l customers' buying h a b i t s . 

Nationwide temperatures d u r i n g f i s c a l 2002 were 13% warmer than normal as 
compared t o temperatures t h a t were 2% colder than normal d u r i n g f i s c a l 2001, as 
r e p o r t e d by NOAA. During the peak h e a t i n g months of October 2001 through March 
2 002, temperatures nationwide were 13% warmer than normal as compared t o 5% 
co l d e r than normal i n the comparable p e r i o d i n f i s c a l 2001, as r e p o r t e d by NOAA. 
Volumes from t h e components of our customer mix t h a t are l e s s weather s e n s i t i v e 
d e c l i n e d a p p r o x i m a t e l y 12% year-over-year. 
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Revenues from wholesale and r i s k management a c t i v i t i e s decreased $50.1 
m i l l i o n , or 58.1%, t o $36.1 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002 compared t o $86.2 m i l l i o n i n 
f i s c a l 2001. A les s v o l a t i l e commodity p r i c e environment f o r propane d u r i n g 
f i s c a l 2002 compared t o f i s c a l 2001 r e s u l t e d i n reduced r i s k management 
a c t i v i t i e s and lower volumes i n the wholesale market. Revenue from o t h e r 
sources, i n c l u d i n g sales of appliances and r e l a t e d p a r t s and s e r v i c e s , of $94.8 
m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002 increased $2.9 m i l l i o n , or 3.2%, over f i s c a l 2001 
revenues of $91.9 m i l l i o n . 

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD. Cost of products s o l d decreased $221.2 m i l l i o n , or 
43.3%, t o $289.1 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002 compared t o $510.3 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 
2001. The decrease r e s u l t s p r i m a r i l y from a $125.1 m i l l i o n impact from the 
aforementioned decrease i n the commodity p r i c e of propane r e s u l t i n g i n a 36.3% 
decrease i n the average u n i t cost of propane d u r i n g f i s c a l 2 0 02 compared t o 
f i s c a l 2001- T h i s i s coupled w i t h the aforementioned decrease i n r e t a i l volumes 
s o l d r e s u l t i n g i n a decrease of $51.9 m i l l i o n , and a $45.4 m i l l i o n decrease from 
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the decline i n wholesale and r i s k management a c t i v i t i e s described above. i n 
f i s c a l 2002, cost of products sold represented 43.5% of revenues compared to 
54.8% in the p r i o r year. The decrease i n the cost of products sold as a 
percentage of revenues relates p r i m a r i l y to steadily decreasing costs of propane 
during f i s c a l 2002. 

OPERATING EXPENSES. Operating expenses decreased 9.5%, or $24.6 m i l l i o n , to 
$234.1 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002 compared to $258.7 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2001. 
Operating expenses for the year ended September 28, 2002 include a $5.4 m i l l i o n 
unrealized (non-cash) gain representing the net change i n f a i r values of 
derivative instruments not designated as hedges, compared to a $3.1 m i l l i o n 
unrealized loss i n f i s c a l 2001 (see Item 7A of t h i s Annual Report f o r 
information on our po l i c i e s regarding the accounting for derivative instruments 
and hedging a c t i v i t i e s ) . In addition to the $8.5 m i l l i o n favorable impact from 
changes i n the f a i r value of derivative instruments year-over-year, operating 
expenses decreased $16.1 m i l l i o n , or 6.3%, p r i n c i p a l l y a t t r i b u t a b l e to our 
a b i l i t y to reduce costs amidst declining volumes resul t i n g from ongoing 
i n i t i a t i v e s t o s h i f t costs from fixed to variable, primarily i n the areas of 
employee compensation and benefits. The lower compensation costs of $10.5 
m i l l i o n were o f f s e t , i n part, by a $4.0 m i l l i o n increase i n medical and dental 
costs i n f i s c a l 2002 compared to the p r i o r year. Additionally, operating 
expenses were favorably impacted by a $4.2 m i l l i o n decrease i n provisions f o r 
doubtful accounts and $3.0 m i l l i o n lower costs of operating our f l e e t , including 
maintenance and fue l costs, i n f i s c a l 2002 compared to f i s c a l 2001. Provisions 
for doubtful accounts were higher i n f i s c a l 2001 primarily as a result of the 
generally higher s e l l i n g price environment driven by the higher average propane 
costs. 

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES. General and administrative expenses 
decreased $1.7 m i l l i o n , or 5.2%, to $30.8 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002 compared to 
$32.5 m i l l i o n in f i s c a l 2001, again a t t r i b u t a b l e to a decrease i n employee 
compensation and benefit costs of $4.3 m i l l i o n , as well as to a $1.6 m i l l i o n 
decrease i n fees for professional services, p a r t l y offset by a $1.3 m i l l i o n 
increase i n telecommunication costs. 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION. Depreciation and amortization expense 
decreased 22.2%, or $8.1 m i l l i o n , to $28.4 m i l l i o n in f i s c a l 2002 compared to 
$36.5 m i l l i o n i n the p r i o r year pr i m a r i l y as a result of our decision to early 
adopt SFAS 142 e f f e c t i v e September 30, 2001 (the beginning of f i s c a l 2002), 
which eliminated the requirement to amortize goodwill and certain intangible 
assets. I f SFAS 142 had been i n e f f e c t at the beginning of the p r i o r year, 
f i s c a l 2001 net income would have improved by $7.4 m i l l i o n . 

GAIN ON SALE OF STORAGE FACILITY. On January 31, 2002, we sold our 170 
m i l l i o n gallon propane storage f a c i l i t y i n Hattiesburg, Mississippi, which was 
considered a non-strategic asset, for net cash proceeds of $8.0 m i l l i o n , 
r e s u l t i n g i n a gain on sale of approximately $6.8 m i l l i o n . 
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INCOME BEFORE INTEREST EXPENSE AND INCOME TAXES AND EBITDA. Income beEore 

interest expense and income taxes decreased 4.2%, or $3.9 m i l l i o n , to $89.6 
m i l l i o n compared to $93.5 m i l l i o n i n the p r i o r year. Earnings before i n t e r e s t , 
taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") decreased 9.3%, or $12.1 
m i l l i o n , to $117.9 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002 compared to $130.0 m i l l i o n i n the 
pr i o r year. The decreases i n income before interest expense and 
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income taxes and i n EBITDA r e f l e c t the impact of the 13.1% lower r e t a i l volumes 
sold i n f i s c a l 2 002 a t t r i b u t a b l e to unseasonably warm heating season 
temperatures and the economy; p a r t i a l l y offset by (i) the $26.3 m i l l i o n , or 
9.0%, decrease i n combined operating and general and administrative expenses 
described above, ( i i ) the impact of the $6.8 m i l l i o n gain on the sale of our 
Hattiesburg, Mississippi storage f a c i l i t y and ( i i i ) the impact on operating 
expenses of changes i n the f a i r value of derivative instruments described above. 
In addition, i f SFAS 142 had been i n eff e c t at the beginning of the p r i o r year, 
f i s c a l 2001 income before interest expense and income taxes would have improved 
by $7.4 m i l l i o n . 

EBITDA represents net income before deducting interest expense, income 
taxes, depreciation and amortization. Our management uses EBITDA as a measure of 
l i q u i d i t y and we are including i t because we believe that i t provides our 
investors and industry analysts with additional information to evaluate our 
a b i l i t y to meet our debt service obligations and to pay our quarterly 
d i s t r i b u t i o n s to holders of our Common Units. Moreover, our senior note 
agreements and our revolving c r e d i t agreement require us to use EBITDA as a 
component i n calc u l a t i n g our leverage and interest coverage r a t i o s . EBITDA i s 
not a recognized term under generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") 
and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or net cash 
provided by operating a c t i v i t i e s determined i n accordance with GAAP. Because 
EBITDA as determined by us excludes some, but not a l l , items that affect net 
income, i t may not be comparable to EBITDA or s i m i l a r l y t i t l e d measures used by 
other companies. The following table sets f o r t h ( i) our calculation of EBITDA 
and ( i i ) a r e c o n c i l i a t i o n of EBITDA, as so calculated, to our net cash provided 
by operating a c t i v i t i e s (amounts in thousands): 

<TABLE> 
<:CAPTION> 

Year Ended 

September 28, September 29, 
2002 2001 
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Nee income 
Add: 

$ 53,524 $ 53,510 

P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 
I n t e r e s t expense, net 
D e p r e c i a t i o n and a m o r t i z a t i o n 

703 
35,325 
28,355 

375 
39,596 
36,496 

EBITDA 117,907 129,977 

A d d / ( s u b t r a c t ) : 
P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 
I n t e r e s t expense, net 
Gain on d i s p o s a l of p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and equipment, net 
Gain on sale of storage f a c i l i t y 
Changes i n working c a p i t a l and ot h e r assets and l i a b i l i t i e s 

(703) 
{35,325) 

(546) 
{6,768) 
(5,790) 

(375) 
{39,596) 
{3,843) 

15,675 

Net cash provided by/(used i n ) 
Operating a c t i v i t i e s S 68,775 $ 101,838 

I n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s $ (6,851) $ (17,907) 

Fin a n c i n g a c t i v i t i e s $ (57,463) $ (59,082) 

:/TABLE > 

INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE. Net i n t e r e s t expense decreased 10.9%, 
or $4,3 m i l l i o n , t o $35.3 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002 compared t o $39.6 m i l l i o n i n 
the p r i o r year. This decrease i s p r i m a r i l y a t t r i b u t a b l e t o re d u c t i o n s i n average 
amounts o u t s t a n d i n g d u r i n g f i s c a l 2002 under our Revolving C r e d i t Agreement, as 
w e l l as lower average i n t e r e s t r a t e s . 
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L I Q U I D I T Y AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Due t o t h e seasonal na tu re o f the propane bus iness , cash f l o w s f r o m 
o p e r a t i n g a c t i v i t i e s are g r e a t e r d u r i n g t h e w i n t e r and s p r i n g seasons, our 
second and t h i r d f i s c a l q u a r t e r s , as customers pay f o r propane purchased d u r i n g 
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the h e a t i n g season. I n f i s c a l 2003, net cash p r o v i d e d by o p e r a t i n g a c t i v i t i e s 
decreased S l l - 5 m i l l i o n , or 16.7%, t o $57.3 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2003 compared t o 
$68.8 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002. The decrease i s p r i m a r i l y due t o lower net income, 
i n c l u d i n g lower non-cash items ( p r i n c i p a l l y d e p r e c i a t i o n , a m o r t i z a t i o n and gains 
on asset d i s p o s a l s ) , as w e l l as the impact of increased investment i n accounts 
r e c e i v a b l e and i n v e n t o r i e s r e s u l t i n g from h i g h e r commodity p r i c e s and increased 
business a c t i v i t y d u r i n g f i s c a l 2003 compared t o f i s c a l 2002 due t o g e n e r a l l y 
c o l d e r average temperatures. 

I n f i s c a l 2002, net cash p r o v i d e d by o p e r a t i n g a c t i v i t i e s decreased $33.0 
m i l l i o n , o r 32.4%, t o $68.8 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002 compared t o $101.8 m i l l i o n i n 
f i s c a l 2001. The decrease was p r i m a r i l y due t o lower net income, i n c l u d i n g lower 
non-cash i t e m s ( p r i n c i p a l l y d e p r e c i a t i o n , a m o r t i z a t i o n and gains on asset 
d i s p o s a l s ) , as w e l l as the impact of unfavorable changes i n working c a p i t a l i n 
comparison t o the p r i o r year, p r i n c i p a l l y r e f l e c t i n g lower compensation and 
b e n e f i t a c c r u a l s , o f f s e t by lower i n v e n t o r i e s . 

Net cash used i n i n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s was $4.9 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2003, 
r e f l e c t i n g $14.1 m i l l i o n i n c a p i t a l expenditures ( i n c l u d i n g $4.7 m i l l i o n f o r 
maintenance e x p e n d i t u r e s and $9.4 m i l l i o n t o support the growth of operations) 
o f f s e t by net proceeds of $9.2 m i l l i o n from the sale of assets ( i n c l u d i n g net 
proceeds of $7.2 m i l l i o n from the sale of nine customer s e r v i c e c e n t e r s ) . Net 
cash used i n i n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s was $6.9 m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2002, r e f l e c t i n g 
$17.5 m i l l i o n i n c a p i t a l expenditures ( i n c l u d i n g $13.0 m i l l i o n f o r maintenance 
expenditures and $4.5 m i l l i o n t o support the growth of operations) o f f s e t by net 
proceeds of $10.6 m i l l i o n from the sale of assets ( i n c l u d i n g net proceeds of 
$8.0 m i l l i o n r e s u l t i n g from the sale of our propane storage f a c i l i t y i n 
H a t t i e s b u r g , M i s s i s s i p p i ) . Net cash used i n i n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s was $17.9 
m i l l i o n i n f i s c a l 2001, r e f l e c t i n g $23.2 m i l l i o n i n c a p i t a l expenditures 
( i n c l u d i n g $6.5 m i l l i o n f o r maintenance expenditures and $16.7 m i l l i o n t o 
support the growth of o p e r a t i o n s ) , o f f s e t by net proceeds of $5.3 m i l l i o n from 
the sale of p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and equipment. 

Net cash used i n f i n a n c i n g a c t i v i t i e s f o r f i s c a l 2003 was $77.6 m i l l i o n , 
r e f l e c t i n g ( i ) the payment of our q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n s t o our Common 
Un i t h o l d e r s and our General Partner amounting t o $60.1 m i l l i o n , ( i i ) the 
repayment of a l l o u t s t a n d i n g borrowings under our Revolving C r e d i t Agreement 
amounting t o $46.0 m i l l i o n , ( i i i ) the repayment of the second annual p r i n c i p a l 
payment of $42.5 m i l l i o n due under the 1996 Senior Note Agreement, and ( i v ) the 
payment of $0.8 m i l l i o n i n fees associated w i t h the renewal and extension of our 
Revolving C r e d i t Agreement d u r i n g May 2003. The $88.9 m i l l i o n r e d u c t i o n i n debt 
d u r i n g f i s c a l 2 0 03 was funded through a combination of cash provided by 
Operations and the net proceeds of $72.2 m i l l i o n from a f o l l o w - o n p u b l i c 
o f f e r i n g of ap p r o x i m a t e l y 2.6 m i l l i o n Common U n i t s ( i n c l u d i n g f u l l e x e r c i s e of 
the u n d e r w r i t e r s ' o v e r - a l l o t m e n t o p t i o n ) which was completed d u r i n g the t h i r d 
q u a r t e r of f i s c a l 2003. Net cash used i n f i n a n c i n g a c t i v i t i e s f o r f i s c a l 2002 
was $57.5 m i l l i o n , p r i m a r i l y r e f l e c t i n g the payment of q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n s 
t o our Common U n i t h o l d e r s and our General Partner. Net cash used i n f i n a n c i n g 
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a c t i v i t i e s f o r f i s c a l 2001 was $59.1 m i l l i o n , r e f l e c t i n g repayments under our 
Operating P a r t n e r s h i p ' s Revolving C r e d i t Agreement, as amended and r e s t a t e d 
e f f e c t i v e January 29, 2001 {the "Revolving C r e d i t Agreement"}, i n c l u d i n g a net 
repayment of $44.0 m i l l i o n borrowed under the SCANA A c q u i s i t i o n f a c i l i t y and a 
net repayment of $6.5 m i l l i o n borrowed under the net working c a p i t a l f a c i l i t y , 
and $54 .5 m i l l i o n f o r payment of q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n s t o our Common 
Un i t h o l d e r s and our General Partner, p a r t l y o f f s e t by net proceeds of $47.1 
m i l l i o n from a p u b l i c o f f e r i n g of approximately 2.4 m i l l i o n Common Un i t s i n 
October 2000. 
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On March 5, 1996, pursuant t o a Senior Note Agreement (the "1996 Senior 
Note Agreement"), we issued $425.0 m i l l i o n of senior notes {the "1996 Senior 
Notes") w i t h an annual i n t e r e s t r a t e of 7.54%. Our o b l i g a t i o n s under the 1996 
Senior Note Agreement are unsecured and rank on an equal and r a t a b l e b a s i s w i t h 
our o b l i g a t i o n s under the 2002 Senior Note Agreement and the Revolving C r e d i t 
Agreement discussed below, under the terms of the 1996 Senior Note Agreement, we 
became o b l i g a t e d t o pay the p r i n c i p a l on the 1996 Senior Notes i n equal annual 
payments of $42.-5 m i l l i o n s t a r t i n g J u l y 1, 2002, w i t h the l a s t such payment due 
June 30, 2011. On J u l y 1, 
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2002, we r e c e i v e d net proceeds of $42.5 m i l l i o n from the issuance of 7.37% 
Senior Notes due June, 2012 (the "2002 Senior Notes") and used the funds t o pay 
the f i r s t annual p r i n c i p a l payment of $42.5 m i l l i o n due under the 1996 Senior 
Note Agreement. Our o b l i g a t i o n s under the agreement governing the 2002 Senior 
Notes (the "2002 Senior Note Agreement") are unsecured and rank on an equal and 
r a t a b l e basis w i t h our o b l i g a t i o n s under the 1996 s e n i o r Note Agreement and the 
Revolving C r e d i t Agreement. Rather than r e f i n a n c e the second annual p r i n c i p a l 
payment of $42.5 m i l l i o n due under the 1996 Senior Note Agreement, we e l e c t e d t o 
repay t h i s p r i n c i p a l payment on June 30, 2003. 

Our p r e v i o u s Revolving C r e d i t Agreement, which provided a $75.0 m i l l i o n 
working c a p i t a l f a c i l i t y and a $50.0 m i l l i o n a c q u i s i t i o n f a c i l i t y , was scheduled 
t o mature on May 31, 2003. On May 3, 2003, we completed the Second Amended and 
Restated C r e d i t Agreement (the "Revolving C r e d i t Agreement") which extends the 
previous Revolving C r e d i t Agreement u n t i l May 31, 2006. The Revolving C r e d i t 
Agreement p r o v i d e s a $75.0 m i l l i o n working c a p i t a l f a c i l i t y and an a c q u i s i t i o n 
f a c i l i t y o f $25.0 m i l l i o n . Borrowings under the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement bear 
i n t e r e s t a t a r a t e based upon e i t h e r LIBOR p l u s a margin, Wachovia N a t i o n a l 
Bank's prime r a t e or the Federal Funds r a t e p l u s 1/2 of 1%. An annual fee 
ranging from 0.375% t o 0.50%, based upon c e r t a i n f i n a n c i a l t e s t s , i s payable 
q u a r t e r l y whether or not borrowings occur. These terms are s u b s t a n t i a l l y the 
same as the terms under the previous Revolving C r e d i t Agreement. I n connection 
w i t h the c o m p l e t i o n of the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement, we r e p a i d $21.0 m i l l i o n 
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of outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement. On June 19, 
2003, we repaid the remaining outstanding balance of $25.0 m i l l i o n under the 
Revolving Credit Agreement. As of September 27, 2003 there were no borrowings 
outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement. As of September 28, 2002, 
$46.0 m i l l i o n was outstanding under the acquisition f a c i l i t y of the previous 
Revolving Credit Agreement and there were no borrowings under the working 
c a p i t a l f a c i l i t y . 

The 1996 Senior Note Agreement, the 2002 Senior Note Agreement and the 
Revolving Credit Agreement contain various r e s t r i c t i v e and affirmative covenants 
applicable to our Operating Partnership, including (a) maintenance of certain 
f i n a n c i a l t e s t s , including, but not l i m i t e d to, a leverage r a t i o of less than 
5.0 to 1 and an inte r e s t coverage r a t i o i n excess of 2.5 to 1 using EBITDA i n 
such r a t i o calculations, (b) r e s t r i c t i o n s on the incurrence of additional 
indebtedness, and [c) r e s t r i c t i o n s on certain liens, investments, guarantees, 
loans, advances, payments, mergers, consolidations, d i s t r i b u t i o n s , sales of 
assets and other transactions. During December 2002, we amended the 1996 Senior 
Note Agreement to (i) eliminate an adjusted net worth f i n a n c i a l test to be 
consistent w i t h the 2002 Senior Note Agreement and Revolving Credit Agreement, 
and ( i i ) require a leverage r a t i o of less than 5.25 to 1 when the underfunded 
portion of our pension obligations i s used i n the computation of the r a t i o . We 
were i n compliance with a l l covenants and terms of a l l of our debt agreements as 
of September 27, 2003 and at the end of each f i s c a l quarter for a l l periods 
presented. 

We w i l l make d i s t r i b u t i o n s i n an amount equal to a l l of our Available Cash, 
as defined i n the Second Amended and Restated Partnership Agreement, 
approximately 45 days a f t e r the end of each f i s c a l quarter to holders of record 
on the applicable record dates. The Board of Supervisors reviews the level of 
Available Cash on a quarterly basis based upon information provided by 
management. During each of the f i r s t three quarters of f i s c a l 2003, we paid 
d i s t r i b u t i o n s to our Common Unitholders of $6.5750 per Common Unit. On July 24, 
2003, the Board of Supervisors declared a $0.05 annualized increase in the 
quarterly d i s t r i b u t i o n from $0.5750 per Common Unit to $0.5875 per Common Unit, 
or $2.35 on an annualized basis, f o r the t h i r d quarter of f i s c a l 2003, which was 
paid on August 12, 2003. On October 23, 2003, the Board of Supervisors declared 
a quarterly d i s t r i b u t i o n of $0.5875 per Common Unit for the fourth quarter of 
f i s c a l 2003, which was paid on November 10, 2003 to holders of record on 
November 3, 2003 . 

Quarterly d i s t r i b u t i o n s include Incentive D i s t r i b u t i o n Rights ("IpRs") 
payable to the General Partner to the extent the quarterly d i s t r i b u t i o n exceeds 
$0.55 per Common Unit. The IDRs represent an incentive for the General Partner 
(which i s owned by our management) to increase the d i s t r i b u t i o n s to Common 
Unitholders i n excess of the $0.55 per Common Unit. With regard to the f i r s t 
$0.55 of the Common Unit d i s t r i b u t i o n , 98.29% of the Available Cash i s 
di s t r i b u t e d t o the Common Unitholders and 1.71% i s d i s t r i b u t e d to the General 
Partner 
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(98.11% and 1.89%, r e s p e c t i v e l y , p r i o r t o our June 2003 p u b l i c o f f e r i n g ) . With 
regard t o the balance of the Common Unit d i s t r i b u t i o n s p a i d , 85% of the 
A v a i l a b l e Cash i s d i s t r i b u t e d t o the Common U n i t h o l d e r s and 15% i s d i s t r i b u t e d 
t o the General Partner. 

As d i s c u s s e d above, the r e s u l t s of op e r a t i o n s f o r the f i s c a l year ended 
September 27, 2003 were impacted by g e n e r a l l y c o l d e r average temperatures 
compared t o f i s c a l 2002 across much of the United States, a c h a l l e n g i n g 
comtriotlity p r i c e and supply environment and the s u s t a i n e d economic recession. Our 
r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s were f a v o r a b l y impacted by a r e t u r n t o more normal weather 
p a t t e r n s , p a r t i c u l a r l y i n the east, and our continued focus on managing our cost 
s t r u c t u r e ; d e s p i t e the negative e f f e c t s of unseasonably warm weather i n the west 
and the economy, i n a d d i t i o n , our product supply and r i s k management a c t i v i t i e s 
helped t o ensure adequate supply and t o m i t i g a t e the impact of propane p r i c e 
v o l a t i l i t y d u r i n g a p e r i o d of u n c e r t a i n t y surrounding the s i t u a t i o n i n I r a q and 
ot h e r o i l p r o d u c i n g n a t i o n s - We took s e v e r a l steps d u r i n g f i s c a l 2003 t o f u r t h e r 
s t r e n g t h e n o u r balance sheet and improve our leverage, h i g h l i g h t e d by the 
suc c e s s f u l c o m p l e t i o n d u r i n g the t h i r d q u a r t e r of a f o l l o w - o n p u b l i c o f f e r i n g of 
approximately 2.6 m i l l i o n Common Un i t s and the repayment of $88.9 m i l l i o n of 
debt. The low e r debt l e v e l s r e s u l t e d i n approximately $2.0 m i l l i o n lower 
i n t e r e s t expense i n f i s c a l 2003 compared t o the p r i o r year. 

Our a n t i c i p a t e d cash requirements f o r f i s c a l 2004 i n c l u d e maintenance and 
growth c a p i t a l expenditures of approximately $19.0 m i l l i o n f o r the r e p a i r and 
replacement o f p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and equipment, approximately $30.0 m i l l i o n of 
i n t e r e s t payments on the 1996 Senior Notes, the 2002 Senior Notes and the 
Revolving C r e d i t Agreement and a p r i n c i p a l payment of $42.5 m i l l i o n due on June 
30, 20 04 under the 19 96 Senior Note Agreement. I n a d d i t i o n , assuming 
d i s t r i b u t i o n s remain a t the c u r r e n t l e v e l , we w i l l be r e q u i r e d t o pay 
approximately $65.8 m i l l i o n i n d i s t r i b u t i o n s t o Common U n i t h o l d e r s and the 
General P a r t n e r d u r i n g f i s c a l 2004. Based on our c u r r e n t estimate of our cash 
p o s i t i o n , a v a i l a b i l i t y under the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement (unused borrowing 
c a p a c i t y under the working c a p i t a l f a c i l i t y o f $69.5 m i l l i o n a t September 27, 
2003) and expected cash f l o w from o p e r a t i n g a c t i v i t i e s , we expect t o have 
s u f f i c i e n t funds t o meet our c u r r e n t and f u t u r e o b l i g a t i o n s . 

I n c o n n e c t i o n w i t h the pending a c q u i s i t i o n of the assets and o p e r a t i o n s of 
Agway Energy, we expect t o close the a c q u i s i t i o n upon completion of the a u c t i o n 
process, f i n a l approval of the a c q u i s i t i o n by the Bankruptcy Court and necessary 
r e g u l a t o r y a p p r o v a l s . At present, we p l a n t o fund the $206.0 m i l l i o n purchase 
p r i c e and r e l a t e d a c q u i s i t i o n costs and expenses w i t h c a p i t a l markets 
f i n a n c i n g s . I n the i n t e r i m , we have obta i n e d a commitment from e s t a b l i s h e d 
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investment banking i n s t i t u t i o n s to provide a S210.0 m i l l i o n 364-day f a c i l i t y to 
fund a l l or a portion of the purchase price. I f we draw on t h i s f a c i l i t y , i t 
would bear i n t e r e s t at a f l o a t i n g rate and, at our option, may be converted at 
maturity i n t o a 9-year term loan. i f the f a c i l i t y were drawn, we would seek to 
arrange for other permanent financing to repay the f a c i l i t y at our e a r l i e s t 
opportunity, possibly through one or more offerings of equity or debt 
securities. Following consummation of the acquisition, we believe that we w i l l 
have s u f f i c i e n t cash flow from operating a c t i v i t i e s and a v a i l a b i l i t y under our 
Revolving Credit Agreement to fund the incremental cash requirements and tb fund 
incremental working c a p i t a l needs of the Agway Energy business for the 
forseeable future. 

PENSION PLAN ASSETS 

While our pension asset p o r t f o l i o experienced s i g n i f i c a n t l y improved asset 
returns i n f i s c a l 2003, the funded status of our defined benefit pension plan 
continues to be impacted by the low interest rate environment a f f e c t i n g the 
actuarial value of the projected benefit obligations, as well as the cumulative 
impact of p r i o r losses p a r t i c u l a r l y during 2002 and 2001. As a result, the 
projected benefit obligation as of September 27, 2003 exceeded the market value 
of pension plan assets by $42.1 m i l l i o n , which improved $11.1 m i l l i o n compared 
to the $53.2 m i l l i o n underfunded position at the end of the p r i o r year. The 
improvement i n the funded status compared to f i s c a l 2002 has also resulted i n a 
favorable adjustment of $5.0 m i l l i o n to accumulated other comprehensive 
[loss)/income, a component of partners' c a p i t a l , at the end of f i s c a l 2003. 
Therefore, the cumulative reduction to 
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partners' c a p i t a l amounted to $80.1 m i l l i o n on the consolidated balance sheet at 
September 27, 2003 compared to the cumulative reduction of $85.1 m i l l i o n as of 
September 28, 2002. The cumulative reduction to partners' c a p i t a l i s 
at t r i b u t a b l e t o the level of unrealized losses experienced on our pension assets 
over the past three years and represent non-cash charges to our partners' 
c a p i t a l with no impact on the results of operations f o r the f i s c a l year ended 
September 27, 2003. Our defined benefit pension plan was frozen to new 
participants e f f e c t i v e January 1, 2000 and, i n furtherance of our e f f o r t to 
minimize future increases in the benefit obligations, e f f e c t i v e January 1, 2003 
a l l future service credits were eliminated. 

For purposes of computing the act u a r i a l valuation of projected benefit 
obligations, we reduced the discount rate assumption from 6.75% as of September 
28, 2002 to 6.0% as of September 27, 2003 to r e f l e c t an estimate of current 
market expectations related to long term interest rates. Additionally, we 
reduced the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption from 
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8.5% as of September 28, 2002 t o 7.75% as of September 27, 2003 based on the 
cu r r e n t investment mix of our pension asset p o r t f o l i o and h i s t o r i c a l asset 
performance. There were no minimum funding requirements f o r the d e f i n e d b e n e f i t 
pension plan d u r i n g f i s c a l 2003, 2002 or 2001- However, i n an e f f o r t t o 
p r o a c t i v e l y address our funded s t a t u s we e l e c t e d t o make a v o l u n t a r y 
c o n t r i b u t i o n o f $10.0 m i l l i o n t o our d e f i n e d b e n e f i t pension p l a n d u r i n g the 
f o u r t h q u a r t e r of f i s c a l 2003, thus improving our funded s t a t u s . This v o l u n t a r y 
c o n t r i b u t i o n , coupled w i t h improved asset r e t u r n s i n our pension asset p o r t f o l i o 
d u r i n g f i s c a l 2003, o f f s e t the negative e f f e c t s on the funded s t a t u s of f u r t h e r 
d e c l i n e s i n t h e i n t e r e s t r a t e environment. There can be no assurances t h a t 
f u t u r e d e c l i n e s i n c a p i t a l markets, or i n t e r e s t r a t e s , w i l l not have an adverse 
impact on our r e s u l t s of op e r a t i o n s or cash f l o w . 

LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS AND OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

Long-term debt o b l i g a t i o n s and f u t u r e minimum r e n t a l commitments under 
noncancelable o p e r a t i n g lease agreements as of September 27, 2003 are due as 
f o l l o w s (amounts i n thousands) :' 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION? 

F i s c a l 
2004 

F i s c a l 
2005 

F i s c a l 
2006 

F i s c a l 
2007 

2008 and 
t h e r e a f t e r T o t a l 

<S^ 
Long-term debt 
Operating leases 

T o t a l l o n g - t e r m debt 
o b l i g a t i o n s and 
lease commitments 

</TABLE> 

$ 42,911 
17,796 

$ 60,707 

<C> 
$ 42,940 

12,868 

$ 55,808 

<C> 
$ 42,975 

9, 959 

$ 52,934 

<C> 
$ 42,500 

5, 860 

$ 48,360 

$ 212,500 
6,410 

$ 218,910 

<C> 
$ 383,82 

52, 89 

$ 436,71 

A d d i t i o n a l l y , we have standby l e t t e r s of c r e d i t i n the aggregate amount of $35.4 
m i l l i o n , i n support of r e t e n t i o n l e v e l s under our c a s u a l t y insurance programs 
and c e r t a i n l e a s e o b l i g a t i o n s , which e x p i r e on March 1, 2004. 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

OPERATING LEASES 

We lease c e r t a i n p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and equipment f o r v a r i o u s periods under 
noncancelable o p e r a t i n g leases, i n c l u d i n g a l l of our r a i l r o a d tank cars, 
approximately 70% of our v e h i c l e f l e e t , approximately 30% of our customer 
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s e r v i c e c e n t e r s and p o r t i o n s of our i n f o r m a t i o n systems equipment. Rental 
expense under o p e r a t i n g leases was $24.3 m i l l i o n , $24.0 m i l l i o n and $23.4 
m i l l i o n f o r t h e years ended September 27, 2003, September 28, 2002 and September 
29, 2 001, r e s p e c t i v e l y . Future minimum r e n t a l commitments under noncancelable 
o p e r a t i n g lease agreements as of September 27, 2 003 are presented i n the 
immediately preceding t a b l e . 
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GUARANTEES 

F i n a n c i a l Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"! F i n a n c i a l I n t e r p r e t a t i o n No. 
45, "Guarantor 1s Accounting and D i s c l o s u r e Requirements f o r Guarantees, 
I n c l u d i n g I n d i r e c t Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others," expands the e x i s t i n g 
d i s c l o s u r e requirements f o r guarantees and r e q u i r e s r e c o g n i t i o n of a l i a b i l i t y 
f o r the f a i r v alue of guarantees issued a f t e r December 31, 2002. we have 
r e s i d u a l v a l u e guarantees associated w i t h c e r t a i n of our o p e r a t i n g leases, 
r e l a t e d p r i m a r i l y t o t r a n s p o r t a t i o n equipment, w i t h remaining lease periods 
scheduled t o e x p i r e p e r i o d i c a l l y through f i s c a l 2009. Upon completion of the 
lease p e r i o d , we guarantee t h a t the f a i r value of the equipment w i l l equal or 
exceed the guaranteed amount, or we w i l l pay the l e s s o r the d i f f e r e n c e . Although 
the f a i r v a l u e of equipment at the end of i t s lease term has h i s t o r i c a l l y 
exceeded the guaranteed amounts, the maximum p o t e n t i a l amount of aggregate 
f u t u r e payments we c o u l d be r e q u i r e d t o make under these l e a s i n g arrangements, 
assuming the equipment i s deemed wo r t h l e s s a t the end of the lease term, i s 
approximately $14.4 m i l l i o n , of t h i s amount, the f a i r value of r e s i d u a l value 
guarantees f o r o p e r a t i n g leases entered i n t o a f t e r December 31, 2002 was $2.1 
m i l l i o n which i s r e f l e c t e d i n ot h e r l i a b i l i t i e s , w i t h a corresponding amount 
i n c l u d e d w i t h i n o t h e r assets, i n the accompanying c o n s o l i d a t e d balance sheet as 
of September 27, 2003. 

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

In June 2 002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 14 6, "Accounting f o r Costs 
Associated w i t h E x i t or Disposal A c t i v i t i e s " ("SFAS 146"). SFAS 146 r e q u i r e s 
companies t o recognize costs associated w i t h e x i t or d i s p o s a l a c t i v i t i e s when 
they are i n c u r r e d r a t h e r than a t the date of a commitment t o an e x i t or d i s p o s a l 
p l a n . The p r o v i s i o n s of SFAS 146 are e f f e c t i v e f o r e x i t or d i s p o s a l a c t i v i t i e s 
i n i t i a t e d a f t e r December 31, 2002. We w i l l apply the p r o v i s i o n s of t h i s standard 
on an ongoing b a s i s , as a p p l i c a b l e . 

I n A p r i l 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 on 
D e r i v a t i v e Instruments and Hedging A c t i v i t i e s " ("SFAS 149"). SFAS 149 amends 
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SFAS No. 133, "Accounting f o r D e r i v a t i v e Instruments and Hedging A c t i v i t i e s " and 
c l a r i f i e s f i n a n c i a l accounting and r e p o r t i n g f o r d e r i v a t i v e i nstruments, 
i n c l u d i n g c e r t a i n d e r i v a t i v e instruments embedded i n o t h e r c o n t r a c t s and f o r 
hedging a c t i v i t i e s . This statement i s , i n general, e f f e c t i v e f o r c o n t r a c t s 
entered i n t o o r m o d i f i e d a f t e r June 30, 2003, and f o r hedging r e l a t i o n s h i p s 
designated a f t e r June 30, 2003. The adoption of t h i s standard d i d not have a 
m a t e r i a l impact on our c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n , r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s or 
cash f l o w s . 

I n May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounting f o r C e r t a i n 
F i n a n c i a l I n s t r u m e n t s w i t h C h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of both L i a b i l i t i e s and Eq u i t y " 
("SFAS 150"). SFAS 150 e s t a b l i s h e s standards f o r the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n and 
measurement o f c e r t a i n f i n a n c i a l i n s t r u m e n t s w i t h c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of both 
1 i a b i l i t i e s and e q u i t y . I t r e q u i r e s t h a t an i s s u e r c l a s s i f y a f i n a n c i a l 
i nstrument t h a t i s w i t h i n i t s scope as a l i a b i l i t y (or an asset i n some 
circumstances) . Many of these i n s t r u m e n t s were p r e v i o u s l y r e q u i r e d t o be 
c l a s s i f i e d as e q u i t y . This statement i s e f f e c t i v e f o r f i n a n c i a l instruments 
entered i n t o o r m o d i f i e d a f t e r May 31, 2003, and otherwise i s e f f e c t i v e f o r our 
f o u r t h q u a r t e r i n f i s c a l 2003. The adoption of t h i s standard d i d not have a 
m a t e r i a l impact on our c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n , r e s u l t s of op e r a t i o n s or 
cash flo w s . 

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB I n t e r p r e t a t i o n No. 46, " C o n s o l i d a t i o n 
of V a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t E n t i t i e s " ("FIN 46"), an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of Accounting 
Research B u l l e t i n No. 51, "Consolidated F i n a n c i a l Statements." FIN 4 6 addresses 
c o n s o l i d a t i o n by business e n t e r p r i s e s of v a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t e n t i t i e s t h a t meet 
c e r t a i n c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s . The c o n s o l i d a t i o n requirements of FIN 46 apply 
immediately t o v a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t e n t i t i e s c reated a f t e r January 31, 2003.. The 
c o n s o l i d a t i o n requirements apply t o v a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t e n t i t i e s c r e a t e d before 
February 1, 2003 i n the f i r s t f i s c a l year or i n t e r i m p e r i o d 
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beginning a f t e r June 15, 2003. However, i n October 2003, the FASB d e f e r r e d the 
e f f e c t i v e date f o r a p p l y i n g c e r t a i n p r o v i s i o n s of FIN 46 and i n November 2003, 
issued an exposure d r a f t which would amend c e r t a i n p r o v i s i o n s of F I N 46. As a 
r e s u l t of the l a t e s t exposure d r a f t , we are c u r r e n t l y e v a l u a t i n g the impact, i f 
any, t h a t FIN 46 or any f u t u r e amendment may have on our f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n and 
r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s . 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

As of September 27, 2003, we were a p a r t y t o propane forward and o p t i o n 
c o n t r a c t s w i t h v a r i o u s t h i r d p a r t i e s and f u t u r e s traded on the New York 
M e r c a n t i l e Exchange (the "NYMEX"). Futures and forward c o n t r a c t s r e q u i r e t h a t we 
s e l l or a c q u i r e propane a t a f i x e d p r i c e a t f i x e d f u t u r e dates. An o p t i o n 
c o n t r a c t a l l o w s , but does not r e q u i r e , i t s h o l d e r t o buy or s e l l propane at a 
s p e c i f i e d p r i c e d u r i n g a s p e c i f i e d time p e r i o d ; the w r i t e r of an o p t i o n c o n t r a c t 
must f u l f i l l t h e o b l i g a t i o n of the o p t i o n c o n t r a c t , should the hold e r choose t o 
exe r c i s e the o p t i o n . At e x p i r a t i o n , the c o n t r a c t s are s e t t l e d by the d e l i v e r y of 
propane t o the r e s p e c t i v e p a r t y o r are s e t t l e d by the payment of a net amount 
equal t o the d i f f e r e n c e between the then c u r r e n t p r i c e of propane and the f i x e d 
c o n t r a c t p r i c e . The c o n t r a c t s are entered i n t o i n a n t i c i p a t i o n of market 
movements and t o manage and hedge exposure t o f l u c t u a t i n g propane p r i c e s , as 
w e l l as t o h e l p ensure the a v a i l a b i l i t y o f propane d u r i n g periods of high 
demand. 

Market r i s k s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h the t r a d i n g of f u t u r e s , o p t i o n s and forward 
c o n t r a c t s are monitored d a i l y f o r compliance w i t h our t r a d i n g p o l i c y which 
i n c l u d e s volume l i m i t s f o r open p o s i t i o n s . Open i n v e n t o r y p o s i t i o n s are reviewed 
and managed d a i l y as t o exposures t o changing market p r i c e s . 

MARKET RISK 

We are s u b j e c t t o commodity p r i c e r i s k t o the exte n t t h a t propane market 
p r i c e s d e v i a t e from f i x e d c o n t r a c t s e t t l e m e n t amounts. Futures trad e d w i t h 
brokers on the NYMEX r e q u i r e d a i l y cash s e t t l e m e n t s i n margin accounts- Forward 
and o p t i o n c o n t r a c t s are g e n e r a l l y s e t t l e d a t the e x p i r a t i o n of the c o n t r a c t 
term e i t h e r by p h y s i c a l d e l i v e r y or through a net settlement mechanism. 
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CREDIT RISK 

Futures a r e guaranteed by the NYMEX and, as a r e s u l t , have minimal c r e d i t 
r i s k . We are s u b j e c t t o c r e d i t r i s k w i t h forward and o p t i o n c o n t r a c t s t o the 
ex t e n t the c o u n t e r p a r t i e s do not perform. We evaluate the f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n of 
each c o u n t e r p a r t y w i t h which we conduct business and e s t a b l i s h c r e d i t l i m i t s t o 
reduce exposure t o c r e d i t r i s k of non-performance. 

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES 

We account f o r d e r i v a t i v e instruments i n accordance w i t h the p r o v i s i o n s of 
SFAS No. 133, "Accounting f o r D e r i v a t i v e Instruments and Hedging A c t i v i t i e s , " as 
amended by SFAS No. 137, SFAS No. 138 and SFAS No. 149. A l l d e r i v a t i v e 
i n s t r u m e n t s a r e r e p o r t e d on the balance sheet, w i t h i n o t h e r c u r r e n t assets or 
oth e r c u r r e n t l i a b i l i t i e s , a t t h e i r f a i r values. On the date t h a t f u t u r e s , 
f orward and o p t i o n c o n t r a c t s are entered i n t o , we make a d e t e r m i n a t i o n as t o 
whether the d e r i v a t i v e instrument q u a l i f i e s f o r d e s i g n a t i o n as a hedge. P r i o r t o 
March 31, 2002, we determined t h a t our d e r i v a t i v e instruments d i d not q u a l i f y as 
hedges and, as such, the changes i n f a i r values were recorded i n income. 
Beginning w i t h c o n t r a c t s entered i n t o subsequent t o March 31, 2002, a p o r t i o n of 
the d e r i v a t i v e instruments entered i n t o have been designated and q u a l i f y as cash 
f l o w hedges. For d e r i v a t i v e instruments designated as cash f l o w hedges, we 
f o r m a l l y assess, both a t the hedge c o n t r a c t ' s i n c e p t i o n and on an ongoing b a s i s , 
whether the hedge c o n t r a c t i s h i g h l y e f f e c t i v e i n o f f s e t t i n g changes i n cash 
flows of hedged items. Changes i n the f a i r value of d e r i v a t i v e instruments 
designated as cash f l o w hedges are r e p o r t e d i n accumulated o t h e r comprehensive 
(loss)/income {"OCI") t o the e x t e n t e f f e c t i v e and r e c l a s s i f i e d i n t o cost of 
products sold d u r i n g the same p e r i o d i n which the hedged it e m a f f e c t s earnings. 
The mark-to-market gains or losses on i n e f f e c t i v e p o r t i o n s of hedges are 
recognized i n cost of products s o l d immediately. Changes i n the f a i r value of 
d e r i v a t i v e i n s t r u m e n t s t h a t are hot designated as hedges are recorded i n c u r r e n t 
p e r i o d e a r n i n g s . F a i r values f o r forward c o n t r a c t s and f u t u r e s are d e r i v e d from 
quoted market p r i c e s f o r s i m i l a r instruments traded on the NYMEX. 
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At September 27, 2003, the f a i r value of d e r i v a t i v e instruments described 
above r e s u l t e d i n d e r i v a t i v e assets of $0.6 m i l l i o n i n c l u d e d w i t h i n p r e p a i d 
expenses and o t h e r c u r r e n t assets and d e r i v a t i v e l i a b i l i t i e s of $1.7 m i l l i o n 
i n c l u d e d w i t h i n o t h e r c u r r e n t l i a b i l i t i e s . For the year ended September 27, 2003 
o p e r a t i n g expenses i n c l u d e u n r e a l i z e d (non-cash) losses of $1.5 m i l l i o n compared 
t o u n r e a l i z e d (non-cash) gains of $5.4 m i l l i o n f o r the year ended September 28, 
2002, a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the change i n the f a i r value of d e r i v a t i v e instruments not 
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designated as hedges. At September 27, 2003, unrealized gains on derivative 
instruments designated as cash flow hedges i n the amount of $1.1 m i l l i o n were 
included i n OCX and are expected to be recognized i n earnings during the next 12 
months as the hedged transactions occur. However, due to the v o l a t i l i t y of the 
commodities market, the corresponding value i n OCI i s subject to change p r i o r to 
i t s impact on earnings. 

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 

In an e f f o r t to estimate our exposure to unfavorable market price changes 
in propane related to our open positions under derivative instruments, we 
developed a model that incorporates the following data and assumptions: 

A. The actual fixed contract price of open positions as of September 27, 
2003 for each of the future periods. 

B. The estimated future market prices f o r futures and forward contracts 
as of September 27, 2003 as derived from the NYMEX for traded propane 
futures for each of the future periods. 

C. The market prices determined i n B. above were adjusted adversely by a 
hypothetical 10% change i n the future periods and compared to the 
f i x e d contract settlement amounts i n A. above to project the potential 
negative impact on earnings that would be recognized for the 
respective scenario. 

Based on the s e n s i t i v i t y analysis described above, the hypothetical 10% 
adverse change i n market prices for each of the future months for which a 
future, forward and/or option contract exists indicate either a reduction i n 
potential future gains or potential losses i n future earnings of $3.3 m i l l i o n 
and $0.7 m i l l i o n , as of September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002, respectively. 
The above hypothetical change does not r e f l e c t the worst case scenario. Actual 
results may be s i g n i f i c a n t l y d i f f e r e n t depending on market conditions and the 
composition of the open position p o r t f o l i o . 

As of September 27, 2003, our open position p o r t f o l i o reflected a net long 
position (purchase) aggregating $19.2 m i l l i o n . 

The average posted price of propane on November 21, 2003 at Mont Belvieu, 
Texas (a major storage point) was 55.63 cents per gallon as compared to 50.75 
cents per gall o n on September 27, 2003, representing a 9.6% increase. 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

Our Consolidated Financial Statements and the Report of Independent 
Auditors thereon and the Supplemental Financial Information l i s t e d on the 
accompanying Index to Financial Statement Schedule are included herein. 

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA 

Due to the seasonality of the r e t a i l propane business, our f i r s t and second 
quarter revenues and earnings are consistently greater than t h i r d and fourth 
quarter r e s u l t s . The following presents our selected quarterly f i n a n c i a l data 
for the last two f i s c a l years (unaudited; i n thousands, except per u n i t 
amounts). 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

F i r s t Second T h i r d Fourth T o t a l 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year 

F i s c a l 2003 

<S> <C> <C> <c> <C> <C> 
Revenues $ 204,469 S 295,435 $ 146,171 $ 125,604 $ 771,6 
Income/(loss) b e f o r e i n t e r e s t 

expense and income taxes (a) 32,240 64 , 815 (3,598) (13,440) 80, 0 
Income/(loss) from c o n t i n u i n g o p e r a t i o n s (a) 23,254 55,902 (12,014) (20,956) 46,1 
Discontinued o p e r a t i o n s ; 

Gain on s a l e of customer s e r v i c e centers (b! - 2 ,404 79 • 2,4 
Net income/(loss) (a) 23,254 58,306 (11,935} (20,956) 48,6 
Income/(loss) from c o n t i n u i n g o p e r a t i o n s per 

common u n i t - basic 0. 92 2 . 21 (0.47) (0.75) 1. 
Net income/(loss) per common 

u n i t - b a s i c (c) 0. 92 2.31 (0.47) (0.75) 1 . 
Net income/(loss) per common 

u n i t - d i l u t e d (c) 0 .92 2.30 (0.47) (0.75) 1. 
Cash pro v i d e d by/(used i n ) : 

Operating a c t i v i t i e s 8, 378 14,988 45,557 (11,623) 57, 3 
I n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s (2,561) 3 , 235 (1,205) (4,328) (4 , 8 
Financing a c t i v i t i e s (14,591) (14,533) 10,655 (59,162) (77, 6 

EBITDA (d) $ 39,213 $ 74,019 S 3,198 $ (6,410) $ 110,0 
R e t a i l g a l l o n s s o l d 139,934 182,956 89,600 78,961 491,4 

Fiscal 2002 
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Revenues 
Gain on sale of storage f a c i l i t y 
Income/(loss) before interest 

expense and income taxes (a) 
Net income/(loss) [a) 
Net income/(loss) per common 

unit - basic (c) 
Net income/(loss) per common 

unit - d i l u t e d (c) 
Cash provided by/(used i n ) : 

Operating a c t i v i t i e s . 
Investing a c t i v i t i e s 
Financing a c t i v i t i e s 

EBITDA (d) 
Retail gallons sold 

181,864 $ 235,887 $ 137,635 $ 109,719 $ 665, 1 
- 6, 768 - - 6,7 

29,805 71,071 (2 ,499) (8,825) 89,5 
20,613 61,901 (11,028) (17,962} 53, 5 

0.82 2.46 (0.44) (0.71) 2 . 

0.82 2 .45 (0.44) (0.71) 2. 

3,421 32,701 29,906 2 , 747 68 , 7 
(4,018) 4 , 034 (3,213) (3,654) (6,8 

(14,168) (14,168) (14,186) (14,941) (57,4 

$ 37,061 $ 78,146 $ 4,549 $ (1,849) $ 117 , 9 
123,958 168,621 86,730 76,679 455 , 9 

:/TABLE; 

(a) These amounts include, i n addition to the gain on sale of customer service 
centers and the gain on sale of storage f a c i l i t y , gains from the disposal 
of property, plant and equipment of $0.6 m i l l i o n f o r f i s c a l 2003 and $0.5 
m i l l i o n f o r f i s c a l 2002. 
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ib) Gain on sale of customer service centers consists of f i v e customer service 
centers we sold during the second quarter of f i s c a l 2003 for t o t a l cash 
proceeds of approximately $5.6 m i l l i o n and four customer service centers we 
sold during the t h i r d quarter of f i s c a l 2003 f o r t o t a l cash proceeds of 
approximately $1.6 m i l l i o n . We recorded a gain on sale i n the second and 
t h i r d quarters of approximately $2.4 m i l l i o n and $0.1 m i l l i o n , 
respectively, which have been accounted f o r within discontinued operations 
pursuant to SFAS 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of 
Long-Lived Assets." Prior period results of operations a t t r i b u t a b l e to 
these nine customer service centers were hot s i g n i f i c a n t and, as such, 
p r i o r period results have not been r e c l a s s i f i e d to remove f i n a n c i a l results 
from continuing operations. 

(c) Basic net income per Common Unit i s computed by dividing net income, a f t e r 
deducting our general partner's i n t e r e s t , by the weighted average number of 
outstanding Common Units. Diluted net income per Common unit i s computed by 
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d i v i d i n g n et income, a f t e r deducting our general p a r t n e r ' s approximate 2% 
i n t e r e s t , by the weighted average number of ou t s t a n d i n g Common Units and 
time v e s t e d r e s t r i c t e d u n i t s granted under our 2000 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan. 
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(d) EBITDA r e p r e s e n t s net income/(loss) before deducting i n t e r e s t expense, 
income t a x e s , d e p r e c i a t i o n and a m o r t i z a t i o n . Our management uses EBITDA as 
a measure of l i q u i d i t y and we are i n c l u d i n g i t because we b e l i e v e t h a t i t 
provides our i n v e s t o r s and i n d u s t r y a n a l y s t s w i t h a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n t o 
evaluate our a b i l i t y t o meet our debt s e r v i c e o b l i g a t i o n s and t o pay our 
q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n s t o ho l d e r s of our Common U n i t s . Moreover, our 
sen i o r n o t e agreements and our r e v o l v i n g c r e d i t agreement r e q u i r e us t o use 
EBITDA as a component i n c a l c u l a t i n g our leverage and i n t e r e s t coverage 
r a t i o s . EBITDA i s not a recognized term under g e n e r a l l y accepted accounting 
p r i n c i p l e s ("GAAP") and should not be considered as an a l t e r n a t i v e t o net 
income/(loss) or net cash pro v i d e d by o p e r a t i n g a c t i v i t i e s determined i n 
accordance w i t h GAAP. Because EBITDA as determined by us excludes some, but 
not a l l , items t h a t a f f e c t net income/(loss), i t may not be comparable t o 
EBITDA o r s i m i l a r l y t i t l e d measures used by ot h e r companies. The f o l l o w i n g 
t a b l e s e t s f o r t h ( i ) our c a l c u l a t i o n of EBITDA and ( i i ) a r e c o n c i l i a t i o n of 
EBITDA, as so c a l c u l a t e d , t o our net cash provided by o p e r a t i n g a c t i v i t i e s 
(amounts i n thousands): 

cTABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

F i s c a l 2003 

F i r s t 
Quarter 

Second 
Quarter 

T h i r d 
Quarter 

Fourth 
Quarter 

T o t a l 
Year 

<S> 
Net income / (l o s s ) 
Add: 

P r o v i s i o n / ( b e n e f i t ) f o r income taxes 
I n t e r e s t expense, net 
D e p r e c i a t i o n and a m o r t i z a t i o n 

EBITDA 

Add / [ s u b t r a c t ) : 
( P r o v i s i o n ) / b e n e f i t f o r income taxes 
I n t e r e s t expense, net 
Gain on d i s p o s a l of p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and 

equipment, net 
Gain on s a l e of customer s e r v i c e centers 

$ 23,254 

130 
8, 856 
6, 973 

39,213 

(130) 
[8,856) 

(346) 

<C> 
$ 58,306 

37 
8, 876 
6, 800 

74,019 

(37) 
(8,876) 

26 
[2,404) 

<C> 
$ (11,935) 

(64) 
8,480 
6 , 717 

3, 198 

64 
[8,480! 

(166! 
(791 

<C> 
$ (20,956) 

99 
7, 417 
7, 030 

(6,410) 

(99) 
(7,417) 

(150] 

<C> 
$48,6 

2 
33 , 6 
27 , 5 

110,0 

(2 
(33, 6 

(6 
(2,4 

http://www.sec.gov/Arehives/edgar/data/1005210/000100521003000038/0001005210-03-00003 8.txt 1/8/2004 



Changes i n working c a p i t a l and ot h e r 

: /TABLE: 

< PAGE: 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
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assets and l i a b i l i t i e s (21,503) (47 , 740) 51,020 2,453 (15,7 

cash provided by/(used in) 
Operating a c t i v i t i e s S 8,378 $ 14,988 $ 45,557 $ (11,523) $ 57,3 

Investing a c t i v i t i e s $ (2,561) $ 3,235 $ (1,205) S (4,328) $ (4,8 

Financing a c t i v i t i e s $ (14,591) S (14,533) S 10,655 $ (59,162) S (77,6 

F i s c a l 2002 

<S> 

Net income / (l o s s ) 
Add: 

P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 
I n t e r e s t expense, net 
D e p r e c i a t i o n and a m o r t i z a t i o n 

EBITDA 

Add / ( s u b t r a c t ) : 
P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 
I n t e r e s t expense, net 
Gain on d i s p o s a l of p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and 

equipment, net 
Gain on s a l e of storage f a c i l i t y 
Changes i n working c a p i t a l and ot h e r 

a s s e t s and l i a b i l i t i e s 

F i r s t 
Quarter 

$ 20,613 

138 
9, 054 
7,256 

37,061 

(138) 
(9,054) 

(13) 

Second 
Quarter 

T h i r d 
Quarter 

Fourth 
Quarter 

$ 61,901 

190 
8, 980 
7 , 075 

78,146 

(190) 
(8,980) 

(263) 
(6,768) 

(24,435) (29,244) 

Net cash p r o v i d e d by/(used i n ) 
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$ ( 1 1 , 0 2 8 ) 

190 
8 , 3 3 9 
7 , 048 

4 , 549 

(190) 
( 8 , 3 3 9 ) 

63 

3 3 , 8 2 3 

5 ( 1 7 , 9 6 2 ) 

185 
8, 952 
6, 976 

( 1 , 8 4 9 ) 

(185 ) 
( 8 , 9 5 2 ) 

(333) 

1 4 , 0 6 6 

T o t a l 
Y e a r 

$ 5 3 , 5 2 

70 
3 5 , 32 
2 8 , 35 

1 1 7 , 9 0 

(70 
( 3 5 , 3 2 

(54 
( 6 , 76 

( 5 , 79 

l/S/2004 
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Operating a c t i v i t i e s $ 3,421 $ 32,701 $ 29,906 $ 2,747 $ 68,77 

Investing a c t i v i t i e s $ (4,018) $ 4,034 $ (3,213) $ (3,654) $ (6,85 

Financing a c t i v i t i e s 5 (14,168) S (14,168) $ (14,186) $ (14,941) S (57,46 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Our management, i n c l u d i n g our p r i n c i p a l executive o f f i c e r and p r i n c i p a l 
f i n a n c i a l o f f i c e r , have evaluated the e f f e c t i v e n e s s of our " d i s c l o s u r e c o n t r o l s 
and procedures" (as d e f i n e d i n Rule 13a-15(e) of the S e c u r i t i e s Exchange Act of 
1934) as of September 27, 2003. Based on such e v a l u a t i o n , our p r i n c i p a l 
e xecutive o f f i c e r and p r i n c i p a l f i n a n c i a l o f f i c e r have concluded t h a t as of 
September 27, 2003, such d i s c l o s u r e c o n t r o l s and procedures are e f f e c t i v e f o r 
the purpose o f ensuring t h a t m a t e r i a l i n f o r m a t i o n r e q u i r e d t o be i n t h i s Annual 
Report i s made known t o them by oth e r s on a t i m e l y b a s i s . There have not been 
any changes i n our i n t e r n a l c o n t r o l over f i n a n c i a l r e p o r t i n g (as d e f i n e d i n Rule 
13a-15(f) of t h e S e c u r i t i e s Exchange Act of 1934) d u r i n g the q u a r t e r ending 
September 27, 2003 t h a t have m a t e r i a l l y a f f e c t e d or are reasonably l i k e l y t o 
m a t e r i a l l y af f e c t our i n t e r n a l c o n t r o l over f i n a n c i a l r e p o r t i n g . 
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PART I I I 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 
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PARTNERSHIP MANAGEMENT 

Our Second Amended and Restated Partnership Agreement (the "Partnership 
Agreement") provides that a l l management powers over our business and a f f a i r s 
are exclusively vested i n our Board of Supervisors and, subject to the di r e c t i o n 
of the Board o f Supervisors, our o f f i c e r s . No Unitholder has any management 
power over our business and a f f a i r s or actual or apparent authority to enter 
i n t o contracts on behalf of, or to otherwise bind, us. Three independent Elected 
Supervisors and two Appointed Supervisors serve on the Board of Supervisors 
pursuant to the terms of the Partnership Agreement. The Elected Supervisors are 
voted on by the unitholders to serve a term of three years. The Appointed 
Supervisors are appointed by our General Partner. 

The three Elected Supervisors serve on the Audit Committee with the 
authority to review, at the request of the Board of Supervisors, specific 
matters as to which the Board of Supervisors believes there may be a c o n f l i c t of 
interest i n order to determine i f the resolution of such c o n f l i c t proposed by 
the Board of Supervisors i s f a i r and reasonable to us. Under the Partnership 
Agreement, any matters approved by the Audit Committee w i l l be conclusively 
deemed to be f a i r and reasonable to us, approved by a l l of our partners and not 
a breach by our General Partner or the Board of Supervisors of any duties they 
may owe us or the Unitholders. The primary function of the Audit Committee i s to 
assist the Board of Supervisors i n f u l f i l l i n g i t s oversight r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s 
r e l a t i n g to the establishment of accounting policies,- preparation of f i n a n c i a l 
statements; i n t e g r i t y of fi n a n c i a l reporting; compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations and policies,- independence and performance of the in t e r n a l auditor 
and independent accountants and findings of both the in t e r n a l auditor and 
independent accountants. 

The Board of Supervisors has determined that a l l three members of the Audit 
Committee, John Hoyt Stookey, Harold R. Logan, Jr. and Dudley C. Mecum, are 
audit committee f i n a n c i a l experts and are independent of management, as defined 
i n item 7(d) (3) (iv) of Schedule 14A. 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE PARTNERSHIP 

The following table sets f o r t h certain information with respect to the 
members of the Board of Supervisors and our executive o f f i c e r s as of November 
21, 2003. Of f i c e r s are elected f o r one-year terms and Supervisors are elected or 
appointed for three-year terms. 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

Position With the 
Name Age Partnership 
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<s> <c> 

Mark A. Alexander 45 

Michael J. Dunn, J r 54 

David R. E a s t i n 45 

Robert M. P l a n t e 55 
J e f f r e y S. J o l l y , 51 
Michael M. K e a t i n g 50 
Janice G. Meola 37 
A. Davin D'Ambrosio 39 
Michael A. S t i v a i a 34 
John Hoyt Stookey. . . ; 73 
Harold R. Logan, J r 59 
Dudley C. Mecum 68 
Mark J. Anton 7 7 

</TABLE> 

<C> 
President and Chief Executive O f f i c e r ; Member of the 

Board of Supervisors (Appointed Supervisor) 
Senior Vice President - Corporate Development; 
Member of the Board of Supervisors (Appointed Supervisor) 

Senior Vice President and Chief Operating O f f i c e r 
Vice President and Chief F i n a n c i a l O f f i c e r 
Vice President and Chief I n f o r m a t i o n Officer-
Vice President - Human Resources and A d m i n i s t r a t i o n 
Vice President, General Counsel and S e c r e t a r y 
Treasurer 
C o n t r o l l e r 
Member of the Board of Supervisors 

(Chairman and E l e c t e d Supervisor) 
Member of the Board of Supervisors 
Member of the Board of Supervisors 
Supervisor Emeritus 

(Elected Supervisor) 
(Elected Supervisor) 

33 
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Mr. Alexander has served as President and Chief Executive O f f i c e r since 
October 1996 and as an Appointed Supervisor since March 1996. He was Executive 
Vice Chairman and c h i e f Executive O f f i c e r from March through October 1996. From 
1989 u n t i l j o i n i n g the P a r t n e r s h i p , Mr. Alexander was an o f f i c e r of Hanson 
I n d u s t r i e s ( t h e U n i t e d States management d i v i s i o n of Hanson p i c ) , most r e c e n t l y 
Senior Vice P r e s i d e n t - Corporate Department. Mr. Alexander serves as Chairman 
of the Board o f Managers of the General Partner. He i s a member of the Executive 
Committee of t h e N a t i o n a l Propane Gas A s s o c i a t i o n . 

Mr. Dunn has served jas Senior Vice President since June 1998 and became 
Senior v i c e P r e s i d e n t - Corporate Development i n November 2002. Mr. Dunn has 
served as an Appointed Supervisor since J u l y 1998. He was v i c e President 
Procurement and L o g i s t i c s from March 1997 u n t i l June 1998. From 1983 u n t i l 
j o i n i n g the P a r t n e r s h i p , Mr. Dunn was Vice President of Commodity Trading f o r 
the investment banking f i r m of Goldman Sachs & Company. Mr. Dunn serves on the 
Board of Managers of the General Partner. 

Mr. E a s t i n has served as Chief Operating O f f i c e r since May 1999 and became 
a Senior Vice President i n November 2 0 00. From 19 92 u n t i l j o i n i n g the 
P a r t n e r s h i p , Mr. E a s t i n h e l d v a r i o u s e x e c u t i v e p o s i t i o n s w i t h Star Gas Propane 
LP, most r e c e n t l y as Vice President - Operations. Mr. E a s t i n serves on the Board 
of Managers o f the General Partner. 

Mr. P l a n t e has served as a Vice President since October 1999 and became 
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Vice President and Chief Financial Officer i n November 2003. He was Vice 
President; - Finance from March 2001 u n t i l November 2003 and Treasurer from March 
1996 through October 2002. Mr. Plante held various f i n a n c i a l and managerial 
positions with predecessors of the Partnership from 1977 u n t i l 1996. 

Mr. J o l l y has served as Vice President and Chief Information Officer since 
May 1999. He was Vice President - Information Services from July 1997 u n t i l May 
1999. From May 1993 u n t i l j o i n i n g the Partnership, Mr. Jo l l y was Vice President 
- - Information Systems at The Wood Company, a food services company. 

Mr. Keating has served as Vice President - Human Resources and 
Administration since July 1996. He previously held senior human resource 
positions at Hanson Industries and Quantum Chemical Corporation ("Quantum"), a 
predecessor of the Partnership. 

Mr. D'Ambrosio became Treasurer i n November 2002. He served as Assistant 
Treasurer from October 2000 to November 2002 and as Director of Treasury 
Services from January 19 98 to October 2000. Mr. D'Ambrosio joined the 
Partnership i n May 1996 a f t e r ten years i n the commercial banking industry. 

Ms. Meola has served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since 
November '2003. From May 1999 u n t i l November 2003, Ms. Meola served as General 
Counsel and secretary. She was Counsel from July 1998 to May 1999 and Associate 
Counsel from September 19 96, when she joined the Partnership, u n t i l July 1998. 

Mr. St i v a i a has served as Controller since December 2001. From 1991 u n t i l 
j o i n i n g the Partnership, he held several positions with PricewaterhouseCoopers 
LLP, most recently as Senior Manager i n the Assurance practice. Mr. Stivaia i s a 
Ce r t i f i e d Public Accountant and a member of the American i n s t i t u t e of C e r t i f i e d 
Public Accountants. 

Mr. Stookey has served as an Elected Supervisor and Chairman of the Board 
of Supervisors since March 1996. From 1986 u n t i l September 1993, he was the 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Quantum and served as 
non-executive Chairman and a director of Quantum from i t s acquisition by Hanson 
pic i n September 1993 u n t i l October 1995. Mr. Stookey i s a non-executive 
Chairman of Per Scholas Inc. 
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Mr. Logan has served as an Elected Supervisor since March 1996. He i s a 
Director and Chairman of the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors of 
TransMontaigne i n c . , which provides l o g i s t i c a l services ( i . e . p ipe l ine , 
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c e r r a i n a l i n g and marketing) t o producers and end-users of r e f i n e d petroleum 
products. From 1995 t o 2002, Mr. Logan was Executive Vice President/Finance, 
Treasurer and a D i r e c t o r of TransMontaigne I n c . From 1987 t o 1995, Mr. Logan 
served as Senior Vice President of Finance and a D i r e c t o r of Associated N a t u r a l 
Gas C o r p o r a t i o n , an independent g a t h e r e r and marketer of n a t u r a l gas, n a t u r a l 
gas l i q u i d s and crude o i l . Mr. Logan i s a l s o a D i r e c t o r of The Houston 
E x p l o r a t i o n Company, Graphic Packaging, I n c . and R i v i n g t o n C a p i t a l Advisors, 
LLC. 
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Mr. Mecum has served as an Elected Supervisor since June 1996. He has been 
a managing d i r e c t o r of Capricorn Holdings, LLC (a sponsor of and i n v e s t o r i n 
leveraged buyouts) since June 1997. Mr. Mecum was a p a r t n e r of G.L. Ohrstrom & 
Co. (a sponsor of and i n v e s t o r i n leveraged buyouts) from 1989 t o June 1996. Mr. 
Mecum i s a d i r e c t o r of L y o n d e l l , Dyncorp, C i t i G r o u p and Mrs. F i e l d s Famous 
Brands, I n c . 

Mr. Anton has served as Supervisor Emeritus of the Board of Supervisors 
since January 1999. He i s a former President, Chief Executive O f f i c e r and 
Chairman of t h e Board of D i r e c t o r s of Suburban Propane Gas Cor p o r a t i o n , a 
predecessor o f the P a r t n e r s h i p , and a former Executive Vice President of 
Quantum. 

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE 

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act r e q u i r e s our d i r e c t o r s and executive 
o f f i c e r s t o f i l e i n i t i a l r e p o r t s of ownership and r e p o r t s of changes i n 
ownership of our Common Un i t s w i t h the S e c u r i t i e s and Exchange Commission. 
D i r e c t o r s , e x e c u t i v e o f f i c e r s and ten percent U n i t h o l d e r s are r e q u i r e d t o 
f u r n i s h the P a r t n e r s h i p w i t h copies of a l l Section 16(a) forms t h a t they f i - l e . 
Based on a re v i e w of these f i l i n g s , we b e l i e v e t h a t a l l such f i l i n g s were made 
t i m e l y d u r i n g f i s c a l 2003. 

CODE OF ETHICS 

We have adopted a code of e t h i c s t h a t a p p l i e s t o our se n i o r e x e c u t i v e team, 
i n c l u d i n g our p r i n c i p a l e x e c u t i v e o f f i c e r , p r i n c i p a l f i n a n c i a l o f f i c e r and 
p r i n c i p a l a c c o u n t i n g o f f i c e r . Copies of our code of e t h i c s are a v a i l a b l e w i t h o u t 
charge from our website a t www.suburbanpropane.com or upon w r i t t e n request 
d i r e c t e d t o : Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., I n v e s t o r R e l a t i o n s , P.O. Box 206, 
Whippany, New Jersey 07981-0206. Any amendments t o , or waivers from, p r o v i s i o n s 
of t h i s code o f e t h i c s t h a t apply t o our p r i n c i p a l e xecutive o f f i c e r , p r i n c i p a l 
f i n a n c i a l o f f i c e r and p r i n c i p a l accounting o f f i c e r w i l l be posted on our 
website. 
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 

The following table sets f o r t h a summary of a l l compensation awarded or 
paid to or earned by our chief executive o f f i c e r and our four other most highly 
compensated executive o f f i c e r s f o r services rendered to us during each of the 
last three f i s c a l years. 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

Annual Compensation 
LTIP A l l Other 

Name and P r i n c i p a l P o s i t i o n Year Salary Bonus(1) Payout Compensation(2) 

<s> <C> <C> <C> <C> 
Mark A. Alexander 2003 $450,000 $192,150 - $167,037 
President and Chief Executive O f f i c e r 2002 450,000 157,500 25,382 158,513 

2001 450,000 450,000 7, 141 166,371 

Michael J. Dunn, J r . 2003 280,000 101,626 27,403 95,695 
Sr. Vice P r e s i d e n t - Corporate Development 2002 275,000 81,813 12,135 85,956 

2001 260,000 221,000 3, 414 89,321 

David R. E a s t i n 2003 265,000 96,182 - 91,721 

Senior Vice P r e s i d e n t and 2002 260,000 77,350 2, 018 81,984 
Chief O p e r a t i n g O f f i c e r 2001 240,000 204,000 - 84,362 

Robert M. P l a n t e 2003 180,000 46,116 - 39,038 
Vice President and Chief F i n a n c i a l O f f i c e r 2002 175,000 45,625 3, 807 32,938 

2001 150,000 75,000 1, 071 35,169 

J e f f r e y S. J o l l y 2003 182 , 500 38,964 10,366 50,443 
Vice P r e s i d e n t and Chief I n f o r m a t i o n O f f i c e r 2002 177,500 31,063 4, 600 41,414 

2001 170,000 85,000 1, 294 47,660 

</TABLE > 

(1) Bonuses a r e r e p o r t e d f o r the year earned, regardless of the year p a i d . 

(2} For Mr. Alexander, t h i s amount includes the following: $3,000 under the 
Retirement Savings and Investment Plan,- $1,200 i n administrative fees under 
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Che Cash Balance Pension Plan; $135,000 awarded under Che Long-Term 
Incencive Plan; and $27,837 for insurance. For Mr. Dunn, t h i s amount 
includes the following: $3,000 under the Retirement Savings and Investment 
Plan,- $1,200 i n administrative fees under the Cash Balance Pension Plan; 
$71,400 awarded under the Long-Term Incentive Plan,- and $2 0, 09 5 f o r 
insurance. For Mr. Eastin, t h i s amount includes the following: $3,000 under 
the Retirement Savings and Investment Plan,- $1,200 i n administrative fees 
under the Cash Balance Pension Plan,- $67,575 awarded under the Long-Term 
Incentive Plan,- and $19,946 for insurance. For Mr. Plante, t h i s amount 
includes the following: $2,700 under the Retirement Savings and Investment 
Plan; $1,200 i n administrative fees under the Cash Balance Pension Plan,-
$32,400 awarded under the Long-Term Incentive Plan; and $2,738 f o r 
insurance. For Mr. J o l l y , t h i s amount includes the following: $2,738 under 
the Retirement Savings and Investment Plan; $1,200 i n administrative fees 
under the Cash Balance Pension Plan; $27,375 awarded under the Long-Term 
Incentive Plan; and $19,130 for insurance. 
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

The following table sets f o r t h the annual benefits upon retirement at age 
65 in 2003, without regard to statutory maximums, for various combinations of 
f i n a l average earnings and lengths of service which may be payable to Messrs. 
Alexander, Dunn, Eastin, Plante and J o l l y under the Pension Plan for E l i g i b l e 
Employees of the Operating Partnership and i t s Subsidiaries and/or the Suburban 
Propane Company Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. Each such plan has been 
assumed by the Partnership and each such person w i l l be credited for service 
earned under such plan to date. Messrs. Alexander, Dunn, and Eastin have 7 
years, 6 years and 4 years, respectively, under both plans. For vesting 
purposes, however, Mr. Alexander has 19 years combined service with the 
Partnership and his p r i o r service with Hanson Industries. Messrs. Plante and 
Jo l l y have 26 years and 6 years, respectively, under the Pension Plan. Benefits 
under the Pension Plan are l i m i t e d to IRS statutory maximums for defined benefit 
plans. Currently, the statutory maximum for defined benefit plan i s $200,000. 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 
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Pension Plan 

Annual B e n e f i t f o r Years of C redited Service Shown (1,2,3,4,5,6) 
Average 

(1,2,3,4,5,6) 

Earnings 5 Yrs. 10 Yrs. 15 Yrs. 2 0 Yrs. 25 Yrs. 30 Yrs. 35 Yrs. 

<S> <c> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> 
$100,000 7, 888 15,775 23,663 31,551 39,438 47, 326 55,214 
$200,000 16,638 33 , 275 49,913 66,551 83,188 99,826 116,464 
$300,000 25,388 50,775 76,163 101,551 126,938 152,326 177,714 
$400,000 34,138 68,275 102,413 136,551 170,688 204 , 826 238,964 
$500,000 42,888 85,775 128,663 171,551 214,438 257,326 300,214 

</TABLE> 

1 The Plans' d e f i n i t i o n of earnings c o n s i s t s of base pay only. 

2 Annual B e n e f i t s are computed on the basis of s t r a i g h t l i f e a n n u i t y amounts. 
The pension b e n e f i t i s c a l c u l a t e d as the sum o£ ^a) p l u s ^b) m u l t i p l i e d by 
(c) where (a) i s t h a t p o r t i o n of f i n a l average earnings up t o 125% of 
s o c i a l s e c u r i t y Covered Compensation times 1.4% and (b) i s t h a t p o r t i o n of 
f i n a l average earnings i n excess of 125% of s o c i a l s e c u r i t y Covered 
Compensation times 1.75% and (c) i s c r e d i t e d s e r v i c e up t o a maximum of 35 
years. 

3 E f f e c t i v e January 1, 1998, the Plan was amended t o a cash balance b e n e f i t 
formula f o r c u r r e n t and f u t u r e Plan p a r t i c i p a n t s . I n i t i a l account balances 
were e s t a b l i s h e d based upon the a c t u a r i a l e q u i v a l e n t value of the accrued 
December 31, 1997 p r i o r p l a n b e n e f i t . Annual i n t e r e s t c r e d i t s and pay-based 
c r e d i t s w i l l be c r e d i t e d t o t h i s account. The 2002 pay-based c r e d i t s f o r 
Messrs. Alexander, Dunn, E a s t i n , Plante and J o l l y are 3.0%, 2.0%, 1.5%, 
10.0% and 2.0%, r e s p e c t i v e l y . P a r t i c i p a n t s as of December 31, 1997 w i l l 
r e c e i v e t h e g r e a t e r of the cash balance b e n e f i t and the p r i o r p l a n b e n e f i t 
through the year 2002. The Plan was amended e f f e c t i v e January 1, 2000. 
Pursuant t o t h i s amendment, i n d i v i d u a l s who are h i r e d or r e h i r e d on or 
a f t e r January l , 2000 are not e l i g i b l e t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the Plan. 

4 I n a d d i t i o n , a supplemental cash balance account was e s t a b l i s h e d equal t o 
the value of c e r t a i n b e n e f i t s r e l a t e d t o r e t i r e e medical and v a c a t i o n 
b e n e f i t s . An i n i t i a l account value was determined f o r those a c t i v e 
employees who were e l i g i b l e f o r r e t i r e e medical coverage as of A p r i l l , 
1998 e qual t o $415 m u l t i p l i e d by years of b e n e f i t s e r v i c e (maximum of 35 
y e a r s ) . Future pay-based c r e d i t s and i n t e r e s t are c r e d i t e d t o t h i s account. 
The 2002 pay-based c r e d i t s f o r Messrs. Alexander, Dunn, Ea s t i n , Plante and 
J o l l y a re 2.0%, 0.0%, 0.0%, 2.0% and 0.0%, r e s p e c t i v e l y . 

5 E f f e c t i v e January 1, 2003, a l l f u t u r e pay-based c r e d i t s as determined under 
the cash balance b e n e f i t formula were d i s c o n t i n u e d . I n t e r e s t c r e d i t s 
c ontinue t o be a p p l i e d based on the f i v e - y e a r U.S. Treasury bond r a t e i n 
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e f f e c t during the preceding November, plus one percent. 

Effective January 1, 2003 the annual benefits accrued by Messrs. Alexander, 
Dunn and Eastin pursuant to the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan ( i n 
excess of the statutory l i m i t a t i o n s governing the Pension Plan) were, i n 
the aggregate, approximately $100,000. 
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SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLAN 

We have adopted a non-qualified, unfunded supplemental retirement plan 
known as the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the "SERP"). The purpose of 
the SERP i s t o provide certain executive o f f i c e r s with a level of retirement 
income from us, without regard to statutory maximums, including the IRS 
l i m i t a t i o n f o r defined benefit plans. Effective January l , 1998, the Pension 
Plan for E l i g i b l e Employees of Suburban Propane, L.P. (the "Qualified Plan") was 
amended and restated as a cash balance plan. i n l i g h t of the conversion of the 
Qualified Plan to a cash balance formula, the SERP has been amended and restated 
e f f e c t i v e January l , 1998. The annual Retirement Benefit under the SERP 
represents the amount of Annual Benefits that the participants i n the SERP would 
otherwise be e l i g i b l e to receive, calculated using the same pay based credits 
described under the Retirement Benefits section above, applied to the amount of 
Annual Compensation that exceeds the IRS statutory maximums for defined benefit 
plans which i s currently $200,000. Messrs. Alexander, Dunn, and Eastin currently 
p a r t i c i p a t e i n the SERP. 

Effect i v e January 1, 2003, the SERP was discontinued with a frozen benefit 
determined f o r Messrs. Alexander, Dunn and Eastin. Provided that the SERP 
requirements are met, Mr. Alexander w i l l receive a monthly benefit of $6,031, 
Mr. Dunn w i l l receive a monthly benefit of $347.30 and Mr. Eastin w i l l receive a 
monthly be n e f i t of $1,053.18. In the event of a change i n control involving the 
partnership, the SERP w i l l terminate e f f e c t i v e on the close of business 30 days 
following the change i n control. Each participant w i l l be deemed r e t i r e d and 
w i l l have his benefit determined as of the date the plan i s terminated with 
payment of the benefit no l a t e r than 90 days aft e r the change i n control. Each 
participant w i l l receive a lump sum payment equivalent to the present value of 
each par t i c i p a n t ' s benefit payable under t h i s plan u t i l i z i n g the lesser of the 
prime rate of interest as published i n the Wall Street Journal as of the date of 
the change of control or one percent, which ever i s less, as the discount rate 
to determine the present value of accrued benefit. 
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LONG-TERM INCEllTVJE 

We have adopted a n o n - q u a l i f i e d , unfunded long-term i n c e n t i v e p l a n f o r 
o f f i c e r s and key employees, e f f e c t i v e October 1, 1997 (the "LTIP"). Payout of 
the LTIP w i l l f o l l o w the normal v e s t i n g schedule of each p a r t i c i p a n t . Awards are 
based on a percentage of base pay and are su b j e c t t o the achievement of c e r t a i n 
performance c r i t e r i a , i n c l u d i n g our a b i l i t y t o earn s u f f i c i e n t funds and make 
cash d i s t r i b u t i o n s on our Common Un i t s w i t h respect t o each f i s c a l year. Awards 
vest over ti m e w i t h o n e - t h i r d v e s t i n g a t the beginning of years t h r e e , f o u r , and 
f i v e from the award date. We w i l l t e r m i n a t e t h i s p l a n e f f e c t i v e September 30, 
200'! . E f f e c t i v e October 1, 2002 we adopted a new n o n - q u a l i f i e d , unfunded 
long-term i n c e n t i v e p l a n f o r o f f i c e r s and key employees. The new p l a n measures 
our performance as T o t a l Return t o U n i t h o l d e r s ("TRU") r e l a t i v e t o a 
predetermined peer group, p r i m a r i l y composed of ot h e r Master L i m i t e d 
P a r t n e r s h i p s , approved by our Compensation Committee. Awards are granted i n 
three year performance cycles based on a q u a r t i l e r a n king of TRU compared t o the 
peer group. Target awards f o r each p a r t i c i p a n t are a percentage of base s a l a r y . 
Long-Term i n c e n t i v e Plan awards earned i n f i s c a l 2003 were as f o l l o w s : 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

Mame 
Award 
FY 2003 

Performance or 
Other Period 

U n t i l M a t u r a t i o n 
or Payout 

P o t e n t i a l Awards Under Plan 
Threshold Target Maximum 

<S> 
Mark A. Alexander 
Michael J. Dunn, J r . 
David R. E a s t i n 
Robert M. P l a n t e 
J e f f r e y S. J o l l y 

<c> 
$135,000 

71,400 
67,575 
32,400 
27,375 

<C> 
3-5 
3-5 
3-5 
3-5 
3-5 

<C> 
Years 
Years 
Years 
Years 
Years 

<c> 
$135,000 

71,400 
67,575 
32,400 
27,375 

<C> 
$135,000 

71,400 
67,575 
32,400 
27,375 

:/TABLE: 
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

We e n t e r e d i n t o an employment agreement ( the "Employment Agreement") w i t h 
Mr. Alexander , which became e f f e c t i v e March 5, 1996 and was amended October 23, 
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1997 and A p r i l 14, 1999. 

Mr. Alexander's Employment Agreement had an i n i t i a l term of t h r e e years, 
and a u t o m a t i c a l l y renews f o r successive one-year p e r i o d s , unless e a r l i e r 
t e r m i n a t e d by us or by Mr. Alexander or otherwise t e r m i n a t e d i n accordance w i t h 
the Employment Agreement. The Employment Agreement f o r Mr. Alexander provides 
f o r an annual base s a l a r y of $450,000 as of September 28, 2002 and provides f o r 
Mr. Alexander t o earn a bonus up t o 100% of annual base s a l a r y [the "Maximum 
Annual Bonus") f o r s e r v i c e s rendered based upon c e r t a i n performance c r i t e r i a . 
The Employment Agreement a l s o provides f o r the o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n 
b e n e f i t plans made a v a i l a b l e t o our o t h e r s e n i o r executives and s e n i o r managers. 
Me a l s o p r o v i d e Mr. Alexander w i t h term l i f e insurance w i t h a face amount equal 
t o t h r e e times h i s annual base s a l a r y . 

For the purposes of t h i s s e c t i o n "change of c o n t r o l " means the occurrence 
d u r i n g the employment term o f : ( i ) an a c q u i s i t i o n of our Common u n i t s or v o t i n g 
e q u i t y i n t e r e s t s by any person o t h e r than the Par t n e r s h i p , the General Partner 
or any of our a f f i l i a t e s immediately a f t e r which such person b e n e f i c i a l l y owns 
more than 25% o f the combined v o t i n g power of our then o u t s t a n d i n g u n i t s : unless 
such a c q u i s i t i o n was made by [a) us or our s u b s i d i a r i e s , or any employee b e n e f i t 
p l a n m a i n t a i n e d by us, our Operating P a r t n e r s h i p or any of our s u b s i d i a r i e s , or 
[b) by any person i n a t r a n s a c t i o n where (A) the e x i s t i n g h o lders p r i o r t o the 
t r a n s a c t i o n own at l e a s t 60% of the v o t i n g power of the e n t i t y s u r v i v i n g the 
t r a n s a c t i o n and (B) none of the U n i t h o l d e r s o t h e r than the P a r t n e r s h i p , our 
s u b s i d i a r i e s , any employee b e n e f i t p l a n maintained by us, our Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p , o r the s u r v i v i n g e n t i t y , or the e x i s t i n g b e n e f i c i a l owner of more 
than 25% of t h e o u t s t a n d i n g u n i t s owns more than 25% of the combined v o t i n g 
power of the s u r v i v i n g e n t i t y (such t r a n s a c t i o n , Non-Control T r a n s a c t i o n ) : ( i i ) 
approval by our p a r t n e r s of (a) merger, c o n s o l i d a t i o n or r e o r g a n i z a t i o n 
i n v o l v i n g the P a r t n e r s h i p other than a Non-Control Transaction: (b) a complete 
l i q u i d a t i o n o r d i s s o l u t i o n of the P a r t n e r s h i p -. or (c) the sale o r o t h e r 
d i s p o s i t i o n o f 50% or more of our net assets t o any person (other than a 
t r a n s f e r t o a s u b s i d i a r y ) . 

I f a "change of c o n t r o l " of the P a r t n e r s h i p occurs and w i t h i n s i x months 
p r i o r t h e r e t o or at any time subsequent t o such change of c o n t r o l we t e r m i n a t e 
the E x e c u t i v e 1 s employment w i t h o u t "cause" o r the Executive resigns w i t h "good 
reason" or t h e Executive terminates h i s employment d u r i n g the s i x month p e r i o d 
commencing on the s i x month a n n i v e r s a r y and ending on the twelve month 
an n i v e r s a r y o f a "change of c o n t r o l " , then Mr. Alexander w i l l be e n t i t l e d t o ( i ) 
a lump sum severance payment equal t o three times the sum of h i s annual base 
s a l a r y i n e f f e c t as of the date of t e r m i n a t i o n and the Maximum Annual Bonus, and 
( i i ) medical b e n e f i t s f o r t h r e e years from the date of such t e r m i n a t i o n . The 
Employment Agreement provides t h a t i f any payment r e c e i v e d by Mr. Alexander i s 
s u b j e c t t o t h e 20% f e d e r a l excise t a x under Section 4999 of the i n t e r n a l Revenue 
Code, the payment w i l l be grossed up t o p e r m i t Mr. Alexander t o r e t a i n a net 
amount on an a f t e r - t a x b a s i s equal t o what he would have r e c e i v e d had the excise 
tax not been payable. 
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Mr. Alexander also participates i n the SERP, which provides retirement 
income which could not be provided under our q u a l i f i e d plans by reason of 
li m i t a t i o n s contained i n the In t e r n a l Revenue Code. 

SEVERANCE PROTECTION PLAN FOR KEY EMPLOYEES 

Our o f f i c e r s and key employees are provided with employment protection 
following a "change of control" (the "Severance Protection Plan") . For the 
purposes of t h i s section "change of control" means the occurrence during the 
employment term of: (i) an acquisition of our Common Units or voting equity 
interests by any person other than the Partnership, our General Partner or any 
of t h e i r a f f i l i a t e s immediately a f t e r which such person b e n e f i c i a l l y owns more 
than 25% of the combined voting power of our then outstanding units: unless such 
acquisition was made by (a) us or our subsidiaries, or any employee benefit plan 
maintained by us, our Operating Partnership or any of our subsidiaries, or (b) 
by any person i n a transaction where (A) the existing holders p r i o r to the 
transaction own at least 60% of the voting power of the e n t i t y surviving the 
transaction and (B) none of the 
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Unitholders other than the Partnership, our subsidiaries, any employee benefit 
plan maintained by us, our Operating Partnership, or the surviving e n t i t y , or 
the existing b e n e f i c i a l owner of more than 25% of the outstanding units owns 
more than 25% of the combined voting power of the surviving e n t i t y (such 
transaction a "Non-Control Transaction"}: ( i i ) approval by our partners of (a) 
merger, consolidation or reorganization involving the Partnership other than a 
Non-Control Transaction: (b) a complete l i q u i d a t i o n or dissolution of the 
Partnership: or (c) the sale or other disposition of 50% or more of our net 
assets to any person (other than a transfer to a subsidiary). 

The Severance Protection Plan provides for severance payments equal to 
s i x t y - f i v e (65) weeks of base pay and target bonuses f o r such o f f i c e r s and key 
employees following a "change of control 1 1 and termination of employment. This 
group comprises approximately forty-three (43) individuals. Pursuant to t h e i r 
severance protection agreements, Messrs. Dunn, Eastin, Plante and J o l l y , as our 
executive o f f i c e r s , have been granted severance protection payments of 
seventy-eight (78) weeks of base pay and target bonuses following a "change i n 
control" and termination of employment in l i e u of p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the Severance 
Protection Plan. Our Compensation Committee has also granted severance 
protection payments of seventy-eight (78) weeks to four other executive o f f i c e r s 
who do not p a r t i c i p a t e i n the Severance Protection Plan. 

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION IN COMPENSATION 
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DECISIONS 

Compensation of our ex e c u t i v e o f f i c e r s i s determined by the compensation 
Committee of o u r Board of Supervisors. The Compensation Committee i s comprised 
of Messrs. Stookey, Mecum and Logan, none of whom are our o f f i c e r s or employees. 

COMPENSATION OF SUPERVISORS 

Page 62 of 126 

Mr. Stookey, who i s the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, r e c e i v e s 
annual compensation of $75,000 f o r h i s s e r v i c e s t o us. Mr. Logan and Mr. Mecum, 
the o t h e r two Elected Supervisors, r e c e i v e $50,000 per year and Mr. Mark J. 
Anton, who serves as Supervisor Emeritus, rec e i v e s $15,000 per year. A l l Elected 
Supervisors and the Supervisor Emeritus r e c e i v e reimbursement of reasonable 
out-o f - p o c k e t expenses i n c u r r e d i n connection w i t h meetings of the Board of 
Supervisors. We do not pay any a d d i t i o n a l remuneration t o our employees (or 
employees of any of our a f f i l i a t e s ) or employees of our General Partner or any 
of i t s a f f i l i a t e s f o r s e r v i n g as members of the Board of Supervisors. 
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 

The f o l l o w i n g t a b l e sets f o r t h c e r t a i n i n f o r m a t i o n as of November 21, 2003 
r e g a r d i n g the b e n e f i c i a l ownership of Common u n i t s and i n c e n t i v e D i s t r i b u t i o n 
Rights by each member of the Board of Supervisors, each executive o f f i c e r named 
i n the Summary Compensation t a b l e , a l l members of the Board of Supervisors and 
ex e c u t i v e o f f i c e r s as a group and each person or group known by us (based upon 
f i l i n g s under Section 13(d) o r (g) under The S e c u r i t i e s Exchange Act of 1934) t o 
own b e n e f i c i a l l y more than 5% t h e r e o f . Except as set f o r t h i n the notes t b the 
t a b l e , the business address of each i n d i v i d u a l or e n t i t y i n the t a b l e i s c/o 
Suburban Propane Partners, L.P., 240 Route 10 West, Whippany, New Jersey 
07981-0206 and each i n d i v i d u a l o r e n t i t y has sole v o t i n g and investment power 
over the Common Un i t s r e p o r t e d . 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

SUBURBAN PROPANE, L.P. 

T i t l e of Class Name o f B e n e f i c i a l Owner 
Amount and Nature of 
B e n e f i c i a l Ownership 

Percent 
of Class 
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<s> 
Common Units 

<CJ> 

Mark A. Alexander (a) 
Michael J. Dunn, J r . (a) 
David R. E a s t i n 
Robert M. Plante 
J e f f r e y S. J o l l y 

John Hoyt Stookey 
Harold R. Logan, J r . 
Dudley C. Mecum 
Mark J. Anton (b) 
A l l Members of the Board 
of Supervisors and Executive 
O f f i c e r s as a Group (13 persons) 

Goldman, Sachs & Co. (c) 
85 Broad S t r e e t 
New York, NY 10004 

<C> 
29,000 

0 
11,000 
12,2S2 
3, 000 

11,519 
15,064 
5, 634 
4, 600 

92,079 

1,709,003 
Common U n i t s 

6 . 3% 

i n c e n t i v e D i s t r i b u t i o n 
R igh t s 

</TABLE> 

Suburban Energy Services 
Group LLC N/A N/A 

* Less than 1 % . 

(a) Excludes the f o l l o w i n g numbers of Common Un i t s as t o which the f o l l o w i n g 
i n d i v i d u a l s d e f e r r e d r e c e i p t as described below; Mr. Alexander - 243,902 
and Mr. Dunn - 48,780. These Common Un i t s are h e l d i n t r u s t pursuant t o a 
Compensation D e f e r r a l Plan, and Mr. Alexander and Mr. Dunn w i l l have no 
v o t i n g o r investment power over these Common Un i t s u n t i l they are 
d i s t r i b u t e d by the t r u s t . Mr. Alexander and Mr. Dunn have e l e c t e d t o 
rec e i v e the q u a r t e r l y cash d i s t r i b u t i o n s on these d e f e r r e d u n i t s . 
N o t w i t h s t a n d i n g the f o r e g o i n g , i f a "change of c o n t r o l " of the P a r t n e r s h i p 
occurs (as d e f i n e d i n the Compensation D e f e r r a l P l a n ) , a l l of the d e f e r r e d 
Common U n i t s (and r e l a t e d d i s t r i b u t i o n s ) h e l d i n the t r u s t a u t o m a t i c a l l y 
become d i s t r i b u t a b l e t o the members. 

(b) Mr. Anton shares v o t i n g and investment power over 3,600 Common Un i t s w i t h 
h i s w i f e and over 1,000 Common Un i t s w i t h Lizmar Partners, L.P., a f a m i l y 
owned l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p of which he i s i t s general p a r t n e r . 

(c) Holder r e p o r t s having shared v o t i n g power w i t h respect t o a l l of the Common 
U n i t s and shared d i s p o s i t i v e power w i t h respect t o a l l of the Common U n i t s . 

!Htp://www.sec.gov/Avchives/edgar/data/1005210/000l00521003000038/0001005210-03-000038.lxt 1/8/2004 



Page 64 of 126 
41 

<PAGE> 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

None. 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 

The f o l l o w i n g t a b l e sets f o r t h the aggregate fees f o r s e r v i c e s r e l a t e d t o 
f i s c a l years 2003 and 2002 prov i d e d by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our p r i n c i p a l 
accountants. 

F i s c a l F i s c a l 
2003 2002 

A u d i t Fees (a) S 599,000 $ 474,000 
A u d i t - R e l a t e d Fees (b) 206,000 12,000 
Tax Fees (c) 590,000 772,600 
A l l Other Fees (d) -- 179,900 

(a) A u d i t Fees represent fees b i l l e d f o r p r o f e s s i o n a l s e r v i c e s rendered f o r the 
a u d i t of our annual f i n a n c i a l statements and review of our q u a r t e r l y 
f i n a n c i a l statements, and a u d i t s e r v i c e s provided i n connection w i t h o t h e r 
s t a t u t o r y or r e g u l a t o r y f i l i n g s , i n c l u d i n g s e r v i c e s r e l a t e d t o our June 
2003 p u b l i c o f f e r i n g of Common U n i t s . 

(b) A u d i t - R e l a t e d Fees represent fees b i l l e d f o r assurance s e r v i c e s r e l a t e d t o 
the a u d i t of our f i n a n c i a l statements. The amount shown f o r f i s c a l 2003 
c o n s i s t s p r i m a r i l y of se r v i c e s r e l a t e d t o c u r r e n t and f u t u r e compliance 
w i t h the p r o v i s i o n s of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The amount shown f o r 
f i s c a l 2002 c o n s i s t s of se r v i c e s r e l a t e d t o the stand-alone a u d i t of the 
f i n a n c i a l statements of Suburban Energy Service Group LLC, our General 
Partner. I n a d d i t i o n t o these amounts, fees f o r s e r v i c e s r e l a t e d t o the 
a u d i t s o f the P a r t n e r s h i p 1 s d e f i n e d b e n e f i t pension p l a n and d e f i n e d 
c o n t r i b u t i o n p l a n f i n a n c i a l statements, p a i d by the i n d i v i d u a l plans, were 
$31,000 and $29,500 f o r the f i s c a l 2003 and 2002 a u d i t s , r e s p e c t i v e l y . 

(c) Tax Fees represent fees f o r p r o f e s s i o n a l s e r v i c e s r e l a t e d t o tax r e p o r t i n g , 
compliance and t r a n s a c t i o n s e r v i c e s a s s i s t a n c e . 

(d) A l l Other Fees represent fees f o r s e r v i c e s p r o v i d e d t o us not other w i s e 
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i n c l u d e d i n the ca t e g o r i e s above. The amount shown f o r f i s c a l 2002 c o n s i s t s 
p r i m a r i l y of s e r v i c e s r e l a t e d t o o p e r a t i o n a l c o n t r o l reviews. 

The A u d i t Committee of the Board of Supervisors has adopted a formal p o l i c y 
concerning t h e approval of a u d i t and non-audit s e r v i c e s t o be provi d e d by the 
p r i n c i p a l accountant, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The p o l i c y r e q u i r e s t h a t a l l 
s e r v i c e s PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP may provide t o us, i n c l u d i n g a u d i t s e r v i c e s 
and p e r m i t t e d a u d i t - r e l a t e d and non-audit s e r v i c e s , be pre-approved by the A u d i t 
Committee. The A u d i t Committee pre-approved a l l a u d i t and non-audit s e r v i c e s 
provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP d u r i n g f i s c a l 2003 and reviewed a l l a u d i t 
and non-audit s e r v i c e s f o r f i s c a l 2002. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 

(a) The f o l l o w i n g documents are f i l e d as p a r t of t h i s Report: 

1. ( i ) F i n a n c i a l Statements 

See "Index t o F i n a n c i a l Statements" set f o r t h on page F - l . 

( i i ) Supplemental F i n a n c i a l I n f o r m a t i o n 

Balance Sheet I n f o r m a t i o n of Suburban Energy Services Group LLC 

See "Index t o Supplemental F i n a n c i a l I n f o r m a t i o n " set f o r t h on page 
F-24 . 

2. F i n a n c i a l Statement Schedule 

See "Index t o F i n a n c i a l Statement Schedule" set f o r t h on page S - l . 

3. E x h i b i t s 

See "Index t o E x h i b i t s " set f o r t h on page E - l . 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K 

No r e p o r t s were f i l e d on form 8-K. 
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SIGNATURES 
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused t h i s report to be signed on i t s 
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 

Date December 2, 2003 By: I s i HARK A. ALEXANDER 

Mark A. Alexander 
President, Chief Executive Officer 
and Appointed Supervisor 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, t h i s Annual 
Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the 
Registrant and i n the capacities and on the dates indicated: 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

Signature T i t l e 

<S> <C> 

/s/ MICHAEL J. DUNN, JR Senior Vice President - Corporate 
. Development 

(Michael J. Dunn, Jr.) Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 
Appointed Supervisor 

I s i JOHN HOYT STOOKEY Chairman and Elected Supervisor 

(John Hoyt Stookey) 

Date 

<c> 
December 2, 2003 

December 2, 2003 
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/s/ HAROLD R. LOGAN, JR. 

(Harold R. Logan, J r . 

/s/ DUDLEY C. MECUM 

(Dudley C. Mecum) 

/s/ ROBERT M. PLANTE 

(Robert M. Plante) 

Elected Supervisor 

E l e c t e d Supervisor 

Vice President and 
Chief F i n a n c i a l O f f i c e r 

Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 

December 2, 2003 

December 2, 2003 

December 2, 2003 

/s/ MICHAEL A. STIVALA 

(Michael A. S t i v a i a ) 

</TABLE> 

C o n t r o l l e r 
Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 

December 2, 2003 
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS 

The e x h i b i t s l i s t e d on t h i s E x h i b i t Index are f i l e d as p a r t of t h i s Annual 
Report. E x h i b i t s r e q u i r e d t o be f i l e d by Item 601 of Regulation S-K, which are 
not l i s t e d below, are not a p p l i c a b l e . 

E x h i b i t 
Number D e s c r i p t i o n 

2 .1 

3 . 1 

R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n Agreement dated as of November 27, 
1998 by and among the P a r t n e r s h i p , the Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p , the General Partner, M i l l e n n i u m and Suburban 
Energy Services Group LLC. 

Second Amended and Restated Agreement of L i m i t e d 
P a r t n e r s h i p of the Pa r t n e r s h i p dated as of May 26, 1999. 
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E 3.2 Second Amended and Restated Agreement of L i m i t e d 
P a r t n e r s h i p of the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p dated as 
of May 26, 1999. 

A 10.3 Note Agreement dated as of February 28, 1996 among c e r t a i n 
i n v e s t o r s and the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p r e l a t i n g t o 5425 
m i l l i o n aggregate p r i n c i p a l amount of 7.54% Senior Notes 
due June 30, 2011. 

K 10.4 Amendment No. 1 t o the Note Agreement dated May 13, 
1998 among c e r t a i n i n v e s t o r s and the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p 
r e l a t i n g t o 5425 m i l l i o n aggregate p r i n c i p a l amount of 
7.54% Senior Notes due June 30, 2011. 

K 10.5 Amendment No. 2 t o the Note Agreement dated March 29, 
1999 among c e r t a i n i n v e s t o r s and the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p 
r e l a t i n g t o $425 m i l l i o n aggregate p r i n c i p a l amount of 
7.54% Senior Notes due June 30, 2011. 

K 10.6 Amendment No. 3 t o the Note Agreement dated December 
6, 2000 among c e r t a i n i n v e s t o r s and the Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p r e l a t i n g t o $425 m i l l i o n aggregate p r i n c i p a l 
amount of 7.54% Senior Notes due June 30, 2011. 

I 10.7 Amendment No. 4 t o the Note Agreement dated March 21, 
2002 among c e r t a i n i n v e s t o r s and the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p 
r e l a t i n g t o $42 5 m i l l i o n aggregate p r i n c i p a l amount of 
7.54% Senior Notes due June 30, 2011. 

K 10.8 Amendment No. 5 t o the Note Agreement dated November 
20, 2002 among c e r t a i n i n v e s t o r s and the Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p r e l a t i n g t o $425 m i l l i o n aggregate p r i n c i p a l 
amount of 7.54% Senior Notes due June 30, 2011. 

<PAGE> 
E-l 

10.9 Guaranty Agreement dated as of A p r i l 11, 2002 
provided by four d i rec t subsidiaries of Suburban Propane, 
L.P. f o r the 7.54% Senior Notes due June 30, 2011. 

10.10 In t e r c red i to r Agreement dated March 21, 2002 between 
F i r s t Union National Bank, the Lenders under the Operating 
Partnership's Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and 
the Noteholders of the Operating Partnership's 7.54% 
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Senior Notes due June 30, 2011. 

J 10.11 - Note Agreement dated as of A p r i l 19, 2002 among c e r t a i n 
i n v e s t o r s and the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p r e l a t i n g t o $42.5 
m i l l i o n aggregate p r i n c i p a l amount of 7.37% Senior Notes 
due June 30, 2012. 

J 10.12 Guaranty Agreement dated as of J u l y 1, 2002 p r o v i d e d by 
c e r t a i n s u b s i d i a r i e s of Suburban Propane, L.P. f o r the 
7.37% Senior Notes due June 30, 2012. 

A 10.13 Employment Agreement dated as of March 5, 1996 between the 
Operating P a r t n e r s h i p and Mr. Alexander. 

C 10.14 F i r s t Amendment t o Employment Agreement dated as of 
March 5, 1996 between the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p and 
Mr. Alexander entered i n t o as of October 23, 1997. 

F 10.15 Second Amendment t o Employment Agreement dated as of 
March 5, 1996 between the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p and Mr. 
Alexander entered i n t o as of A p r i l 14, 1999. 

A 10.16 The P a r t n e r s h i p ' s 1996 R e s t r i c t e d Unit Plan. 

G 10.17 Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 2000 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan. 

B 10.18 The Partnership's Severance P r o t e c t i o n plan dated 
September 1996. 

K 10.19 Suburban Propane L.P. Long-Term i n c e n t i v e Plan as 
amended and r e s t a t e d e f f e c t i v e October 1, 1999. 

F 10.20 B e n e f i t s P r o t e c t i o n T r u s t dated May 26, 1999 by and 
between Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 
and F i r s t Union N a t i o n a l Bank. 

F 10.21 Compensation D e f e r r a l Plan of Suburban Propane Partners, 
L.P. and Suburban Propane, L.P. dated May 26, 1999. 

H 10.22 F i r s t Amendment t o the Compensation D e f e r r a l Plan of 
Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. and Suburban Propane, L.P. 
dated November 5, 2001. 

H 10.23 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive 
Retirement Plan of the P a r t n e r s h i p { e f f e c t i v e as of 
January 1, 1998) . 

H 10.24 Amended and Restated Retirement Savings and 
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Investment; Plan of Suburban Propane ( e f f e c t i v e as of 
January 1, 1998} . 

10.25 Amendment No. 1 t o the Retirement Savings and Investment 
Plan of Suburban Propane ( e f f e c t i v e January 1, 2002). 

10.26 Second Amended and Restated C r e d i t Agreement dated 
Hay 8, 2003. 

10.27 F i r s t Amendment t o Second Amended and Restated C r e d i t 
Agreement dated November 4, 2003. 

E-2 

<PAGE> 

M 21.1 L i s t i n g of S u b s i d i a r i e s of the Pa r t n e r s h i p . 

M 23.1 Consent of Independent Accountants. 

M 31.1 C e r t i f i c a t i o n of the President and Chief Executive 
O f f i c e r Pursuant t o 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted 
Pursuant t o Sec t i o n 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

M 31.2 C e r t i f i c a t i o n of the Vice President and Chief 
F i n a n c i a l O f f i c e r Pursuant t o 18 U.S.C. Section 
1350, as Adopted Pursuant t o Section 302 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

M 32.1 C e r t i f i c a t i o n of the President and Chief Executive 
O f f i c e r Pursuant t o 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted 
Pursuant t o Sect i o n 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

M 32.2 C e r t i f i c a t i o n of the v i c e President and Chief 
F i n a n c i a l O f f i c e r Pursuant t o 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as 
Adopted Pursuant t o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002. 

I n c o r p o r a t e d by reference t o the same numbered E x h i b i t t o the 
Pa r t n e r s h i p ' s Current Report on Form 8-K f i l e d A p r i l 29, 1996. 

I n c o r p o r a t e d by ref e r e n c e t o the same numbered E x h i b i t t o the 
P a r t n e r s h i p ' s Annual Report on Form 10-K f o r the f i s c a l year ended 
September 28, 1996. 

C I n c o r p o r a t e d by reference t o the same numbered E x h i b i t t o the 
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<PAGE> 

Pa r t n e r s h i p ' s Annual Report on Form 10-K f o r the f i s c a l year ended 
September 27, 1997. 

In c o r p o r a t e d by reference t o E x h i b i t 2.1 t o the Partnership's Current 
Report on Form 8-K f i l e d December 3, 1998. 

I n c o r p o r a t e d by reference t o the Partnership's Proxy Statement f i l e d 
p ursuant t o Section 14(a) of the S e c u r i t i e s Exchange Act of 1934 on 
A p r i l 22, 1999. 

I n c o r p o r a t e d by ref e r e n c e t o the Partnership's Q u a r t e r l y Report on Form 
10-Q f o r the f i s c a l q u a r t e r ended June 26, 1999. 

In c o r p o r a t e d by ref e r e n c e t o E x h i b i t 10.16 t o the Partnership's Annual 
Report on Form 10-K f o r the f i s c a l year ended September 30, 2000. 

I n c o r p o r a t e d by reference t o the same numbered E x h i b i t t o the 
Pa r t n e r s h i p ' s Annual Report on Form 10-K f o r the f i s c a l year ended 
September 29, 2001. 

I n c o r p o r a t e d by ref e r e n c e t o the Partnership's Q u a r t e r l y Report on Form 
10-Q f o r the f i s c a l q u a r t e r ended March 30, 2002. 

I n c o r p o r a t e d by ref e r e n c e t o the Partnership's Q u a r t e r l y Report on Form 
10-Q f o r the f i s c a l q u a r t e r ended June 29, 2002. 

E-3 

I n c o r p o r a t e d by r e f e r e n c e t o the same numbered E x h i b i t t o the 
P a r t n e r s h i p ' s Annual Report on Form 10-K f o r the f i s c a l year ended 
September 28, 2002. 

i n c o r p o r a t e d by r e f e r e n c e t o the same numbered E x h i b i t t o the 
P a r t n e r s h i p ' s . Q u a r t e r l y Report on Form 10-Q f o r the f i s c a l q u a r t e r 
ended March 29, 2003. 

F i l e d h e r e w i t h . 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

To the Board o f Supervisors and U n i t h o l d e r s o£ 
Suburban Propane Partners, L.P.: 

I n our o p i n i o n , the c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l statements l i s t e d i n the index 
appearing under Item 1 5 . ( a ) l . ( i ) present f a i r l y , i n a l l m a t e r i a l respects, the 
f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n of Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. and i t s s u b s i d i a r i e s (the 
" P a r t n e r s h i p " ) a t September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002 and the r e s u l t s of 
t h e i r o p e r a t i o n s and t h e i r cash flows f o r each of the three f i s c a l years i n the 
pe r i o d ended September 27, 2 0 03 i n c o n f o r m i t y w i t h accounting p r i n c i p l e s 
g e n e r a l l y accepted i n the u n i t e d States of America. I n a d d i t i o n , i n our o p i n i o n , 
the f i n a n c i a l statement schedule l i s t e d i n the index appearing under Item 
l S . ( a ) 2 . p r e s e n t s f a i r l y , i n a l l m a t e r i a l respects, the i n f o r m a t i o n set f o r t h 
t h e r e i n when read i n c o n j u n c t i o n w i t h the r e l a t e d c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l 
statements. These f i n a n c i a l statements and f i n a n c i a l statement schedule are the 
r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the Par t n e r s h i p ' s management; our r e s p o n s i b i l i t y i s t o express 
an o p i n i o n on these f i n a n c i a l statements and f i n a n c i a l statement schedule based 
on our a u d i t s . We conducted our a u d i t s of these statements i n accordance w i t h 
a u d i t i n g standards g e n e r a l l y accepted i n the United States of America, which 
r e q u i r e t h a t we plan and perform the a u d i t t o o b t a i n reasonable assurance about 
whether the f i n a n c i a l statements are f r e e of m a t e r i a l misstatement. An a u d i t 
i n c l u d e s examining, on a t e s t b a s i s , evidence s u p p o r t i n g the amounts and 
d i s c l o s u r e s i n the f i n a n c i a l statements, assessing the accounting p r i n c i p l e s 
used and s i g n i f i c a n t estimates made by management, and e v a l u a t i n g the o v e r a l l 
f i n a n c i a l statement p r e s e n t a t i o n . We b e l i e v e t h a t our a u d i t s p r o v i d e a 
reasonable b a s i s f o r our o p i n i o n . 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Florham Park, NJ 
October 23, 2003 

F-2 
<PAGE> 

hUp;//w\vw.scc.gov/Archives/edgai7data/1005210/000100521003000038/000I005210-03-000038.txt 1/8/2004 



SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
( i n thousands) 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

Page 74 of 126 

September 
27, 2003 

September 
28, 2002 

ASSETS 
Current assets : 
<S> 

Cash and cash e q u i v a l e n t s 
Accounts r e c e i v a b l e , l e s s allowance f o r d o u b t f u l accounts 

of $2,519 and $1,894, r e s p e c t i v e l y 
I n v e n t o r i e s 
Prepaid expenses and o t h e r c u r r e n t assets 

T o t a l c u r r e n t assets 
Property, p l a n t and equipment, net 
Goodwill 
Other i n t a n g i b l e assets, net 
Other assets 

T o t a l assets 

<C> 
$ 15,765 

36,437 
41,510 
5, 200 

98,912 
312,790 
243,236 

1, 035 
9, 657 

<C> 
$ 40,955 

33,002 
36,367 
6,465 

116,789 
331,009 
243,260 

1, 474 
7, 614 

$ 665,630 $ 700,146 

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL 
Current l i a b i l i t i e s : 

Accounts payable 
Accrued employment and b e n e f i t costs 
Current p o r t i o n of long-term borrowings 
Accrued insurance 
Customer d e p o s i t s and advances 
Accrued i n t e r e s t 
Other c u r r e n t l i a b i l i t i e s 

T o t a l c u r r e n t l i a b i l i t i e s 
Long-term borrowings 

$ 26,204 
20,798 
42,911 
7,810 

23,958 
7,457 
8 , 575 

137,713 
340,915 

27,412 
21,430 
88,939 
8, 670 

26,125 
8, 666 
6, 303 

187,545 
383,830 
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Postretiremenc b e n e f i t s o b l i g a t i o n 
Accrued insurance 
Accrued pension l i a b i l i t y 
Other l i a b i l i t i e s 

T o t a l l i a b i l i t i e s 

33,435 
20,829 
42,136 
6, 524 

581,552 

Page 75 of 126 
33,2B4 
18,299 
53,164 
4, 738 

680,860 

Commitments and con t i n g e n c i e s 

Partners' c a p i t a l : 
Common U n i t h o l d e r s (27,256 and 24,631 u n i t s issued and ou t s t a n d i n g a t 

September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002, r e s p e c t i v e l y ) 
General Partner 
D e f e r r e d compensation 
Common U n i t s h e l d i n t r u s t , a t cost 
Unearned compensation 
Accumulated o t h e r comprehensive l o s s 

T o t a l p a r t n e r s ' c a p i t a l 

T o t a l l i a b i l i t i e s and p a r t n e r s ' c a p i t a l 

165,950 
1, 567 
(5,795) 
5, 795 
(2,171] 

(81,268] 

84,078 

S 665,630 

103,680 
1, 924 

(11,567) 
11,567 
(1,924} 

(84,394) 

19,286 

$ 700,146 

The accompanying notes are an i n t e g r a l p a r t of these c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l 
statements. 

</TABLE> 

<PAGE> 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

F-3 

SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
( i n thousands, except per u n i t amounts) 

Year Ended 
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September 
27, 2003 

<S> 
Revenues 

Propane 
Other 

Costs and expenses 
Cost of pr o d u c t s s o l d 
Operating 
General and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 
D e p r e c i a t i o n and a m o r t i z a t i o n 
Gain on s a l e of storage f a c i l i t y 

Income before i n t e r e s t expense and p r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 
I n t e r e s t income 
I n t e r e s t expense 

Income before p r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 
P r o v i s i o n f o r income taxes 

Income from c o n t i n u i n g o p e r a t i o n s 
Discontinued o p e r a t i o n s (Note 14): 

Gain on s a l e of customer s e r v i c e centers 

Net income 

General P a r t n e r ' s i n t e r e s t i n net income 

L i m i t e d P a r t n e r s ' i n t e r e s t i n net income 

Income per Common Unit - basic 
Income from c o n t i n u i n g o p e r a t i o n s 
Discontinued o p e r a t i o n s 

<C> 

S 680,741 
90,938 

771,679 

376,783 
250,698 
36,661 
27,520 

691,662 

80,017 
(334) 

33,963 

46,388 
202 

46,186 

2, 483 

s 48,669 

$ 1, 193 

5 47,476 

$ 1.78 
0.09 

$ 1 . 87 Net income 

iuip:/Avwvv.scc.gov/Archives/edgar/data/l 005210/000 i 00521003000038/000 i 005210-03-00003S.txt 

September September 
28, 2002 29, 2001 

<:C> 

$ 570,280 s 839,607 
94 ,825 91,929 

665,105 931,536 

289,055 510,313 
234 ,140 258,735 
30,771 32,511 
28,355 36,496 
(6,768) -

575 ,553 838,055 

89,552 93,481 
(600) (414) 

35, 925 40,010 

54 , 227 53,885 
703 375 

53,524 53,510 

$ 53,524 5 53,510 

$ 1,362 S 1, 048 

S 52,162 $ 52,462 

S 2 .12 s 2 .14 

$ 2.12 $ 2 .14 

l/S/2004 



Weighted average number of Common Un i t s o u t s t a n d i n g - basic 25,359 24 , 631 
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24,514 

Income per Common U n i t - d i l u t e d 
Income from c o n t i n u i n g o p e r a t i o n s 
D i s c o n t i n u e d o p e r a t i o n s 

Net income 

Weighted average number of Common Un i t s o u t s t a n d i n g - d i l u t e d 

1. 77 
0. 09 

1. 86 

25,495 

2.12 

2.12 

24,665 

2 . 14 

2 . 14 

24 , 530 

The accompanying notes are an i n t e g r a l p a r t of these c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l 
statements. 

</TABLE> 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION: 

F-4 

SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
( i n thousands) 

Cash flows from o p e r a t i n g a c t i v i t i e s : 
<S> 

Net income 
Adjustments t o r e c o n c i l e net income t o net cash 

September 
27, 2003 

<C> 
$ 

Year Ended 

September 
28, 2002 

<C> 
48,669 $ 53,524 

September 
29, 2001 

<C> 
$ 53,510 
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p r o v i d e d by o p e r a t i o n s : 

D e p r e c i a t i o n expense 
A m o r t i z a t i o n of i n t a n g i b l e assets 
A m o r t i z a t i o n of debt o r i g i n a t i o n costs 
A m o r t i z a t i o n of unearned compensation 
Gain on d i s p o s a l of p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and 

equipment, net 
Gain on sale of customer s e r v i c e centers 
Gain on sale of storage f a c i l i t y 

Changes i n assets and l i a b i l i t i e s , net of d i s p o s i t i o n s : 
{Increase)/decrease i n accounts r e c e i v a b l e 
(Increase)/decrease i n i n v e n t o r i e s 
Decrease/(increase) i n p r e p a i d expenses and 

o t h e r c u r r e n t assets 
Decrease i n accounts payable 
(Decrease)/increase i n accrued employment 

and b e n e f i t costs 
(Decrease)/increase i n accrued i n t e r e s t 
(Decrease)/increase i n o t h e r accrued l i a b i l i t i e s 
(Increase)/decrease i n o t h e r noncurrent assets 
Decrease i n o t h e r noncurrent l i a b i l i t i e s 

Net cash pro v i d e d by o p e r a t i n g a c t i v i t i e s 

Cash flows frorri i n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s : 
C a p i t a l e x p e n d i t u r e s 
Proceeds from sale of p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and equipment, net 
Proceeds from sale of customer s e r v i c e c e n t e r s , net 
Proceeds from sale of storage f a c i l i t y , net 

Net cash used i n i n v e s t i n g a c t i v i t i e s 

Cash flows from f i n a n c i n g a c t i v i t i e s : 
Long-term debt repayments 
S h o r t - t e r m debt repayments, net 
C r e d i t agreement expenses 
Net proceeds from issuance of Common U n i t s 
P a r t n e r s h i p d i s t r i b u t i o n s 

Net cash used i n f i n a n c i n g a c t i v i t i e s 

Net (decrease)/increase i n cash and cash e q u i v a l e n t s 
Cash and cash e q u i v a l e n t s a t beginning of year 

Cash and cash e q u i v a l e n t s a t end of year 

Supplemental d i s c l o s u r e of cash f l o w i n f o r m a t i o n : 
Cash pa i d f o r i n t e r e s t $ 33,635 

littp://\vww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1005210/000100521003000038/0001005210-03-000038.txt 

27,097 27,857 28,517 
423 498 7, 979 

1, 291 1, 338 2 , 006 
863 985 440 

(636) (546) (3,843) 
(2,483) - -

- (6,768) -

(4,101) 9,635 18,601 
(5,339) 5,402 (260) 

576 (2,526) 1, 699 
(1,208) (10,862) (21,109) 

(632) (8,518) 10,969 
(1,209) 348 147 
(1,825) (1,153) 4 , 635 
(2,506) (439) 1, 194 
(1,680) - (2,647) 

57,300 68,775 101,838 

(14,050) (17,464) (23 , 218) 
1, 994 2,625 5, 311 
7,197 - -

- 7,988 -

(4,859) (6,851) (17,907) 

(88,939) (408) (44 ,428) 

- - (6,500) 
(826) - (730) 

72, 186 - 47,079 
(60,052) (57,055) (54,503) 

(77,631) (57,463) (59,082) 

(25, 190) 4,461 24 , 849 
40,955 36,494 11, 645 

15,765 40, 955 36,494 

34 ,134 3 7 , 7 7 4 

1/8/2004 



Non-cash adjustment f o r minimum pension l i a b i l i t y (4,938) $ 37,800 
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47,277 

The accompanying notes are an i n t e g r a l p a r t of these c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l 
statements. 

</TABLE> 

<PAGE> 
<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 

SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS' CAPITAL 
( i n thousands) 

Number of 
Common Common General 
U n i t s U n i t h o l d e r s Partner 

Deferred 
Compen-
s a t i o n 

Common 
u n i t s Held 
i n T r u s t 

Unearned 
Compen­
s a t i o n 

Accumu­
l a t e d 
Other 
Compre­
hensive 
(Loss)/ 
Income 

T o t a l 
Partners 
C a p i t a l 

Comp 
hens 
Inco 

<S> 
Balance a t September 30, 2000 
Net income 
Other comprehensive income: 

U n r e a l i z e d h o l d i n g l o s s 
Less; R e c l a s s i f i c a t i o n 

ad jus tmen t f o r ga ins 
i n c l u d e d i n net income 

Minimum pens ion l i a b i l i t y 
a d j ustment 

Comprehensive income 

P a r t n e r s h i p d i s t r i b u t i o n s 
Sale o f Common u n i t s under 

< C ? 
2 2 , 2 7 ! 

<C> 
$ 58,474 

52,462 

153 ,477 ] 

<C> 
$ 1,866 

1 , 048 

[1,026] 

<c> 
$ (11,567) $ 11,567 

<C> 
$ (640) 

<C> <C> 
S 2,129 $ 61,829 

53,510 

(1,046) 

(1,083) 

(47 , 277) 

(1,046) 

(1,083) 

(47 ,277) 

(54,503) 

<C> 

$53, 

( 1 , 

( 1 , 

(47, 

$ 4, 
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p u b l i c o f f e r i n g , net of 
o f f e r i n g expenses 2,353 47,079 

Grants issued under R e s t r i c t e d 
U n i t Plan, n e t of f o r f e i t u r e s 1,011 

Am o r t i z a t i o n o f Compensation 
D e f e r r a l Plan 

A m o r t i z a t i o n o f R e s t r i c t e d 
U n i t Plan, n e t of f o r f e i t u r e s 

(1,011) 

212 

22a 

Balance at September 29, 2001 24,631 105,549 1,888 [11,567) 11,567 
Net income 52,162 1,362 
Other comprehensive income: 

Net u n r e a l i z e d gains on cash 
f l o w hedges 

Less: R e c l a s s i f i c a t i o n of 
r e a l i z e d gains on cash 
f l o w hedges i n t o earnings 

Minimum pension l i a b i l i t y -
adjustment 

Comprehensive income 

P a r t n e r s h i p d i s t r i b u t i o n s (55,729) (1,326) 
Grants issued under R e s t r i c t e d 

U n i t Plan, n e t of f o r f e i t u r e s 1,698 
Am o r t i z a t i o n o f Compensation 

D e f e r r a l Plan 
A m o r t i z a t i o n o f R e s t r i c t e d 

U n i t Plan, n e t of f o r f e i t u r e s 

11,211) [47, 277) 

838 

[155) 

137, 800) 

il,6981 

382 

603 
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47,079 

212 

226 

58,949 
53,521 $53, 

(155) 

(37,800) (37, 

$ 16, 

(57,055) 

382 

603 

Balance at September 28, 2002 24,631 103,680 1,924 [11,567) 11,567 
Net income 47,476 1,193 
Other comprehensive income: 

Net u n r e a l i z e d losses on cash 
f l o w hedges 

Less: R e c l a s s i f i c a t i o n of 
r e a l i z e d gains on cash 
f l o w hedges i n t o earnings 

Minimum pension l i a b i l i t y 
adjustment 

Comprehensive income 

P a r t n e r s h i p d i s t r i b u t i o n s (58,502) (1,550) 
Sale of Common Un i t s under 

p u b l i c o f f e r i n g , net of 

11,924! 184,394) 

(1,129) 

(683) 

4, 938 

19,286 
48.669 

(1,129) 

(683) 

4 , 938 

[60,052) 

$48, 

( 1 , 

( 

4 , 

$ 51, 
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o f f e r i n g expenses 
D i s t r i b u t i o n o f Common Un i t s 

h e l d i n t r u s t 
Grants issued under R e s t r i c t e d 

U n i t Plan, n e t of f o r f e i t u r e s 
A m o r t i z a t i o n o f R e s t r i c t e d 

U n i t Plan, n e t of f o r f e i t u r e s 

2, 625 72,186 

1, 110 

5, 772 (5,772) 
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72,186 

!1,110) 

863 863 

Balance a t September 2 1 , 2Q03 27,256 $165,550 $ 1,567 $ 15,795) $ 5,795 $ 12,171) $(81,268) $ 84,078 

</TABLE> 
The accompanying notes are an i n t e g r a l p a r t of these c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l 
statements. 

F-6 

<PAGE> 

1. 

SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
( d o l l a r s i n thousands, except per u n i t amounts) 

PARTNERSHIP ORGANIZATION AND FORMATION 

Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. (the "Partnership") was formed on December 19, 
1995 as a Delaware l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p . The P a r t n e r s h i p and i t s s u b s i d i a r y , 
Suburban Propane, L.P. (the "Operating P a r t n e r s h i p " ) , were formed t o acquire and 
operate the propane business and assets of Suburban Propane, a d i v i s i o n of 
Quantum Chemical Co r p o r a t i o n (the "Predecessor Company"). I n a d d i t i o n , Suburban 
Sales & S e r v i c e , I n c . (the "Service Company"), a s u b s i d i a r y of the Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p , was formed t o acquire and operate the s e r v i c e work and appliance 
and p a r t s businesses of the Predecessor Company. The P a r t n e r s h i p , the Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p and the Service Company commenced op e r a t i o n s on March 5, 1996 upon 
consummation o f an i n i t i a l p u b l i c o f f e r i n g of 21,562,500 common u n i t s 
r e p r e s e n t i n g l i m i t e d p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t s i n the P a r t n e r s h i p (the "Common U n i t s " ) , 
the p r i v a t e placement o f 3425,000 aggregate p r i n c i p a l amount of Senior Notes due 
2011 issued by the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p and the t r a n s f e r of a l l of the propane 
assets ( e x c l u d i n g the net accounts r e c e i v a b l e balance) of the Predecessor 
Company t o t h e Operating P a r t n e r s h i p and the Service Company. 

On January 5, 2001, Suburban Holdings, I n c . , a s u b s i d i a r y of the Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p , was formed t o h o l d the stock o f Gas Connection, I n c . , Suburban @ 
Home, I n c . and Suburban F r a n c h i s i n g , I n c . Gas Connection, Inc. (d/b/a HomeTown 
Hearth £ G r i l l ) s e l l s and i n s t a l l s n a t u r a l gas and propane gas g r i l l s , 
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f i r e p l a c e s and r e l a t e d accessories and s u p p l i e s ; Suburban ® Home, Inc. s e l l s , 
i n s t a l l s , s e r v i c e s and r e p a i r s a f u l l range of h e a t i n g and a i r c o n d i t i o n i n g 
products; and Suburban Fr a n c h i s i n g , Inc. creates and develops propane r e l a t e d 
f r a n c h i s i n g business o p p o r t u n i t i e s . The Pa r t n e r s h i p , the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p , 
the Service Company, Suburban Holdings, I nc. and i t s s u b s i d i a r i e s are 
c o l l e c t i v e l y r e f e r r e d t o h e r e i n a f t e r as the "Partnership E n t i t i e s . " 

From March 5, 1996 through May 26, 1999, Suburban Propane GP, Inc. {the "Former 
General P a r t n e r " ) , a wholly-owned i n d i r e c t s u b s i d i a r y of Mi l l e n n i u m Chemicals, 
Inc . , served as the gener a l p a r t n e r of the Partne r s h i p and the Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p owning a 1% gener a l p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t i n the P a r t n e r s h i p and a 
1.0101% g e n e r a l p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t i n the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p . I n a d d i t i o n , the 
Former General Partner owned a 24.4% l i m i t e d p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t evidenced by 
7,163,750 Subordinated U n i t s and a s p e c i a l l i m i t e d p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t i n the 
Par t n e r s h i p . 

On May 26, 1999, the P a r t n e r s h i p completed a r e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n (the 
" R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n " ) which i n c l u d e d the redemption of the Subordinated U n i t s and 
s p e c i a l l i m i t e d p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t from the Former General Partner, and the 
s u b s t i t u t i o n o f Suburban Energy Services Group LLC (the "General Partner") as 
the new g e n e r a l p a r t n e r of the P a r t n e r s h i p and the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p 
f o l l o w i n g the General Partner's purchase of the combined 2.0101% general p a r t n e r 
i n t e r e s t s f o r $6,000 i n cash. The General Partner i s owned by se n i o r management 
of the P a r t n e r s h i p and, f o l l o w i n g the p u b l i c o f f e r i n g s discussed i n Note 13, 
owns a combined 1.71% general p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t i n the P a r t n e r s h i p and the 
Operating P a r t n e r s h i p . 

The l i m i t e d p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t s i n the P a r t n e r s h i p are evidenced by Common U n i t s 
t r a d e d on the New York Stock Exchange. The l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s are e n t i t l e d t o 
p a r t i c i p a t e i n d i s t r i b u t i o n s and exer c i s e the r i g h t s and p r i v i l e g e s a v a i l a b l e t o 
l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s under the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of L i m i t e d 
P a r t n e r s h i p , such as the e l e c t i o n of t h r e e of the f i v e members of the Board of 
Supervisors and vote on the removal of the general p a r t n e r . 

The P a r t n e r s h i p E n t i t i e s are engaged i n the r e t a i l and wholesale marketing of 
propane and r e l a t e d appliances and s e r v i c e s . The P a r t n e r s h i p serves 
approximately 750,000 a c t i v e r e s i d e n t i a l , commercial, i n d u s t r i a l and 
a g r i c u l t u r a l customers from approximately 320 customer s e r v i c e centers i n 40 
s t a t e s . The P a r t n e r s h i p ' s o p e r a t i o n s are concentrated i n the east and west coast 
regions of t h e U n i t e d States. No s i n g l e customer accounted f o r 10% or 
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more of the Partnership's revenues during f i s c a l 2003, 2002 or 2001. During 
f i s c a l 2003, 2002 and 2001, three suppliers provided approximately 42%, 49% and 
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47%, r e s p e c t i v e l y , of the Par t n e r s h i p ' s t o t a l domestic propane supply. The 
Par t n e r s h i p b e l i e v e s t h a t , i f s u p p l i e s from any of these three s u p p l i e r s were 
i n t e r r u p t e d , i t would be able t o secure adequate propane s u p p l i e s from o t h e r 
sources w i t h o u t a m a t e r i a l d i s r u p t i o n of i t s o p e r a t i o n s . 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION. The c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l statements i n c l u d e the 
accounts of t h e P a r t n e r s h i p E n t i t i e s . A l l s i g n i f i c a n t intercompany t r a n s a c t i o n s 
and account balances have been e l i m i n a t e d . The Pa r t n e r s h i p c o n s o l i d a t e s the 
r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s , f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n and cash flows of the Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p as a r e s u l t of the Par t n e r s h i p ' s 98.9899% l i m i t e d p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t 
i n the O p e r a t i n g P a r t n e r s h i p and i t s a b i l i t y t o i n f l u e n c e c o n t r o l over the major 
o p e r a t i n g and f i n a n c i a l d e c i s i o n s through the powers of the Board of Supervisors 
provided f o r i n the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of L i m i t e d 
P a r t n e r s h i p . 

FISCAL PERIOD. The Partnership's f i s c a l year ends on the l a s t Saturday nearest 
t o September 3 0. 

REVENUE RECOGNITION. Sales of propane are recognized a t the time product i s 
d e l i v e r e d t o t h e customer. Revenue from the sale of appliances and equipment i s 
recognized a t the time of sale or when i n s t a l l a t i o n i s complete, as a p p l i c a b l e . 
Revenue from r e p a i r and maintenance a c t i v i t i e s i s recognized upon completion of 
the s e r v i c e . 

USE OF ESTIMATES. The p r e p a r a t i o n of f i n a n c i a l statements i n c o n f o r m i t y w i t h 
g e n e r a l l y accepted accounting p r i n c i p l e s r e q u i r e s management t o make estimates 
and assumptions t h a t a f f e c t the r e p o r t e d amounts of assets and l i a b i l i t i e s and 
d i s c l o s u r e of con t i n g e n t assets and l i a b i l i t i e s a t the date of the f i n a n c i a l 
statements and the r e p o r t e d amounts of revenues and expenses d u r i n g the 
r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d . Estimates have been made by management i n the areas of 
insurance and l i t i g a t i o n reserves, pension and ot h e r p o s t r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t 
l i a b i l i t i e s and co s t s , v a l u a t i o n of d e r i v a t i v e instruments, asset v a l u a t i o n 
assessment, as w e l l as the allowance f o r d o u b t f u l accounts. A c t u a l r e s u l t s c ould 
d i f f e r from those estimates, making i t reasonably p o s s i b l e t h a t a change i n 
these e s t i m a t e s could occur i n the near term. 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. The P a r t n e r s h i p considers a l l h i g h l y l i q u i d debt 
instruments purchased w i t h an o r i g i n a l m a t u r i t y of three months or les s t o be 
cash e q u i v a l e n t s . The c a r r y i n g amount approximates f a i r value because of the 
sho r t m a t u r i t y of these i n s t r u m e n t s . 

INVENTORIES. i n v e n t o r i e s are s t a t e d a t t h e lower of cost or market. Cost i s 
determined u s i n g a weighted average method f o r propane and a standard cost b a s i s 
f o r a p p l i a n c e s , which approximates average cost. 

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES. The P a r t n e r s h i p i s exposed t o the 
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impact of market f l u c t u a t i o n s i n the commodity p r i c e of propane. The P a r t n e r s h i p 
r o u t i n e l y uses commodity f u t u r e s , forward and o p t i o n c o n t r a c t s t o hedge i t s 
commodity p r i c e r i s k and t o ensure supply d u r i n g periods of h i g h demand. A l l 
d e r i v a t i v e i n s t r u m e n t s are r e p o r t e d on the balance sheet, w i t h i n o t h e r c u r r e n t 
assets or o t h e r c u r r e n t l i a b i l i t i e s , a t t h e i r f a i r values. On the date t h a t 
f u t u r e s , f o r w a r d and o p t i o n c o n t r a c t s are entered i n t o , the Pa r t n e r s h i p makes a 
d e t e r m i n a t i o n as t o whether the d e r i v a t i v e instrument q u a l i f i e s f o r d e s i g n a t i o n 
as a hedge. P r i o r t o March 31, 2002, the Pa r t n e r s h i p determined t h a t i t s 
d e r i v a t i v e i n s t r u m e n t s d i d not q u a l i f y as hedges and, as such, the changes i n 
f a i r values were recorded i n income. Beginning w i t h c o n t r a c t s entered i n t o 
subsequent t o March 31, 2002, a p o r t i o n of the d e r i v a t i v e instruments entered 
i n t o by the P a r t n e r s h i p have been designated and q u a l i f y as cash f l o w hedges. 
For d e r i v a t i v e instruments designated as cash f l o w hedges, the P a r t n e r s h i p 
f o r m a l l y assesses, both a t the hedge c o n t r a c t ' s i n c e p t i o n and on an ongoing 
b a s i s , whether the hedge c o n t r a c t i s h i g h l y e f f e c t i v e i n o f f s e t t i n g changes i n 
cash flows of hedged items. Changes i n the f a i r value of d e r i v a t i v e instruments 
designated as cash f l o w hedges are r e p o r t e d i n accumulated o t h e r comprehensive 
(loss)/income t o the e x t e n t e f f e c t i v e and r e c l a s s i f i e d i n t o cost of products 
s o l d d u r i n g t h e same p e r i o d i n which the hedged item a f f e c t s earnings. The 
mark-to-market gains or losses on i n e f f e c t i v e p o r t i o n s of hedges are recognized 
i n cost of pr o d u c t s s o l d immediately. Changes i n the f a i r value of d e r i v a t i v e 
i nstruments chat are not designated as hedges are recorded 
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i n c u r r e n t p e r i o d earnings w i t h i n o p e r a t i n g expenses. 

LONG-LIVED ASSETS. L o n g - l i v e d assets i n c l u d e : 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT. Property, p l a n t and equipment are s t a t e d a t cost. 
Expenditures f o r maintenance and r o u t i n e r e p a i r s are expensed as i n c u r r e d w h i l e 
betterments a r e c a p i t a l i z e d as a d d i t i o n s t o the r e l a t e d assets and de p r e c i a t e d 
over the asset's remaining u s e f u l l i f e . The Pa r t n e r s h i p c a p i t a l i z e s costs 
i n c u r r e d i n the a c q u i s i t i o n and m o d i f i c a t i o n of computer software used 
i n t e r n a l l y , i n c l u d i n g c o n s u l t i n g fees and costs of employees dedicated s o l e l y t o 
a s p e c i f i c p r o j e c t . At the time assets are r e t i r e d , or otherwise disposed o f , 
the asset and r e l a t e d accumulated d e p r e c i a t i o n are removed from the accounts, 
and any r e s u l t i n g g a i n or los s i s recognized w i t h i n o p e r a t i n g expenses. 
D e p r e c i a t i o n i s determined f o r r e l a t e d groups of assets under the s t r a i g h t - l i n e 
method based upon t h e i r e stimated u s e f u l l i v e s as f o l l o w s : 

B u i l d i n g s 40 Years 
B u i l d i n g and la n d improvements 10-40 Years 
T r a n s p o r t a t i o n equipment 4-30 Years 
Storage f a c i l i t i e s 20 Years 
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Equipment, p r i m a r i l y tanks and c y l i n d e r s 3-40 Years 
Computer software 3-7 Years 

The P a r t n e r s h i p reviews the r e c o v e r a b i l i t y of l o n g - l i v e d assets when 
circumstances occur t h a t i n d i c a t e t h a t the c a r r y i n g value of an asset group may 
not be r e c o v e r a b l e . Such circumstances i n c l u d e a s i g n i f i c a n t adverse change i n 
the manner i n which an asset group i s being used, c u r r e n t o p e r a t i n g losses 
combined w i t h a h i s t o r y of o p e r a t i n g losses experienced by the asset group or a 
c u r r e n t e x p e c t a t i o n t h a t an asset group w i l l be s o l d or otherwise disposed of 
before the end of i t s p r e v i o u s l y estimated u s e f u l l i f e . E v a l u a t i o n of p o s s i b l e 
impairment i s based on the Partnership's a b i l i t y t o recover the value of the 
asset group f r o m the f u t u r e undiscounted cash flows expected t o r e s u l t from the 
use and e v e n t u a l d i s p o s i t i o n of the asset group. I f the expected undiscounted 
cash flows are l e s s than the c a r r y i n g amount of such asset, an impairment l o s s 
i s recorded as the amount by which the c a r r y i n g amount of an asset group exceeds 
i t s f a i r v a l u e . The f a i r v alue of an asset group w i l l be measured using the best 
i n f o r m a t i o n a v a i l a b l e , i n c l u d i n g p r i c e s f o r s i m i l a r assets or the r e s u l t of 
using a d i s c o u n t e d cash f l o w v a l u a t i o n technique. 

GOODWILL. G o o d w i l l represents the excess of the purchase p r i c e over the f a i r 
value of net a s s e t s acquired. E f f e c t i v e September 30, 2001, the beginning of the 
Part n e r s h i p ' s 2002 f i s c a l year, the Pa r t n e r s h i p e l e c t e d t o e a r l y adopt the 
p r o v i s i o n s o f Statement of F i n a n c i a l Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 142, 
"Goodwill and Other I n t a n g i b l e Assets" ("SFAS 142"). As a r e s u l t of the adoption 
of SFAS 142, g o o d w i l l i s no longe r amortized t o expense, r a t h e r i s s u b j e c t t o an 
impairment review a t a r e p o r t i n g u n i t l e v e l , on an annual basis i n August of 
each year, or when an event occurs or circumstances change t h a t would i n d i c a t e 
p o t e n t i a l impairment. The P a r t n e r s h i p assesses the c a r r y i n g value of g o o d w i l l a t 
a r e p o r t i n g u n i t l e v e l based on an estimate of the f a i r value of the r e s p e c t i v e 
r e p o r t i n g u n i t - F a i r value of the r e p o r t i n g u n i t i s estimated using e i t h e r ( i ) a 
market value approach t a k i n g i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n the quoted market p r i c e of 
Common U n i t s ; or ( i i ) discounted cash f l o w analyses t a k i n g i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n 
estimated cash flows i n a ten-year p r o j e c t i o n p e r i o d and a t e r m i n a l value 
c a l c u l a t i o n a t the end of the p r o j e c t i o n p e r i o d . 

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS. Other i n t a n g i b l e assets c o n s i s t p r i m a r i l y of 
non-compete agreements which are amortized under the s t r a i g h t - l i n e method over 
the p e r i o d s o f the r e l a t e d agreements, ending p e r i o d i c a l l y between f i s c a l years 
2004 and 2011. 

ACCRUED INSURANCE. Accrued insurance represents the estimated costs of known and 
a n t i c i p a t e d o r unasserted claims under the P a r t n e r s h i p ' s g e n e r a l and product, 
workers' compensation and automobile insurance p o l i c i e s . Accrued insurance 
p r o v i s i o n s f o r unasserted claims a r i s i n g from unreported i n c i d e n t s are based on 
an a n a l y s i s o f h i s t o r i c a l c laims data. For each c l a i m , the Pa r t n e r s h i p records a 
s e l f - i n s u r a n c e p r o v i s i o n up t o the estimated amount of the probable c l a i m o r the 
amount of the d e d u c t i b l e , whichever i s lower, u t i l i z i n g a c t u a r i a l l y determined 
l o s s 
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development f a c t o r s a p p l i e d t o a c t u a l claims data. Claims are g e n e r a l l y s e t t l e d 
w i t h i n 5 years of o r i g i n a t i o n . 

INCOME TAXES. As discussed i n Note 1, the P a r t n e r s h i p E n t i t i e s c o n s i s t of two 
l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p s , the P a r t n e r s h i p and the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p , and f i v e 
c o r p o r a t e e n t i t i e s . For f e d e r a l and s t a t e income t a x purposes, the earnings 
a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the P a r t n e r s h i p and the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p are i n c l u d e d i n 
the tax r e t u r n s of the i n d i v i d u a l p a r t n e r s - As a r e s u l t , no r e c o g n i t i o n of 
income tax expense has been r e f l e c t e d i n the P a r t n e r s h i p 1 s c o n s o l i d a t e d 
f i n a n c i a l statements r e l a t i n g t o the earnings of the Pa r t n e r s h i p and the 
Operating P a r t n e r s h i p . The earnings a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the corporate e n t i t i e s are 
su b j e c t t o f e d e r a l and s t a t e income taxes. Accordingly, the Pa r t n e r s h i p ' s 
c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l statements r e f l e c t income tax expense r e l a t e d t o the 
corp o r a t e e n t i t i e s ' earnings. Net earnings f o r f i n a n c i a l statement purposes may 
d i f f e r s i g n i f i c a n t l y from taxable income r e p o r t a b l e t o U n i t h o l d e r s as a r e s u l t 
of d i f f e r e n c e s between the t a x basis and f i n a n c i a l r e p o r t i n g b a s i s of assets and 
l i a b i l i t i e s and the ta x a b l e income a l l o c a t i o n requirements under the P a r t n e r s h i p 
Agreement. 

Income taxes f o r the corporate e n t i t i e s are provi d e d based on the asset and 
l i a b i l i t y approach t o accounting f o r income taxes. Under t h i s method, d e f e r r e d 
ta x assets and l i a b i l i t i e s are recognized f o r the expected f u t u r e t a x 
consequences o f d i f f e r e n c e s between the c a r r y i n g amounts and the t a x bas i s of 
assets and l i a b i l i t i e s u s i n g enacted tax r a t e s i n e f f e c t f o r the year i n which 
the d i f f e r e n c e s are expected t o reverse. The e f f e c t on d e f e r r e d t a x assets and 
l i a b i l i t i e s o f a change i n tax r a t e s i s recognized i n income i n the p e r i o d when 
the change i s enacted. 

UNIT-BASED COMPENSATION. The P a r t n e r s h i p accounts f o r unit-based compensation i n 
accordance w i t h Accounting P r i n c i p l e s Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting f o r 
Stock Issued t o Employees", and r e l a t e d i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s . Upon award of 
r e s t r i c t e d u n i t s under the P a r t n e r s h i p 1 s R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan, unearned 
compensation e q u i v a l e n t t o the market p r i c e of the R e s t r i c t e d U n i t s on the date 
of g r a n t i s e s t a b l i s h e d as a r e d u c t i o n of p a r t n e r s 1 c a p i t a l . The unearned 
compensation i s amortized r a t a b l y t o expense over the r e s t r i c t e d p e r i o d s . The 
Pa r t n e r s h i p f o l l o w s the d i s c l o s u r e o n l y p r o v i s i o n of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting 
f o r Stock-Based Compensation 1 1 ("SFAS 123"). Pro forma net income and net income 
per Common U n i t under the f a i r value method of accounting f o r R e s t r i c t e d U n i t s 
under SFAS 123 would be the same as r e p o r t e d net income and net income per 
Common U n i t . 

COSTS AND EXPENSES. The cost of products s o l d r e p o r t e d i n the c o n s o l i d a t e d 
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statements of o p e r a t i o n s represents the weighted average u n i t cost of propane 
s o l d , i n c l u d i n g t r a n s p o r t a t i o n costs t o d e l i v e r product from the Partnership's 
supply p o i n t s t o storage or t o the Partnership's customer s e r v i c e centers. Cost 
of products s o l d a l s o i n c l u d e s the cost of appliances and r e l a t e d p a r t s s o l d or 
i n s t a l l e d by t h e P a r t n e r s h i p ' s customer s e r v i c e centers computed on a b a s i s t h a t 
approximates t h e average cost of the products. Cost of products s o l d i s r e p o r t e d 
e x c l u s i v e of any d e p r e c i a t i o n and a m o r t i z a t i o n as such amounts are r e p o r t e d 
s e p a r a t e l y w i t h i n the c o n s o l i d a t e d statements of o p e r a t i o n s . 

A l l o t h e r c o s t s of o p e r a t i n g the P a r t n e r s h i p ' s r e t a i l propane d i s t r i b u t i o n and 
appliance s a l e s and s e r v i c e o p e r a t i o n s are r e p o r t e d w i t h i n o p e r a t i n g expenses i n 
the c o n s o l i d a t e d statements of o p e r a t i o n s . These o p e r a t i n g expenses i n c l u d e the 
compensation and b e n e f i t s of f i e l d and d i r e c t o p e r a t i n g support personnel, costs 
of o p e r a t i n g and m a i n t a i n i n g the v e h i c l e f l e e t , overhead and ot h e r costs of the 
purchasing, t r a i n i n g and s a f e t y departments and ot h e r d i r e c t and i n d i r e c t costs 
of the P a r t n e r s h i p 1 s customer s e r v i c e c e n t e r s . 

A l l c o s t s of back o f f i c e support f u n c t i o n s , i n c l u d i n g compensation and b e n e f i t s 
f o r e x e c u t i v e s and ot h e r support f u n c t i o n s , as w e l l as ot h e r costs and expenses 
t o m a i n t a i n f i n a n c e and accounting, t r e a s u r y , l e g a l , human resources, c o r p o r a t e 
development and the i n f o r m a t i o n systems f u n c t i o n s are r e p o r t e d w i t h i n general 
and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e expenses i n the c o n s o l i d a t e d statements of o p e r a t i o n s . 
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NET INCOME PER UNIT. Basic net income per Common Un i t i s computed by d i v i d i n g 
net income, a f t e r deducting the General Partner's approximate 2% i n t e r e s t , by 
the weighted average number o f o u t s t a n d i n g Common u n i t s . D i l u t e d net income per 
Common U n i t i s computed by d i v i d i n g net income, a f t e r deducting the General 
Partner's approximate 2% i n t e r e s t , by the weighted average number of ou t s t a n d i n g 
Common Un i t s and time vested R e s t r i c t e d U n i t s granted under the 2000 R e s t r i c t e d 
U n i t Plan. I n computing d i l u t e d net income per Common U n i t , weighted average 
u n i t s o u t s t a n d i n g used t o compute basic net income per Common Un i t were 
increased by 136,000 u n i t s and 34,000 u n i t s f o r the years ended September 27, 
2003 and September 28, 2002, r e s p e c t i v e l y , t o r e f l e c t the p o t e n t i a l d i l u t i v e 
e f f e c t of the time vested R e s t r i c t e d U n i t s o u t s t a n d i n g using the t r e a s u r y stock 
method. Net income i s a l l o c a t e d t o the Common U n i t h o l d e r s and the General 
Partner i n accordance w i t h t h e i r r e s p e c t i v e P a r t n e r s h i p ownership i n t e r e s t s , 
a f t e r g i v i n g e f f e c t t o any p r i o r i t y income a l l o c a t i o n s f o r i n c e n t i v e 
d i s t r i b u t i o n s a l l o c a t e d t o the General Partner. 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME. The P a r t n e r s h i p r e p o r t s comprehensive (loss)/income (the 
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t o t a l of net income and a l l o t h e r non-owner changes i n p a r t n e r s ' c a p i t a l ) w i t h i n 
the c o n s o l i d a t e d statement of p a r t n e r s ' c a p i t a l - Comprehensive (loss)/income 
i n c l u d e s u n r e a l i z e d gains and losses on d e r i v a t i v e instruments accounted f o r as 
cash f l o w hedges and minimum pension l i a b i l i t y adjustments. 

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS. I n June 2002, the F i n a n c i a l Accounting 
Standards Board (the "FASB") issued SFAS No. 14 5, "Accounting f o r Costs 
Associated w i t h E x i t or Disposal A c t i v i t i e s " ("SFAS 146"). SFAS 146 r e q u i r e s 
companies t o rec o g n i z e costs associated w i t h e x i t or d i s p o s a l a c t i v i t i e s when 
they are i n c u r r e d r a t h e r than a t the date of a commitment t o an e x i t or d i s p o s a l 
p l a n . The p r o v i s i o n s of SFAS 146 are e f f e c t i v e f o r e x i t or d i s p o s a l a c t i v i t i e s 
i n i t i a t e d a f t e r December 31, 2002. The p r o v i s i o n s of t h i s standard w i l l be 
a p p l i e d by the P a r t n e r s h i p on an ongoing b a s i s , as a p p l i c a b l e . 

I n A p r i l 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 on 
D e r i v a t i v e Instruments and Hedging A c t i v i t i e s " ("SFAS 149") . SFAS 149 amends 
SFAS No. 133, "Accounting f o r D e r i v a t i v e Instruments and Hedging A c t i v i t i e s " and 
c l a r i f i e s f i n a n c i a l accounting and r e p o r t i n g f o r d e r i v a t i v e i nstruments, 
i n c l u d i n g c e r t a i n d e r i v a t i v e instruments embedded i n o t h e r c o n t r a c t s . This 
statement i s e f f e c t i v e f o r c o n t r a c t s entered i n t o or mo d i f i e d a f t e r June 30, 
2003, and f o r hedging r e l a t i o n s h i p s designated a f t e r June 30, 2003. The adoption 
of t h i s s t a n d a r d d i d not have a m a t e r i a l impact on the p a r t n e r s h i p ' s 
co n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n , r e s u l t s of op e r a t i o n s or cash flows-

I n May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounting f o r C e r t a i n F i n a n c i a l 
Instruments w i t h C h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of both L i a b i l i t i e s and Equity" ("SFAS 150"). 
SFAS 150 e s t a b l i s h e s standards f o r the c l a s s i f i c a t i o n and measurement of c e r t a i n 
f i n a n c i a l i n s t r u m e n t s w i t h c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of both l i a b i l i t i e s and e q u i t y , i t 
r e q u i r e s t h a t an i s s u e r c l a s s i f y a f i n a n c i a l i n s t r u m e n t t h a t i s w i t h i n i t s scope 
as a l i a b i l i t y (or an asset i n some circumstances). Many of these instruments 
were p r e v i o u s l y r e q u i r e d t o be c l a s s i f i e d as e q u i t y . This statement i s e f f e c t i v e 
f o r f i n a n c i a l i n s t r u m e n t s entered i n t o or m o d i f i e d a f t e r May 31, 2003, and 
otherwise i s e f f e c t i v e f o r the Partnership's f o u r t h q u a r t e r i n f i s c a l 2003. The 
adoption of t h i s standard d i d not have a m a t e r i a l impact on the P a r t n e r s h i p ' s 
c o n s o l i d a t e d f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n , r e s u l t s of op e r a t i o n s or cash f l o w s . 

I n January 2003, the FASB issued FASB I n t e r p r e t a t i o n No. 46, " C o n s o l i d a t i o n 
of V a r i a b l e I n t e r e s t E n t i t i e s " {"FIN 46"), an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of Accounting 
Research B u l l e t i n No. 51, "Consolidated F i n a n c i a l Statements." FIN 46 addresses 
c o n s o l i d a t i o n by business e n t e r p r i s e s of v a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t e n t i t i e s t h a t meet 
c e r t a i n c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s . The c o n s o l i d a t i o n requirements of FIN 4 6 apply 
immediately t o v a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t e n t i t i e s c r e a t e d a f t e r January 31, 2003. The 
c o n s o l i d a t i o n requirements apply t o v a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t e n t i t i e s c r e a t e d before 
February 1, 2003 i n the f i r s t f i s c a l year or i n t e r i m p e r i o d beginning a f t e r June 
15, 2003. However, i n October 2003, the FASB d e f e r r e d the e f f e c t i v e date f o r 
a p p l y i n g c e r t a i n p r o v i s i o n s 
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of FIN 46 and i n November 2003, issued an exposure d r a f t which would amend 
c e r t a i n p r o v i s i o n s of FIN 46. As a r e s u l t of the l a t e s t exposure d r a f t , the 
Pa r t n e r s h i p i s c u r r e n t l y e v a l u a t i n g the impact, i f any, t h a t FIN 46 or any 
f u t u r e amendment may have on i t s f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n and r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s . 

RECLASSIFICATIONS. C e r t a i n p r i o r p e r i o d amounts have been r e c l a s s i f i e d t o 
conform w i t h t h e c u r r e n t p e r i o d p r e s e n t a t i o n . 

3. DISTRIBUTIONS OF AVAILABLE CASH 

The P a r t n e r s h i p makes d i s t r i b u t i o n s t o i t s p a r t n e r s approximately 45 days a f t e r 
the end of each f i s c a l q u a r t e r of the Pa r t n e r s h i p i n an aggregate amount equal 
t o i t s A v a i l a b l e Cash f o r such q u a r t e r . A v a i l a b l e Cash, as d e f i n e d i n the Second 
Amended and Restated P a r t n e r s h i p Agreement, g e n e r a l l y means a l l cash on hand at 
the end of t h e r e s p e c t i v e f i s c a l q u a r t e r l e s s the amount of cash reserves 
e s t a b l i s h e d by the Board of Supervisors i n i t s reasonable d i s c r e t i o n f o r f u t u r e 
cash requirements. These reserves are r e t a i n e d f o r the proper conduct of the 
Part n e r s h i p ' s business, the payment of debt p r i n c i p a l and i n t e r e s t and f o r 
d i s t r i b u t i o n s d u r i n g the next f o u r q u a r t e r s . D i s t r i b u t i o n s by the P a r t n e r s h i p i n 
an amount equal t o 100% of i t s A v a i l a b l e Cash w i l l g e n e r a l l y be made 98.29% t o 
the Common U n i t h o l d e r s and 1.71% t o the General Partner, s u b j e c t t o the payment 
of i n c e n t i v e d i s t r i b u t i o n s t o the General Partner t o the e x t e n t the q u a r t e r l y 
d i s t r i b u t i o n s exceed a t a r g e t d i s t r i b u t i o n of $0.55 per Common U n i t . 

As d e f i n e d i n the Second Amended and Restated P a r t n e r s h i p Agreement, the General 
Partner has c e r t a i n I n c e n t i v e D i s t r i b u t i o n Rights ("IDRs") which represent an 
i n c e n t i v e f o r the General Partner t o increase d i s t r i b u t i o n s t o Common 
Un i t h o l d e r s i n excess of the t a r g e t q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n of $0.55 per Common 
U n i t . With r e g a r d t o the f i r s t $0.55 of q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n s p a i d i n any 
given q u a r t e r , 98.29% of the A v a i l a b l e Cash i s d i s t r i b u t e d t o the Common 
Un i t h o l d e r s and 1.71% i s d i s t r i b u t e d t o the General Partner (98.11% and 1.89%, 
r e s p e c t i v e l y , p r i o r t o the June 2003 p u b l i c o f f e r i n g described i n Note 13). w i t h 
regard t o the balance of q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n s i n excess of the $0.55 per 
Common U n i t t a r g e t d i s t r i b u t i o n , 85% of the A v a i l a b l e Cash i s d i s t r i b u t e d t o the 
Common U n i t h o l d e r s and 15% i s d i s t r i b u t e d t o the General Partner. 

The f o l l o w i n g summarizes the q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n s per Common Un i t d e c l a r e d 
and p a i d i n resp e c t of each of the q u a r t e r s i n the t h r e e f i s c a l years i n the 
p e r i o d ended September 27, 2003: 

<TABLEi 
<CAPTI0N> 
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September 27, 
2003 

F i r s t Q u a r t e r 
Second Qu a r t e r 
T h i r d Q u a r t e r 
Fourth Q u a r t e r 

$ 0,5750 
0.5750 
0.5875 
0.5875 

:/TABLE: 

September 28, 
2002 

$ 0,5625 
0 .5625 
0 .5750 
0 .5750 
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September 29, 

2 0 0 1 

<C> 
$ 0.5375 
0 .5500 
0.5500 
0.5625 

On October 23, 2003, the P a r t n e r s h i p d e c l a r e d a q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n of 
$0.5875 per Common U n i t , or $2.35 on an annualized b a s i s , f o r the f o u r t h q u a r t e r 
of f i s c a l 2003 t h a t was p a i d on November 10, 2003 t o holders of r e c o r d on 
November 3, 2003- This q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n i ncludes i n c e n t i v e d i s t r i b u t i o n s 
payable t o the General Partner t o the e x t e n t the q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n exceeds 
$0.55 per Common U n i t . 
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD 

E f f e c t i v e September 30, 2001, the beginning of the Partnership's 2002 f i s c a l 
year, the P a r t n e r s h i p e l e c t e d t o e a r l y adopt the p r o v i s i o n s of SFAS 142 which 
m o d i f i e s the f i n a n c i a l accounting and r e p o r t i n g f o r g o o d w i l l and o t h e r 
i n t a n g i b l e a s s e t s , i n c l u d i n g the requirement t h a t g o o d w i l l and c e r t a i n 
i n t a n g i b l e a s s e t s no longer be amortized. T h i s new standard a l s o r e q u i r e s a 
t r a n s i t i o n a l impairment review f o r g o o d w i l l , as w e l l as an annual impairment 
review, t o be performed on a r e p o r t i n g u n i t b a s i s . As a r e s u l t of the adoption 
of SFAS 142, a m o r t i z a t i o n expense f o r the year ended September 28, 2002 
decreased by $7,416 compared t o the year ended September 29, 2001 due t o the 
lac k of a m o r t i z a t i o n expense r e l a t e d t o g o o d w i l l . Aside from t h i s change i n 
accounting f o r g o o d w i l l , no o t h e r change i n accounting f o r i n t a n g i b l e assets was 
r e q u i r e d as a r e s u l t of the adoption of SFAS 142 based on the nature of the 
Partnership's i n t a n g i b l e assets. i n accordance w i t h SFAS 142, the P a r t n e r s h i p 
completed i t s annual impairment review and, as the f a i r values of i d e n t i f i e d 
r e p o r t i n g u n i t s exceeded the r e s p e c t i v e c a r r y i n g values, g o o d w i l l was not 
considered i m p a i r e d as o f September 27, 2003 nor as of September 28, 2002. 

The f o l l o w i n g t a b l e r e f l e c t s the e f f e c t of the adoption of SFAS 142 on net 
income and net income per Common U n i t as i f SFAS 142 had been i n e f f e c t f o r the 
periods presented: 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTION> 
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SepCember 27, September 28, September 29, 

<S> 

2003 2002 2001 

Net income: 

As r e p o r t e d 
G o o d w i l l a m o r t i z a t i o n 

<C> 
S 48,669 $ 

> 
53,524 

<C> 
$ 53,510 

7 , 416 

As a d j u s t e d $ 48,669 S 53,524 $ 60,926 

Basic n e t income per Common U n i t : 
As r e p o r t e d 
Goodwi11 amort i za t i on 

$ 1. 37 $ 2 . 12 S 2.14 
0.29 

As a d j u s t e d $ 1. 37 S 2 . 12 $ 2 .43 

D i l u t e d n et income per Common U n i t : 
As r e p o r t e d 
G o o d w i l l a m o r t i z a t i o n 

$ 1. 36 $ 2 . 12 $ 2 . 14 
0.29 

As a d j u s t e d $ 1- 36 s 2 .12 S 2 .43 

</TABLE> 

Other i n t a n g i b l e assets a t September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002 c o n s i s t 
p r i m a r i l y of non-compete agreements w i t h a gross c a r r y i n g amount of $3,608 and 
$4,240, r e s p e c t i v e l y , and accumulated a m o r t i z a t i o n of $2,573 and $2,766, 
r e s p e c t i v e l y . These non-compete agreements are amortized under the s t r a i g h t - l i n e 
method over t h e p e r i o d s of the agreements, ending p e r i o d i c a l l y between f i s c a l 
years 2004 and 2011. Aggregate a m o r t i z a t i o n expense r e l a t e d t o o t h e r i n t a n g i b l e 
assets f o r the years ended September 27, 2003, September 28, 2002 and September 
29, 2001 was $423, $498 and $563, r e s p e c t i v e l y . 

Aggregate a m o r t i z a t i o n expense r e l a t e d t o ot h e r i n t a n g i b l e assets f o r each of 
the f i v e succeeding f i s c a l years as of September 27, 2003 i s as f o l l o w s : 2004 -
$352; 2005 - $299; 2006 - $228; 2007 - $76 and 2008 - $40. 
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For the year ended September 27, 2003, the net c a r r y i n g amount o f g o o d w i l l 
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decreased by $24 as a r e s u l t of the sale of c e r t a i n assets d u r i n g the p e r i o d . 

5. SELECTED BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION 

I n v e n t o r i e s c o n s i s t of the f o l l o w i n g : 

September 27, September 28, 
2003 2002 

Propane $ 34,033 $ 28,799 
Appliances 7,477 7, 568 

$ 41,510 $ 36,367 

The P a r t n e r s h i p enters i n t o c o n t r a c t s t o buy propane f o r supply purposes. Such 
c o n t r a c t s g e n e r a l l y have one year terms s u b j e c t t o annual renewal, w i t h propane 
costs based on market p r i c e s a t the date of d e l i v e r y . Property, p l a n t and 
equipment c o n s i s t of the f o l l o w i n g : 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

<S> 
Land and improvements 
B u i l d i n g s and improvements 
T r a n s p o r t a t i o n equipment 
Storage f a c i l i t i e s 
Equipment, p r i m a r i l y tanks and c y l i n d e r s 
Computer software 
C o n s t r u c t i o n i n progress 

Less: accumulated d e p r e c i a t i o n 

September 27, September 28, 
2003 2002 

<C> <C> 
$ 27,134 $ 28,043 

59,543 57,245 
36,677 46,192 
59,554 59,069 

370,494 362,001 
12,122 3, 806 
2, 531 11,935 

568,055 568,291 
255,265 237,282 

$ 312,790 $ 331,009 

</TABLE: 
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D e p r e c i a t i o n expense f o r the years ended September 27, 2003, September 28, 2002 
and September 29, 2001 amounted t o $27,097, $27,857 and $28,517, r e s p e c t i v e l y . 

6. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

Long-term borrowings c o n s i s t of the f o l l o w i n g : 
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<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

September 27, 
2003 
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September 28, 
2002 

<S> 
Senior Notes, 7.54%, due June 30, 2011 
Senior Notes, 7.37%, due June 30, 2012 
Note payable, 8%, due i n annual i n s t a l l m e n t s through 2006 
Amounts o u t s t a n d i n g under A c q u i s i t i o n F a c i l i t y 

of Revolving C r e d i t Agreement 
Other l o n g - t e r m l i a b i l i t i e s 

Less; c u r r e n t p o r t i o n 

<C> 
$ 340,000 

42,500 
1, 322 

383,826 
42,911 

$ 340,915 

<C> 
$ 382,500 

42,500 
1, 698 

46,000 
71 

472,769 
88,939 

$ 383,830 

</TABLE> 

On March 5, 1996, pursuant t o a Senior Note Agreement [the "1996 Senior Note 
Agreement") t h e Operating P a r t n e r s h i p issued $425,000 of Senior Notes (the "1996 
Senior Notes") w i t h an annual i n t e r e s t r a t e of 7.54%. The Operating 
P a r t n e r s h i p ' s o b l i g a t i o n s under the 1996 Senior Note Agreement are unsecured and 
rank on an equal and r a t a b l e b a s i s w i t h the Operating Partnership's o b l i g a t i o n s 
under the 2002 Senior Note Agreement and the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement 
discussed below. The 1996 Senior Notes w i l l mature June 30, 2011, and r e q u i r e 
semiannual i n t e r e s t payments which commenced June 30, 1996. The 1996 Senior Note 
Agreement r e q u i r e s t h a t the p r i n c i p a l be p a i d i n equal annual payments of 
$42,500 s t a r t i n g J u l y 1, 2002. 

Pursuant t o t h e Par t n e r s h i p ' s i n t e n t i o n t o r e f i n a n c e the f i r s t annual p r i n c i p a l 
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payment of $42,500, the Operating P a r t n e r s h i p executed on A p r i l 19, 2002 a Note 
Purchase Agreement f o r the p r i v a t e placement of 10-year 7.37% Senior Notes due 
June 30, 2012 (the "2002 Senior Note Agreement"). On J u l y 1, 2002, the 
Par t n e r s h i p r e c e i v e d $42,500 from the issuance of the Senior Notes under the 
2002 Senior Note Agreement and used the funds t o pay the f i r s t annual p r i n c i p a l 
payment of $42,500 due under the 1996 Senior Note Agreement. The Operating 
Partnership's o b l i g a t i o n s under the 2002 Senior Note Agreement are unsecured and 
rank on an equal and r a t a b l e b a s i s w i t h the Operating Partnership's o b l i g a t i o n s 
under the 1995 Senior Note Agreement and the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement. Rather 
than r e f i n a n c e the second annual p r i n c i p a l payment of $42,500 due under the 1996 
Senior Note Agreement, the P a r t n e r s h i p e l e c t e d t o repay t h i s p r i n c i p a l payment 
on June 3 0, 2003. 

The P a r t n e r s h i p ' s previous Revolving C r e d i t Agreement, which provided a $75,000 
working c a p i t a l f a c i l i t y and a $50,000 a c q u i s i t i o n f a c i l i t y , was scheduled t o 
mature on May 31, 2003. On May 8, 2003, the Pa r t n e r s h i p completed the Second 
Amended and Restated C r e d i t Agreement (the "Revolving C r e d i t Agreement") which 
extends the p r e v i o u s Revolving C r e d i t Agreement u n t i l May 31, 2006. The 
Revolving C r e d i t Agreement provides a $75,000 working c a p i t a l f a c i l i t y and an 
a c q u i s i t i o n f a c i l i t y of $25,000. Borrowings under the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement 
bear i n t e r e s t a t a r a t e based upon e i t h e r LIBOR p l u s a margin, Wachovia N a t i o n a l 
Bank's prime r a t e o r the Federal Funds r a t e p l u s 1/2 of l % . An annual fee 
ranging from .375% t o .50%, based upon c e r t a i n f i n a n c i a l t e s t s , i s payable 
q u a r t e r l y whether or not borrowings occur. These terms are s u b s t a n t i a l l y the 
same as the terms under the pr e v i o u s Revolving C r e d i t Agreement. I n connection 
w i t h the co m p l e t i o n of the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement, the Pa r t n e r s h i p r e p a i d 
$21,000 of o u t s t a n d i n g borrowings under the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement. On June 
19, 2003, the P a r t n e r s h i p r e p a i d the remaining o u t s t a n d i n g balance of $25,000 
under the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement. As of September 27, 2003 there were no 
borrowings o u t s t a n d i n g under the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement. As of September 28, 
2002, $46,000 was o u t s t a n d i n g under the a c q u i s i t i o n f a c i l i t y of the pr e v i o u s 
Revolving C r e d i t Agreement and t h e r e were no borrowings under the working 
c a p i t a l f a c i l i t y . 

As of September 27, 2003, the P a r t n e r s h i p had borrowing c a p a c i t y of $75,000 
under the w o r k i n g c a p i t a l f a c i l i t y and $25,000 under the a c q u i s i t i o n f a c i l i t y o f 
the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement. The weighted average i n t e r e s t r a t e a s sociated 
w i t h borrowings under the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement was 3.42%, 3.67% and 6.98% 
f o r f i s c a l 2003, 2002 and 2001, r e s p e c t i v e l y . 
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The 1996 S e n i o r Note Agreement, the 2002 Senior Note Agreement and the R e v o l v i n g 
C r e d i t Agreement c o n t a i n v a r i o u s r e s t r i c t i v e and a f f i r m a t i v e covenants 
a p p l i c a b l e t o the Opera t ing P a r t n e r s h i p ; i n c l u d i n g (a) maintenance o f c e r t a i n 
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f i n a n c i a l t e s t s , i n c l u d i n g , but not l i m i t e d t o , a leverage r a t i o l e s s than 5.0 
t o 1 and an i n t e r e s t coverage r a t i o i n excess of 2.50 t o 1, (b) r e s t r i c t i o n s on 
the i n c u r r e n c e of a d d i t i o n a l indebtedness, and (c) r e s t r i c t i o n s on c e r t a i n 
l i e n s , i nvestments, guarantees, loans, advances, payments, mergers, 
c o n s o l i d a t i o n s , d i s t r i b u t i o n s , sales of assets and other t r a n s a c t i o n s . During 
December 2002, the P a r t n e r s h i p amended the 1996 Senior Note Agreement t o ( i ) 
e l i m i n a t e an a d j u s t e d net worth f i n a n c i a l t e s t t o be c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the 2002 
Senior Note Agreement and Revolving C r e d i t Agreement, and { i i ) r e q u i r e a 
leverage r a t i o of less than 5.25 t o 1 when the underfunded p o r t i o n of the 
Partnership's pension o b l i g a t i o n s i s used i n the computation of the r a t i o . The 
Pa r t n e r s h i p was i n compliance w i t h a l l covenants and terms of the 1996 Senior 
Note Agreement, the 2 002 Senior Note Agreement and the Revolving C r e d i t 
Agreement as o f September 27, 2003. 

Debt o r i g i n a t i o n costs r e p r e s e n t i n g the costs i n c u r r e d i n connection w i t h the 
placement o f , and the subsequent amendment t o , the Partnership's Senior Notes 
and Revolving C r e d i t Agreement were c a p i t a l i z e d w i t h i n o t h e r assets and are 
being a m o r t i z e d on a s t r a i g h t - l i n e b a s i s over the term of the r e s p e c t i v e debt 
agreements. Other assets a t September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002 i n c l u d e 
debt o r i g i n a t i o n costs w i t h a net c a r r y i n g amount of $5,960 and $5,926, 
r e s p e c t i v e l y . Aggregate a m o r t i z a t i o n expense r e l a t e d t o d e f e r r e d debt 
o r i g i n a t i o n c o s t s i n c l u d e d w i t h i n i n t e r e s t expense f o r the years ended September 
27, 2003, September 28, 2002 and September 29, 2001 was $1,291, $1,338 and 
$2,006, r e s p e c t i v e l y . 

The aggregate amounts of long-term debt m a t u r i t i e s subsequent t o September 27, 
2003 are as f o l l o w s : 2004 - $42,911; 2005 - $42,940; 2006 - $42,975; 2007 -
$42,500; 2008 - $42,500; and, t h e r e a f t e r - $170,000. 
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7. RESTRICTED UNIT PLANS 

I n November 2000, the P a r t n e r s h i p adopted the Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 
2000 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan (the "2000 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan") which a u t h o r i z e s the 
issuance of Common U n i t s w i t h an aggregate value of $10,000 (487,804 Common 
Uni t s valued a t the i n i t i a l p u b l i c o f f e r i n g p r i c e of $20.50 per u n i t ) t o 
exe c u t i v e s , managers and ot h e r employees of the Pa r t n e r s h i p . R e s t r i c t e d U n i t s 
issued under t h e 2000 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan vest over time w i t h 25% of the Common 
Uni t s v e s t i n g a t the end of each of the t h i r d and f o u r t h a n n i v e r s a r i e s of the 
issuance date and the remaining 50% of the Common U n i t s v e s t i n g a t the end of 
the f i f t h a n n i v e r s a r y of the issuance date. The 2000 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan 
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p a r t i c i p a n t s a r e not e l i g i b l e t o re c e i v e q u a r t e r l y d i s t r i b u t i o n s or vote t h e i r 
r e s p e c t i v e R e s t r i c t e d u n i t s u n t i l vested. R e s t r i c t i o n s a l s o l i m i t the sale or 
t r a n s f e r of t h e u n i t s d u r i n g the r e s t r i c t e d p e r i o d s . The value of the R e s t r i c t e d 
U n i t i s e s t a b l i s h e d by the market p r i c e of the Common Un i t a t the date o f g r a n t . 
R e s t r i c t e d U n i t s are sub j e c t t o f o r f e i t u r e i n c e r t a i n circumstances as d e f i n e d 
i n the 2000 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan. 
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I n 1996, the P a r t n e r s h i p adopted the 1996 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Award Plan (the "1996 
R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan") which a u t h o r i z e d the issuance of Common Un i t s w i t h an 
aggregate v a l u e of $15,000 (731,707 Common Un i t s valued a t the i n i t i a l p u b l i c 
of f e r i n g p r i c e of $2 0.50 per u n i t ) t o executives, managers and Ele c t e d 
Supervisors o f the Pa r t n e r s h i p . According t o the change of c o n t r o l p r o v i s i o n s of 
the 1996 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan, a l l o u t s t a n d i n g R e s t r i c t e d Units on the c l o s i n g 
date of the R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n i n May 1999 vested and converted i n t o Common U n i t s . 
At the date o f the R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n , i n d i v i d u a l s who became members of the 
General P a r t n e r surrendered r e c e i p t of 5 53,896 Common U n i t s , r e p r e s e n t i n g 
s u b s t a n t i a l l y a l l of t h e i r vested R e s t r i c t e d U n i t s , i n exchange f o r the r i g h t t o 
p a r t i c i p a t e i n a new compensation d e f e r r a l p l a n of the Pa r t n e r s h i p and the 
Operating P a r t n e r s h i p (see Note 8, Compensation D e f e r r a l Plan). 

F o l l o w i n g i s a summary of a c t i v i t y i n the R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plans: 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

Un i t s 

Weighted Average 
Grant Date F a i r 
Value Per u n i t 

<s> 
OUTSTANDING SEPTEMBER 29, 2001 
Awarded 
F o r f e i t e d 

OUTSTANDING SEPTEMBER 23, 2002 
Awarded 
F o r f e i t e d 

OUTSTANDING SEPTEMBER 27, 2003 

<C> 
48,960 
66,298 
(3,272) 

111,986 
44 ,288 
(5,726) 

150,548 

<C> 
$ 20.66 

26.63 
20.66) 

24 . 19 
27 . 74 
(20 . 66) 

$ 25.37 

:/TABLE> 

During the years ended September 27, 2003, September 28, 2002 and September 29, 
2001, the P a r t n e r s h i p amortized $863, $603 and $228, r e s p e c t i v e l y , of unearned 
compensation a s s o c i a t e d w i t h the 2000 R e s t r i c t e d U n i t Plan, net of f o r f e i t u r e s . 
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8. COMPENSATION DEFERRAL PLAN 

E f f e c c i v e May 26, 1999, i n connection w i t h the Partnership's R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n , 
the P a r t n e r s h i p adopted the Compensation D e f e r r a l Plan (the " D e f e r r a l Plan") 
which p r o v i d e d f o r e l i g i b l e employees of the P a r t n e r s h i p t o de f e r r e c e i p t of a l l 
or a p o r t i o n o f the vested R e s t r i c t e d U n i t s granted under the 1996 R e s t r i c t e d 
U n i t Plan i n exchange f o r the r i g h t t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n and r e c e i v e c e r t a i n 
payments under the D e f e r r a l Plan. The D e f e r r a l Plan a l s o allows e l i g i b l e 
employees t o de f e r r e c e i p t of Common Un i t s subsequently granted by the 
Pa r t n e r s h i p under the D e f e r r a l Plan. The P a r t n e r s h i p granted Common U n i t s under 
the D e f e r r a l Plan on l y once d u r i n g f i s c a l 2000. The Common Un i t s granted under 
the D e f e r r a l Plan and r e l a t e d P a r t n e r s h i p d i s t r i b u t i o n s were s u b j e c t t o 
f o r f e i t u r e p r o v i s i o n s such t h a t (a) 100% of the Common Units would be f o r f e i t e d 
i f the grantee ceased t o be 
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employed p r i o r t o the t h i r d a n n i v e r s a r y of the R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n , (b) 75% would 
be f o r f e i t e d i f the grantee ceased t o be employed a f t e r the t h i r d a n n i v e r s a r y 
but p r i o r t o t h e f o u r t h a n n i v e r s a r y of the R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n and (c) 50% would be 
f o r f e i t e d i f t h e grantee ceased t o be employed a f t e r the f o u r t h a n n i v e r s a r y but 
p r i o r t o t h e f i f t h a n n i v e r s a r y of the R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n . A l l f o r f e i t u r e 
p r o v i s i o n s lapsed i n August of 2002. Upon issuance of Common Un i t s under the 
D e f e r r a l Plan, unearned compensation e q u i v a l e n t t o the market value of the 
Common Un i t s a t the date of grant i s recorded. The unearned compensation i s 
amortized i n accordance w i t h the D e f e r r a l Plan's f o r f e i t u r e p r o v i s i o n s . The 
unamortized unearned compensation value i s shown as a r e d u c t i o n of p a r t n e r s ' 
c a p i t a l i n the accompanying c o n s o l i d a t e d balance sheets. 

Senior management of the P a r t n e r s h i p surrendered 553,896 Common U n i t s , a t the 
date of the R e c a p i t a l i z a t i o n , i n t o the D e f e r r a l Plan. The P a r t n e r s h i p deposited 
i n t o a t r u s t on b e h a l f of these i n d i v i d u a l s 553,896 Common U n i t s . During f i s c a l 
2000, c e r t a i n members of management d e f e r r e d r e c e i p t of an a d d i t i o n a l 42,925 
Common Un i t s granted under the D e f e r r a l Plan, w i t h a f a i r value of $19.91 per 
Common Un i t a t the date of g r a n t , by d e p o s i t i n g the u n i t s i n t o the t r u s t . 

I n January 2003, i n accordance w i t h the terms of the D e f e r r a l Plan, 297,310 of 
the d e f e r r e d u n i t s were d i s t r i b u t e d t o the members of the General Partner and 
may now be v o t e d and/or f r e e l y traded. C e r t a i n members of management e l e c t e d t o 
f u r t h e r d e f e r r e c e i p t of t h e i r d e f e r r e d u n i t s ( t o t a l i n g 299,511 Common Units) 
u n t i l January 2008. As of September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002, there were 
299,511 and 596,821 Common U n i t s , r e s p e c t i v e l y , h e l d i n t r u s t under the D e f e r r a l 
Plan. The va l u e of the Common Un i t s deposited i n the t r u s t and the r e l a t e d 
d e f e r r e d compensation l i a b i l i t y i n the amount of $5,795 and $11,567 as of 
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September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002, respectively, are reflected i n the 
accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets as components of partners 1 

c a p i t a l . During the second quarter of f i s c a l 2003, the Partnership recorded a 
$5,772 reduction i n the deferred compensation l i a b i l i t y and a corresponding 
reduction in the value of Common Units held i n t r u s t , both within partners' 
c a p i t a l , r e l a t e d to the value of Common Units d i s t r i b u t e d from the t r u s t . 

9. PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS 

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN. The Partnership has a noncontributory defined benefit 
pension plan which was o r i g i n a l l y designed to cover a l l e l i g i b l e employees of 
the Partnership who met certain requirements as to age and length of service. 
Effective January 1, 1998, the Partnership amended i t s noncontributory defined 
benefit pension plan to provide for a cash balance format as compared to a f i n a l 
average pay format which was i n e f f e c t p r i o r to January 1, 1998. The cash 
balance format i s designed to evenly spread the growth of a participant's earned 
retirement benefit throughout his/her career as compared to the f i n a l average 
pay format, under which a greater portion of employee benefits were earned 
toward the l a t t e r stages of one's career. Effective January 1, 2 00 0, 
p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the noncontributory defined benefit pension plan was li m i t e d to 
e l i g i b l e p a r t i c i p a n t s i n existence on that date with no new participants 
e l i g i b l e to p a r t i c i p a t e i n the plan. On September 20, 2002, the Board of 
Supervisors approved an amendment to the defined benefit pension plan whereby, 
eff e c t i v e January 1, 2003, future service credits ceased and e l i g i b l e employees 
w i l l now receive interest credits only toward t h e i r ultimate retirement benefit. 

Contributions, as needed, are made to a t r u s t maintained by the Partnership. The 
tru s t ' s assets consist p r i m a r i l y of common stock, f i x e d income securities and 
real estate. Contributions to the defined benefit pension plan are made by the 
Partnership i n accordance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 
1974 minimum funding standards plus additional amounts which may be determined 
from time to time. There were no minimum funding requirements for the defined 
benefit pension plan f o r f i s c a l 2003, 2002 or 2001. Recently, there has been 
increased scrutiny over cash balance defined benefit pension plans and re s u l t i n g 
l i t i g a t i o n regarding such plans sponsored by other companies. These developments 
may result in l e g i s l a t i v e changes impacting cash balance defined benefit pension 
plans i n the future. While no such l e g i s l a t i v e changes have been adopted, and i f 
adopted the impact on the Partnership's defined benefit pension plan i s not 
certain, there can be no assurances that future l e g i s l a t i v e developments w i l l 
not have an adverse ef f e c t on the Partnership's results of operations or cash 
flows. 
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DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN. The Pa r t n e r s h i p has a d e f i n e d c o n t r i b u t i o n p l a n 
coverirtg most erriployees. ETnployer c o n t r i b u t i o n s and costs are a percent of the 
p a r t i c i p a t i n g employees' compensation, s u b j e c t t o the achievement of annual 
performance t a r g e t s o f the Pa r t n e r s h i p . These c o n t r i b u t i o n s t o t a l e d $1,305, $947 
and $4,560 f o r the years ended September 27, 2003, September 28, 2002 and 
September 29, 2001, r e s p e c t i v e l y . 

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS. The Pa r t n e r s h i p p r o v i d e s 
p o s t r e t i r e m e n t h e a l t h care and l i f e insurance b e n e f i t s f o r c e r t a i n r e t i r e d 
employees. P a r t n e r s h i p employees h i r e d p r i o r t o J u l y 1993 and t h a t r e t i r e d p r i o r 
t o March 1998 are e l i g i b l e f o r such b e n e f i t s i f they reached a s p e c i f i e d 
r e t i r e m e n t age w h i l e working f o r the P a r t n e r s h i p , E f f e c t i v e January 1, 2000, the 
Pa r t n e r s h i p t e r m i n a t e d i t s p o s t r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t p l a n f o r a l l e l i g i b l e 
employees r e t i r i n g a f t e r March 1, 1998. A l l a c t i v e and e l i g i b l e employees who 
were t o r e c e i v e b e n e f i t s under the p o s t r e t i r e m e n t p l a n subsequent t o March 1, 
1998, were p r o v i d e d a s e t t l e m e n t by i n c r e a s i n g t h e i r accumulated b e n e f i t s under 
the cash balance pension p l a n , noted above. The Pa r t n e r s h i p does not fund i t s 
p o s t r e t i r e m e n t h e a l t h care and l i f e insurance b e n e f i t plans. 

The f o l l o w i n g t a b l e provides a r e c o n c i l i a t i o n of the changes i n the b e n e f i t 
o b l i g a t i o n s and the f a i r value o f the p l a n assets f o r each of the years ended 
September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002 and a statement of the funded s t a t u s 
f o r both y e a r s : 

<: TABLE* 
<CAPTION> 

RECONCILIATION OF BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS: 
<S> 
B e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n a t beginning of year 
Service cost 
I n t e r e s t cost 
A c t u a r i a l l o s s / (gain) 
C u r t a i l m e n t g a i n 
B e n e f i t s p a i d 

B e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n a t end of year 

Pension B e n e f i t s 

2003 2002 

^C> 
$ 174,698 

629 
11,376 
4, 066 

(16,593) 

$ 174,176 

<C> 
$ 167,187 

4 , 445 
11,581 
8, 700 
(1,812) 

(15,403) 

$ 1 7 4 , 6 9 1 

Other 
P o s t r e t i r e m e n t B e n e f i t s 

2003 

$ 4 1 , 1 3 6 
17 

2 , 6 4 1 
14 , 115) 

U , 4 9 7 ) 

$ 3 7 , 1 8 2 

2002 

<C> 
$ 37,559 

16 
2, 574 
3 , 852 

(2,865 

$ 41,136 

RECONCILIATION OF FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS: 
F a i r value of p l a n assets a t beginning of year 
Act u a l r e t u r n on plan assets 

$ 121,534 
17,099 

$ 143,116 
(6,179) 

$ - $ -
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Employer c o n c r i b u t i o n s 
B e n e f i t s p a i d 

10,000 
(16,593) (15,403) 

2, 497 
(2,497) 
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2, 865 
(2,865 

F a i r value of p l a n assets a t end of year $ 132,040 $ 121,534 s - $ -

FUNDED STATUS: 
Funded s t a t u s a t end of year 
Unrecognized p r i o r s e r v i c e cost 
Net unrecognized a c t u a r i a l losses 
Accumulated o t h e r comprehensive (loss) 

S (42,136) 

80,139 
(80,139) 

S (53,164) 

85,077 
(85,077) 

$ (37,182) 
(2 ,306) 
3 , 603 

$ (41,136 
(3,026 
8, 060 

Accrued b e n e f i t l i a b i l i t y 
Less: Current p o r t i o n 

(42,136) (53,164) (35,885) 
2 , 450 

(36,102 
2, 818 

Non-current b e n e f i t l i a b i l i t y $ (42,136) $ (53,164) $ (33,435) $ (33,234 

:/TABLE> 

The funded status of the Partnership's defined benefit pension plan continues to 
be impacted by the turbulent c a p i t a l markets a f f e c t i n g the market value of our 
pension asset p o r t f o l i o and by the low interest rate environment affec t i n g the 
actuarial value of the projected benefit obligations. In an e f f o r t to minimize 
future increases i n the pension plan 
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benefit obligations, the Partnership adopted an amendment to the defined benefit 
pension plan which ceased future service credits e f f e c t i v e January 1, 2003. This 
amendment resulted i n a curtailment gain of $1,093 included within the net 
periodic pension cost for the year ended September 28, 2002. Additionally, 
during f i s c a l 2003, the Partnership made a voluntary contribution of $10,000 to 
the plan, thereby taking proactive steps to improve the funded status of the 
plan and reduce the minimum pension l i a b i l i t y . 

The following table provides the components of net periodic 
the years ended September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002: 

benefit costs f o r 

<TABLE* 
<CAPTI0N> 

Pension Benefits 
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<s> 
Service cost 
I n t e r e s t cost 
Expected r e t u r n on p l a n assets 
A m o r t i z a t i o n of p r i o r s e r v i c e cost 
C u r t a i l m e n t g a i n 
Recognized net a c t u a r i a l l o s s 

Net p e r i o d i c b e n e f i t c o s t 

2003 

<C> 
$ 529 

11,376 
:i2,161) 

4, 066 

S 3., 911 

2002 

<C> 
S 4,445 
11,581 
(14,974) 

(210) 
(1,093) 
1, 912 

§ 1,661 

2003 

<C> 
5 17 

2, 641 

(720) 

342 
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2002 

<C> 
$ 16 

2, 574 

(720) 

41 

$ 1,311 

</TABLE> 

Pension b e n e f i t expense was $113 ( c o n s i s t i n g of s e r v i c e cost of $5,024, i n t e r e s t 
c o st of $11,034, expected r e t u r n on p l a n assets of $15,735 and a m o r t i z a t i o n of 
p r i o r s e r v i c e cost of $210) and ot h e r p o s t r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t costs were $2,341 
( c o n s i s t i n g o f s e r v i c e cost of $123, i n t e r e s t cost of $2,794, a m o r t i z a t i o n of 
p r i o r s e r v i c e cost of $721 and recognized net a c t u a r i a l l o s s of $145) f o r the 
year ended September 29, 2001. The assumptions used i n the measurement of the 
Par t n e r s h i p ' s b e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n s are shown i n the f o l l o w i n g t a b l e ; 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

Weighted-average discount r a t e 
Average r a t e o f compensation increase 
Weighted-average expected long-term 

r a t e of r e t u r n on p l a n assets 

</TABLE> 

Pension B e n e f i t s 

September 
27, 2003 

<C> 
6.00% 

n/a 

7.75% 

September 
28, 2002 

6 .75% 
3 .50% 

8.50% 

Other 
P o s t r e t i r e m e n t B e n e f i t s 

September 
27, 2003 

<C> 
6.00% 

September 
28, 2002 

<c> 
6 .75% 

The f o l l o w i n g assumptions were used i n the measurement of the Pa r t n e r s h i p ' s 
b e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n s as of September 29, 2001: weighted-average discount r a t e of 
7.25%, average r a t e of compensation increase of 3.50% and weighted-average 
expected long-term r a t e of r e t u r n on p l a n assets of 9.50%. The accumulated 
p o s t r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n was based on a 13% increase i n the cost of 
covered h e a l t h care b e n e f i t s at September 27, 2003 and a 12% increase i n the 
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cose oE covered h e a l t h care b e n e f i t s a t September 28, 2002. The 13% increase i n 
h e a l t h care c o s t s assumed a t September 27, 2003 i s assumed t o decrease g r a d u a l l y 
t o 5.00% i n f i s c a l 2013 and t o remain a t t h a t l e v e l t h e r e a f t e r . I n c r e a s i n g the 
assumed h e a l t h care cost t r e n d r a t e s by 1.0% i n each year would increase the 
Part n e r s h i p ' s b e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n as of September 27, 2003 by approximately 
$1,354 and the aggregate of s e r v i c e and i n t e r e s t components of net p e r i o d i c 
p o s t r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t expense f o r the year ended September 27, 2 003 by 
approximately $105. Decreasing the assumed h e a l t h care cost t r e n d r a t e s by 1.0% 
i n each year would decrease the Par t n e r s h i p ' s b e n e f i t o b l i g a t i o n as of September 
27, 2003 by approximately $1,222 and the aggregate s e r v i c e and i n t e r e s t 
components o f net p e r i o d i c p o s t r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t expense f o r the year ended 
September 27, 2003 by approximately $94. 
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES. The P a r t n e r s h i p purchases propane 
a t v a r i o u s p r i c e s t h a t are e v e n t u a l l y s o l d t o i t s customers, exposing the 
Pa r t n e r s h i p t o market f l u c t u a t i o n s i n the p r i c e of propane. A c o n t r o l 
environment has been e s t a b l i s h e d which i n c l u d e s p o l i c i e s and procedures f o r r i s k 
assessment and the approval, r e p o r t i n g and m o n i t o r i n g of d e r i v a t i v e instruments 
and hedging a c t i v i t i e s . The P a r t n e r s h i p c l o s e l y monitors the p o t e n t i a l impacts 
of commodity p r i c e changes and, where a p p r o p r i a t e , u t i l i z e s commodity f u t u r e s , 
forward and o p t i o n c o n t r a c t s t o hedge i t s commodity p r i c e r i s k , t o p r o t e c t 
margins and t o ensure supply d u r i n g periods of high demand. D e r i v a t i v e 
i n s t r u m e n t s a r e used t o hedge a p o r t i o n of the P a r t n e r s h i p 1 s f o r e c a s t e d 
purchases f o r no more than one year i n the f u t u r e . 

SFAS No. 133 "Accounting f o r D e r i v a t i v e instruments and Hedging A c t i v i t i e s , " as 
amended by SFAS No. 137, SFAS No. 138 and SFAS No. 149 ("SFAS 133") r e q u i r e s a l l 
d e r i v a t i v e s ( w i t h c e r t a i n e x c e p t i o n s ) , whether designated i n hedging 
r e l a t i o n s h i p s o r not, t o be recorded on the c o n s o l i d a t e d balance sheet at f a i r 
value. SFAS 133 r e q u i r e s t h a t changes i n the d e r i v a t i v e instrument's f a i r v alue 
be recognized c u r r e n t l y i n earnings unless s p e c i f i c hedge accounting c r i t e r i a 
are met. S p e c i a l accounting f o r q u a l i f y i n g hedges, e i t h e r f a i r value hedges or 
cash f l o w hedges, a l l o w s a d e r i v a t i v e ' s gains and losses t o o f f s e t r e l a t e d 
r e s u l t s on the hedged i t e m i n the statement of op e r a t i o n s , and r e q u i r e s t h a t a 
company f o r m a l l y document, designate and assess the e f f e c t i v e n e s s of 
t r a n s a c t i o n s t h a t r e c e i v e hedge accounting. F a i r value hedges are d e r i v a t i v e 
f i n a n c i a l i n s t r u m e n t s t h a t hedge the exposure t o changes i n the f a i r value o f an 
asset or l i a b i l i t y or an i d e n t i f i e d p o r t i o n t h e r e o f a t t r i b u t a b l e t o a p a r t i c u l a r 
r i s k . Cash f l o w hedges are d e r i v a t i v e f i n a n c i a l instruments t h a t hedge the 
exposure t o v a r i a b i l i t y i n expected f u t u r e cash flows a t t r i b u t a b l e t o a 
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p a r t i c u l a r r i s k . 

Since March 31, 2002, the Partnership's futures and forward contracts qu a l i f y 
and have been designated as cash flow hedges and, as such, the e f f e c t i v e 
portions of changes i n the f a i r value of these derivative instruments are 
recorded i n other comprehensive (loss)/income ("OCI") and are recognized i n cost 
of products sold when the hedged item impacts earnings. As of September 27, 
2003, unrealized gains on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges 
in the amount of $1,129 were included i n OCI and are expected to be recognized 
i n earnings during the next 12 months as the hedged forecasted transactions 
occur. However, due to the v o l a t i l i t y of the commodities market, the 
corresponding value i n OCI i s subject to change p r i o r to i t s impact on earnings. 

Option contracts are not c l a s s i f i e d as hedges and, as such, changes i n the f a i r 
value of these derivative instruments are recognized within operating expenses 
i n the consolidated statement of operations as they occur. Additionally, p r i o r 
to March 31, 2 002, the Partnership's futures and forward contracts were not 
designated as cash flow hedges and the changes i n f a i r value of these 
instruments were recognized i n earnings as they occurred. For the year ended 
September 27, 2003, operating expenses included unrealized losses i n the amount 
of $1,500 compared to unrealized gain i n the amount of $5,356 for the year ended 
September 28, 2002, a t t r i b u t a b l e to changes i n the f a i r value of derivative 
instruments not designated as hedges. 

CREDIT RISK. The Partnership's p r i n c i p a l customers are r e s i d e n t i a l and 
commercial end users of propane served by approximately 320 customer service 
centers i n 40 states. No single customer accounted for more than 10% of revenues 
during f i s c a l 2003, 2002 or 2001 and no concentration of receivables exists at 
the end of f i s c a l 2003 or 2002. 

Futures contracts are traded on and guaranteed by the New York Merchantile 
Exchange ("NYMEX") and as a r e s u l t , have minimal credit r i s k . Futures contracts 
traded with brokers of the NYMEX require daily cash settlements i n margin 
accounts. The Partnership i s subject to credit r i s k with forward and option 
contracts entered i n t o with various t h i r d parties to the extent the 
counterparties do not perform. The Partnership evaluates the f i n a n c i a l condition 
of each counterparty with which i t conducts business and establishes c r e d i t 
l i m i t s to reduce exposure to c r e d i t r i s k based on non-performance. The 
Partnership does not require c o l l a t e r a l to support the contracts. 
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS. The f a i r value of cash and cash equivalents 
are not ma te r i a l l y d i f f e r e n t from t h e i r carrying amounts because of the 
short-term nature of these instruments. The f a i r value of the Revolving Credit 
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Agreement approximates the c a r r y i n g value since the i n t e r e s t r a t e s are 
p e r i o d i c a l l y a d j u s t e d t o r e f l e c t market c o n d i t i o n s . Based on the c u r r e n t r a t e s 
o f f e r e d t o t h e P a r t n e r s h i p f o r debt of the same remaining m a t u r i t i e s , the 
c a r r y i n g v a l u e of the P a r t n e r s h i p ' s Senior Notes approximates t h e i r f a i r market 
value. 

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Commitments. The Pa r t n e r s h i p leases c e r t a i n p r o p e r t y , p l a n t and equipment, 
i n c l u d i n g p o r t i o n s of the Partnership's v e h i c l e f l e e t , f o r v a r i o u s periods under 
noncancelable leases. Rental expense under o p e r a t i n g leases was $24,337, $24,005 
and $23,354 f o r the years ended September 27, 2003, September 28, 2002 and 
September 29, 2001, r e s p e c t i v e l y . 

Future minimum r e n t a l commitments under noncancelable o p e r a t i n g lease agreements 
as of September 27, 2003 are as f o l l o w s : 

F i s c a l Year 

2004 $ 17,796 
2005 12,868 
2006 9,959 
2007 5,860 
2008 and t h e r e a f t e r 6,410 

CONTINGENCIES. As discussed i n Note 2, the Partne r s h i p i s s e l f - i n s u r e d f o r 
general and p r o d u c t , workers' compensation and automobile l i a b i l i t i e s up t o 
predetermined amounts above which t h i r d p a r t y insurance a p p l i e s . At September 
27, 2003 and September 28, 2002, the Pa r t n e r s h i p had accrued insurance 
l i a b i l i t i e s o f $28,639 and $26,969, r e s p e c t i v e l y , r e p r e s e n t i n g the t o t a l 
est imated l o s s e s under these s e l f - insurance programs. The P a r t n e r s h i p i s a l s o 
i n v o l v e d i n v a r i o u s l e g a l a c t i o n s which have a r i s e n i n the normal course of 
business, i n c l u d i n g those r e l a t i n g t o commercial t r a n s a c t i o n s and product 
l i a b i l i t y - Management b e l i e v e s , based on the advice of l e g a l counsel, t h a t the 
u l t i m a t e r e s o l u t i o n of these matters w i l l not have a m a t e r i a l adverse e f f e c t on 
the P a r t n e r s h i p ' s f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n or f u t u r e r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s , a f t e r 
c o n s i d e r i n g i t s s e l f - i n s u r a n c e l i a b i l i t y f o r known and unasserted s e l f - i n s u r a n c e 
c l a i m s . 

The P a r t n e r s h i p i s s u b j e c t t o v a r i o u s f e d e r a l , s t a t e and l o c a l environmental, 
h e a l t h and s a f e t y laws and r e g u l a t i o n s . Generally, these laws impose l i m i t a t i o n s 
on the d i s c h a r g e of p o l l u t a n t s and e s t a b l i s h standards f o r the h a n d l i n g of s o l i d 
and hazardous wastes. These laws i n c l u d e the Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and L i a b i l i t y Act 
("CERCLA"), t h e Clean A i r Act, the Occupational Safety and Heal t h Act, the 
Emergency Planning and Community Right t o Know Act, the Clean water Act and 
comparable s t a t e s t a t u t e s . CERCLA, a l s o known as the "Superfund" law, imposes 
j o i n t and s e v e r a l l i a b i l i t y w i t h o u t regard t o f a u l t or the l e g a l i t y of the 
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o r i g i n a l conduct on c e r t a i n classes of persons t h a t are considered t o have 
c o n t r i b u t e d t o the release or threatened release of a "hazardous substance" i n t o 
the environment. Propane i s not a hazardous substance w i t h i n the meaning of 
CERCLA. However, the P a r t n e r s h i p owns r e a l p r o p e r t y where such hazardous 
substances may e x i s t . 

Future developments, such as s t r i c t e r environmental, h e a l t h or s a f e t y laws and 
r e g u l a t i o n s thereunder, could a f f e c t P a r t n e r s h i p o p e r a t i o n s . The P a r t n e r s h i p 
a n t i c i p a t e s t h a t compliance w i t h or l i a b i l i t i e s under environmental, h e a l t h and 
s a f e t y laws and r e g u l a t i o n s , i n c l u d i n g CERCLA, w i l l not have a m a t e r i a l adverse-
e f f e c t on the P a r t n e r s h i p . To the e x t e n t t h a t t h e r e are any environmental 
l i a b i l i t i e s unknown t o the P a r t n e r s h i p or environmental, h e a l t h or s a f e t y laws 
or r e g u l a t i o n s are made more s t r i n g e n t , t h e r e can be no assurance t h a t the 
Partnership's r e s u l t s of ope r a t i o n s w i l l not be m a t e r i a l l y and adversely 
a f f e c t e d . 
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12. GUARANTEES 

FASB F i n a n c i a l I n t e r p r e t a t i o n No. 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Di s c l o s u r e 
Requirements f o r Guarantees, I n c l u d i n g I n d i r e c t Guarantees of Indebtedness of 
Others," expands the e x i s t i n g d i s c l o s u r e requirements f o r guarantees and 
r e q u i r e s r e c o g n i t i o n of a l i a b i l i t y f o r the f a i r value of guarantees issued 
a f t e r December 31, 2 002. The Pa r t n e r s h i p has r e s i d u a l value guarantees 
a s s o c i a t e d w i t h c e r t a i n of i t s o p e r a t i n g leases, r e l a t e d p r i m a r i l y t o 
t r a n s p o r t a t i o n equipment, w i t h remaining lease periods scheduled t o e x p i r e 
p e r i o d i c a l l y through f i s c a l 2 010. Upon completion of the lease p e r i o d , the 
Pa r t n e r s h i p guarantees t h a t the f a i r value of the equipment w i l l equal o r exceed 
the guaranteed amount, or the P a r t n e r s h i p w i l l pay the l e s s o r the d i f f e r e n c e . 
Although the f a i r value of equipment a t the end of i t s lease term has 
h i s t o r i c a l l y exceeded the guaranteed amounts, the maximum p o t e n t i a l amount of 
aggregate f u t u r e payments the Pa r t n e r s h i p c o u l d be r e q u i r e d t o make under these 
l e a s i n g arrangements, assuming the equipment i s deemed worthless a t the end of 
the lease term, i s approximately $14,355. Of t h i s amount, the f a i r value of 
r e s i d u a l value guarantees f o r o p e r a t i n g leases entered i n t o a f t e r December 31, 
2002 was $2,067 which i s r e f l e c t e d i n o t h e r l i a b i l i t i e s , w i t h a corresponding 
amount i n c l u d e d w i t h i n o t h e r assets, i n the accompanying c o n s o l i d a t e d balance 
sheet as of September 27, 2003. 

13. PUBLIC OFFERINGS 

On June 18, 2003, the P a r t n e r s h i p s o l d 2,282,500 Common U n i t s i n a p u b l i c 
o f f e r i n g a t a p r i c e of $29.00 per Common U n i t r e a l i z i n g proceeds of $62,879, net 

!mp://www.sec.gov/Ai-chives/edgar/data/1005210/000i00521003000038/0001005210-03-000038.txt 1/8/2004 



Page 106 of 126 
of underwric i n g commissions and ot h e r o f f e r i n g expenses. On June 26, 2003, 
f o l l o w i n g the u n d e r w r i t e r s ' f u l l e x e r c i s e of t h e i r o v e r - a l l o t m e n t o p t i o n , the 
Par t n e r s h i p s o l d an a d d i t i o n a l 342,375 Common Un i t s a t $29.00 per Common U n i t , 
g e n e r a t i n g a d d i t i o n a l net proceeds of $9,307. The aggregate net proceeds of 
$72,186 were used f o r general p a r t n e r s h i p purposes, i n c l u d i n g working c a p i t a l 
and the repayment o f o u t s t a n d i n g borrowings under the Revolving C r e d i t Agreement 
and the second annual p r i n c i p a l payment of $42,500 due under the 1996 Senior 
Note Agreement on June 30, 2003. These t r a n s a c t i o n s increased the t o t a l number 
of Common U n i t s o u t s t a n d i n g t o 27,256,162. As a r e s u l t of the Pub l i c O f f e r i n g , 
the combined gene r a l p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t i n the Pa r t n e r s h i p was reduced from 1.89% 
to 1.71% w h i l e the Common u n i t h o l d e r i n t e r e s t i n the Partne r s h i p increased from 
98.11% t o 98.29%. 

On October 17, 2000, the Pa r t n e r s h i p s o l d 2,175,000 Common Un i t s i n a p u b l i c 
o f f e r i n g a t a p r i c e of $21,125 per Common U n i t r e a l i z i n g proceeds of $43,500, 
net of u n d e r w r i t i n g commissions and o t h e r o f f e r i n g expenses. On November 14, 
2000, f o l l o w i n g the u n d e r w r i t e r ' s p a r t i a l e x e r c i s e of i t s o v e r - a l l o t m e n t o p t i o n , 
the P a r t n e r s h i p s o l d an a d d i t i o n a l 177,700 Common Units a t the same p r i c e , 
g e n e r a t i n g a d d i t i o n a l net proceeds of $3,600. The aggregate net proceeds of 
$47,100 were a p p l i e d t o reduce the Partnership's o u t s t a n d i n g Revolving C r e d i t 
Agreement borrowings. These t r a n s a c t i o n s increased the t o t a l number of Common 
Uni t s o u t s t a n d i n g t o 24,631,287. 

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSITION 

I n l i n e w i t h the Par t n e r s h i p ' s s t r a t e g y of d i v e s t i n g o p e r a t i o n s i n slower 
growing or n o n - s t r a t e g i c markets i n an e f f o r t t o i d e n t i f y o p p o r t u n i t i e s t o 
op t i m i z e the r e t u r n on assets employed, the Pa r t n e r s h i p s o l d nine customer 
s e r v i c e c e n t e r s d u r i n g f i s c a l 2 003 f o r net cash proceeds of approximately 
$7,197. The P a r t n e r s h i p recorded a g a i n on sale of approximately $2,483 d u r i n g 
f i s c a l 2003 which has been accounted f o r w i t h i n d i s c o n t i n u e d o p e r a t i o n s pursuant 
t o SFAS No. 144, "Accounting f o r the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived 
Assets." P r i o r p e r i o d r e s u l t s of o p e r a t i o n s a t t r i b u t a b l e t o these nine customer 
s e r v i c e c e n t e r s were not s i g n i f i c a n t and, as such, p r i o r p e r i o d r e s u l t s have not 
been r e c l a s s i f i e d t o remove f i n a n c i a l r e s u l t s from c o n t i n u i n g o p e r a t i o n s . 

On January 31, 2002, the P a r t n e r s h i p s o l d i t s 170 m i l l i o n g a l l o n propane storage 
f a c i l i t y i n H a t t i e s b u r g , M i s s i s s i p p i , which was considered a n o n - s t r a t e g i c 
asset, f o r n e t cash proceeds of approximately $7,988, r e s u l t i n g i n a g a i n on 
sale of appr o x i m a t e l y $6,768. 

F-23 
<PAGE> 

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
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On November 10, 2003, the Partnership announced that i t had entered i n t o an 
asset purchase agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") to acquire substantially a l l 
of the assets of Agway Energy Products, LLC, Agway Energy Services PA, Inc. and 
Agway Energy Services, Inc. ( c o l l e c t i v e l y "Agway Energy"), a l l of which are 
wholly owned subsidiaries of Agway, Inc., for t o t a l cash consideration of 
approximately $206,000, subject to certain purchase price adjustments. Agway, 
Inc. i s presently a debtor-in-possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code 
pending before the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern D i s t r i c t of 
New York. Agway Energy i s not a Chapter 11 debtor. The Purchase Agreement was 
f i l e d with the United States Bankruptcy Court and on November 24, 2003, the 
Bankruptcy Court approved Agway, inc.'s motion t o establish b i d procedures tor 
the sale. In addition, the transaction has been approved by the Partnership's 
Board of Supervisors. Closing on the sale under the Purchase Agreement i s 
subject to the approval by the united States Bankruptcy Court following the 
conclusion of an auction process, to be conducted pursuant to the j u r i s d i c t i o n 
of the Bankruptcy Court, and i s subject to regulatory approvals. The transaction 
w i l l be accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. 

Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the Partnership would purchase a l l of 
the operations of Agway Energy, including 139 d i s t r i b u t i o n and sales centers 
primarily i n New York, Pennsylvania, New Jersey and Vermont. Agway Energy, based 
in Syracuse, New York, markets and di s t r i b u t e s propane, fu e l o i l , gasoline and 
diesel fuels and i n s t a l l s and services a wide variety of home comfort equipment, 
p a r t i c u l a r l y i n the area of heating, v e n t i l a t i o n and a i r conditioning. For the 
year ended June 30, 2003 Agway Energy provided service to more than 400,000 
customers across a l l lines of business and sold approximately 106.3 m i l l i o n 
gallons of propane and 356.8 m i l l i o n gallons of fuel o i l , gasoline and diesel 
fuel to r e t a i l customers for re s i d e n t i a l , commercial, i n d u s t r i a l and 
ag r i c u l t u r a l applications. While the Purchase Agreement has been reviewed and 
accepted by the Bankruptcy Court, there can be no assurance that the Partnership 
w i l l u l t i m a t e l y be the successful bidder at the auction. 

m 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

To the Stockholders of 
Suburban Energy Services Group LLC: 

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets present f a i r l y , i n a l l material 
respects, the f i n a n c i a l position of Suburban Energy Services Group LLC at 
September 27, 2003 and September 28, 2002 i n conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted i n the United States of America. These f i n a n c i a l 
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statemenes are the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the Company's management; our 
re s p o n s i b i l i t y i s to express an opinion on these fi n a n c i a l statements based on 
our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements i n accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted i n the United States of America, which 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the balance sheets are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures i n 
the balance sheets, assessing the accounting principles used and s i g n i f i c a n t 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall balance sheet 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Florham Park, NJ 
October 23, 2003 m 
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SUBURBAN ENERGY SERVICES GROUP LLC 

BALANCE SHEETS 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI0N> 

September September 
27, 2003 28, 2002 

ASSETS 
Current assets : 
<S> <C> <C> 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,886 $ 4,363 
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T o t a l c u r r e n t assets 
Investment i n Suburban Propane P a r t n e r s , L,.P. 
Goodwill, net 

T o t a l assets 

2 , 886 

3,112,560 

$ 4 , 681,929 

4 , 363 
l , ^ ^ ,003 
3,112,560 

$ 5,040,926 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
T o t a l l i a b i l i t i e s 

Stockholders' e q u i t y 
Common s t o c k , $1 par value, 2,000 shares issued and ou t s t a n d i n g 
A d d i t i o n a l p a i d i n c a p i t a l 
Retained earnings 

T o t a l s t o c k h o l d e r s ' e q u i t y 

T o t a l l i a b i l i t i e s and st o c k h o l d e r s ' e q u i t y 

</TABLE* 

The accompanying notes are an i n t e g r a l p a r t of these balance sheets. 

2, 000 
1,853,333 
2 , 826,596 

4,681,929 

$ 4,681,929 

2, 000 
3,405,108 
1,633,818 

5, 040,926 

$ 5,040,926 
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SUBURBAN ENERGY SERVICES GROUP LLC 

NOTES TO BALANCE SHEETS 

1 . ORGANIZATION ,AND FORMATION 

Suburban Energy Services Group LLC (the "Company") was formed on October 26, 
1998 as a l i m i t e d l i a b i l i t y company pursuant t o the Delaware L i m i t e d L i a b i l i t y 
Company Act. The Company was formed t o purchase the general p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t s i n 
Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. (the "Partnership") from Suburban Propane GP, 
i n c . (the "Former General P a r t n e r " ) , a wholly-owned i n d i r e c t s u b s i d i a r y of 
Mill e n n i u m Chemicals I n c . , and become the successor general p a r t n e r . On May 26, 
1999, the Company purchased a 1% general p a r t n e r i n t e r e s t i n the P a r t n e r s h i p and 
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a 1.0101% general 
Partnership. 

partner in te res t i n Suburban Propane, L .P . , the Operating 
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The Partnership i s a publicly-traded master l i m i t e d partnership whose common 
units are l i s t e d on the New York Stock Exchange and i s engaged i n the r e t a i l and 
wholesale marketing of propane and related appliances and services. As a res u l t 
of two public offerings by the Partnership on October 17, 2000 and June 18, 
2003, the Company's interest i n the Partnership was reduced to .701%. The 
Company's i n t e r e s t i n Suburban Propane, L.P. was not affected. 

2 . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

ACCOUNTING PERIOD. The Company's 
nearest to September 30. 

accounting period ends on the las t Saturday 

USE OF ESTIMATES. The preparation of fi n a n c i a l statements i n conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that a f f e c t the reported amounts of assets and l i a b i l i t i e s and 
disclosure of contingent assets and l i a b i l i t i e s at the date of the f i n a n c i a l 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could d i f f e r from those estimates. 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. The Company considers a l l highly l i q u i d debt 
instruments purchased with an o r i g i n a l maturity of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. The carrying amount approximates f a i r value because of the 
short maturity of these instruments. 

INVESTMENT IN SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. As previously noted, the Company 
acquired a combined 2% general partner interest i n the Partnership which was 
subsequently reduced to 1.71%. The Company accounts for i t s investment under the 
equity method of accounting whereby the Company recognizes i n income i t s share 
of net income of Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. consolidated net income (loss) 
and reduces i t s investment balance to the extent of partnership d i s t r i b u t i o n s 
the Company receives from Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. 

GOODWILL. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price for the general 
partner i n t e r e s t s i n the Partnership over the carrying value of the General 
Partner's c a p i t a l account reflected on the books of Suburban Propane Partners, 
L.P. on the date of acquisition. 

The Company test s goodwill for impairment on an annual basis using a two-step 
impairment t e s t . The f i r s t step compares the f a i r value of the Company to the 
carrying value of the company. I f the carrying value of the Company exceeds the 
f a i r value of the Company, a second step i s performed comparing the implied f a i r 
value of the Company with the carrying amount of the Company's goodwill to 
determine the amount of goodwill impairment, i f any. Based on the Company's 
annual goodwill impairment test, goodwill was not considered impaired as of 
September 27, 2003. 
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INCOME TAXES. For Federal and s t a t e income tax purposes, the earnings and losses 
a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the Company are i n c l u d e d i n the t a x r e t u r n s of the i n d i v i d u a l 
s t o c k h o l d e r s . As a r e s u l t , no r e c o g n i t i o n of income taxes has been r e f l e c t e d i n 
the accompanying balance sheets. 
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RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS. I n January 2003, the F i n a n c i a l Accounting 
Standards Board {"FASB") issued FASB I n t e r p r e t a t i o n No. 46, "C o n s o l i d a t i o n of 
V a r i a b l e I n t e r e s t E n t i t i e s " ("FIN 46"), an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of Accounting Research 
B u l l e t i n No. 51, "Consolidated F i n a n c i a l Statements." FIN 46 addresses 
c o n s o l i d a t i o n by business e n t e r p r i s e s of v a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t e n t i t i e s t h a t meet 
c e r t a i n c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s . The c o n s o l i d a t i o n requirements of FIN 46 apply 
immediately t o v a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t e n t i t i e s c r e a t e d a f t e r January 31, 2003. The 
c o n s o l i d a t i o n requirements apply t o v a r i a b l e i n t e r e s t e n t i t i e s created b e f o r e 
February 1, 2003 i n the f i r s t f i s c a l year or i n t e r i m p e r i o d beginning a f t e r June 
15, 2003. However, i n October 2003, the FASB d e f e r r e d the e f f e c t i v e date f o r 
a p p l y i n g c e r t a i n p r o v i s i o n s of FIN 46 and i n November 2003, issued an exposure 
d r a f t which would amend c e r t a i n p r o v i s i o n s of FIN 46. As a r e s u l t of the l a t e s t 
exposure d r a f t , the Company i s c u r r e n t l y e v a l u a t i n g the impact, i f any, t h a t FIN 
46 or any f u t u r e amendment may have on i t s f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n . 
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SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Page 

hup://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgai-/data/1005210/000100521003000038/0001005210-03-000038. txt 1/8/2004 



Page 113 on26 

Schedule I I V a l u a t i o n and Q u a l i f y i n g Accounts - Years Ended 
September 27, 2003, September 28, 2002 and 
September 29, 2001 S-2 

S-l 
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SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 
( i n thousands) 

<TABLE:> 
<CAPTION> 

Balance a t Charged Balance 
Beginning t o Costs and Other a t End 
of Period Expenses A d d i t i o n s Deductions of Period 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 29, 2001 
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<s> 
Allowance f o r d o u b t f u l accounts 

<C> 
S 2,975 

<C> 
$ 5,32! 

<C> 
$ -

<C> 
$ (4,311) $ 3,992 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 28, 2002 

Allowance f o r d o u b t f u l accounts $ 3,992 $ 1,147 S - S (3,245) S 1,894 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 27, 2003 

Allowance f o r d o u b t f u l accounts 

</TABLE> 

$ 1,894 S 3,315 S - S (2,690) S 2,519 

S-2 

</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT> 
<TYPE>EX-10 
<SEQUENCE>2 
<FILENAME>sublOkcreditagreeex.txt 
<DESCRIPTION>SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. CREDIT AGREEMENT 
<TEXT> 

EXHIBIT 10.27 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT ( t h i s "Amendment") dated as of November 4, 2003 i s 
entered i n t o by and among SUBURBAN PROPANE, L.P., a Delaware l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p 
(the "Borrower"), c e r t a i n of the Lenders who are p a r t y t o the C r e d i t Agreement 
r e f e r r e d t o below and WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as A d m i n i s t r a t i v e 
Agent (the " A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Agent"). 
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StaCement of Purpose 

Pursuant to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of 
May 8, 2003 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified, the 
"Credit Agreement") by and among the Borrower, the lenders party thereto, the 
Administrative Agent, and Fleet National Bank, as Syndication Agent, the Lenders 
have agreed to make, and have made, certain extensions of credit to the 
Borrower. 
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The Borrower has requested that the Required Lenders (a) consent to the 
purchase by the Borrower of substantially a l l of the assets of the Sellers and 
certain other transactions, each as more s p e c i f i c a l l y described on Annex I 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (such transactions, 
c o l l e c t i v e l y , the "Transactions") and (b) amend Section 11.l of the Credit 
Agreement as provided herein. In addition, following the consummation of the 
Acquisition, the Borrower w i l l make Restricted Payments to the Parent at such 
times and in such amounts as are necessary for the Parent to make payments of 
pr i n c i p a l , i n t e r e s t and fees due on the Indebtedness incurred by the Parent i n 
connection w i t h the Acquisition and any renewals or refinancings of such 
Indebtedness ( c o l l e c t i v e l y , the "MLP Debt Service"). Subject to the terms and 
conditions set f o r t h herein, the Required Lenders are w i l l i n g to consent to the 
Transactions, the payment of the MLP Debt Service and the amendment to Section 
11.1 of the Credit Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, such parties 
hereby agree as follows: 

Section l . Definitions. A l l capitalized terms used and not defined herein 
or Annex I s h a l l have the meanings given thereto i n the Credit Agreement. 

Section 2. Consents and Amendment. 

(a) Consent to the Transactions. Pursuant to Section 13.11 of the Credit 
Agreement and ef f e c t i v e as of the date upon which the conditions specified i n 
Section 4 hereof are s a t i s f i e d , the Required Lenders hereby consent to the 
Transactions, notwithstanding the terms of the cr e d i t Agreement to the contrary. 

(b) Consent to the MLP Debt Service Payments. Pursuant to Section 13.11 of 
the Credit Agreement and ef f e c t i v e as of the date upon which the conditions 
specified in Section 4 hereof are s a t i s f i e d , the Required Lenders hereby consent 
to the Borrower making Restricted Payments to the Parent for the MLP Debt 
Service, notwithstanding the terms of Sections 10.6(a) or 10.7 of the Credit 
Agreement to the contrary; provided that a l l Restricted Payments, including, 
without 

• 
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l i m i t a t i o n , such MLP Debt Service, shall remain subject to the l i m i t a t i o n s and 
requirements set f o r t h i n the proviso of Section 10.6 of the Credit Agreement. 

(c) Amendment to Credit Agreement. Section 11.1 of the Credit Agreement 
[Events of Default) i s hereby amended by amending and restating clause (f) of 
such Section as set f o r t h below: 

" [ f ) Indebtedness Cross-Default. The Parent, the Borrower or any of 
th e i r Subsidiaries shall ( i ) default i n the payment of any Indebtedness 
(other than that evidenced by the Notes or any Reimbursement Obligation; 
but including, without l i m i t a t i o n , the Indebtedness evidenced by the Senior 
Notes or any Refinancing Notes), the aggregate outstanding amount of which 
Indebtedness i s i n excess of $10,000,000, beyond the period of grace i f 
any, provided i n the instrument or agreement under which such indebtedness 
was created, or ( i i ) default i n the observance or performance of any other 
agreement or condition r e l a t i n g to any Indebtedness (other than that 
evidenced by the Notes or any Reimbursement Obligation; but including, 
without l i m i t a t i o n , the Indebtedness evidenced by the Senior Notes or any 
Refinancing Notes) the aggregate outstanding amount of which Indebtedness 
is i n excess of $10,000,000, or contained i n any instrument or agreement 
evidencing, securing or r e l a t i n g thereto or any other event shall occur or 
condition e x i s t , the effect of which default or other event or condition i s 
to cause, or to permit the holder or holders of such Indebtedness (or a 
trustee or agent on behalf of such holder or holders) to cause, with the 
giving of notice i f required, any such indebtedness to become due p r i o r to 
i t s stated maturity (any applicable grace period having expired)." 

Section 3. Covenant of the Borrower. Notwithstanding the terms of Section 
8.7 of the Credit Agreement to the contrary, the parties hereto agree that the 
Borrower s h a l l have t h i r t y (30) days following the consummation of the 
Transactions t o comply with the terms of such Section 8.7 with respect to any 
new Subsidiary created i n connection with the Transactions. 

Section 4. Conditions of Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become 
ef f e c t i v e upon the delivery to the Administrative Agent of (a) t h i s Amendment 
executed by the Required Lenders and the Borrower and (b) a c e r t i f i c a t e of a 
Responsible O f f i c e r demonstrating compliance, on a pro forma basis a f t e r giving 
e f f e c t to the Transactions, with the covenants contained i n A r t i c l e IX of the 
Credit Agreement recomputed as of the las t day of the most recently ended f i s c a l 
quarter of the Borrower and i t s Subsidiaries as i f the Transactions had occurred 
on the f i r s t day of such period, together with the calculations demonstrating 
such compliance. 

Section 5. Limited Effect. Except as expressly provided herein, the Credit 
Agreement and the Loan Documents shall remain unmodified and i n f u l l force and 
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effect:. This Amendment shall not be deemed (a) to be a waiver of, or consent to, 
a modification or amendment of, any other term or condition of the Credit 
Agreement or any other Loan Document or [b) to prejudice any other r i g h t or 
rig h t s which the Administrative Agent or the Lenders may now have or may have i n 
the future under or i n connection with the Credit Agreement or the other Loan 
Documents or any of the instruments or agreements referred to therein, as the 
same may be amended or modified from time to time. References i n the Credit 
Agreement (including references to such Credit Agreement 

<PAGE> 

as amended hereby) to "t h i s Agreement" (and i n d i r e c t references such as 
"hereunder", "hereby", "herein", and "hereof") and i n any Loan Document to the 
Credit Agreement shall be deemed to be references to the Credit Agreement as 
amended hereby . 

Section 6. Representations and Warranties/No Default. By i t s execution 
hereof, the Borrower hereby c e r t i f i e s (a) that, p r i o r to and immediately a f t e r 
giving effect to the Transactions, each of the representations and warranties 
set f o r t h i n the Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents i s true and 
correct as of the date hereof as i f f u l l y set f o r t h herein (other than 
representations and warranties which speak as of a specific date, which 
representations and warranties shall have been true and correct as of such 
specific dates), (b) that the execution, delivery and performance of t h i s 
Amendment have been authorized by a l l requisite action on the part of the 
Borrower and (c) that as of the date hereof and a f t e r given effect to t h i s 
Amendment, no Default or Event of Default has occurred and i s continuing or 
would result due to the consummation of the Transactions. 

Section 7. Expenses. The Borrowers shall pay a l l reasonable out-of-pocket 
expenses of the Administrative Agent in connection with the preparation, 
execution and delivery of t h i s Amendment, including without l i m i t a t i o n , the 
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for the Administrative Agent. 

Section 8. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed 
i n accordance with the laws of the State of New York. 

Section 9. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed i n separate 
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered i s an o r i g i n a l but a l l 
of which taken together constitute one and the same instrument. 

[Signature Pages Follow] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the p a r t i e s h e r e t o have caused t h i s Amendment t o be 
executed by t h e i r r e s p e c t i v e o f f i c e r s t hereunto d u l y a u t h o r i z e d , as of the date 
f i r s t above w r i t t e n . 

SUBURBAN PROPANE, L.P., as Borrower, 
on beh a l f of i t s e l f and the Guarantors 

By: /s/ Michael J. Dunn, J r . 

Name: Michael J. Dunn, J r . 
T i t l e : Senior Vice President 

WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Agent and as Lender 

By: /s/ Mark D. Weir 

Name: Mark D. Weir 
T i t l e : Vice President 

FLEET NATIONAL BANK, 
as S y n d i c a t i o n Agent and as Lender 

By; /s/ H. Louis B a i l e y 

Name: H. Louis B a i l e y 
T i t l e : Managing D i r e c t o r 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as Lender 

By: /s/ Ernest Fung 

Name: Ernest Fung 
T i t l e : vice President 
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NATIONAL CITY BANK, as Lender 

By: /s/ Heather M. Mclntyre 

Name: Heather M. Mclntyre 
T i t l e : Assistant Vice President 

FIRSTRUST BANK, as Lender 

By: I s i Kent Nelson 

Name: Kent Nelson 
T i t l e : Senior Vice President 

<PAGE* 

Annex I to F i r s t Amendment 

Description of the Transactions 

The Borrower proposes to purchase (the "Acquisition") substantially a l l of the 
assets (the "Purchased Assets") and to assume certain l i a b i l i t i e s of Agway 
Energy Products, LLC, Agway Energy Services, Inc. and Agway Energy Services PA, 
Inc. ( c o l l e c t i v e l y , the "Sellers"). The purchase price for the Purchased Assets 
i s approximately $210 m i l l i o n (subject to adjustment pursuant to the terms of 
the Asset Purchase Agreement between the Borrower and the Sellers), a portion of 
which w i l l be held i n escrow to fund environmental, tax and general indemnity 
obligations of the Sellers. The purchase price and the fees and expenses related 
to the Acquisition w i l l be funded through an equity contribution to the Borrower 
by Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. (the "Parent"), from the proceeds of (a) a 
bridge f a c i l i t y and/or (b) the combination of an equity issuance by the Parent 
and a high y i e l d o f f e r i n g by the Parent, which such bridge f a c i l i t y , high y i e l d 
o f f e r i n g or other Indebtedness incurred by the Parent i n connection with the 
Acquisition ( i ) s hall not exceed the purchase price for the Purchased Assets 
plus the fees and expenses related to the Acquisition, ( i i ) s hall be unsecured 
and ( i i i ) s h a l l not be guaranteed by the Borrower or any of i t s Subsidiaries. 
Following consummation of the Acquisition, the Borrower may contribute the 
Purchased Assets to existing or newly-created Subsidiaries of the Borrower. 

</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT* 
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<DOCUMENT* 
<TYPE>EX-23 
<SEQUENCE*4 
<FILENAME*ex23_0903. t x t 
<DESCRIPTION>SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. CONSENT 
<TEXT* 

EXHIBIT 23.1 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

We hereby consent t o the i n c o r p o r a t i o n by reference i n the R e g i s t r a t i o n 
Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-104415 and 333-109714) and Form S-8 (No. 
333-10197 and No. 333-72972) of our r e p o r t dated October 23, 2003 r e l a t i n g t o 
the f i n a n c i a l statements and f i n a n c i a l statement schedule, which appears i n the 
Suburban Propane Partners, L.P.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K f o r the year ended 
September 27, 2003. We a l s o consent t o the i n c o r p o r a t i o n by reference i n such 
r e g i s t r a t i o n statements of our r e p o r t dated October 23, 2003 on the f i n a n c i a l 
statements of Suburban Energy Services Group LLC, which appears i n such Annual 
Report on Form 10-K. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Florham Park, NJ 
December 2, 2003 

</TEXT* 
</D0CUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT* 
<TYPE*EX-32 
<SEQUENCE*5 
<FILENAME*ex906_maa903. t x t 
<DESCRIPTION>SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. 906 CERT - 32.1 
<TEXT> 

EXHIBIT 32 .1 

C e r t i f i c a t i o n of the President and Chief Executive O f f i c e r Pursuant t o 
IS U.S.C. Section 1350, 
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as Adopted Pursuant t o 

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

I n connection w i t h the Annual Report of Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. (the 
"Par t n e r s h i p " ) on Form 10-K f o r the p e r i o d ended September 27, 2003 as f i l e d 
w i t h the S e c u r i t i e s and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report") , 
I , Hark A. Alexander, Chief Executive O f f i c e r and President of the Pa r t n e r s h i p , 
c e r t i f y , pursuant t o 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant t o ss. 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, t h a t t o my knowledge: 

(1) The Report f u l l y complies w i t h the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15{d) 
of the S e c u r i t i e s Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The i n f o r m a t i o n contained i n the Report f a i r l y presents, i n a l l m a t e r i a l 
r e s p e c t s , the f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n and r e s u l t s of ope r a t i o n s of the 
P a r t n e r s h i p . 

/s/ Mark A. Alexander 

Mark A. Alexander 
President and Chief Executive O f f i c e r 
December 2, 2003 

A signed o r i g i n a l of t h i s w r i t t e n statement r e q u i r e d by Section 906 has been 
prov i d e d t o t h e P a r t n e r s h i p and w i l l be r e t a i n e d by the Pa r t n e r s h i p and 
f u r n i s h e d t o t h e S e c u r i t i e s and Exchange Commission or i t s s t a f f upon request. 

This c e r t i f i c a t i o n s h a l l not be deemed " f i l e d " f o r purposes of Section 18 of the 
S e c u r i t i e s Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange A c t " ) , or 
in c o r p o r a t e d by reference i n any f i l i n g under the S e c u r i t i e s Act of 1933, as 
amended, or t h e Exchange Act, except as s h a l l be expressly set f o r t h by s p e c i f i c 
r e f e r e n c e i n such a f i l i n g . 

<;/TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT* 
<TYPE>EX-32 
<SEQUENCE*6 
<FILENAME*ex906_rmp903.txt 
<DESCRIPTION>SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. 906 CERT - 32.2 
<TEXT> 

EXHIBIT 32.2 
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CertificaCion of the vice President and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, 
as Adopted Pursuant to 

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

In connection with the Annual Report of Suburban Propane Partners, L.P. (the 
"Partnership") on Form 10-K fo r the period ended September 27, 2003 as f i l e d 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), 
I , Robert M. Plante, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the 
Partnership, c e r t i f y , pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant to ss. 
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge: 

(1) The Report f u l l y complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained i n the Report f a i r l y presents, i n a l l material 
respects, the fi n a n c i a l condition and results of operations of the 
Partnership. 

/s/ Robert M. Plante 

Robert M. Plante 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
December 2, 2003 

A signed o r i g i n a l of t h i s w r i t t e n statement required by Section 906 has been 
provided to the Partnership and w i l l be retained by the Partnership and 
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or i t s s t a f f upon request. 

This c e r t i f i c a t i o n shall not be deemed " f i l e d " for purposes of Section 18 of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), or 
incorporated by reference i n any f i l i n g under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, or the Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly set f o r t h by specific 
reference i n such a f i l i n g . 

</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
<D0CUMENT> 
<TYPE>EX-31 
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<SEQUENCE>7 
<FILENAME:>ex3O2_maa903 . t x t 
<DESCRIPTION>SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. 302 CERT - 31.1 
<TEXT> 

EXHIBIT 31.1 

C e r t i f i c a t i o n of the President and Chief Executive O f f i c e r Pursuant t o 
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, 
as Adopted Pursuant t o 

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

I , Mark A. Alexander, c e r t i f y t h a t : 

1. I have reviewed t h i s Annual Report on Form 10-K of Suburban Propane 
Partners, L. P . ; 

2. Based on my knowledge, t h i s r e p o r t does not c o n t a i n any untrue statement of 
a m a t e r i a l f a c t or omit t o s t a t e a m a t e r i a l f a c t necessary t o make the 
statements made, i n l i g h t of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not mis l e a d i n g w i t h respect t o the p e r i o d covered by t h i s 
r e p o r t ,-

3. Based on my knowledge, the f i n a n c i a l statements, and oth e r f i n a n c i a l 
i n f o r m a t i o n i n c l u d e d i n t h i s r e p o r t , f a i r l y present i n a l l m a t e r i a l 
respects the f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n , r e s u l t s of operations and cash flows of 
the r e g i s t r a n t as of , and f o r , the pe r i o d s presented i n t h i s r e p o r t ; 

4. The r e g i s t r a n t ' s o t h e r c e r t i f y i n g o f f i c e r and I are res p o n s i b l e f o r 
e s t a b l i s h i n g and m a i n t a i n i n g d i s c l o s u r e c o n t r o l s and procedures (as d e f i n e d 
i n Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) f o r the r e g i s t r a n t and have: 

a) Designed such d i s c l o s u r e c o n t r o l s and procedures, or caused such 
d i s c l o s u r e c o n t r o l s and procedures t o be designed under our 
s u p e r v i s i o n , t o ensure t h a t m a t e r i a l i n f o r m a t i o n r e l a t i n g t o the 
r e g i s t r a n t , i n c l u d i n g i t s c o n s o l i d a t e d s u b s i d i a r i e s , i s made known t o 
us by o t h e r s w i t h i n those e n t i t i e s , p a r t i c u l a r l y d u r i n g the p e r i o d i n 
which t h i s r e p o r t i s being prepared; 

b! Evaluated the e f f e c t i v e n e s s of the r e g i s t r a n t ' s d i s c l o s u r e c o n t r o l s 
and procedures and presented i n t h i s r e p o r t our conclusions about the 
e f f e c t i v e n e s s of the d i s c l o s u r e c o n t r o l s and procedures, as of the end 
of t h e p e r i o d covered by t h i s r e p o r t based on such e v a l u a t i o n ; and 

c) D i s c l o s e d i n t h i s r e p o r t any change i n the r e g i s t r a n t ' s i n t e r n a l 
c o n t r o l over f i n a n c i a l r e p o r t i n g t h a t occurred d u r i n g the r e g i s t r a n t ' s 
most recent f i s c a l q u a r t e r t h a t has m a t e r i a l l y a f f e c t e d , or i s 
reasonably l i k e l y t o m a t e r i a l l y a f f e c t , the r e g i s t r a n t ' s i n t e r n a l 
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c o n t r o l over f i n a n c i a l reporting,- and 

5. The reg i s t r a n t ' s other c e r t i f y i n g o f f i c e r and I have disclosed, based on 
our most recent evaluation of in t e r n a l control over f i n a n c i a l reporting, to 
the r e g i s t r a n t ' s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's Board 
of Supervisors: 

a) A l l s i g n i f i c a n t deficiencies and material weaknesses i n the design or 
operation of in t e r n a l control over fi n a n c i a l reporting which are 
reasonably l i k e l y to adversely a f f e c t the registrant's a b i l i t y to 
record, process, summarize and report f i n a n c i a l information; and 

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other 
employees who have a s i g n i f i c a n t role i n the registrant's i n t e r n a l 
c o n t r o l over f i n a n c i a l reporting. 

E-ecember 2, 2003 

/s/ MARK A. ALEXANDER 

Mark A. Alexander 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

</TEXT> 
</D0CUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT> 
<TYPE>EX-31 
<SEQUENCE>8 
<FILENAME>ex302_rmp903 . t x t 
<DESCRIPTION>SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. 302 CERT - 31.2 
<TEXT> 

EXHIBIT 31.2 

C e r t i f i c a t i o n of the Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, 
as Adopted Pursuant to 

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

I , Robert M. Plante, c e r t i f y that: 

1. I have reviewed t h i s Annual Report on Form 10-K of Suburban Propane 
Partners, L.P.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, t h i s report does not contain any untrue statement of 
a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
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stacements made, i n l i g h t of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by t h i s 
report 

3. Based on my knowledge, the f i n a n c i a l statements, and other f i n a n c i a l 
information included i n t h i s report, f a i r l y present i n a l l material 
respects the f i n a n c i a l condition, results of operations and cash flows of 
the r e g i s t r a n t as of, and for, the periods presented i n t h i s report; 

4. The re g i s t r a n t ' s other c e r t i f y i n g o f f i c e r and I are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have: 

(a} Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such 
disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information r e l a t i n g to the 
re g i s t r a n t , including i t s consolidated subsidiaries, i s made known to 
us by others within those e n t i t i e s , p a r t i c u l a r l y during the period i n 
which t h i s report i s being prepared; 

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls 
and procedures and presented i n t h i s report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end 
of the period covered by t h i s report based on such evaluation; and 

(c) Disclosed i n t h i s report any change i n the registrant's i n t e r n a l 
c o n t r o l over f i n a n c i a l reporting that occurred during the registrant's 
most recent f i s c a l quarter that has materially affected, or i s 
reasonably l i k e l y to materially a f f e c t , the registrant's i n t e r n a l 
c o n t r o l over f i n a n c i a l reporting; and 

5. The regist r a n t ' s other c e r t i f y i n g o f f i c e r and I have disclosed, based on 
our most recent evaluation of inter n a l control over fi n a n c i a l reporting, to 
the reg i s t r a n t ' s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's Board 
of Supervisors: 

(a) A l l s i g n i f i c a n t deficiencies and material weaknesses i n the design or 
operation of in t e r n a l control over f i n a n c i a l reporting which are 
reasonably l i k e l y to adversely a f f e c t the registrant's a b i l i t y to 
record, process, summarize and report f i n a n c i a l information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other 
employees who have a s i g n i f i c a n t role i n the registrant's i n t e r n a l 
c o n t r o l over f i n a n c i a l reporting. 

December 2, 2003 
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/s/ ROBERT M. PLANTE 

Robert M. Plante 
Vice President and Chief 
F i n a n c i a l O f f i c e r 

</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
<DOCUMENT> 
<TYPE>EX-21 
<SEQUENCE>9 
<FILENAME>ex21_09 0 3 . t x t 
<DESCRIPTION>SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. SUBSIDIARIES 
<TEXT> 

EXHIBIT 21.1 

SUBSIDIARIES OF SUBURBAN PROPANE PARTNERS, L.P. 

Suburban Propane, L.P., a Delaware l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p 

Suburban Sales & Service, I n c . , a Delaware c o r p o r a t i o n 

Suburban Holdings, I n c . , a Delaware c o r p o r a t i o n 

Gas Connection, i n c . , an Oregon c o r p o r a t i o n 

Suburban ® Home, I n c . , a Delaware c o r p o r a t i o n 

Suburban F r a n c h i s i n g , i n c . , a Nevada c o r p o r a t i o n 

</TEXT> 
</DOCUMENT> 
</SEC-DOCUMENT> 

END PRIVACY-ENHANCED MESSAGE-

lmp:/Avww.sec.gov/Arcliives/edgai7data/1005210/000100521003000038/0001005210-03-000038.txt l/S/2004 



COMMONWEAL 77/ OF PEIWSYL yA.WIA 

DATE: February 18, 2004 

SUBJECT: A-125036 
A-125125 

TO: Bureau of Fixed Utility Services 

FROM: James J. McNulty, Secretai 

D0CUMEN1 
FOLDER 

On January 2, 2004, Agway Energy Services-PA, 
Inc., filed a petition to transfer the assets of Agway Energy 
Services-PA, Inc., to an affiliate, Suburban Natural Gas and 
Electricity, LLC. This was assigned'to your Bureau on 
February 10, 2004. 

The purpose of this memo is to acknowledge 
the name change of Suburban Natural Gas and 
Electricity, LLC to Agway Energy Services, LLC, and to 
provide the new docket number for Agway Energy 
Services, LLC, of A-125125. 

cc: Law 

ddt 

FEB 1 8 2004 



5 ^ / COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
P. O. BOX 3265, HARRISBURG PA 17105-3265 

February 27, 2004 

IN REPLY PLEASE 
REFER TO OUR FILE 

Secretary 
717-772-7777 

A-125125 
A-125036F2000 

SCOTT H DEBROFF, ESQUIRE 
DEBROFF CONSULTING GROUP 
4709 PINE RIDGE ROAD 
HARRISBURG PA 17110 

Dear Mr. DeBroff: 

The Application of Agway Energy Services, LLC, filed in this Office on February 
23, 2004, for approval to supply Natural Gas Services as a supplier of natural gas 
services, and a as a broker/marketer/aggregator engaged in the business of supplying 
natural gas services, is hereby acknowledged. 

Pursuant to the Commission's Final Order, entered July 16, 1999, at M-
00991249F0002, all entities wishing to engage in the business of a natural gas supplier 
must hold a license issued by the Commission, in order to provide services starting 
November 1, 1999. 

The application of Agway Energy Services, LLC, will receive the attention of 1 

the Commission, and you will be advised of any further necessary procedure. 

Please note that docket number A-125036F2000 represents the abandonment of 
Agway Energy Services-Pa, Inc.'s natural gas supplier license at A-125036. Docket 
number A-125125 is the docket number for Agway Energy Services, LLC. 

DOCUMENT 
FOLDER 

JJM:ddt 

cc: Janice Meola, Esquire 

FEB 2 7 2004 

Sincerely, 

James J. McNulty 
Secretary 

< " 



DATE: 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 

February 27, 2004 

SUBJECT: A-125125 
A-125036F2000 

TO: Bureau of Fixed Utility Services 

FROM: James J. McNulty, Secret^ $A 

Attached is a copy of the Application of Agway 
Energy Services, LLC, for a license to supply Natural Gas 
Services as a supplier of natural gas, broker, marketer and 
aggregator engaged in the business of supplying natural gas 
services to the public in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

This matter is assigned to your Bureau for 
appropriate action. 

Please note docket number A-125036F2000 is for the 
abandonment of Agway Energy Services-PA, Inc.'s natural gas 
supplier license. Docket number A-125125 represents Agway 
Energy Services, LLC's license as a natural gas supplier. 

Attachment 

cc: Law 

ddt 
DOCUMEN 
FOLDER 

FEB 2 7 2004 
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ft 
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

RECEIPT 

The addressee named here has paid the PA P.U.C. for the following bill: 

SUBURBAN PROPANE, L.P. 
240 ROUTE 10 WEST 
WHIPPANY NJ 07981 

IN RE: Application fees for SUBURBAN PROPANE, L.P. 

Docket Number A-125125 $350.00 

REVENUE ACCOUNT: 001780-017601-102 

CHECK NUMBER: 008700101 
CHECK AMOUNT: $350.00 

DATE 3/15/2004 
RECEIPT # 201807 

30 2004 

•Or Joseph Meisinger 
(for Department 6f Revenue) 


